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AUGUST 2600

STAFF COMMENT: Article 7-13 contains all new material and is not
underscored so as to improve readability.

. ARTICLE 7-13
MEAT INSPECTION
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7-13-01-061. History. The first law providing inspection of meat
slaughtering and processing facilities was enacted in 1951 as the
standards for meat inspection, sanitation, and distribution under North
Dakota Century Code chapter 36-23 (S.B. No. 201; S.L. 1951, ch. 223).
In 1969, the existing meat inspection program was repealed because of
disorganization caused by the lack of inspector training, inconsistency,
and lack of guidance in the regulations (S.B. No. 251; S.L. 1969,
ch. 322, § 10). It was immediately replaced by the North Dakota Meat
Inspection Act under North Dakota Century Code chapter 36-23.1 (S.B.
No. 251; S.L. 1969, ch. 322, §§ 1-8). This Act made the United States
department of agriculture the only agency in North Dakota providing
carcass inspection and inspection for meat slaughtering and processing
facilities. North Dakota Century Code chapter 36-23.1 was repealed in
1991 (H.B. No. 1478; S.L. 1991, ch. 377, § 3).

In 1999, House Bill No. 1290 created a state meat inspection
program, giving the North Dakota department of agriculture the authority
to make rules and implement inspection of meat slaughtering and
processing establishments, including custom-exempt plants. The intent

of the program is to allow small and medium livestock producers more
opportunities to market their animal products and to provide a means for
processing alternative or nontraditional livestock.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-24

7-13-01-02. Inquiries. All inquiries regarding the state meat
inspection program should be directed to:

North Dakota Department of Agriculture
Director - Meat Inspection Program

600 East Boulevard Avenue, Dept. 602
Bismarck, ND 58505-0020

Telephone: 701-328-2231

Facsimile: 701-328-4567

E-mail: ndda@state.nd.us

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-24

7-13-01-03. Federal law. All federal meat inspection regulations
effective as of August 1, 2000, as provided under title 9, Code of
Federal Regulations, parts 301-320, 325, 329, 416-417, and 560, but
excluding parts 307.4 and 307.5, are incorporated by reference and made
a part of this title.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-24



Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-18, 36-24-24

7-13-01-64. Definitions. The terms used throughout this article
have the same meaning as in title 9, Code of Federal Regulations,
part 301, unless already defined in North Dakota Century Code section
36-24-01, in which case the North Dakota Century Code definitions shall
govern. In addition, as used in this chapter or in applying title 9,
Code of Federal Regulations, part 301:

1. "Administrator" as the term is used in title 9, Code of
Federal Regulations, means the North Dakota agriculture
commissioner unless made inappropriate by context.

2. "Commissioner" means the North Dakota agriculture commissioner
or the agriculture commissioner's authorized representative.

3. '"Department" means the North Dakota department of agriculture.

4, "Federal Act" means the Federal Meat Inspection Act, as
amended [Pub. L. 90-201; 21 U.S.C. 601 et seq.].

5. "Food safety inspection service" or "FSIS" as used in title 9,
Code of Federal Regulations, means the North Dakota
agriculture commissioner unless made inappropriate by context.

6. "Official establishment" means a plant, facility, operation,
or premises where animals are slaughtered for human
consumption, or a plant or premises where meat or meat food
products are processed, but does not include:

a. Establishments subject to federal inspection.

b. Premises of a person who is the owner of the animals to be
slaughtered or of carcasses to be processed, and the
resulting product is for exclusive use by that person,
members of that person's household, or that person's
nonpaying guests and employees.

7. "Overtime" means any time when meat inspection personnel are
requested to work in an establishment, as follows:

a. Saturday or Sunday.

b. New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Day, Presidents' Day,
Good Friday, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day,
Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day. If
any such holiday falls on Saturday or Sunday, the
preceding Friday or succeeding Monday, respectively, shall
be a holiday.

c. The day before Christmas Day and the day before New Year's
Day.



d. Before 6 a.m. or after 6 p.m.

e. In excess of forty hours of "straight time" in any
calendar week.

f. At any time other than a regularly scheduled slaughter
period.

g. When an owner of an animal requests slaughter inspection
from an official establishment at a nonregularly scheduled
time.

"Overtime" does not include time spent traveling to or from an
establishment.

8. '"Secretary" or "secretary of agriculture" as used in title 9,
Code of Federal Regulations, means the North Dakota
agriculture commissioner unless made inappropriate by context.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-24

7-13-01-05. Access authorization. In addition to the access
requirements under North Dakota Century Code section 36-24-03, the
commissioner and any authorized representative shall have access to
establishments where carcasses are stored or processed or where animals
are slaughtered.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-18, 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-03, 36-24-14



CHAPTER 7-13-02 .
REGISTRATION AMD RECORDS REQUIREMENTS

Section
7-13-02-01 Registration Required
7-13-02-02 Registration Period - Registration Number
7-13-02-03 Records Requirement
7-13-02-01. Registration required. Any slaughtering

establishment, meat processing establishment, or custom-exempt plant
that is required to be inspected pursuant to North Dakota Century Code
chapter 36-24 to operate under this chapter must register annually with
the department of agriculture on forms approved by the commissioner.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-18, 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-16

7-13-02-02. Registration period - Registration number.
Registration for slaughter establishments, processing establishments,
and custom-exempt plants is valid for one year. All registrations will
expire annually on June thirtieth. Each registered establishment will
be assigned a number that may not be transferred from one person or
establishment to another.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-24

7-13-02-03. Records requirement. Any slaughtering establishment,
meat processing establishment, or custom-exempt plant that is required
to be inspected pursuant to North Dakota Century Code chapter 36-24 to
operate under this chapter must prepare and maintain those records
required under title 9, Code of Federal Regulations, part 320.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-15
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-13, 36-24-14, 36-24-15



CHAPTER 7-13-03
MARKS AND LABELS

Section

7-13-03-01 Standards of Identity
7-13-03-02 Required Labeling
7-13-03-03 Department Review of Labels
7-13-03-04 Official Marks

7-13-03-05 Official State Marks

7-13-03-61. Standards of identity. The composition of any meat
or meat food product; whether or not in naturally occurring, processed,
or composite and processed form; which is prepared, stored, handled,
sold, or offered for sale in any establishment must comply with the
definitions and standards of identity for such products as provided in
title 9, Code of Federal Regulations, part 319.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-04

7-13-03-02. Required 1labeling. Any meat or meat food product
offered for sale or barter must bear an appropriate label as provided in
title 9, Code of Federal Regulations, part 317.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-04

7-13-03-03. Department review of labels. All formulas, labels,
and labeling information used in the labeling of meat or meat food
products in registered establishments must be submitted to the
department for review prior to use. The department may seize and
destroy all unauthorized labels.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-07



7-13-03-084. Official marks. A person may not offer for sale or
barter any meat or meat food product that is not properly marked or

labeled as provided by title 9, Code of Federal Regulations, parts 312,
316, and 317.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-07

7-13-03-05. Official state marks. The official mark used by
state inspectors will be as prescribed in title 9, Code of Federal
Regulations, parts 312 and 316, except that the letters "U.S." shall be
replaced with the words "North Dakota", unless federal law 1is changed
requiring that such product be stamped U.S. inspected. The commissioner
may prescribe the size and shape of the official mark.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-04, 36-24-05



CHAPTER 7-13-04
CUSTOM SLAUGHTERING AND PROCESSING

Section

7-13-04-01 Marking of Products

7-13-04-02 Prohibited Sales

7-13-04-03 Farm Slaughter and Game Animals
7-13-04-04 Sanitary Requirements

7-13-04-01. Marking of products. All custom-exempt plants are
required to mark all custom-exempt meat and meat food products with the
words "NOT FOR SALE", stamped in block letters. The letters must be at
least three-eighths of one inch [0.95 centimeter] in height. Stamps,
brands, and marks for custom-exempt meat and meat food product
identification must be preapproved by the department.

1. Each side, quarter, or other part of a carcass, including
detached organs or custom slaughtered or custom processed
animals, must be Tlegibly marked immediately after slaughter
or, if the animal is not slaughtered at the plant, at the time
the meat enters the plant for processing.

2. All boxes, cartons, packages, or containers of custom
processed meat or meat food products must be marked at the
time of packaging with the name of the facility, or the
registration number assigned by the department, with the words
“NOT FOR SALE" at least three-eighths of one inch [0.95
centimeter] in height set forth in block Tetters.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-04, 36-24-07

7-13-04-02. Prohibited sales. A person or slaughtering
establishment, meat processing establishment, or custom-exempt plant
that is required to be inspected pursuant to North Dakota Century Code
chapter 36-24 to operate under this chapter may not offer for sale or
for barter any noninspected carcasses or parts of carcasses.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-06

7-13-04-03. Farm slaughter and game animals. Animals slaughtered
on the farm, or game animals, may be processed at facilities under the
same provisions as custom slaughtering or processing, provided that such
animal carcasses are clean and wholesome and are handled, stored, and
prepared so as to prevent the contamination of other food products
handled, stored, or prepared at the plant. A person may not offer for
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sale or barter any meat, meat byproduct, or any meat food product
slaughtered or processed in this method.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-11, 36-24-12, 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-10, 36-24-11

7-13-04-04. Sanitary requirements. A person or facility may not
conduct custom slaughtering, custom processing, or custom-exempt
operations unless such operations are conducted in accordance with the
sanitary requirements under title 9, Code of Federal Regulations, part
303.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-11
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CHAPTER 7-13-05
SLAUGHTER REQUIREMENTS

Section

7-13-05-01 Antemortem Inspections

7-13-05-02 Post-Mortem Inspections

7-13-05-03 Pathogen Reduction Performance Standards

7-13-05-04 Condemned and Inedible

7-13-05-05 Dead, Dying, Disabled, or Diseased Animals
7-13-05-06 Humane Slaughter of Livestock - Religious Exemption
7-13-05-07 Horse Slaughter

7-13-05-01. Antemortem inspections. For the purpose of
preventing the entry into or movement in intrastate commerce of any meat
or meat food product that is adulterated and is capable of use as human
food, the commissioner shall cause antemortem inspection to be made of
all cattle, swine, sheep, goats, farmed cervidae, 1lama, ratite, horses,
equines, and other large domesticated animal, not including poultry,
intended for slaughter in any establishment in this state where animals
are slaughtered solely for intrastate commerce. Meat and meat food
products inspected and passed under this title may be shipped in
interstate commerce when federal law permits state-inspected meat and
meat food products to be marketed interstate. All antemortem
inspections must be done in accordance with title 9, Code of Federal
Regulations, part 309.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-18, 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-24

7-13-05-02. Post-mortem inspections. Except for poultry, the
commissioner shall cause post-mortem inspections to be made on all
carcasses and parts thereof of cattle, swine, sheep, goats, farmed
cervidae, 1lama, ratite, horses, equines, and other 1large domesticated
animal, usable as human food prepared at a slaughtering, meat canning,
salting, packing, rendering, or similar establishment in this state in
which carcasses or parts thereof are prepared solely for intrastate
commerce. Animal carcasses or parts thereof determined to be
unadulterated must be marked, stamped, tagged, or labeled as "Inspected
and Passed". Inspectors shall label, mark, stamp, or tag as "Inspected
and Condemned® animal carcasses or parts thereof found to be
adulterated. Carcasses or animal parts inspected and condemned must be
destroyed for food purposes by the establishment in the presence of an
inspector. Meat and meat food products inspected and passed under this
title may be shipped 1in interstate commerce when federal law permits
state-inspected meat and meat food products to be marketed interstate.
A1l inspections are to be done in accordance with title 9, Code of
Federal Regulations, part 310.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
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General Authority: NDCC 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-24

7-13-05-03. Pathogen reduction performance standards.
Establishments that slaughter cattle, sheep, goats, equines, or swine
shall collect and test samples as required in title 9, Code of Federal
Regulations, part 310.

History: Effective August 1, 2000,
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-24

7-13-05-04. Condemned and inedible. All animal carcasses or
parts thereof, meat, and meat food products found by an inspector to be
adulterated in any establishment must be condemned and must be destroyed
for human food purposes under the supervision of an inspector and in a
manner prescribed by the commissioner. But such carcass or part, meat,
or meat food product that may, by reprocessing, be made not adulterated,
need not be condemned and destroyed if reprocessed under the supervision
of an inspector and thereafter found to be unadulterated. The
commissioner may remove inspectors from an establishement that fails to
destroy a condemned animal carcass or part. A person may not sell,
donate, transport, or offer or receive for sale or transportation, in
this state, any such carcasses or parts thereof, meat, or meat food
products which are not intended for use as human food unless they are
denatured or otherwise identified as required by the comm1ssxoner or are
naturally inedible by humans.

History: Effective August 1, 2000,
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-17
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-17

7-13-05-065, Dead, dying, disabled, or diseased animals. Any
animal determined to be dead, dying, disabled, or diseased must be
handled in accordance with title 9, Code of Federal Regulations,
part 309.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-17
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-17

7-13-65-06. Humane slaughter of livestock - Religious exemption.
To prevent the inhumane slaughter of animals, the commissioner shall
cause to be made an examination and inspection of the method by which
animals are slaughtered and handled in the slaughtering establishments
1nspected under North Dakota Century Code chapter 36-24. The
commissioner may refuse to provide inspection to a new slaughtering
establishment or may suspend inspections at a slaughtering establishment
if the commissioner finds that any animal has been slaughtered or
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handled at such establishment by any method that is not in accordance
with title 9, Code of Federal Regulations, part 313. The commissioner
may cause inspection services to begin or resume after the establishment
furnishes satisfactory assurance to the commissioner that all animal
slaughtering and handling are in accordance with such method. The
commissioner may permit slaughter methods in accordance with religious
ritual requirements, provided that such slaughter methods are recognized
and approved by the governing authority of that religious sect or group.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-18, 36-24-24

7-13-05-07. Horse slaughter. The slaughter of horses, mules, and
other equines and the preparation and handling of the products thereof
must be conducted in establishments separate from those used for the
staughter and preparation of other animals. All carcasses, parts, meat,
meat food products, or other products thereof must be conspicuously
labeled, marked, branded, or tagged "Horse Meat" or "Horse Meat Product"
by a method approved by the department.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 36-24-08
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-08

14



CHAPTER 7-13-06
FACILITY REQUIREMENTS

Section

7-13-06-01 Designated Inspection Hours
7-13-06-02 Inspection Fees

7-13-06-03 Facility Review Requirement

7-13-06-01. Designated inspection hours. Establishments shall
designate to the department regular inspection days and hours for
requested inspection services, subject to department approval.
Establishments doing custom slaughter or custom processing shall do so
only on designated hours or days apart from the regular inspection
schedule unless preapproved by the department.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-02

7-13-06-02. Inspection fees. Except for overtime hours,
inspection fees for providing meat inspection services will not be
charged to a person or establishment requiring those services. Overtime
incurred by the department for providing meat inspection services
requested by a person or establishment will be charged at such rates as
the commissioner may determine from time to time. The commissioner may
waive overtime charges to establishments.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-24

7-13-06-03. Facility review requirement. New establishment
construction plans or alterations to an existing establishment must be
submitted to the department for review prior to construction. Plans
must contain sufficient detail for the department to review all
additions or modifications to slaughtering or processing areas on the
establishment premises.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-24
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CHAPTER 7-13-07

REINSPECTION
Section
7-13-07-01 Reinspection
7-13-07-02 Adulteration or Misbranding

7-13-067-01. Reinspection. After the first inspection,
inspectors, if they consider it necessary, shall reinspect the animal
carcasses, meat, meat byproducts, meat food products, or parts thereof
to determine whether such carcasses, meat, meat byproducts, meat food
products, or parts have become adulterated since the first inspection.
If an animal carcass, meat, meat byproducts, meat food products, or
animal part is then found to be adulterated, it must be destroyed for
food purposes by the establishment in the presence of an inspector.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-24

7-13-07-02. Adulteration or misbranding. A person or any
slaughtering establishment, meat processing establishment, or
custom-exempt plant may not misbrand or adulterate any meat, meat
byproduct, or meat food product or misrepresent the products to its
customers.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-18
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CHAPTER 7-13-08

ENFORCEMENT
Section
7-13-08-01 Refusal or Withdrawal of Inspection
7-13-08-02 Regulatory Enforcement Action
7-13-08-03 Criminal Prosecution

7-13-08-01. Refusal or withdrawal of inspection. For the purpose
of enforcing North Dakota Century Code section 36-24-19, an offense
determined by the commissioner to have a direct bearing on the person's
ability to serve the public in a business requiring inspection under
North Dakota Century Code chapter 36-24 includes any felony conviction
in any federal or state court. This section does not limit in any way
other provisions of federal or state law for withdrawal of inspection
services from official establishments failing to maintain sanitary
conditions or destroy condemned carcasses, parts, meat, or meat food
products.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-19

7-13-08-02. Regulatory enforcement action. The commissioner
shall take regulatory control, withholding, or suspension action when
necessary, in accordance with the provisions of title 9, Code of Federal
Regulations, part 500, except that any complaint or hearing when allowed
or required under such action will be conducted in accordance with North
Dakota Century Code chapter 28-32.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-18, 36-24-19

7-13-08-03. Criminal prosecution, If an authorized
representative of the commissioner believes that a violation of North
Dakota Century Code chapter 36-24 or these rules has occurred, the
representative shall immediately report the violation to the
commissioner. The commissioner may refer the matter to the appropriate
authorities for prosecution or injunctive proceedings unless the
commissioner believes that a written warning will adequately serve the
public interest.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 36-24-24
Law Implemented: NDCC 36-24-18, 36-24-26
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JUNE 2000

CHAPTER 10-06-01

10-06-01-01. Definitions. The terms used throughout this article
have the same meaning as in North Dakota Century Code title 12 except:

1.

=

“Board" refers to those individuals who have been appointed by
the attorney general to the peace officer standards and
training board.

"Division" means the bureau of criminal justiee investigation
training amrd-statisties-divisien section of the office of the
attorney general.

“Buty--weapen!-is-the-weapen-nermaliy-carried-by-an-efficer-in
the-performance-of-the-officeris-duties: "Duty equipment" is
the equipment normally carried by an officer in the
performance of the officer's duties.

‘Buty-equipmenti-is-the-gun-belt;-helster;-and-sheli-helder-er
peuehes-or-speed-leaders-nermally-carried-by-an-efficer-in-the
performanee--of--the--offieeris--dutiess "Duty weapon" is the
weapon normally carried by an officer in the performance of
the officer's duties.

"Executive secretary" means the director of the bureau of
criminal investigation training section of the office of the
attorney general.

"Peace officer” means a public servant authorized by law or by
a government agency or branch to enforce the law and to
conduct or engage 1in investigations or prosecutions for
violations of law.

21



6z 7. ‘"Sidearm" is a pistol, semiautomatic, or revolver carried by a
peace officer.

History: Effective January 1, 1983; amended effective July 1, 1989;
June 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 12-62-02{6};-12-62-84; 12-63-04

ng Img1emented: NDCC  32-62-02{6};---12-62-84 12-63-06, 12-63-09,
12-63-11

. }0-66-01-11. Criteria for a certified shooting course. To be
certified, a shooting course must meet the following requirements:

1. The course must include a minimum of three firing positions,
such as:

a. Prone.
b. Sitting.
¢. Standing.
d. Kneeling.
e. Point shoulder.
f. Crouch.
g. Walking.
h. Barricade position.
2. The course must induce stress by the use of time, physical
activity, or night/low light conditions or a combination of

all three. A time limit for course completion must be stated.

3. The course must include firing from at least three different
yardages:

a. These yardages to be not less than one yard [0.91 meter]
nor more than twenty-five yards [22.86 meters].

b. The majority of firing to take place at seven yards [6.40
meters] or more.

4, The course must include the firing of at least eighteen but
not more than sixty rounds of ammunition from start to finish.

5. The course must be fired completely double-action (revolvers)

or semiautomatic mode (pistol) and include both strong and
weak-hand shooting.

22



The ammunition used when firing for annual qualification will
be ballistically similar to the same--quality ammunition
{brard;--weight;--veleeitys--etez} normally carried on duty.
AmmtRttioR-used-fer-practiee-can-be-determined-by--the--ageney
eondueting-the-trainings

The course must be fired using only the duty weapon and duty
equipment.

The target used must be a silhouette-type similar to the B-27
or a "duelatron" type, no bull's-eye target may be used.

Within seven days after the completion of a certified shooting

History:

course the certified weapons instructor shall forward to the
division a completed qualification form showing each student's
name, social security number, and agency; course name and
training location and date; whether or not the student scored
the minimum required; and whether or not certification is
recommended.

Effective January 1, 1983; amended effective July 1, 1989;

June 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 12-62-62({6};-12-62-04; 12-63-04
Law Implemented: NDCC  12-62-02{6};---12-62-04 12-63-06, 12-63-09,

12-63-11
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CHAPTER 10-06-02

10-06-02-01. Definitions. The terms used throughout this article
have the same meaning as in the North Dakota Century Code except:

1.

™

[

|=

|7

|~

[~

|

[

"Auxiliary personnel" means any indjvidual utilized by a
municipal, county, or state law enforcement agency to provide
service to that Jjurisdiction on a nonsalaried basis. These
individuals can be members of organized groups such as posse,
search and rescue, security at dances, etc., which operate
adjunct to a police or sheriff's department, and do not have
arrest powers or peace officer authority delegated to them by
the department. Nothing in these rules precludes pecuniary
remuneration to auxiliary officers for order maintenance and
security functions such as traffic and crowd control at
sporting events, parades, and other similar events.

"Board" refers to those individuals who have been appointed by

the attorney general to the peace officer standards and
training board.

"Certification" refers to a course of training that has
complied with the requirements of the board and has been
approved by the division.

"College credits" are credits earned for studies
satisfactorily completed at an accredited institution of
higher learning in a program leading to an academic degree.

"Department" is a law enforcement agency which is part of or
administered by the state or any political subdivision thereof
and which is responsible for the prevention and detection of
crime and the enforcement of penal, traffic, or highway laws
of North Dakota.

"Division" is the bureau of criminal justiee investigation
training and-statisties-divisien section of the office of the
attorney general.

"In-service" training refers to a certified training program
conducted by and for the members of a department or agency aqd
of one hour or more in durations-the. The training time is

t—————————

cumulative, i.e., six sessions of ten minutes each.

"Instructor" means an instructor certified by the board to
instruct law enforcement subjects.

"License requirement" means a person may not perform law

enforcement duties without having a license issued by the
board.
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9: 10. "Moral turpitude" means conduct contrary to justice, honesty,
modesty, or good morals.

10: 11.

[y
pam—y

"Peace officer (full time)" means a salaried public servant
authorized by taw-er-By a government agency or branch to
enforce the 1law or to conduct or engage in investigations or
prosecutions for violations of law who works twenty hours or
more per week averaged over a one-year period.

$i- 12. "Peace officer {part time)" means a salaried public servant
authorized by law-er-By a government agency or branch to
enforce the Tlaw or to conduct or engage in investigations or
prosecutions for violations of law who works less than twenty
hours per week averaged over a one-year period for any
individual agency or combination of agencies.

12: 13. "Reserve officer" means any individual utilized by a
municipal, county, or state law enforcement agency to provide
service to that Jjurisdiction on a nonsalaried basis and who
may be granted full arrest authority. Nothing in these rules
precliudes pecuniary remuneration to reserve officers for order
maintenance and security functions such as traffic and crowd
control at sporting events, parades, and other similar events.
However, payment on a full-time or part-time basis for the
performance of typical law enforcement duties involving the
detection and apprehension of law violators and the
investigation of crimes including routine criminal and traffic
patrol operations would require that such officer comply with
the training for peace officers (full-time full time and
part-time part time) as provided in this article.

13:--YAuxiliary--personnel!--means--any--individuat--utitized--by-a
muRi€ipal;-county;-er-state-taw-enforcement-ageney-te--provide
sepviee--to--that--jurisdietion-on-a-nonsalaried-basisr--These
individuals-ean-be-members-of-ergantzed-groups-sueh-as--posses
seareh--and--reseue;--seeurity--at-dancess-eters-which-operate
adjunet-to-a-police-or-sheriffis-department;-and-de--net--have
arrest--pewers-gr-peace-effieer-authority-delegated-te-them-by
the-departments--Nething-in-these--rutes--preeiudes--pecuniary
remdReratien--to--auxiliary-efficers-for-order-matntenance-and
seeurity-funetions--sueh--as--traffie--and--erewd--contro}--at
sperting-events;-paradess-and-ether-simitar-events:

14. "School" is any school, college, university, academy, or local
training program which offers law enforcement training and
includes within its meaning the combination of course
curriculum, instructors, and facilities.

15. "Training course" means any certified training program
approved by the board.

History: Effective January 1, 1983; amended effective July 1, 1989;

June 1, 2000.
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General Authority: NDCC 12-62-82({4};-12-62-84; 12-63-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 12-62-02{4};-12-62-64; 12-63-02

10-06-02-02.2. Compliance with sidearm authorization and
gualification as a condition of licensure. A license may not be issued,
renewed, or reinstated unless the person who is authorized to carry a
sidearm in the course of employment or in the performance of official
duties has satisfied the requirements of chapter 10-06-01.

History: Effective June 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 12-63-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 12-63-06, 12-63-09, 12-63-11

10-06-02-63. Compliance with minimum training standards.

1. Peace officers (full time) must shall satisfactorily complete
the first available basic course approved by the board from
the date of appointment and successfully pass the licensing
examination.

2. Peace officers (part time) shall satisfactorily complete a
basic training course or part-time officer correspondence
course approved by the board within one year of employment.

3. Reserve Training for reserve officers must-satisfacterily
complete-a-eourse-of-instruction--as--appreved--by--the--beard
within--ene--year--frem-the-date-of-appointment---FThe-training
will-be-conducted-1ocally-by-the-parent-er-anether-ageney may
not be specified by the board and must be lTeft up to the
discretion of the individual agency.

4, Training for auxiliary personnel shat} may not be specified by
the board and sha}} must be left up to the discretion of the
individual agency.

5. Extensions of the time required for completion of required
courses may be granted at the discretion of the board after
written request by the agency administrator in cases of
extreme hardship.

History: Effective January 1, 1983; amended effective July 1, 1989;
June 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 12-62-82{4};-12-62-045-12-62-685; 12-63-04

Law Implemented: NDCC  32-62-082{4};---12-62-84;---12-62-688; 12-63-02,
12-63-06

10-06-02-64.1. Limited license. Peace officers will be issued a
limited license until the basic course has satisfactorily been completed
and the licensing examination has been passed. Individuals shall take
the examination within thirty days after completing the basic training

26



program. Individuals will be permitted to take the examination a total
of twe three times befere-remedial-training--and--a--waiting--peried--is
impitemented. After the second unsuccessful attempt, and before retaking
the examination again, the individual shall successfully complete a
board-approved law enforcement basic training program ard-wait-fer-enre
year-befere-retaking-the-examination.

History: Effective July 1, 1989; amended effective June 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 12-63-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 12-63-02, 12-63-09

10-06-02-65. Waiver of required training.

1. A1l peace officers with experience or training outside of or
prior to the establishment of the board may qualify for a
waiver of any training requirement. Such an application
should be submitted through the administrator of the applying
officer's department on the form provided by the board. The
board shall review all such applications and shall have
authority to grant a complete or partial waiver. The
individual must successfully complete the licensing
examination, and upon its completion the board will determine
whether the complete or partial waiver is granted.

a. Training received 1in states with laws governing or
regulating police training must, if subject to such
review, have been approved or certified in the state in
which the training was received.

b. The board may elect to prescribe as a condition of
Ticensing supplementary or remedial training necessary to
equate previous training with current standards.

¢. The board is authorized to enter into standing reciprocity
compacts or agreements with those states which by law
regulate and supervise the quality of peace officer
training and which require a number of training hours
comparable to the current requirements for basic training
in North Dakota.

2. 1f a complete or partial waiver is granted by the board, the
individual will be allowed only one attempt to successfully
complete the Ticensing examination. If a passing score is not
obtained on the first attempt, the waiver is denied and the
individual will be required to complete the full basic
training before being allowed to take the Tlicensing
examination for the second time. :

[+

For the purpose of subsection 2 of North Dakota Century Code
section 12-63-08, a person may be certified as a peace officer
before July 1, 1989, if that person has completed basic
training, successfully completed one year of in-state Tlaw
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History:

enforcement employment, and has successfully completed the
probationary period of the person's current employer.
However, for those persons who have commenced employment with
a law enforcement agency after July 1, 1988, and who have
successfully completed the basic training, and sidearm
requirements, the board may grant a waiver of the written
examination requirement upon application for such waiver.

Effective January 1, 1983; amended effective July 1, 1989;

June 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 32-62-02{4};-12-62-04;-12-62-08; 12-63-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 12-62-02{4};---12-62-04;---12-62-68; 12-63-02,
12-63-06, 12-63-08

10-06-02-65.1. Licensing examinations.

1.

“History:

General Authority: NDCC 12-63-04

Application. Licensing examinations will be administered by
the division as required by the board. The applicant for any
licensing examination shall submit a written-application-en-a
ferm-previded-by-the-beard request prior to the date of the
examination. Am--applieatien The request must be accompanied
by the appropriate nonrefundable fee as set forth by the
board.

Retaking examinations. An applicant who fails an examination
will be allowed to retake that examination one time, upon
furnishing to the board a renewed writter-appiicatien request
and required fee. After the second unsuccessful attempt, and
before retaking the examination again, the individual must
successfully complete a board-approved law enforcement basic
training program anrd--wait--fer-ene-year-befere-retaking-the
examinatien.

Effective July 1, 1989; amended effective June 1, 2000.

Law Implemented: NDCC 12-63-02, 12-63-07

10-06-02-05.2. Licensing of peace officers.

1.

Appointees - Notification. The employing agency shall notify
the board of the appointment of any person to the position of
peace officer before the first day of the appointee's
employment. Notification must be made on a form provided by
the board, and it must include the appointee's full name, sex,
date of birth, social security number, the effective date of
the appointment, and an affirmation that the appointee has met
all selection standards as prescribed by law.

Application procedures. If the appointee is not already a

licensed peace officer, but is eligible to be Tlicensed, the
appointee shall apply to be licensed at the time of
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History:

appointment. Application must be made on a form provided by
the board, and both the applicant and the ehief--law
enforcement-offieer agency administrator shall affirm that the
applicant 1is eligible to be licensed. The applieant-shall
atse-submit-the required licensing fee must accompany the

application.

License certificate. The executive secretary shall issue a
license certificate to an applicant who has complied with the
requirements of law, and whose affirmations are consistent
with the division's records and payment of required fees. The
period of the initial licensure must be determined according
to the initial letter of the licensee's surnames and expires
as provided by law.

Fees. The following fees are nonrefundable:

a. Application for examination fee - twelve dollars and fifty
cents.

b. Out-ef-state--reeiprecity--apptieation--examinatien--fee--
twenty-five-dettarss

e€: License fee - the appropriate license fee is fifteen
dollars if the licensee is to be licensed for thirty to
thirty~-six months; ten dollars if the licensee is to be
licensed for at least eighteen months but less than thirty
months; and five dollars if the licensee is to be licensed
for less than eighteen months.

‘0

Renewal fee - fifteen dollars for a three-year period.

= d. Late renewal fee - twenty-five dollars.

|®

Reinstatement fee - thirty-five dollars.

Surrender of license certificate. Licenses remain the
property of the board. The 1license certificate and any
renewal certificates must be surrendered to the board if
suspended or revoked. '

Effective July 1, 1989; amended effective June 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 12-63-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 12-63-02, 12-63-04, 12-63-05

10-06-02-06.1. Lapse of license.

)

Any peace officer who does not perform duties as a peace
officer, is no longer employed by a department, and lets his
er--her the officer's license expire shall comply with the
following conditions for reinstatement:
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ar 1. Any individual who has not been employed by a law enforcement
agency for less than two years may reapply for a license. The
individual will be required to pay the reinstatement fee and
apprepriate--lieense--fee. The individual must obtain
sufficient makeup continuing education hours within three
months of reinstatement.

br 2. Any individual who has not been employed by a law enforcement
agency for two to five years may reapply for a license. The
individual must pass the criminal and traffic law portions of
the licensing examination and obtain sufficient makeup
continuing education hours within six months of reinstatement.
The individual must pay the reinstatement fee; and the
examination fee;-and-the-apprepriate-}ieense-fee.

€= 3. Any individual who has not been employed as a peace officer by
a law enforcement agency for five to seven years must pass a
licensing examination; and pay the reinstatement fee; and the
examination fees-and-apprepriate-license-fee. The individual
must attain the sufficient makeup continuing education hours
within six months of reinstatement. If the individual fails
the licensing examination on the first attempt, the individual
will be required to complete the process that is required for
a new officer.

d: 4. Any individual who has not been employed as a peace officer by
a law enforcement agency for over seven years is required to
complete the process that is required for a new officer.

es 5. The board shall give the individual written notice of its
findings. The notice must include the reasons for the board's
action where if the board denies relicensure or prescribes the
conditions of relicensure.

History: Effective July 1, 1989; amended effective June 1, 2600.
General Authority: NDCC 12-62-64 12-63-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 12-62-84 12-63-04

10-06-02-07. Requirements to remain licensed or to obtain renewal
or reinstatement of a Tlicense. In order for a part-time anrd or
full-time peace officer to remain licensed, the officer must continue to
meet all the minimum requirements and must further receive a minimum of
forty-eight sixty hours of certified training every three years.

1. The training may consist of but is not limited to:

a. Ferty-eight Sixty hours of certified law enforcement
training;

b. Three--semester--heurs--ef--college--eredit--in-a-eriminal
justiee-related-or-job-related-topies
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e:--E%ve—-quarter--heuvs--ef--eel%ege--eved%t--4n--a—-erim#na4
justiece-related-or-job-related-topies

ds Ferty-eight Sixty hours of approved/certified criminal
justice-related seminar.

The training may be attended in any hour grouping, as long as
it totals a minimum of ferty-eight sixty hours within a
three-year period, i.e., two eight-heur ten-hour blocks of
instruction every year, one ferty-eight-hedr sixty-hour block
of instruction within the three-year period, etc.

No surplus 1in training hours may be carried forth into the
next three-year period.

A1l officers shall meet the licensure requirements by the
following dates:

a. If the surname begins with the letters A through G, the
officer must have met the continuing education requirement
for the period of July 1, 1984, through July 1, 1987. The
next continuing education requirement before renewal can
be completed will be for the period of July 1, 1987,
through July 1, 1990, and every third year thereafter.

b. If the surname begins with the letters H through M, the
officer must have met the continuing education requirement
for the period of July 1, 1985, through July 1, 1988. The
next continuing education requirement before renewal can
be completed will be for the period of July 1, 1988,
through July 1, 1991, and every third year thereafter.

c. If the surname begins with the letters N through Z, the
officer must have met the continuing education requirement
for the period of July 1, 1986, through July 1, 1989, and
every third year thereafter.

d. If an officer is newly hired during the three-year cycle,
the officer will meet the prorated share of the
requirements needed until the officer's renewal date
arrives.

It shall be the duty of the employer agency or the officer to
forward a record of the training attended to the board prior
to the officer's recertification date.

An officer who has enrolled and completed college courses may

request, if necessary, a waiver of the sixty-hour training
requirement for renewal of the peace officer license. The
request may be granted upon showing of successful completion
of at least:
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a. Three semester hours of college credit in a criminal
justice-related or job-related topic; or

b. Five quarter hours of college credit in a criminal
justice-related or job-related topic.

History: Effective January 1, 1983; amended effective July 1, 1989;
June 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 12-62-82{4};-12-62-84; 12-63-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 12-62-82{4};-12-62-84; 12-63-02

10-06-02-07.1. License renewal.

1. Application. The board shall require a written application
for renewal of licenses.

2. Certificate of renewal. The executive secretary shall issue a
certificate of renewal, which is valid for three years, to
each applicant who has submitted the appropriate fee on or
before June thirtieth of the year when the license becomes due
for renewal and also completed the required hours of
continuing education.

3. Late renewal. Should a person fail to renew a license by June
thirtieth, such person may be permitted to make application
for renewal no later than July thirty-first of that same year
upon payment of rerewal-fee-pius the late renewal fee. If
application for renewal is not made by July thirty-first, the
license is deemed to be lapsed and no longer in effect.

4, Reinstatement of a lapsed license. After July thirty-first, a
license may not be renewed but an application for
reinstatement may be made by the applicant. The application
for reinstatement must include payment of rerewal-fee-pius the
reinstatement fee as prescribed to be paid by the board. The
board may grant reinstatement once the applicant has conformed
with section 10-06-02-06.1.

History: Effective July 1, 1989; amended effective June 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 12-63-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 32-63-62; 12-63-11
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CHAPTER 10-06-03

10-06-03-62. Requirements for certification of law enforcement
instructors.

1.

The board will certify instructors considered qualified to
teach in one or more subjects on the basis of the standards
provided in this section.

Instructors are eligible for certification if they meet the
following minimum qualifications in the areas of education,
training, and experience:.

az A person applying for certification as a law enforcement
instructor to teach peace officer subjects, including
patrol, investigation, or the use of firearms must have:

¢} a. A high school diploma or its equivalent;

¢2} b. Two years' experience as a eertified licensed peace

officer or equivalent;

¢3} c. Ferty--heurs--of--verified Verified training or documented

experience in each subject to be taught;

¢4y d. A course of instructor development training or its

equivalent approved by the board, including training in
the areas of communication, psychology of learning,
techniques of instruction, use of instructional aids,
preparation and use of lesson plans, preparing and
administering tests, teaching resources, and motivation;
and

€5} e. A recommendation by the applicant's agency administrator

or training officer.

b:--A--persen--applying--fer--certification--te--teach-general
subjeetsy--ineluding--management;--Ruman-~-retations;-~-or
administration;-must-haves:

§1}--At-least-a-baeealaureate-degrees-and

{2}--Three-yearsi-experience-er-co}lege-credits-or-both-in
the-subjeet-to-be-taughts

The board may, in its discretion, waive any part of the
requirements of subsection 2 if it finds that a person,
although not meeting all of the eligibility requirements, is
otherwise qualified to be an instructor.
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History: Effective January 1, 1983; amended effective July 1, 1989;
June 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 12-62-82{3};-12-62-02{4} 12-63-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 12-62-82{3};-12-62-82{4} 12-63-06, 12-63-11

10-06-03-06. Application for course certification. The following

procedures will be applicable to all training courses applying for
certification:

1. The individual responsible for planning and coordinating a
training program must prepare a letter of application for
program certification. This letter should be sent to the
division thirty days or as soon as possible in advance of the
date the training program is to commence.

2. The application must state-er be accompanied by:

a. A course euttine curriculum showing the date and location
of the course, the hours of instruction, group to be
taught (size, experience, etc.), method of evaluation,
lesson plan (if available); and

b. Information concerning the instructors' education and
experience if the instructors have not been certified by
the division.

3. Within seven days after the completion of a training program,
the coordinator of the program shall forward to the division a
completed student roster, showing each student's name, social
security number, and agency, hours attended, course name, and
training location and date.

History: Effective January 1, 1983; amended effective July 1, 1989;
June 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 12-62-82{3};-12-62-02{4} 12-63-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 12-62-82{3};-12-62-82{4} 12-63-06, 12-63-11
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JULY 2600

CHAPTER 32-01-62

32-01-02-01. Definitions. The terms used throughout this title
have the same meaning as in North Dakota Century Code chapter 43-11,

except:

1.

“Cosmetology establishment" includes businesses, premises, and
schools required to have a certificate of registration from
the North Dakota board of cosmetology pursuant to North Dakota
Century Code chapter 43-11.

“Cosmetology school" means any school teaching any or all of
the practices of cosmetology.

"“Disinfect" means to destroy harmful micro-organisms; to free
from infection.

"Disinfectant" means an agent used to kill germs.

"Good repair" means that an item is soil free with no holes,
frayed wires, or tears in covering and fully operational for
the purpose intended.

"Infectious disease" means any disease which can be
transmitted, directly or indirectly, from person to person.

"Occupation of cosmetologist" dincludes the practice of
esthetics and manicuring as defined in North Dakota Century
Code section 43-11-01.

"Salon" means that part of any building wherein the occupation
of a cosmetologist, manicurist, or esthetician is practiced.
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The occupation of a cosmetologist, manicurist, or esthetician
is practiced in a particular location if the cosmetologist,
manicurist, or esthetician advertises services will be
provided at the location or provides services at the location
to three or more people on a regularly scheduled basis, except
if the services are provided under a homebound license.

9. "Sanitized" means rendered free of dust, foreign material, and
agents of disease or infestation through use of effective
cleaning and disinfecting processes.

9: 10. "Sanitizer" means a container holding a sanitizing agent which

is large and deep enough to completely submerge the tools and
implements to be disinfected.

History: Amended effective July 1, 1988; July 1, 1990; March 1, 1998;
July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 43-11-05
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-11-01, 43-11-11, 43-11-27.1
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CHAPTER 32-02-01

32-02-01-04. Sanitary premises.

1. Walls, floors, and fixtures must be kept clean and in good
repair at all times.

2. A1l floors must be kept-elean cleaned and made free of hair
and other debris at-a}i-times after each client and must be in
good repair. Carpeting is not permitted in the working area.
Carpeting will only be permitted in the reception, drying, and
facial treatment;-and-marieuring-area-enly areas.

3. Windows and mirrors should be clean.

4. Shampoo bowls and implements must be free from all hair and
debris and cleansed prior to each use.

5. The dispensing area must be neat and clean. The supply area
may not be accessible to the public.

History: Amended effective July 1, 1988; July 1, 1990; March 1, 1998;
July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 43-11-05

Law Implemented: NDCC 43-11-11

32-02-01-07. First-aid kit. Every cosmetology establishment
shall have and maintain a complete first-aid kit in a readily accessible
location on the premises. At a minimum, the first-aid kit must include
adhesive dressings, gauze and antiseptic, tape, triple antibiotics,
eyewash, and gloves.

History: Amended effective July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-11-05
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-11-11
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CHAPTER 32-03-01

32-03-01-07. Manager-operator. Every cosmetology salon shall
have a manager-operator who shall be responsible for the operation,
conduct, and management of the salon. The manager-operator reed-pet
shall be present on the salon premises at--a}i--times during business
hours, but--must--be--availabte-te-previde-direetion-and-supervisien-+f
needed except the manager-operator may take breaks or leave to perform
other responsibilities for periods of time that do not exceed one hour
and the manager-operator need not be present if cosmetology services are
not being performed. Each salon owner or manager-operator shall provide
the office with an accurate schedule of the days and hours the salon is
open for business.

History: Amended effective July 1, 1988; March 1, 1998; July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-11-05
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-11-15

32-03-01-14. Practice outside of salon. A manager-operator may
practice outside of a salon establishment if:

1. The manager-operator has one year of work experience;

2. The manager-operator follows all applicable rules of
sanitation adopted in chapter 32-02-01; and

3. Cosmetology services are not provided in a manner or frequency
to cause the location where the services are provided to
constitute a salon as defined in section 32-01-02-01.

History: Effective July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-11-05, 43-11-11
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-11-11
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CHAPTER 32-04-61

32-04-01-07. Student transfers.

1. Domestic transfers. A student of a North Dakota cosmetology
school desiring-te-transfer transferring to another school
shall petitien--the-sehool-and-the-beard-before-transferrings
ard-appreval-ef-the-beard-must-be-given-in-writing-befere--any
transfer--is--made be granted full credit for the hours
completed.

2. Foreign transfer. Any student of a cosmetology school located
in another state, country, or territory desiring to transfer
to a North Dakota school shall make an application to the
board in the same manner as a new student. A certified copy
of the student's records shall accompany the application.
Approval of the board must be given in writing before any
transfer is made. If the board approves the application and
the student completed the course, the student shall receive
full credit hours for the course. If the board approves the
application and the student did not complete the course, the
student shall be granted two-thirds credit hour for the hours

completed.

3. Credit hours.

a. North Dakota school credit hours will be credited for five
years.

b. Out-of-state credit hours will be credited for two years.

€r--Al}--eredit-heurs-will-be-henered-if-the-student-completes
the-course-in-the-studentis-heme-states---1f--the--student
transfers--before--completing--the-course;-onty-credit-for
two-thirds-of-the-studentis-credit-hours-will-be~-honoreds

History: Amended effective July 1, 1988; July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-11-05
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-11-13, 43-11-15, 43-11-16, 43-11-19

32-04-01-18, Curriculum. Each cosmetology school shall teach
branches and areas of cosmetology, which shall include theory and
practice in subjects required, provided, and approved by the board.

1. Hours. The course of instruction shall consist of one
thousand eight hundred hours for cosmetology, nine hundred
hours for esthetics, and three hundred fifty hours for
manicuring.
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History:

Theory classes. Each cosmetology school shall conduct theory
classes a minimum of one hour per day for a minimum of four
days per week.

Student---eredit---hour---and---eredit Credit record. The
reguirements-set-forth-in-the-student-hour-and--eredit--recerd
previded-by-the-beard-shall-be-cempleted-within-a-twelve-menth
peried-for-cosmetolegy-students-enrelied-in-a-forty-hour--week
€BHFSE--0F--within-a-twenty-meRth-peried-for-students-enrelied
tA--a--twenty-four-heur--week--eourses----Estheties---students
enretted--in--a--forty-heur--week--eeurse-must-be-completed-in
seven-moRtRs;-er-a--twenty-four-heur--week--ceurse--in--eleven
MeRtRS:---Manteurist--students--enrelled--in-a-forty-heur-week
€BHFSe-must--be--compteted--in--a--three-menth--peried;--er--a
twenty-four-heur-week-eeurse-compieted-in-a-five-menth-perieds
Each cosmetology school shall keep the student hour and credit
record current for each student, and the record shall be
current by the fifth of each month the student is enrolled.
Within five days of a school's knowledge that a student has
either completed the course, transferred, or discontinued and
fulfilled all school requirements accordingly, the school
shall furnish the board with the record.

Amended effective July 1, 1988; July 1, 1990; March 1, 1998;

July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 43-11-05
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-11-16, 43-11-22

32-04-01-25. Examinations.

Ls

School examinations. Each student must have successfully
passed eighty percent of the weekly examinations and secured a
seventy-five percent average in the cosmetology school final
examination in both written and practical work.

Board examinations. The time, place, and date of board
examinations must be submitted to the board two weeks prior to
test date. A cosmetologist, manicurist, and esthetician
examination shall consist of a theoretical portion and a
practical portion. The theoretical portion shall be
administrated administered by the board members or staff. The
practical portion of the cosmetologist examination will be
administrated administered by the cosmetology school if the
examinee graduated from a North Dakota cosmetology school in
the past year. If the examinee graduated from a North Dakota
cosmetology school more than one year prior to making
application, the practical portion of the cosmetologist
examination may be administered by the cosmetology school or
the board. The board will administer the practical portion of
the cosmetologist examination to applicants who did not
graduate from a North Dakota cosmetology school. A board
member shall be present to observe during practical
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examination. There shall be no more than one test date per
month.

The practical portion of the cosmetologist examination shall
consist of the candidate demonstrating:

a. Hairstyling.

b. Basic hair shaping using entire mannequin (full head

haircut).

c. Hair coloring.

d. Permanent waving.
e. Chemical hair relaxing.

In order to be certified as passing an examination, a
candidate shall score at least seventy-five percent or more on
the theoretical and practical portions of the examination.
Candidates' scores shall be submitted to the board five days
after the examination date.

3. Failing applicant. Applicants who fail any portion of the
examination shall reregister and pay the required fee before
being permitted to retake the portion of the examination they
have failed. An applicant for an esthetician or manicurist
license who fails any portion of the examination twice must
wait until six months have passed since the last examination
before retesting.

4. Applicant complaint. An applicant shall notify the board in
writing if there is reason to believe that there has been
discrimination during any portion of the examination.

History: Amended effective July 1, 1988; July 1, 1990; March 1, 1998;

July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-11-05

Law Implemented: NDCC 43-11-16, 43-11-22, 43-11-23

32-04-01-26.1. Cosmetology course curriculum. The hours of the
cosmetology course curriculum must include the following:

Hair shaping 250 hours
Hairstyling 250 hours
Nails 50 hours
Facials, skin care 25 hours
Chemical services 250 hours
Study of theory, law, and sanitation 400 hours
Related subjects (classroom or clinic 575 hours
for instructions)
Total minimum hours 1,800 hours
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History: Effective July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-11-05
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-11-16

32-04-01-27. Esthetician course curriculum. The curriculum for
students enrolled in an esthetician course for a compiete course of nine
six hundred hours at-ferty-heurs-per-week-in-at-least-seven-morths-er
twenty-feur-hoeurs-per--week--in--eleven--meAthsy training must be as
follows: No school or licensed instructor may permit a student to
render clinical services until a student has completed twenty percent of
the total hours of instruction required. These hours are to include the
following:

Sterilization, sanitation, and safety 115 75 hours
Body treatment, facials, hair removal, and makeup 565 340 hours
Study of law, ethics, management, and salesmanship 115 75 hours
Related subjects 96 60 hours
Unassigned #5 _50 hours
Total minimum hours 966 6008 hours

History: Effective July 1, 1990; amended effective July 1, 2600.
General Authority: NDCC 43-11-05
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-11-16

32-04-01-29. Curriculum for esthetician instructor training.

1. Persons receiving esthetician instructor training in a
cosmetology school shall spend all of their training time
under the direct supervision of a licensed instructor and may
not be left in charge of students or schools at any time
without the direct supervision of a licensed instructor.

2. Persons receiving instructor training are not permitted to
perform clinical services on a client for compensation, either
by appointment or otherwise. Persons receiving instructor
training must be furnished a teacher's training manual.

3. The curriculum in a cosmetology school, for an esthetics
jnstructor training course, must include at-least-seven-menths
and--Aine--hundred--hedrs--at--forty--hours-per-week-er-eteven
meRths-at-twenty-four-hours-per-week:

a. The teacher - 166 65 hours:
(1) Personality.
(2) Technical knowledge.

(3) Teacher's characteristics.

44



c.

d.

(4) Teachers as professionals.

Preparations for teaching:

(1)
(2)

(3)
(4)

Planning the-eeurse for teaching.
Preparing lesson plans:

(a) Objectives.

(b) Outline.

Student activities.

Steps of teaching:

(a) Preparation.

(b) Presentation.

(c) Application.

(d) Testing.

Student motivation and learning - 168 65 hours:

(1)

(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)

State board of cosmetology requirements
recordkeeping.

Student motivation.
Student participation.
Student personalities.
Individual:

(a) Slow learner.

(b) Gifted learners.

Methods, management, and materials - 258 170 hours:

(1) Methods, procedures, and techniques of teaching:

(a) Lectures and discussions.
(b) Demonstrations.
(c) Conducting practice activities.

(d) Questioning techniques.
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(e) Results.
(f) Special situations.

(2) Classroom management:

(a) Physical environment.
(b) Administrative duties.
(c) Student discipline.
(d) Class supervision.

(e) Classroom routine.
(f) Corrective measures.
(3) Teaching materials:
(a) Audiovisual aids (types).
(b) Values of different teaching aids.
(c) Correct usage.
(d) Miscellaneous teaching materials.
[1] Textbooks.
[2] Workbooks.
[3] Reference books.
[4] Creative aids.
e. Testing and evaluations - 358 100 hours:
(1) Testing:
(a) Purpose.
(b) Performance tests.
(c) Written tests.
(d) Standardized tests.
(2) Evaluation:
(a) General student abilities.

(b) Student achievement.
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(c) Teacher evaluation.
f. Education (vocabulary development) - 208 130 hours.
g. Unassigned - 366 70 hours.
Total hours - 966 600.
History: Effective July 1, 1990; amended effective July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 43-11-05
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-11-16
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CHAPTER 32-05-01

32-05-01-01.1. License without examination. Every person
desiring to be licensed as an operator, manicurist, or esthetician
without taking the examination shall make an application on the form
provided by the board and:

1. Pay the application fee.

2. Provide proof that the applicant is licensed as a
cosmetologist, manicurist, or esthetician in another
jurisdiction and that the applicant's license is in good
standing.

3. Demonstrate the other jurisdiction's licensure requirements at
the time the applicant was licensed by the other jurisdiction
were substantially equal to those in North Dakota at the time
the North Dakota application was filed. Three or more years
of work experience as a licensed cosmetologist will be
considered substantially equal to three hundred hours of
cosmetology education.

4. Pass an examination on North Dakota sanitation practices and
cosmetology law.

History: Effective July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-11-05
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-11-25

32-05-01-06.1. Master esthetician. Every person desiring to be
Ticensed by the board as a master esthetician shalls

}---Furnish furnish to the board evidence of having practiced as a
licensed esthetician for one hundred twenty-five days.

2---FTake-and-pass-the-Nerth-Baketa-taw-test-fer-master-1ieenses

A master esthetician may operate as a manager-operator of a salon that
is operated and engaged exclusively in the practice of skin care.

History: Effective February 1, 1996; amended effective July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-11-05

Law Implemented: NDCC 43-11-13.1, 43-11-14, 43-11-21, 43-11-22,
43-11-23, 43-11-24, 43-11-25, 43-11-27.1, 43-11-28

32-05-01-07.1. Master manicurist. Every person desiring to be
licensed by the board as a master manicurist shalls
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i:--Furrish furnish to the board evidence of having practiced as a
licensed manicurist for sixty days.

2:--Take-and-pass-the-Nerth-Baketa-taw-test-fer-master-1ieenses

A master manicurist may operate as a manager-operator of a salon that is
operated and engaged exclusively in the practice of manicuring.

History: Effective February 1, 1996; amended effective July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-11-05

Law Implemented: NDCC 43-11-13.1, 43-11-14, 43-11-21, 43-11-22,
43-11-23, 43-11-24, 43-11-25, 43-11-27.1, 43-11-28
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CHAPTER 33-17-61

33-17-01-62. Definitions. For the purpose of this chapter the
following definitions shall apply:

1.

"Action level" means the concentration of lead or copper in
water specified in title 40, Code of Federal Regulations,
part 141, subpart I, section 141.80(c), that determines, in
some cases, the treatment requirements set forth under
title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, part 141, subpart I,
that a water system is required to complete.

"Best available technology" or "BAT" means the best
technology, treatment techniques, or other means which the
department finds, after examination for efficacy under field
conditions and not solely under laboratory conditions, are
available (taking cost into consideration). For the purposes
of setting maximum contaminant levels for synthetic organic
chemicals, any best available technology must be at least as
effective as granular activated carbon.

"Coagulation" means a process using coagulant chemicals and
mixing by which colloidal and suspended materials are
destabilized and agglomerated into flocs.

"Community water system" means a public water system which
serves at least fifteen service connections used by year-round
residents or regulariy serves at least twenty-five year-round
residents.

"Compliance cycle" means the nine-year calendar year cycle
during which public water systems must monitor for inorganic
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and organic chemicals excluding lead, copper, trihalomethanes,
and unregulated contaminants. Each compliance cycle consists
of three 3-year compliance periods. The first calendar year
cycle begins January 1, 1993, and ends December 31, 2001; the
second begins January 1, 2002, and ends December 31, 2010; and
the third begins January 1, 2011, and ends December 31, 2019.

"Compliance period" means a three-year calendar year period
within a compliance cycle during which public water systems
must monitor for inorganic and organic chemicals excluding
lead, copper, trihalomethanes, and unregulated contaminants.
Each compliance cycle has three 3-year compliance periods.
Within the first compliance cycle, the first compliance period
runs from January 1, 1993, to December 31, 1995; the second
from January 1, 1996, to December 31, 1998; and the third from
January 1, 1999, to December 31, 2001.

"Composite correction program" or "CCP" means a systematic,
comprehensive procedure for identifying, prioritizing, and
remedying factors that limit water treatment plant performance
as set forth in the United States environmental protection
agency handbook entitled Optimizing Water Treatment Plant
Performance Using The Composite Correction Program,
EPA/625/6-91/027, 1998 edition. A composite correction
program consists of two phases, a comprehensive performance
evaluation and comprehensive technical assistance.

"Comprehensive performance evaluation" or "CPE" means a

thorough review and analysis of a treatment plant's
performance-based capabilities and associated administrative,
operation, and maintenance practices. It is conducted to
identify factors that may be adversely impacting a plant's
capability to achieve compliance and emphasizes approaches
that can be implemented without significant capital
improvements. For purposes of compliance with title 40, Code
of Federal Regulations, part 141, subpart P, the comprehensive
performance evaluation shall consist of at least the following

components:

a. Assessment of plant performance;

b. Evaluation of major unit processes;

c. Identification and prioritization of performance limiting
factors;

d. Assessment of the applicability of comprehensive technical
assistance; and

e. Preparation of a comprehensive performance evaluation
report.
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"Comprehensive technical assistance" or "CTA" means the

performance improvement phase of a composite correction
program that is implemented if the comprehensive performance
evaluation results indicate improved performance potential.
During the comprehensive technical assistance phase,
identified and prioritized factors that limit water treatment
plant performance are systematically addressed and eliminated.

"Confluent growth" means a continuous bacterial growth
covering the entire filtration area of a membrane filter, or a
portion thereof, in which bacterial colonies are not discrete.

"Contaminant" means any physical, chemical, biological, or
radiological substance or matter in water.

"Conventional filtration treatment" means a series of
processes including coagulation, flocculation, sedimentation,
and filtration resulting in substantial particulate removal.

"Corrosion inhibitor" means a substance capable of reducing
the corrosivity of water toward metal plumbing materials,
especially lead and copper, by forming a protective film on
the interior surface of those materials.

"Cross connection" means any connection or arrangement between
two otherwise separate piping systems, one of which contains
potable water and the other either water of unknown or
questionable safety or steam, gas, or chemical whereby there
may be a flow from one system to the other, the direction of
flow depending on the pressure differential between the two
systems.

"CT" or "CT calc" means the product of residual disinfectant
concentration (C) in milligrams per liter determined before or
at the first customer and the corresponding disinfectant
contact time (T) in minutes. If disinfectants are applied, at
more than one point prior to the first customer, the CT of
each disinfectant sequence must be determined before or at the
first customer to determine the total percent inactivation or
total inactivation ratio. In determining the total
inactivation ratio, the residual disinfectant concentration of
each disinfection sequence and the corresponding contact time
must be determined before any subsequent disinfection
application points. CT ninety-nine point nine is the CT value
required for ninety-nine point nine percent (three-logarithm)
inactivation of giardia lamblia cysts. CT ninety-nine point
nine values for a wide variety of disinfectants and conditions
are set fer forth under title 40, Code of Federal Regulations,
part 141, subpart H. CT calculated divided by CT ninety-nine
point nine is the inactivation ratio. The total inactivation
ratio is determined by adding together the inactivation ratio
for each disinfection sequence. A total inactivation ratio
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14: 17,
15: 18.
16: 19.
17: 20.
18- 21.

22.

equal to or greater than one point zero is assumed to provide
a three-logarithm inactivation of giardia lamblia cysts.

“Department" means the Nerth-Baketa state department of health
and-eonsetidated-laberateries.

“Diatomaceous earth filtration" means a process resulting in
substantial particulate removal in which a precoat cake of
diatomaceous earth filter media is deposited on a support
membrane or septum, and while the water is filtered by passing
through the cake on the septum, additional filter media known
as body feed is continuously added to the feed water to
maintain the permeability of the filter cake.

“Direct filtration" means a series of processes including
coagulation and filtration but excluding sedimentation
resulting in substantial particulate removal.

“Disinfectant" means any oxidant, including, but not limited
to, chlorine, chlorine dioxide, chloramines, and ozone added
to water in any part of the treatment or distribution process,
that is intended to kill or inactivate pathogenic
microorganisms.

"Disinfectant contact time" (T in CT calculations) means the
time in minutes that it takes for water to move from the point
of disinfectant application or the previous point of
disinfectant residual measurement to a point before or at the
point where residual disinfectant concentration (C) is
measured. Where only one C is measured, T is the time in
minutes that it takes for water to move from the point of
disinfectant application to a point before or at where C is
measured. Where more than one C is measured, T, for the first
measurement of C, is the time in minutes that it takes the
water to move from the first or only point of disinfectant
application to a point before or at the point where the first
C 1is measured. For subsequent measurements of C, T is the
time in minutes that it takes for water to move from the
previous C measurement point to the C measurement point for
which the particular T is being calculated. Disinfectant
contact time in pipelines must be calculated by dividing the
internal volume of the pipe by the maximum hourly flow rate
through that pipe. T within mixing basins and storage
reservoirs must be determined by tracer studies or an
equivalent demonstration.

"Disinfection" means a process which inactivates pathogenic
organisms in water by chemical oxidants or equivalent agents.

"Disinfection profile" means a summary of daily giardia

lamblia inactivation through the treatment plant. The
disinfection profile shall be developed as set forth under
title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, section 141.172.
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25.

"Domestic or other nondistribution system plumbing problem"
means a coliform contamination problem in a public water
system with more than one service connection that is limited
to the specific service connection from which the
coliform-positive sample was taken.

"Effective corrosion inhibitor residual®, for the purpose of
title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, part 141, subpart I
only, means a concentration sufficient to form a passivating
film on the interior walls of pipe.

"Enhanced coagulation" means the addition of sufficient

26.

coagulant for improved removal of disinfection byproduct
precursors by conventional filtration treatment.

"Enhanced softening" means the improved removal of

27.

disinfection byproduct precursors by precipitative softening.

"Filter profile® means a graphical representation of

22: 29,

23=

24+

25z

31.

individual filter performance based on continuous turbidity
measurements or . total particle counts versus time for an
entire filter run, from startup to backwash inclusively, that
includes an assessment of filter performance while another
filter is being backwashed.

"Filtration" means a process for removing particulate matter
from water by passage through porous media.

"First draw sample" means a one-liter sample of tap water,
collected in accordance with title 40, Code of Federal
Regulations, part 141, section 141.86(b)(2), that has been
standing in plumbing pipes at least six hours and is collected
without flushing the tap.

"Flocculation" means a process to enhance agglomeration or
collection of smaller floc particles into larger, more easily
settleable particles through gentle stirring by hydraulic or
mechanical means.

"Granular activated carbon ten" or "GAC10" means granular

activated carbon filter beds with an empty-bed contact time of
ten  minutes based on average daily flow and a carbon
reactivation frequency of every one hundred eighty days.

"Gross alpha particle activity" means the total radioactivity
due to alpha particle emission as inferred from measurements
on a dry sample.

"Ground water under the direct influence of surface water"
means any water beneath the surface of the ground with
significant occurrence of insects or other macroorganisms,
algae, or large-diameter pathogens such as giardia lamblias
or, for systems serving ten thousand or more persons,
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34.

cryptosporidium. Ground water under the direct influence of
surface water also means significant and relatively rapid
shifts in water characteristics such as turbidity,
temperature, conductivity, or pH which closely correlate to
climatological or surface water conditions.

"Haloacetic acids five" or "HAAS" means the sum of the

27: 36.

28x

29+

30~

31

32x

33s

41.

concentrations in milligrams per liter of the haloacetic acid

compounds monochloroacetic acid, dichloroacetic acid,
trichloroacetic acid, monobromoacetic acid, and dibromoacetic

acid, rounded to two significant figures after addition.

"Halogen" means one of the chemical elements chlorine,
bromine, or iodine.

"Initial compliance period" means the first full compliance
period that begins January 1, 1993, during which public water
systems must monitor for inorganic and organic chemicals
excluding lead, copper, trihalomethanes, and unregulated
contaminants.

"Large water system", for the purpose of title 40, Code of
Federal Regulations, part 141, subpart I only, means a water
system that serves more than fifty thousand persons.

"Lead service line" means a service line made of lead that
connects the water main to the building inlet and any pigtail,
gooseneck, or other fitting that is connected to a lead line.

"Legionella" means a genus of bacteria, some species of which
have caused a type of pneumonia called legionnaires disease.

"Maximum contaminant level" means the maximum permissible
level of a contaminant in water which is delivered to any user
of a public water system.

"Maximum residual disinfectant level" or "MRDL" means a level

of a disinfectant added for water treatment that must not be
exceeded at the consumer's tap without an unacceptable
possibility of adverse health effects.

"Maximum total trihalomethane potential" means the maximum
concentration of total trihalomethanes produced in a given
water containing a disinfectant residual after seven days at a
temperature of twenty-five degrees Celsius [77 degrees
Fahrenheit] or above.

"Medium-size water system", for the purpose of title 40, Code
of Federal Regulations, part 141, subpart I only, means a
water system that serves three thousand one to fifty thousand
persons.
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“Near the first service connection" means at one of the twenty
percent of all service connections in the entire system that
are nearest the water supply treatment facility as measured by
water transport time within the distribution system.

“Noncommunity water system" means a public water system that
is not a community water system that primarily provides
service to other than year-round residents. A noncommunity
water system is either a ‘"nontransient noncommunity" or
“transient noncommunity" water system. '

“Nontransient noncommunity water system" means a noncommunity
water system that regularly serves at least twenty-five of the
same persons over six months per year.

"Optimal corrosion-control treatment", for the purpose of
title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, part 141, subpart I
only, means the corrosion-control treatment that minimizes the
lead and copper concentrations at users' taps while ensuring
that the treatment does not cause the water system to violate
any national primary drinking water regulations.

“Person" means an individual, corporation, company,
association, partnership, municipality, or any other entity.

"Point of disinfectant application" means the point where the
disinfectant is applied and water downstream of that point is
not subject to recontamination by surface water runoff.

"Point-of-entry treatment device" means a treatment device
applied to the drinking water entering a house or building for
the purpose of reducing contaminants in the drinking water
distributed throughout the house or building.

"Point-of-use treatment device" means a treatment device
applied to a single tap used for the purpose of reducing
contaminants in drinking water at that one tap.

"Potable water" means water free from impurities in amounts
sufficient to cause disease or harmful physiological effects,
with the physical, chemical, biological, or radiological
quality conforming to applicable maximum permissible
contaminant levels.

"Product" means any chemical or substance added to a public
water system, any materials used in the manufacture of public
water system components or appurtenances, or any pipe, storage
tank, valve, fixture, or other materials that come in contact -
with water intended for use in a public water system.

"Public water system" means a system for the provision to the
public of piped water for human consumption through pipes or
other constructed conveyances, if such system has at least
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fifteen service connections or regularly serves at Tleast
twenty-five individuals sixty or more days out of the year. A
public water system includes any collection, treatment,
storage, and distribution facilities under control of the
operator of the system and used primarily in connection with
the system; and, any collection or pretreatment storage
facilities that are not under control of the operator which
are used primarily 1in connection with the system. A public
water system does not include systems that provide water
through pipes or constructed conveyances other than pipes that
qualify for the exclusions set forth under section
1401(4)(B)(i) and (ii) of the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act
142 U.S.C. 300F(4)(B)(i) and (ii)]. A public water system is
either a "community" or a "noncommunity" water system.

"Repeat compliance period" means any subsequent compliance
period after the initial compliance period during which public
water systems must monitor for inorganic and organic chemicals
excluding lead, copper, trihalomethanes, and unregulated
contaminants.

"Residual disinfectant concentration" (C in CT calculations)
means the concentration of disinfectant measured in milligrams
per liter in a representative sample of water.

"Sampling schedule" means the frequency required for
submitting drinking water samples to a certified laboratory
for examination.

"Sanitary survey" means an onsite review of the water source,
facilities, equipment, operation, and maintenance of a public
water system for the purpose of evaluating the adequacy of
such source, facilities, equipment, operation, and maintenance
for producing and distributing safe drinking water.

"Sedimentation" means a process for removal of solids before
filtration by gravity or separation.

“Service line sample" means a one-liter sample of water,
collected in accordance with title 40, Code of Federal
Regulations, part 141, section 141.86(b)(3), that has been
standing for at least six hours in a service line.

“Single-family structure", for the purpose of title 40, Code
of Federal Regulations, part 141, subpart I only, means a
building constructed as a single-family residence that is
currently used either as a residence or a place of business.

"Slow sand filtration" means a process involving passage of
raw water through a bed of sand at Tow velocity resulting in
substantial particulate removal by physical and biological
mechanisms.
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64.

“Small water system", for the purpose of title 40, Code of
Federal Regulations, part 141, subpart I only, means a water
system that serves three thousand three hundred or fewer
persons.

"Specific ultraviolet absorption" or "SUVA" means specific

65.

ultraviolet absorption at two hundred fifty-four nanometers,

an indicator of the humic content of water. It is a

calculated parameter obtained by dividing a sample's
ultraviolet absorption at a wavelength of two hundred

fifty-four nanometers in meters to the minus one by 1its
concentration of dissolved organic carbon, the fraction of the
total organic carbon that passes through a zero point four
five micrometer pore diameter filter, in milligrams per liter.

"Subpart H systems" means public water systems using surface

70.

water or ground water under the direct influence of surface
water as a source that are subject to the requirements of
title 40, Code of Federal Requlations, part 141, subpart H.

"Supplier of water" means any person who owns or operates a
public water system.

"Surface water" means all water which is open to the
atmosphere and subject to surface runoff.

"System with a single service connection" means a system which
supplies drinking water to consumers with a single service
line.

"Too numerous to count" means that the total number of
bacterial colonies exceeds two hundred on a forty-seven
millimeter membrane filter used for coliform detection.

"Total organic carbon" means total organic carbon in

60= 73.

milligrams per liter measured using heat, oxygen, ultraviolet
irradiation, chemical oxidants, or combinations of these
oxidants that convert organic carbon to carbon dioxide,
rounded to two significant figures.

"Total trihalomethanes" means the sum of the concentration in
milligrams per liter of the trihalomethane compounds
(trichloromethane [chloroform], dibromochloromethane,
bromodichloromethane, and tribromomethane [bromoform] ),
rounded to two significant figures.

"Transient noncommunity water system" means a noncommunity
water system that primarily provides service to transients.

"Trihalomethane" means one of the family of organic compounds,
named as derivatives of methane, wherein three of the four
hydrogen atoms in methane are each substituted by a halogen
atom in the molecular structure.
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74. "Uncovered finished water storage facility" means a tank,
reservoir, or other facility used to store water that will
undergo no further treatment except residual disinfection and
is open to the atmosphere.

61- 75. "Virus" means a virus of fecal origin which is infectious to
humans by waterborne transmission.

o
no
1

I\l

"Waterborne disease outbreak" means the significant occurrence
of acute infectious illness, epidemiologically associated with
the ingestion of water from a public water system which is
deficient in treatment, as determined by the appropriate local
or state agency.

63: 77. "Water system" means all sources of water and their
surrovndings and includes all structures, conducts, and
appurienances by means of which the water 1is collected,
treated, stored, or delivered.

History: Amended effective December 1, 1982; July 1, 1988; December 1,
1990; August 1, 1991; February 1, 1993; August 1, 1994; August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 61-28.1-03

Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28.1-02, 61-28.1-03

33-17-01-05. Approved laboratories and analytical procedures.
A1l samples shall be examined by the department or by any other
laboratory certified by the department for drinking water purposes,
except that measurements for turbidity and free chlorine may be
performed by any person deemed qualified by the department. Turbidity
measurements shall be made by a nephelometric method approved by the
department. A1l methods of sample preservation and analyses shall be as
prescribed by the department and set forth under title 40, Code of
Federal Regulations, part 141.

History: Amended effective December 1, 1982; July 1, 1988; December 1,
1990; February 1, 1993; August 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 61-28.1-03

Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28.1-03, 61-28.1-07

33-17-01-66. Maximum contaminant levels, action 1levels, and
treatment technique requirements, and maximum residual disinfectant
levels.

1. Inorganic chemicals. The maximum contaminant 1eve1§, actign
levels, and treatment technique requirements for inorganic
chemical contaminants excluding disinfection byproducts are as
follows:
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MAXTMUM CONTAMINANT LEVEL

ACTION LEveL

TREATMENT TTCHNIQUEZS

chemical

CONTAMINANT MILLIGRAM(S) PER LITER MILLIGRAM(S) PER L:TPR REQUIREMENTS
Ancimony ’ 0.006
Arsenic 0.08
Asbestcs 7 million fibers per litsr (longer than ten micrometers)
sarium 2
Beryllium 0.004
Cadmium 0.00%
Chromium 0.1
Copper The 90th percantile level Sourcs watsr and
nust be lsss than or equal corrceicn control
to 1.3 tresatment
Cyanide (as free cyanidas) 0.2
Fluorids 4.0
Lead The 90th percentile level Sourcs watsr and
must be less than or equal corrssion control
to 0.015 tresatment, public
sducaticon, and lead
servics line
replacement
Mercury 0.002
Nicksl e.1
Nicrats (as N) 10
Nitrits (as N) 1
Selenium 0.0%
Thallium 0.002
Total Nitrats and
Nitrits (as N) 10

At the discretion of the department, nitrate levels not to

exceed twenty milligrams per liter may be allowed in a

noncommunity water system if supplier of water

demonstrates to the satisfaction of the department that:

a. Such water will not be available to children under six
months of age;

b. There will be continuous posting of the fact that nitrate
levels exceed ten milligrams per liter and the potential
health effect of exposure;

c. Local and state public health authorities will be notified
annually of nitrate levels that exceed ten milligrams per
liter; and

d. No adverse health effects shall result.

2. Organic chemicals. The maximum contaminant levels and
treatment technique requirements organic
contaminants excluding  disinfection byproducts and
disinfection byproduct precursors are as follows:

MAXIMUM CONTAMINANT LEVEL TREATMENT TECHNIQUE
CONTAMINANT MILLIGRAM(S) PER LITER REQUIREMENTS

Nonvolatile Synthetic
Organic Chemicals:

Acrylamide
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Alachlor

- Atrazine
Benzo (a) pyrene
Carbofuran
Chlordane
Dalapon
Dibromochloropropane (DBCP)
Di (2-ethylhexyl) adipate
Di (2-ethylhexyl) phthalate
Dinoseb
Diquat
Endothall
Endrin
Epichlorohydrin

Ethylene dibromide (EDB)
Glyphosate

Heptachlor

Heptachlor epoxide
Hexachlorobenzene
Hexachlorocyclopentadiene
Lindane

Methoxychlor

Oxamyl (Vydate)
Polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs)
Pentachlorophenol
Picloram

Simazine

Toxaphene

2,3,7,8-TCDD (Dioxin)
2,4-D

2,4,5-TP Silvex

Fetal-Frihalemethanes---The-sum
of-the-coneentrations-ofs

Bremedichioremethane
Bibremeech}oremethane
¥ribrememethane- {Bromeferm} -and

Frichloremethane-{Ehleroform}---

.002
.003
.0002
.002
.0002

.006
.007

[ecfoRoRoloNoloRoRoNolololol

.002

.00005
7
.0004
.0002
.001
.05
.0002
.04

.2
.0005
.001
.5
.004
.003
.00000003
0.07
0.05

[ocNoRNoNoloRoRoloNoloRoNoNo oo

--8:16

Volatile Synthethic Organic Chemicals:

Benzene

0.005
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0.05 percent dosed
at 1 part per mil-
lion (or equivalent)

The combination (or
product) of dose

and monomer level
may not exceed

0.01 percent dosed
at 20 parts per mil-
Tion (or equivalent)



Carbon tetrachloride
p-Dichlorobenzene
o-Dichlorobenzene
1,2-Dichloroethane
1,1-Dichloroethylene
cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene
trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene
Dichloromethane
1,2-Dichloropropane
Ethylbenzene
Monochlorobenzene
Styrene
Tetrachloroethylene
Toluene
1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene
1,1,1-Trichloroethane
1,1,2-Trichloroethane
Trichloroethylene

Vinyl chloride

Xylenes (total)

DOOOOPHOODOOODOODODOOOOO
(o]
(o]
o

oy

3. Turbiditys

ar--Gereratz---Al}--pubtie--water-systems-that-utilize-surface
water-seurees-shati-previde--filtration--and--disinfeetion
treatment:--Publie-water-systems-that-utilize-greund-water
seurees-deemed-by-the-department-te-be--under--the--direct
influence--of--surface--water--shatll--provide-disinfection
treatment--and--may--be--required--to--previde--filtratien
treatment--as--set--ferth--under-title-40;-Code-of-Federal
Reguitatiens;-part-141;-subpart-Hs

Br--interim--requirements----The-follewing-maximum-contaminant
levels-fer-turbidity-in--drinking--water;--measdured--at--a
representative--entry--peint--to--the-distribution-systems
appty-te-publie-water-systems-that-utilize--surface--water
seurees--and--previde--filtration-treatment-until-June-29;
1993;-and-te-publie-water--systems--that--uti}ize--surface
water-seurees-but-de-net-previde-filtratien-treatment-that
the-department-has--determined--in--writing-~must--install
filtration--until--Jdune-29;--1993;--er-untit-filtration-is
installed;-whichever-is-later:

{1}--6ne-turbidity-unit-as-determined-by-a-monthiy-average
exeept-that-five-er--fewer--turpidity--units--may--be
a}llewed---1f---the--system--ean--demenstrate--te--the
department-that-the-higher-turbidity-does-nots
fa}--interfere-with-disinfeetions

{b}--Prevent-maintenanee-of-an-effeetive-disinfectant
agent-threugheut-the-distribution-systems-or
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{e}--interfere-with-microbiological-determinations:

{2}--Five--turbidity--units--based--en--an-average-for-twe
€EORSeeHtive-dayss

€---Final-requirements:--Beginning-dJune-29;-1993;-public-water
systems-that-uti}ize-surface-water-seurees-er-greund-water
sedrees--deemed--by--the-department-to-be-under-the-direct
tnfluenee-of-surface-water-shall-eemply-with-the-treatment
teehrique--requirements-for-turbidity-and-disinfeection-set
forth--under--titie-40;--Code--of---Federal---Regulationss
part-141;-subpart-H-

Filtration and disinfection treatment.

a. General requirements. All subpart H systems that utilize
surface water sources shall provide filtration and
disinfection treatment. A1l subpart H systems that
utilize ground water sources deemed by the department to
be under the direct influence of surface water shall
provide disinfection treatment and shall either comply
with filtration avoidance criteria or provide filtration
treatment.

b. Treatment technique requirements. The department hereby
identifies filtration and disinfection as treatment
techniques to protect against the potential adverse health
effects of exposure to giardia lamblia, cryptosporidium,
legionella, viruses, heterotrophic plate count bacteria,
and turbidity. The treatment techniques apply only to
subpart H systems. Subpart H systems that serve ten
thousand or more persons shall be deemed to be in
compliance with the treatment techniques if the
requirements set forth under title 40, Code of Federal
Regulations, part 141, subparts H and P, are met.
Subpart H systems that serve fewer than ten thousand
persons shall be deemed to be in compliance with the
treatment techniques if the requirements set forth under
title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, part 141,
subpart H, are met.

4, Radioactivity. The maximum contaminant levels for
radioactivity are as follows:
LEVEL
CONTAMINANT PICOCURIES PER LITER
Combined radium-226 and
radium-228 5
Gross alpha particle activity,
including radium-226, but
excluding radon and uranium 15
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5. Microbiological. The maximum contaminant levels for coliform
bacteria are as follows:

a. Monthly maximum contaminant level violations.

(1) No more than one sample per month may be total
coliform-positive for systems collecting less than
forty samples per month.

(2) . No more than five point zero percent of the monthly
samples may be total coliform-positive for systems
collecting forty or more samples per month.

A11 routine and repeat total coliform samples must be used
to determine compliance. Special purpose samples, such as
those taken to determine whether disinfection practices
following pipe placement, replacement, or repair are
sufficient, and samples invalidated by the department, may
not be used to determine compliance.

b. Acute maximum contaminant level violations.

(1) No repeat sample may be fecal coliform or
E. coli-positive.

(2) No repeat sample may be total coliform-positive
following a fecal coliform or E. coli-positive
routine sample.

c. Compliance must be determined each month that a system is
required to monitor. The department hereby identifies the
following as the best technology, treatment techniques, or
other means generally available for achieving compliance
with the maximum contaminant levels for total coliform
bacteria: protection of wells from contamination by
appropriate placement and construction; maintenance of a
disinfection residual throughout the distribution system;
proper maintenance of the distribution system including
appropriate pipe replacement and repair procedures,
cross-connection control programs, main flushing programs,
proper operation and maintenance of storage tanks and
reservoirs, and continual maintenance of a positive water
pressure in all parts of the distribution system;
filtration and disinfection or disinfection of surface
water and disinfection of ground water using strong
oxidants such as chlorine, chlorine dioxide, or ozone; and
the development and implementation of a
department-approved wellhead protection program.

6. Disinfectants. The maximum residual disinfectant levels for
disinfectants are as follows:
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MAXIMUM RESIDUAL DISINFECTANT

LEVEL IN
DISINFECTANT MILLIGRAMS PER LITER
Chlorine 4.0 as free chlorine
Ch]orqmines 4.0 as combined chlorine
Chlorine dioxide 0.8 as chlorine dioxide

The department identifies the following as the best
technology, treatment techniques, or other means available for
achieving compliance with the maximum residual disinfectant
levels: control of treatment processes to reduce disinfectant
demand and control of disinfection treatment processes to
reduce disinfectant levels.

Disinfection byproducts.

a. Interim max imum contaminant level for total
trihalomethanes. The interim maximum contaminant level
for total trihalomethanes is zero point one zero
milligrams per liter.

b. Final maximum contaminant level for total trihalomethanes
and maximum contaminant Jlevels for other disinfection
byproducts. The final maximum contaminant lTevel for total
trihalomethanes and the maximum contaminant levels for
haloacetic acids five, bromate, and chlorite are as

follows:

MAXIMUM CONTAMINANT LEVEL
DISINFECTION BYPRODUCT IN MILLIGRAMS PER LITER
Total trihalomethanes 0.080
Haloacetic acids five 0.060
Bromate 0.010
Chlorite 1.0

Systems installing granular activated carbon or membrane
technology for compliance purposes may apply to the
department for an extension of up to twenty-four months,
but not beyond January 1, 2004. In granting an extension,
the department shall establish a compliance schedule and
may require that the system take interim treatment
measures. Failure to meet a schedule or interim treatment
requirements established by the department constitutes a
violation as set forth under title 40, Code of Federal
Regulations, part 141, subpart G.

The department identifies the following as the best
technology, treatment techniques, or other means available
for achieving compliance with the final maximum
contaminant level for total trihalomethanes and the
maximum contaminant levels for haloacetic acids five,
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bromate, and chlorite: for total trihalomethanes and
haloacetic acids five, enhanced coagulation, enhanced
softening, or granular activated carbon ten with chlorine
as the primary and residual disinfectant; for bromate,
control of the ozone treatment process to reduce
production of bromate; and for chlorite, control of
treatment processes to reduce disinfectant demand and
control of disinfection treatment processes to reduce
disinfectant levels.

Disinfection byproduct precursors. The department hereby

e

History:

identifies enhanced coagulation and enhanced softening as
treatment techniques to control the level of disinfection
byproduct precursors in _ drinking water treatment and
distribution systems. The treatment techniques apply only to
subpart H community and nontransient noncommunity water
systems that use conventional treatment. Such systems shall
be deemed to be in compliance with the treatment techniques if
the requirements set forth under title 40, Code of Federal
Regulations, part 141, subpart L, are met.

Confirmation sampling. The department may require
confirmation samples and average confirmation sample results
with initial sample results to determine compliance. At the
discretion of the department, sample results due to obvious
monitoring errors may be deleted prior to determining
compliance.

Amended effective December 1, 1982; July 1, 1988; December 1,

1990; February 1, 1993; August 1, 1994; August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 61-28.1-03
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28.1-03

33-17-01-67. Inorganic chemical sampling and monitoring
requirements.

1.

Sampling frequency for community and nontransient noncommunity
water systems.

a. Inorganics excluding lead and copper. Community and
nontransient noncommunity water systems shall conduct
monitoring to determine compliance with the maximum
contaminant levels for the inorganic chemicals, excluding
lead and copper, as set forth under title 40, Code of
Federal Regulations, seetien-141:23 part 141, subpart C.

b. Lead and copper. Community and nontransient noncommunity
water systems shall comply with the monitoring and
treatment technique requirements for lead and copper set
forth under title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, part
141, subpart I.
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c. Unregulated contaminants. Community and nontransient
noncommunity water systems shall monitor for sulfate as
set forth under title 40, Code of Federal Regulations,
seetion-141-46{n} part 141, subpart E.

d. Monitoring waivers. With the exception of arsenic,
copper, lead, nitrate, and nitrite, the department may
grant community and nontransient noncommunity water
systems waivers from the monitoring requirements for the
inorganic chemicals as set forth under title 40, Code of
Federal Regulations, part 141, seetiens-141:23-and--141:40
subparts C and E. The department may issue monitoring
waivers only if the conditions set forth under title 40,
Code of Federal Regulations, part %43 142, seetien
142-16{e} subpart B, are fully met.

2. Sampling frequency for transient noncommunity water systems.
Transient noncommunity water systems shall conduct monitoring
to determine compliance with the maximum contaminant levels
for nitrate and nitrite as set forth under title 40, Code of
Federal Regulations, seetien-141:23 part 141, subpart C.

History: Amended effective July 1, 1988; February 1, 1993; August 1,
1994; August 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 61-28.1-03

Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28.1-03

33-17-01-08. Organic chemical sampling and monitoring
requirements.

1. Volatile and nonvolatile synthetic organic chemicals.

a. Coverage. Community and nontransient noncommunity water
systems shall conduct monitoring to determine compliance
with the maximum contaminant levels for the volatile and
nonvolatile synthetic organic chemicals.

b. Sampling frequency. The number and frequency of samples
shall be as prescribed by the department and set forth
under title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, part 141,
seetion-141:24 subpart C.

c. Compliance. Compliance for each point that is sampled
more frequently than annually must be determined based on
a running annual average. Compliance for each point that
is sampled on an annual or less frequent basis must be
determined based on the initial sample result; or the
average of the initial and confirmation sample results.

2. Tetal-trihalemethaness
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ar--ctoverages---- Communtty---water---systems---which--serve--a
populatien-ef-ten-theusand-er-mere-individuals--and--whieh
add--a--disinfectant--to--the--water--in--any--part-ef-the
drinking-water-treatment-precess-shali-eellect-samples-fer
the-purpese-ef-anatysis-fer-tetal-trihalemethaness

b:--Sampling---frequeneys---- The--minimum--Rumber--of--samples
required-to-be-taken-by-the-system-shall-be-based--en--the
number--of--treatment-plants-used-by-the-system---Multiple
wells-drawing-raw-water-frem-a-single--aguifer--mays--with
t?e--depaptmentls--apppeva¥;--be--eens%dered-ene-treatment
Btants

All-samples-taken-within-an-established-frequeney- sha%% be
eotlected-within-a-twenty-feur-hour-perieds

{1}--Reutine-sampling---ARalyses-fer-tetal-trihalemethanes
shati-be-perfermed-at-quarteriy-intervais-en-at-teast
feur--water--samples-fer-each-treatment-plant-used-by
the-systems--At--}east--twenty-five--pereent--of--the
samptes--shatl--be--taken--at--}ecations--within--the
distributien-system-reflecting-the-maximum--residence
time--of--the--water--in--the--systems--The-remaining
severty-five-pereent-shall-be~taken-at-representative
lecations--in--the--distribution--system;-taking-inte
aceount-number-of -persens-served;--different--seurees
of-water;-and-different-treatment-metheds-empleyeds

{2}--Reduced-samp}ing-fregqueneys

fa}--Systems-utilizing-surface-water-or-a-combinatien
ef--syrfaee--and--groeund--water:---The--sampling
frequeney--may--be--reduced--to~a-minimum-of-one
sample-analyzed-per-quarter-taken-at-a-petnt--in
the--distribution--system-reflecting-the-maximum
residence-time-of-the-water-in-the-systems

The--system's--sampling--frequency--may--onty-be
redueed-HpoR-written-request-by-the--system--and
Hper-a-determination-by-the-department-that-data
frem--at--least--ene--year--ef--sampling--at---a
frequeney-of-feur-samples-eollected-per-calendar
guarter-per-water-treatment-plant--used--by--the
system--and--lecal--eonditiens--demonstrate-that
total--trihalomethane--ceneentratiens--witi---be
e8nsistently---belew---the--maximdm--eontaminant
level:

1f-at-any-time-during-whieh-the-reduced-sampling
frequeney-is-+n--effeet;--the--result--frem--any
aralysis--exeeeds--the-maximum-contaminant-tevel
and-sueh-results-are-cenfirmed-by-at--least--one
cheek--sample--taken-premptly-after-sueh-resutts
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are--receiveds--or--if--the--system--makes---any
stgnificant--change--to--its--seuree-of-water-gr
treatment-program; -the-system-shatl--immediately
restme--5ampling--oR--a--reutine--basis--ef-four
samples-per-quarter-per-treatment-plant-used--by
the---systems---Sueh--inereased--sampting--shali
eertinue--for--at--least--oene--year--before--the
frequeney-may-be-reduced-agains

{b}--Systems---utilizing---only--greund--waters---Fhe
sampting-frequency-may-be-reduced-to--a--mintmum
of--one--sample--analyzed--per--year--per--water
treatment--plant--taken--at--a--peint---in---the
distpibution---system---reflecting--the--maximum
residence-time-of-the-water-in-the-systems

The--system‘s--sampling--frequeney--may--enty-be
redueed-upen-written-request-by-the--system--and
HpeR--a-determination-by-the-department-that-the
system--has--a--maximum---tetal---trihalemethane
petential--ef--less-than-the-maximum-contaminant
teve}-and-}ecal-conditions-demenstrate-that--the
system--is--net-}ikely-te-appreach-er-exceed-the
maximum-contaminant-tevels

1f-at-any-time-during-which-the-reduced-sampling
frequeney-is-in--effeet;--the--result--frem--any
analysis---for---maximum---totat--trihalemethane
petential-is-equal-te--or--exceeds--the--maximum
eontaminant-level-and-sueh-results-are-eenfirmed
By-at-least-one-echeek-sampie;-the--system--shall
immediately--resume--sampling-en-a-reutine-basis
ef-four-samples-per-quarter-per-treatment--plant
used--By--the--system:--~Sueh-inereased-sampting
shal}-eentinue-for-at-least-ene-year-before--the
frequeney-may-be-reduced-agains

In--the--event--ef-any-significant-change-te-the
systemis-seurce-of-water-or--treatment--pregrams
the---system---shall---immedtately---anatyze--an
additienal----sample----for----maximum=----- totat
trihalemethane-petential-taken-at-a-peint-in-the
distributien-system-reflecting-maximum-residence
time--of-the-water-in-the-system-for-the-purpese
of-determining-whether--the--system--must--begin
samp}ing--en-a-reutine-basis-ef-feur-samples-per
guarter-per-treatment-plant-used-by-the--systems

{3}--1nereased--sampling--frequeney---At-the-option-of-the
department;-samp}ing--fregueneies--may--be--inereased
abeve---the--minimum--in--these--eases--where--it--#s
Reeessary---te----deteet----variations----of----total
trihalemethane-levels-within-the-distributien-systems
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er---Compliance:--Compliance-with-the-maximum-contaminant-level
shati-be-determined-based-en-a-running-annual--average--of
guarterly-aratysess

1f--the--average--ef--analyses--eevering--any-twelve-menth
period-exceeds-the--maximum--contaminant--level;--samp}ing
shat}--be--at-a-frequeney-desigrated-by-the-department-and
shali-eontinue-unti}-a-monitoring-sehedule-as-a--eondition
teo-a-variance-or-enforcement-action-becomes-effectives

1f--the--average--ef--anatyses--eovering--any-twelve-menth
peried-exeeeds-the-maximum-contaminant-level;--er--if--the
system--fatts--te--moniter;--the--system--shall-netify-the
department-and-give-netice-to-the-publiex

d:--Reporting:----At1---analyses--shall--be--reperted--to--the
department-within-thirty-days-ef-the-systemis--receipt--of
steh-resultss

er--Medification--of--treatment-methods-for-reduction-ef-total
trihalemethanes:--Befere-a-system--makes--any--sigrifieant
medification--to--iks--existing--treatment-process-fer-the
purpese-ef-achieving-compliance--with--the--trikaleomethane
regutatiens;--the-system-must-submit-and-ebtain-department
appreval-ef-a-detailed-plan--setting--ferth--its--prepesed
medification--and~--these-safeguards-that-it-will-implement
te-ensure-that-the-water-wili-nret-be-adversely-affeeted-by
sueh--medifications---Eaeh--system--shall--cemply-with-the
previsiens-set-ferth-in-the-department-approved-plans---At
a--minimum; -the-department-appreved-pian-shali-require-the
system-medifying-its-disinfeetion-practice-tos

f1}--Evaluate--the--water--system-fer-sanitary-defeets-and
evaluate-the-seuree-water-for-biolegical-quatitys

{2}--Evaluate---its---existing---treatment--practices--and
€onsider-imprevements-that-will-minimize-disinfectant
demand-and-eptimize-finished-water-quality-througheut
the-distributien-systems

(3)--PPeviée-~ba5e1%ne--wateP--qua4%%y—-squey—datajef-the
distributien-system-as-the-department-may-requires

¢4}--Conduet--additional--menitoring--te--assure-continued
maintenance-of--optimal--mierebiotegicat--quatity--#n
finished-water:-and

¢5}--Demenstrate----an----aetive---disinfeetant---residuatl
threugheut--the--distributien--system--at--ati--times
during-and-after-the-medifications

3: Unregulated contaminants.
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Coverage. Community and nontransient noncommunity water
systems shall monitor for thRe unregulated organic
contaminants.

Monitoring requirements. Systems shall monitor for the
fellewing unregulated organic contaminants as set forth
under title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, part 141,
seetion-141:40{n}+ subpart E.

Aldiearb

Atdiearb-suifexide

Aldiearb-suifene

Aldrin

Butachlor

carbaryl

Bieamba

Bieldrin

3-Hydrexyearbefuran

Methomy?

Metotachior

Metribuzin

Prepachier
Systems---sha}l--meniter--for--the--follewing--unreguiated
eorganie-contaminants-as-set-foerth-under-title-40;-Code--of
Federal--Regulatienss-part-141;-seetions-141-46{b}-threugh
141:40-¢(h}s

Ehloreform

Bromediehloremethane

Ehleredibromemethane

Bremeferm

m-Bichlerebenzene

1;1;-bBichleorepropene

1;1-Bich}ereethane
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1;15;2;2-Tetrachloroethane
1;3-Bichiereprepane
Ehleremethane
Brememethane
1;2;3-Trichloreprepane
t5i;1;2-Fetrachloreethane
Ehiereethare
2;2-Biehleropropane
e-Ehioreteluene
p~Ehlereteluene
Bibrememethane
Bremebenzene
1;3-Bichiorepropene

Systems---shatl--menitor--fer--the--following--unregulated
erganie-contaminants-at-the-diseretion-of-the--departments

1;25;4-Trimethylbenzene
1;2;3-Trichiorobenzene
R-Prepytbenzene
R-Butylbenzere
Naphthatene
Hexaehlorebutadiene
153;5-Trimethytbenzene
p-iseprepylteiuene
Iseprepylbenzene
Fert-butylbenzene
See-butyibenzene

Flueretrichleromethane
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History:

Biehlerediflueremethane

Bremeehleremethane

Instead--of--performing-the-menitering-for-the-unregulated
ergante-eentaminants;-a--system--serving--fewer--than--ene
Rurdred-fifty-service-eonnections-may-send-a-letter-te-the
department--stating--that--the--system--is--available--fer
samp}ing:---This--letter-must-be-sent-te-the-department-by
danuary-1;-1994-

Monitoring waivers. With the exception of acrylamide; and
epichlorohydrin, ard-tetal-trihalemetRhanes; the department may
grant community and nontransient noncommunity water systems
waivers from the monitoring requirements for the organic
chemicals as set forth under title 40, Code of Federal
Regulations, part 141, seetiens-141:24-and--141:468 subpart C.
The department may issue waivers only if the conditions set
forth under title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, part 143
142, seetien-142:-16¢e} subpart B, are fully met.

Amended effective December 1, 1982; July 1, 1988; December 1,

1990; August 1, 1994; August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 61-28.1-03
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28.1-03

33-17-01-08.1. Disinfectant, disinfection byproduct, and

disinfection byproduct precursor sampling and monitoring requirements.

1,

Disinfectants.

a. Coverage. The maximum residual disinfectant levels for
disinfectants apply to community and nontransient
noncommunity water systems that add a chemical
disinfectant to the drinking water in any part of the
water treatment process or that provide water that
contains a chemical disinfectant. The maximum residual
disinfectant Tlevel for chlorine dioxide also applies to
transient noncommunity water systems that use chlorine
dioxide as a disinfectant or oxidant.

b. Compliance dates. Subpart H community and nontransient
noncommunity water systems that serve ten thousand or more
persons shall comply with the maximum residual
disinfectant levels beginning January 1, 2002. All other
community and nontransient noncommunity water systems that
add a chemical disinfectant to the drinking water in any
part of the water treatment process or that provide water
that contains a chemical disinfectant shall comply with
the maximum residual disinfectant levels beginning
January 1, 2004.
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Subpart H transient noncommunity water systems that serve
ten thousand or more persons and use chlorine dioxide as a
disinfectant or oxidant shall comply with the maximum
residual disinfectant level for chlorine dioxide beginning
January 1, 2002. All other transient noncommunity water
systems that use chlorine dioxide as a disinfectant or
oxidant shall comply with the maximum residual
disinfectant level for chlorine dioxide beginning
January 1, 2004.

Sampling and monitoring requirements. Systems shall

conduct monitoring to determine compliance with the
maximum residual disinfectant levels as set forth under
title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, part 141,

subpart L.

Control of disinfectant residuals. Except for chlorine

dioxide, systems may increase residual disinfectant levels
in the distribution system to a level and for a time
necessary to protect public health and address specific
microbiological contamination problems caused by
circumstances such as distribution line breaks, storm
runoff events, source water contamination events, or
cross-connection events.

2. Disinfection byproducts.

a.

Interim maximum contaminant level for total

trihalomethanes. Subpart H community water systems that
serve ten thousand or more persons shall comply with the
interim maximum contaminant level for total
trihalomethanes until December 31, 2001. All other
community water systems that serve ten thousand or more
persons and add a chemical disinfectant to the drinking
water in any part of the water treatment process shall
comply with the interim maximum contaminant level for
total trihalomethanes until December 31, 2003. The
interim maximum contaminant level for total
trihalomethanes shall no Jlonger be applicable after
December 31, 2003.

Systems shall conduct monitoring to determine compliance
with the interim maximum contaminant level for total
trihalomethanes as set forth under title 40, Code of
Federal Regulations, subpart C.

Before a system makes any significant modifications to its
existing treatment process for the purpose of achieving
compliance with the interim maximum contaminant level for
total trihalomethanes, the system shall submit and obtain
department approval of a detailed plan setting forth its
proposed modifications and those safeguards that it will
implement to ensure that the bacteriological quality of
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the drinking water served by the system will not be
adversely affected by the modifications. At a minimum,
the department-approved plan shall require the system
modifying its disinfection practice to:

(1) Evaluate the water system for sanitary defects and
evaluate the source water for biological quality;

(2) Evaluate its existing treatment practices and
consider improvements that will minimize disinfectant
demand and optimize finished quality throughout the
distribution system;

(3) Provide baseline water quality survey data of the
distribution system as the department may require:

(4) Conduct additional monitoring to assure continued
maintenance of optimal biological quality in the
finished water; and

(5) Demonstrate an active disinfectant residual
throughout the distribution system at all times
during and after the modifications.

Final maximum contaminant level for total trihalomethanes

and maximum contaminant levels for other disinfection
byproducts. Subpart H community and nontransient
noncommunity water systems that serve ten thousand or more
persons shall comply with the final maximum contaminant
level for total trihalomethanes and the maximum
contaminant levels for haloacetic acids five, bromate, and
chlorite beginning January 1, 2002. All other community
and nontransient noncommunity water systems that add a
chemical disinfectant to the drinking water in any part of
the water treatment process or that provide water that
contains a chemical disinfectant shall comply with the
final maximum contaminant level for total trihalomethanes
and the maximum contaminant levels for haloacetic acids
five, bromate, and chlorite beginning January 1, 2004.

Systems shall conduct monitoring to determine compliance
with the final maximum contaminant Jlevel for total
trihalomethanes and the maximum contaminant levels for
haloacetic acids five, bromate, and chlorite as set forth
under title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, subpart L.

Disinfection byproduct precursors. Subpart H community

and nontransient noncommunity water systems that use
conventional treatment and serve ten thousand or more
persons shall comply with the treatment techniques for
control of disinfection byproduct precursors beginning
January 1, 2002. Subpart H community and nontransient
noncommunity water systems that use conventional treatment
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History:

and serve fewer than ten thousand persons shall comply
with the treatment techniques for control of disinfection
byproduct precursors beginning January 1, 2004.

Systems shall conduct monitoring to determine compliance
with the treatment techniques for control of disinfection
byproducts as set forth under title 40, Code of Federal
Regulations, subpart L.

Effective August 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 61-28.1-03
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28.1-03

33-17-01-09. Furbidity--and-disinfeetant-residual Filtration and

disinfection treatment sampling and monitoring requirements.

Interim--requirements:---The-follewing-sampling-and-menitering
requirements-for-turbidity-+n-drinking-water-appty--te--publie
water--systems--that-utilize-surface-water-seurees-and-previde
filtration-treatment-untii-June-295;-1993;-and-te-publie--water
systems--that-utilize-surface-water-seurees-but-de-net-previde
filtration-treatment-that-the--department--has--determined--in
writing--must-instati-filtration-until-June-29;-1993;-er-untii
filtration-is-instalied;-whichever-is-taters

as--Publie--water--systems--that-utilize-surface-water-sedrees

shali-sampie-at-a-representative-entry-peint-te-the--water
distributien--system;-at-teast-ence-a-day;-for-the-purpese
of-making-turbidity-measurements:--The--measurements--must
be---made--By--a--nephelemetrie--methed--approeved--by--the
department:--The-department-may;-+A--writing;--reduce--the
sampling--frequency-for-noncommuntty-systems-that-practiee
disinfeetion-and-matntain-an--aetive--distribution--system
disinfectant---residuat---if---it---determines---that---ne
HAreasenable-risk-te-heatth-witi-resutt:

Br--Publie--water--systems--that-utilize-surface-water-seurees

shall}-eenfirm-by-resampling-any-turbidity-measurement-that
exeeeds---the---maximum---contaminant--tevel--as--seen--as
practicable-and-preferably-within-ene-heur:--Systems-shat}
Retify--the--department--within--ferty-eight--hours-if-the
results-ef-the--confirmation--sample--exceed--the--maximum
eontaminant-level:--The-results-ef-the-confirmation-sampie
must-be-used-for-the-purpese-of--catentating--the--monthly
average---fop---turbiditys----Systems---shati--netify--the
department-and-give-netice-to-the-pubtie--if--the--menthiy
average--of--the--datly--analyses--er--the--average-ef-twe
analyses-taken-en--eenseeutive--days--exeeed--the--maximum
eontaminant-ievel:

2:--Final--requirements:---BegiARing--dune-29;--1993;-pubtie-water

systems-tRat-utilize-surface-water--seurees--er--grednd--water
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sedrees--deemed--bBy--the--department--te--be--under-the-direet
tnfluence-of-surface-water-shatl-eomply-with-the-turbidity-and
distnfectant-residuat-sampling-and-men+tering-requirements-set
forth-under-title-40;-Code-of-Federal--Regutations;--part-141;
subpart-H:

Coverage. All subpart H systems shall conduct monitoring to
determine compliance with the treatment technique requirements
for filtration and disinfection.

Systems utilizing surface water sources. All subpart H

systems that utilize surface water sources shall comply with
the turbidity and residual disinfectant concentration sampling
and monitoring requirements set forth under title 40, Code of
Federal Regulations, part 141, subpart H. Those systems
serving ten thousand or more persons shall also comply with
the disinfection profiling and benchmarking requirements set
forth under title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, part 141,
subpart P.  Beginning January 1, 2002, those systems that
serve ten thousand or more persons and provide conventional
filtration treatment or direct filtration shall also comply
with the individual filter sampling and monitoring
requirements set forth under title 40, Code of Federal
Regulations, part 141, subpart P.

Systems utilizing ground water sources under the direct

influence of surface water. The following sampling and
monitoring requirements apply to subpart H systems that
utilize ground water sources deemed by the department to be
under the direct influence of surface water:

a. All systems that provide filtration treatment shall comply
with the turbidity and residual disinfectant concentration
sampling and monitoring requirements set forth under
title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, part 141,
subpart H. Those systems serving ten thousand or more
persons shall also comply with the disinfection profiling
and benchmarking requirements set forth under title 40,
Code of Federal Regulations, part 141, subpart P.
Beginning January 1, 2002, those systems that serve ten
thousand or more persons and provide conventional
filtration treatment or direct filtration shall also
comply with the individual filter sampling and monitoring
requirements set forth under title 40, Code of Federal
Reqgulations, part 141, subpart P.

b. All systems that do not provide filtration treatment shall
comply with the filtration avoidance criteria and
applicable disinfection sampling and monitoring
requirements set forth under title 40, Code of Federal
Regulations, part 141, subpart H. Those systems serving
ten thousand or more persons shall also comply with the
disinfection profiling and benchmarking requirements and,
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History:

beginning January 1, 2002, the filtration avoidance
criteria set forth under title 40, Code of Federal
Regulations, part 141, subpart P.

Amended effective December 1, 1982; July 1, 1988; February 1,

1993; Augqust 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 61-28.1-03
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28.1-03

33-17-01-13. Reperting-and-publie Public notification.

1.

Reperting--requirements:---Exeept--where--a--sherter-reperting
peried-is-speeified;-the-system-shall-repert-te-the-department
the--resuit--of--any--test;--measurement;-er-analysis-required
withitn-the-first-ten-days-follewing-the--menth--in--whieh--the
resutts--are--received-er-the-first-ten-days-fellewing-the-end
ef--the--reqguired--monitoring--peried--as--stiputated--by--the
department;-whichever-of-these-is-sherter:

Fhe--system--shall--netify--the--department-within-forty-eight
heurs-ef-the-fatiure-te-comply-with-any-primary-drinking-water
regutations---inetuding--faiiure--to--comply--with--menitering
requirements;-except-that-faiture-to-comply-with--the--maximum
€eontaminant---ievels--for--total--coliform--bacteria--must--be
reperted-te-the-department-re-tater-than-the-end-of--the--next
bustress-day-after-the-system-tearns-ef-the-vielatiens

Systems--that--utilize--surface--water-seurees-er-ground-water
seurees-deemed-by--the--department--to--be--under--the--direct
influenee--of--surface--water-shati-comply-with-the-appticabie
reperting-requirements--set--forth--under--titie-40;--Code--of
Federa}---Regutatiens;--part-141;--subpart-H;--seetion-141:75+
CommuRtty-and-ReAtransient-ROREOmMUAtty--water--systems--shat}
eomply-with-the-applicable-reperting-requirements-for-lead-and
copper-set-forth-under-title-40;-Ccode-of-Federal--Regutationss
part-141;-subpart-1;-seetion-141:90-

The-system-is-net-required-to-repert-anatytical-results-to-the
department--in--cases--where--the--department--performed---the
anatysiss

The-system-shall;-within-ten-days-ef-compietion-of-each-publie
retification---required;---submit---te---the---department----a
representative--eepy--of--each--type--of--notice--distributed;
pub}ished;-pested;-or-made-available-te-the-persens-served--by
the-system-er-te-the-medias

The--system--sha}}--submit--te-the-department;-within-the-time
stated-in-the-request;-copies-ef-any-recerds--required--to--be
matAtained--by--the-department-or-copies-of-any-decuments-then
in-existenee-which-the-department-is-entitied-to-inspeet-under
the-previsiens-ef-state-taws
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27--Publie-notifications

ar Maximum contaminant level, maximum residual disinfectant
level, treatment technique, and variance and exemption
schedule violations. A public water system which fails to
comply with an applicable maximum contaminant level or an
established treatment technique or which fails to comply
with the requirements of any schedule prescribed pursuant

to a variance or exemption shall notify persons served by
the system as follows:

i} a.

t2} b.

£33 c.

By publication in a daily newspaper of general
circulation in the area served by the system as soon
as possible, but in no case later than fourteen days
after notification of the violation or failure. If
the area served by the system is not served by a
daily newspaper of general circulation, notice must
instead be given by publication in a weekly newspaper
of general circulation serving the area;

By mail delivery, or by hand delivery, not later than
forty-five days after the violation or failure. The
department may waive mail or hand delivery if it
determines that the system has corrected the
violation or failure within the forty-five-day
period; and

A copy of the notice must be furnished to the radio
and television stations serving the area served by
the system as soon as possible, but in no case later
than seventy-two hours after receiving notification
of the violation or failure, for the--fellewing
violations of the following maximum contaminant
levels, maximum residual disinfectant levels of
disinfectants, or failures that may pose an acute
risk to human health: exceedance of the maximum
contaminant level for nitrate or nitrite; exceedance
of the maximum contaminant level for coliform
bacteria when fecal coliform bacteria or E.coli are
present in the water distribution system; occurrence
of a waterborne disease outbreak in a system which
utilizes surface water sources or ground water
sources deemed by the department to be under the
direct influence of surface water that does not
provide filtration treatment, and violation of the
maximum residual disinfectant level for chlorine
dioxide within the distribution system as defined and
determined under title 40, Code of Federal
Regulations, part 141, subparts G and L.

A public water system must give notice at least once
every three months by mail delivery or by hand
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t1}

t2} b.

£33} c.

|>

de]ivery for as long as the violation or failure
exists.

A community water system in an area that is not
served by a daily or weekly newspaper of general
circulation or a noncommunity water system must give
notice within fourteen days after notification of the
violation or failure by hand delivery or by
continuous posting in conspicuous places within the
area served by the system. Posting must continue for
as long as the violation or failure exists.

Other violations, variances, and exemptions. A public
water system which fails to perform required monitoring,
fails to complete required sanitary surveys, fails to
comply with an established testing procedure,is granted a
variance, or is granted an exemption shall notify persons
served by the system as follows:

a. By publication in a daily newspaper of general
circulation in the area served by the system within
three months -after notification of the violation or
grant. If the area served by the system is not
served by a daily newspaper of general circulation,
notice shall instead be given by publication in a
weekly newspaper of general circulation serving the

area.

b. A public water system must give notice at least once
every three months by mail delivery or by hand
delivery for as long as the violation exists or the
variance or exemption is in existence.

c. A community water system in an area that is not

served by a daily or weekly newspaper of general
circulation or a noncommunity water system must give
notice within three months after notification of the
violation or grant by hand delivery or by continuous
posting in conspicuous places within the area served
by the system. Posting must continue for as long as
the violation exists or the variance or exemption
remains in effect.

Notice to new billing units. A community water system
must give a copy of the most recent public notice for any
outstanding violation of any maximum contaminant level,
maximum residual disinfectant level, or any treatment
technique requirement, or any variance or exemption
schedule to all new billing units or new hookups prior to
or at the time service begins.

General notice content. Each notice must provide a clear
and readily understandable explanation of the violation,
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any potential adverse health effects, the population at
risk, the steps that the public water system is taking to
correct such violation, the necessity for seeking
alternative water supplies, if any, and any preventive
measures the consumer should take until the violation is
corrected. Each notice must be conspicuous and may not
contain unduly technical language, unduly small print, or
similar problems that frustrate the purpose of the notice.
Each notice must include the telephone number of a
designee of the public water system as a source of
additional information concerning the notice. Notices
shall be multilinqual where appropriate.

Mandatory health effects Tlanguage. When providing the
information on potential adverse health effects required
in notices of violations of maximum contaminant levels,
maximum residual disinfectant levels, or treatment
technique requirements, or notices of the granting or the
continued existence of variances or exemptions, or notices
of failure to comply with a variance or exemption
schedule, public water systems shall include specific
language, available from the department, for the feilewing
contaminants as set forth under title 40, Code of Federal
Regulations, part 141, seetien-32;-paragraph-e; subpart D,
and part 143;-seetion-143:5+.

£1}--Antimenys
{2}--Asbestess
§3}--Bariums:
¢4}--Bery}iiums
{5} --Cadiums
{6} - -Chremitms
{#}--Coppers
{8}--Eyanides
£9}--Fluerides
£10}--teads
§11}--Mereurys
§12}--Niekels
£13}--Nitrate:
£14)--Nitrites
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{15} --Seleniums

¢16}--Thaliiums
£17}--Feeal-eoliform-bacteria-er-E--eotis
§18}--Miecrebiolegicals
£19}--Tetal-celiform-bacteriar
{26} --Aerylamides

§21}--Alachler:

§22}--Aldiearb+
§23}--Aldiearb-sulfenes
{24}--Aldiearb-sutfexides
§25}--Atrazines

{26}--Benzene-
{27}--Benzefa}pyrenes
¢28}--Carbefurans

{29} --carben-tetrachlorides
£30}--€Ehierdane:

¢31}--Palapens

{32} --Bibremeechloreprepane-{BBEP}:
{33}--erthe-Dichlerobenzenes
¢34}--para-bichlorebenzenes
$35}--1;2-bichlereethanes
§36}--1;1-bDichtereethylene:
{37}--eis-1;2-Biehloreethylenes
§38}--trans-1;2-Dichiereethylenes
{39}--Dichleremethanex
§40}--1;2-Bichlerepropaner
{41}--254-D=
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€42} --Di-{2-ethylhexy}}-adipates
{43}--Bi-{2-ethylhexy}}-phthalate-
{44} --binssebs

{45} --Piguat=

{46}--Endothall=

{47} --Endrin=

{48} --Epichlerehydrins:

{49} --Ethyibenzere-
{58}--Ethylene-dibremide-{EBBR} -
{51}--Giyphesate-
§52}--Heptaehlor:
£53}--Heptaechlor-epoxides

{54} --Hexaehlerebenzene:

{55} --Hexachloreeyelopentadienes
{56}--Lindane-
{57}--Methoexyehler-

{58} --Meneehlorebenzene:

{59} --0xamyl-{Vydate}=-
{60}~-Pentachlerephensi:
{61}--Pieloram:
{62}--Pelyehlerinated-bipheny}s-{PEBs}-:
{63}--Simazines

{64} --Styrenex
{65}--1;25;4-Trichlorebenzenes
§66}--2535;7;8-FCDB-{Piexin}s
{67}--Fetrachloreethyleres:
{68}--1;1;1-Trichloreethaner
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History:

£69}--1;1;2-FTrichloreoethane:
{70}--Trichlereethylenex
{71}--Feluene-
{72}--Texaphene-
§73}--2;4;5-TP-Silvex:
{74}--Viny}-ehloride:
{758}--Xylenes:
Amended effective December 1, 1982; July 1, 1988; December 1,

1990; August 1, 1991; February 1, 1993; August 1, 1994; August 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 61-28.1-03

Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28.1-03, 61-28.1-05

33-17-01-13.1. Consumer confidence reports.

1.

Coverage and general requirements. Community water systems

shall deliver an annual consumer confidence report to all
billing units or service connections provided drinking water
by the system. The report shall contain information on the
quality of the drinking water delivered by the system and
characterize risks from exposure to contaminants detected in
the drinking water. For the purpose of the report, detected
means at or above the levels set forth under title 40, Code of
Federal Regulations, part 141, subpart O.

Effective dates. Existing community water systems shall

deliver the first report by October 19, 1999, and subsequent
reports by July first of each year. The first report shall
contain information collected by December 31, 1998.
Subsequent reports shall contain information collected by
December thirty-first of the previous calendar year.

New community water systems shall deliver the first report by
July first of the year after its first full calendar year in
operation and subsequent reports by July first of each year.
Community water systems that sell water to other community
water systems shall provide applicable information to the
buyer systems as set forth under title 40, Code of Federal
Regulations, part 141, subpart O.

Content. Each report shall contain the information set forth

under title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, subpart O.

Report delivery. Community water systems shall comply with

the report delivery requirements set forth under title 40,
Code of Federal Regulations, subpart O.
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History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 61-28.1-03
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28.1-03

33-17-01-14. Reeerd--matntenanee Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements. Pub}ie-water-systems-tRat-utilize-surface--water--sedrees
er--greund-water-seurees-deemed-by-the-department-to-be-under-the-direct
tAfluenee--ef--surface--water---shat}---eemply---with---the---appliecable
recordkeeping--requirements--set--forth--under-title-40;-Code-of-Federal
Regulatienss--part-141;--subpart-H;---seetion-141:75:----Community---and
ReAtFanstent-ReREOmmURTty-water-systems-shatl-eemply-with-the-applicable
recordkeeping-requirements-for-lead-and-copper-set-forth-under-title-40;
code-of-Federal-Regulations;-part-141;-subpart-1;-section-141:91:

1. Reporting requirements. Except when a shorter reporting
period is specified, the system shall report to the department
the result of any test, measurement, or analysis required
within the first ten days following the month in which the
results are received or the first ten days following the end
of the required monitoring period as stipulated by the
department, whichever of these is shorter.

The system shall notify the department within forty-eight
hours of the failure to comply with any primary drinking water
regulations including failure to comply with monitoring
requirements, except that failure to comply with the maximum
contaminant levels for total coliform bacteria must be
reported to the department no later than the end of the next
business day after the system learns of the violation.

Community water systems required to comply with the interim
maximum contaminant level for total trihalomethanes shall
report the results of all analyses to the department within
thirty days of the system's receipt of the results. Subpart H
systems shall comply with the reporting requirements for
filtration and disinfection treatment set forth under
title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, part 141, subparts H
and P. Community and nontransient noncommunity water systems
shall comply with the reporting requirements for lead and
copper set forth under title 40, Code of Federal Regulations,
part 141, subpart I. Community, nontransient noncommunity,
and transient noncommunity water systems shall comply with the
applicable reporting requirements  for disinfectants,
disinfection byproducts, and disinfection byproduct precursors
set forth under title 40, Code of Federal Regulations,
part 141, subpart L.

The system is not required to report analytical results to the
department in cases when the department performed the

analysis.
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Within ten days of completion of each public notification
required, the system shall submit to the department a
representative copy of each type of notice distributed,
published, posted, or made available to the persons served by
the system or to the media.

The system shall submit to the department, within the time
stated in the request, copies of any records required to be
maintained by the department or copies of any documents then
in existence which the department is entitled to inspect under
the provisions of state law.

Recordkeeping requirements. Subpart H systems shall comply

with the recordkeeping requirements for filtration and
disinfection treatment set forth under title 40, Code of
Federal Regulations, part 141, subparts H and P. Community
and nontransient noncommunity water systems shall comply with
the recordkeeping requirements for lead and copper set forth
under title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, part 141,
subpart I. Community, nontransient noncommunity, and
transient noncommunity water systems shall comply with the
applicable recordkeeping requirements for disinfectants,
disinfection byproducts, and disinfection byproduct precursors
set forth under title 40, Code of Federal Regulations,
part 141, subpart L. Community water systems shall retain
copies of consumer confidence reports for no less than five

years.

A1l public water systems shall retain on their premises or at
a convenient Jlocation near their premises, the following
additional records to document compliance with the remaining
provisions of this chapter:

: a. Bacteriological and chemical analyses. Records of

bacteriological analyses shall be kept for not less than
five years. Records of chemical analyses shall be kept
for not less than ten years. Actual laboratory reports
may be kept, or data may be transferred to tabular
summaries, provided that the following information is
included:

ar (1) The date, place, and time of sampling and the name of
the person who collected the sample;

b: (2) Identification of the sample as to whether it was a
routine distribution system sample, check sample, or
raw or other special purpose sample;

ex (3) Date of analysis;

d- (4) Laboratory and person responsible for performing
analysis;
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History:

er (5) The analytical technique or method used; and
fr (6) The result of the analysis.

b. Corrective actions taken. Records of action taken by the
system to correct violations shall be kept for a period of
not less than three years after the last action taken with
respect to the particular violation involved.

i

Reports and communications. Copies of any written
reports, summaries, or communications relating to sanitary
surveys of the system conducted by the system itself, by a
private consultant, or by any local, state, or federal
agency, shall be kept for a period not less than ten years
after completion of the sanitary survey involved.

&

Variances and exemptions. Records concerning a variance
or exemption granted to the system shall be kept for a
period ending not less than five years following the
expiration of such variance or exemption.

Amended effective July 1, 1988; December 1, 1990; February 1,

1993; August 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 61-28.1-03
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28.1-03, 61-28.1-05

33-17-01-15. Varianee Variances and exemptien exemptions.

1.

Varianee:---The--department--may-net-autherize-a-varianee-te-a
publie--water--system---frem---the---micrebiolegical---maximum
eontaminant---ievel}---requirements;---oer--the--filtratien--and
disinfeection-requirements-set-forth-under--title-40;--Code--of
Federal--Regutatiens;-part-141;-subpart-H---The-Bepartment-may
autherize-a--varianee--te--a--publie--water--system--frem--the
treatment--teechnigue--requirements--for-lead-and-copper-i1f-the
conditions--set--ferth--under--title-40;---Code---of---Federal

department-may-alse-autherize-a-varianee--te--a--publie--water
system-frem-other-maximum-contaminant-1evel-requirements-whens

ar--The--raw--water--seurees--which--are-avaitable-te-a-system
€annet--meet--the--maximum---contaminant---1eve}---despite
appticatien--ef-the-best-techretegy;-treatment-techniquess;
er-other-means-which-the-department--finds--are--generatty
and--reasenably-available;-taking-ecost-inte-eonsiderations
The-department-hereby-identifies-the-fellowing-as-the-best
technelegy;-treatment-technriques;-er-ether-means-generatty
available--fer--achieving--cempliance--with--the---maximum
€oRtaminant---level---fer---velatile---synthetie---erganie
chemicals:--central-treatment-using-packed-tewer-aerations
eentral--treatment-using-granutar-activated-carben-for-ati
these-ehemicals-exeept-vinyl-ehlorides
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Br--The--eoneentration--of--the-contaminant-will-net-result-in
HAreasenable-risk-te-healths-and

€---Within--ene--year-of-the-date-ef-variance-authorizatiens-a
sehedute-for-complianee-i+s--issued--and--under--whieh--the
system-agrees-te-impiement-sueh-sehedules

2:--Exemptien:---The--department--may--net--exempt--a-publie-water
system-frem--the--mierobiolegical--maximum--contaminant--teve}
Fequirements;--or-the-requirements-teo-previde-disinfection-set
forth-under-titte-40;-Code-of-Federal--Regulations;--part-141;
subpart-Hz---The--department--may-exempt-a-publie-water-system
from-the-treatment-teehnique-requirements-for-lead-and--copper
ORty--3f--the--conditions--set--forth--under-title-40;-Code-of
Federal-Regulations;-part-141;-seetion-141:62;-are--met----The
department--may--alse--exempt-a-publie-water-system-from-other
maximum-conRtaminant-level-er-treatment-techRique-requirementss
or-from-Beth;-upen-finding-thats

ar--Bue--to-compelling-factors;-ineluding-econemie;-the-system
ts-unabie-te-comply-with-sueh-maximum-contaminant-level-or
treatment-techniques

Br--The--system-was-in-eperation-en-the-effective-date-ef-sueh
maxXimum---coRtaminant---1evel---er---treatment---technique
regutatiens

€z--The--granting--of--the--exemption--wit}--net--resutt-in-an
HAreasenable-risk-te-heatths-and

d---Within--ene-year-ef-the-date-of-exemption-autherizatiens-a
sehedule-for-complianee-is-issued-and-the-system-agrees-te
impiement-sueh-sehedules

3:--Precedures

ar--Aetion---to--€onsider--a--varianee--or--exemption--may--be
tnttiated-by-the-department-er-By--the--system--threugh--a
written-request-submitted-te-the-department:

B:--Prier--te--autherizatien--ef--a--varianee--er-a-cemptianee
sehedule-fer-a--varianee;--the--department--shatl--previde
Retice--and--eppertunity--fer--a--publie--hearing--en-that
prepesed-variance-er-compliance-sehedute-foer-a-varianees

€---Prier--to--autherizatien--ef--a-compliance-sehedute-for-an
exemption;--the--department--shatl--previde---netice---and
eppertuRity---fer---a---publie--hearing--on--the--prepesed
compliance-sehedule-for-an--exemptien: General authority
and limitations. The department may grant a variance to a
public water system from any maximum contaminant level or
treatment technique requirement except the maximum
contaminant level for coliform bacteria and the treatment
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technique requirements for filtration and disinfection set
forth under title 40, Code of Federal Regulations,
part 141, subpart H. The department may grant an
exemption to a public water system from any maximum
contaminant Tevel or treatment technique requirement
except the maximum contaminant level for coliform bacteria
and the disinfection treatment requirements set forth
under title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, part 141,
subpart H, section 141.72(a)(3) and (b)(2).

Variances. Variances for public water systems serving ten

thousand or more persons shall comply with section 1415(a) of
the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act [42 U.S.C. 300g-4(a)].
Variances for public water systems serving fewer than ten
thousand persons shall comply with one of the following:
section 1415(a) of the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act [42
U.S.C. 300g-4(a)]; or section 1415(e) of the Federal Safe

Drinking Water Act [42 U.S.C. 300g-4(e)] and title 40, Code of
Federal Regulations, part 142, subpart K.

In granting variances pursuant to section 1415(a) of the

Federal Safe Drinking Water Act [42 U.S.C. 300g-4(a)], the
department identifies as best technology, treatment

techniques, or other means generally available for achieving
compliance with the maximum contaminant levels and treatment
technique requirements those set forth under title 40, Code of

Federal Regulations, part 142, subpart G. In granting
variances pursuant to section 1415(e) of the Federal Safe
Drinking Water Act [42 U.S.C. 300g-4(e)], the department

jdentifies as acceptable technologies those established under

section 1412(b)(15) of the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act [42
U.S.C. 300g-1(b)(15)].

Exemptions. Exemptions for public water systems shall comply

with section 1416 of the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act [42
U.S.C. 300g-5] and title 40, Code of Federal Regulations,
part 142, subpart G.

Procedures. Actions to consider a variance or exemption may

History:

be initiated by the department or by a public water system
through a written request to the department. The department
shall act on any written variance or exemption request
submitted by a public water system within ninety days receipt
of the request. The department shall provide notice and
opportunity for a public hearing before granting any variance
and before prescribing a compliance schedule for any variance
or exemption.

Amended effective December 1, 1982; July 1, 1988; December 1,

1990; August 1, 1991; February 1, 1993; August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 61-28.1-03
Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28.1-03, 61-28.1-05
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33-17-01-19. Protection of public water systems.

1.

Cross-connection control.

a. Cross connections are prohibited except when and where, as
approved by the authority having Jjurisdiction, suitable
protective devices are installed, tested, and maintained
to ensure proper operation on a continuing basis.

b. A system shall be designed, installed, and maintained in
such a manner as to prevent nonpotable liquids, solids, or
gases from being introduced into the water through cross
connections or any other piping connections to the system.

Interconnections.

a. Interconnection between two or more systems shall be
permitted only with the written approval of the
department.

b. Interconnection between a nonpublic and public water
system shall not be permitted unless specifically approved
in writing by the department.

Return of used water prohibited. Water used for cooling,
heating, or other purposes shall not be returned to the
system. Such water may be discharged into an approved
drainage system through an airgap or may be used for
nonpotable purposes.

Products in contact with water. A1l products that may come
into contact with water intended for use in a public water
system must meet American national standards
institute/national sanitation foundation international
standards 60-1988 and 61-1991. Suppliers of water for public
water systems may not willfully introduce or permit the
introduction of a product into the public water system which
has not first been determined to meet these standards. At the
discretion of the department, suppliers of water for public
water systems shall compile and maintain on file for
inspection by the department a list of all products used by
the system. Prior to using a product not on the 1list,
suppliers of water for public water systems shall either
determine that the product meets these standards or notify the
department of the type, name, and manufacturer of the product.
A product will be considered as meeting these standards if so
certified by an organization accredited by the American
national standards institute to test and certify such
products.

Used materials. Containers, piping, or materials which have

been used for any purpose other than conveying potable water
shall not be used.
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6. Water storage structures. Finished water storage structures
shall have a watertight cover which excludes the entrance of
birds, animals, insects, and excessive dust. Beginning
February 16, 1999, public water systems shall not begin
construction of uncovered finished water storage facilities.

7. Turbidity control. Subpart H systems that serve ten thousand
or more persons and provide conventional filtration treatment
or direct filtration shall develop individual filter profiles,
perform individual filter self-assessments, and arrange for
the completion of comprehensive performance evaluations as set
forth under title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, subpart P.
At the direction of the department, systems that are required
to conduct a comprehensive performance evaluation shall
arrange for the completion of a full composite correction
program and implement followup recommendations that result
from the composite correction program. Comprehensive
performance evaluations and composite correction programs
shall be conducted by a party other than the system which is
approved by the department.

History: Effective December 1, 1982; amended effective July 1, 1988;
August 1, 1994; August 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 61-28.1-03

Law Implemented: NDCC 61-28.1-03
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JULY 2000

CHAPTER 37-08-01

37-08-01-01. Definitions. The definitions provided in North
Dakota Century Code title 39 -shall apply to this article, except:

1. "Corrective visual device" means glasses or contact lenses
with-er-witheut-field-expander.

2. "Field of view vision report' means a report measuring
peripheral view-{free-from-seetemas} vision arrived at by use
of ar-aceepted-deviee a static or kinetic visual field testing
device in the ophthalmologic or optometric profession which
checks peripheral and central view visual field, excluding
tangent screen and confrontation devices.

3. ‘!Glare--reecevery!--means--the--ability-to-resume-nermal-vision
within-seecends-after-having-been--b}inded!--by-~-headlamps--or
other-Bright-1+ghts-shining-in-the-eyess

4;--%Glare--resistanee!--means-the-ability-to-retain-rermal-visien
despite-glare-from-headlamps-er-ether-bright-1ights-shining-in
the-eyess

8: "Medical advisory board" means driver license medical advisory
board consisting of North Dakota licensed physicians or
optometrists appointed by the director for the purpose of
advising the director concerning the medical aspects of
licensing.

6s 4. "Outside mirrors" means one unobstructed mirror attached to
each side of the vehicle within easy view of the driver.
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1
[

“Road test" means a driving demonstration.

© ¥
ICh

"Special visual devices" means use of telescopic bioptic
resulting in a vision acuity of 20/130 in each eye through the
carrier lens and 20/40 in the bioptic lens and having a full
field peripheral view free-frem-seetemas in both eyes.

9+

I\l

"Vision specialist" means a North Dakota licensed physician or
optometrist.

History: Effective December 1, 1988; amended effective July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02
Law Implemented: NDCC 39-06-03(7)

37-08-01-03. Visual acuity requiring road test. Visual acuity ef
20/76-er less than 20/60 requires a road test regardless of the
corrective or special visual device being used.

History: Effective December 1, 1988; amended effective May 1, 1994;
July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02

Law Implemented: NDCC 39-06-03(7)

37-08-01-04. Medical advisory board review. Whenever the visual
acuity is less than 20/80;-as-stated--By--the--applicant--er--eperateris
visien--speetatist or field of vision less than 105 degrees, the medical
advisory board may, upon request of the drivers license and traffic
safety division, review the case and make their recommendations to the
director of the department of transportation or the director's agent.

History: Effective December 1, 1988; amended effective July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02 .
Law Implemented: NDCC 39-06-03(7)

37-08-01-05. Minimum vision requirements and restrictions.
Applicants and operators requesting or maintaining a North Dakota
Ticense or permit and who meet the following minimum vision standards,
as established by the drivers license and traffic safety division, shall
comply with the associated requirements and restrictions (which are
nonexclusive):

Minimum visual acuity Requirements and
restrictions with or
without corrective or
special device.

1. 20/3040
for person having singie-eye )
one-eyed vision (as-hsz-3-f, h).
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2.

20/50

for person having one-eyed vision

(a, b, d, f, h).

3. 20/60

for person having one-eved vision

4.

| SA

l\l

(a, b, d, f, h).

20/40 each eye

20/50 each eye

20/50 better eye

20/60 or less other eye

20/60 better eye
20/60 or less other eye

6---20/60-better-eye

20/708-er-1ess-ether-eye

- - .-

?+--kess-thanr-20/60-in-each-eye;-but

8.

9.

10.

better-than-20/79-in-cach-eye-~-=-=---= :

20/70 better eye

20/80 - 20/100 other eye

20/80 better eye

20/80 - 20/100 other eye

Requirements and restriction code:

a.

(as-h f).

(b;-e;-d;-h 2, bz f).

(bs-€5-d3-e5-g5-hs-15
ks-1 a, b, c, e, f, g).

(bs-e5-d5-€5-g5-Rs-#;
ks-1 a, b, c, e, f, g).

Minimum-vision-witheut-eorrective-lensess

b:--Eorreetive-er-speeial-visnal-deviee-{when-reguired}-

e Daylight driving on
b.

c. Vision recheck with
d. Vision recheck with
e. Road test.

f.

ly.

Vision specialist recommendations.

in one year.

in two years.

Field of view vision report:

{1}--1f-the-binecular-horizontal-visual-fietd-140-degrees
er-better---no-eperateris-license-restrietionss
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§2}--1f-the-binoenlar-horizontal-visual-field-less-than
140-degrees---eperateris-}ieense-restrietionss

§3}--1f-the-bineeular-horizental-visual-field-less-than
120-degrees---ro-operateris-}ieenses

{4}--Fer-a-single-eye-vision-applicants

fa}--A-minimum-herizental-visual-field-ef-120-degreess
Nasa}---50-degreess
Yemporat---70-degreess

{b}--A-minimum-vertical-field-of:
Inferier---50-degreess
Superier---25-degreess

fe}--1¥-the-applicantis-superior-er-inferigr-visual
field-is-impaired;-the-applicantis-better-eye
must-meet-the-vertieat-field-eriteria
fer-a-persen-having-single-eye-visiens

Horizontal visual field of 105 degrees or better. Can be
obtained by totaling the temporal readings of both eyes or
temporal plus nasal in one eye.

¥: g. Report any eye disease or injury.

j= h. Outside mirror.
ks--€lass-!p -er-"M!-Rencommercial-veRietes-onty:
}---6lare-resistanee-and-glare-recovery-{for-daytight-enty}s

11. Except as provided in North Dakota Century Code section
39-08-21, the driver of a commercial class A, B, or C motor
vehicle shall comply with the federal motor carrier
regulations, pursuant to 49 CFR section 391.41(b)(10).

History: Effective December 1, 1988; amended effective March 1, 1992;
May 1, 1994; July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02

Law Implemented: NDCC 39-06-03(7)
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AUGUST 2000
CHAPTER 42-01-01

42-01-01-01. Organization of Indian scholarship program.

1. History and function. The 1963 legislative assembly first
provided for the North Dakota Indian scholarship program by a
law codified as North Dakota Century Code chapter 15-63.

2. Program membership. Members of the North Dakota Indian
scholarship program consist of an Indian appointed by the
governor, the executive director of the state Indian affairs
commission, and the chancellor of higher education or the
chancellor's designee. The chancellor of higher education or
the chancellor's designee shall serve as chairman and the
executive director of the state Indian affairs commission
shall serve as secretary of the board for Indian scholarships.

3. Inquiries. Inquiries regarding the program may be addressed
to:

North Dakota Indian Scholarship Program
North Dakota University System

600 East Boulevard Avenue, Dept. 215
Bismarck, ND 58585 58505-0230

History: Effective February 1, 2000; amended effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02.1
Law Implemented: NDCC 15-63-02
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CHAPTER 42-062-02

42-02-02-01. Eligibility of applicants. In accordance with North
Dakota Century Code chapter 15-63, the following factors shall be
considered in the process used to determine eligibility of applicants:

1.

History:

General Authority: NDCC 15-63-02

An applicant must either be a-resident-ef-Nerth-Daketa-with
ene-guarter-degree-indian-bleed-er an enrolled member of a
federally recognized Indian tribe mnew and a resident im of

North Dakota. Residency for each student shall be determined
by the institution that student is attending.

An applicant may not be considered eligible until the
applicant has gained admission to any institution of higher
learning or state vocational education program within North
Dakota.

An applicant must be in financial need or a valedictorian or
demonstrate academic merit.

An applicant must show probable and continuing success as a
student.

The scholarship funds are only available to students who are
considered to be full-time students, or to part-time students
who may need minimal credits to complete their degree
requirements within one semester, in their course of study by
the college or university they are attending.

Students participating in internships, student teaching,
teaching assistance programs, or cooperative education
programs shall be eligible for a scholarship award only if
participation in that program will earn credits which require
tuition and which are required for a degree.

Effective February 1, 2000; amended effective August 1, 2000.

Law Implemented: NDCC 15-63-02, 15-63-04

42-02-02-02. Procedures for application.

1.

A1l applications shall be submitted to the administrator of
the Indian scholarship program:

North Dakota Indian Scholarship Program
North Dakota University System

600 East Boulevard Avenue, Dept. 215
Bismarck, ND 58565 58505-0230
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2. The deadline for application is the fifteenth of July of each
year.

3. Along with a completed application form, all candidates shall
also submit the following:

a. A--eertificate--ef--lndian--bleed-er-verification-of-Nerth
Paketa Verification of tribal enrollment;

b. The applicant's most recent transcript (high school,
college, university, or general equivalency diploma
certificate); and

c. A budget ferm; completed by a financial aid officer at the
institution the applicant will be attending.

4. Applicants whose financial circumstances change in the year of
the awarded grant may be considered for revision of award or
other budget adjustments, or both, through a special request
to the scholarship board.

5. Current recipients wishing to apply for continued funding
through the following academic year shall submit:

a. A new application form;
b. A-eurrent An updated transcript; and

c. A new budget ferm completed by the financial aid effiece
officer at the institution the student is attending.

History: Effective February 1, 2000; amended effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 15-63-02
Law Implemented: NDCC 15-63-02

42-02-02-03. Selection process. All completed applications
received before the application deadline will be given full and equal
consideration when screening for eligibility. Candidates for
scholarship will be in the following three groups:

1. Awards for valedictorians. The-reeipient-of-the-valedietorian
award-must-make A1l valedictorians meeting the application
with--the--Nerth--Daketa-Indian-sehelarship-pregram: -The-award
will-be-autematie criteria will receive an award if aiti}
eriteria-and the application deadline have has been met.

2. Awards for merit-based scholarship. The recipient of the
merit-based scholarship must have a cumulative grade point
average of at least 3.50. Financial need is not necessarily a
factor. The award is to provide an incentive to students with
high academic achievements.
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3. Awards for financial need or basic scholarship. The recipient
of the basic scholarship must show a financial need and
maintain a cumulative grade point average of at least 2.00.
Awards-wili-be-effered-te-these-applicants--with--the--highest
finanetal--need: Undergraduates will be given priority over
graduate students.

Any eligible student who is not offered an award but whose grant
application was received by the fifteenth of July deadline will be
placed on a waiting Tist for funds which may become available throughout
the academic year. Students on the waiting 1list will be ranked
according to financial need, cumulative grade point average, and before
late applications.

A1l awardees will be sent notification immediately after the
completion of the selection process. A student who has been chosen to
be a recipient of an award shall notify the scholarship administrator of
the student's acceptance or rejection of the award. Acceptance or
rejection notices must be received by the administrator within three
weeks of the date on the award notification letter.

History: Effective February 1, 2000; amended effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 15-63-02
Law Implemented: NDCC 15-63-02

106



CHAPTER 42-02-83

42-02-03-03. Disbursement procedures. Upon receipt of acceptance
notices from the students, the North Dakota university system will
process award checks according to procedures set out at colleges or
universities.

The checks will be sent to the institution's financial aid office
for disbursement to the students;-with--whieh--students. Students are
expected to use scholarship disbursements to pay their normal education
expenses. Recipients may apply the awards toward the cost of
registration, health, activities, room and board, books, and other
necessary items.

History: Effective February 1, 2000; amended effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 15-63-02
Law Implemented: NDCC 15-63-02, 15-63-05
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CHAPTER 42-02-05

42-02-05-01. Appeals process. Any student who has been denied
funding or who has lost funding may appeal to the board. In this case
the student must submit, in writing, a description and explanation of
the circumstances involved and a summary of the student's concerns,
along with any supporting documentation.

The appeal should be addressed to the scholarship board:

North Dakota Indian Scholarship Program
North Dakota University System

600 East Boulevard Avenue, Dept. 215
Bismarck, ND 58505 58505-0230

The board shall consider the appeal and will contact the student
regarding its decision within two weeks after the board renders a
decision.

History: Effective February 1, 2000; amended effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 15-63-02
Law Implemented: NDCC 15-63-02
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SEPTEMBER 2000

CHAPTER 43-02-03

43-02-03-01. Definitions. The terms used throughout this chapter
have the same meaning as in North Dakota Century Code chapter 38-08

except:

1.

"Adjusted allowable" means the allowable production a
proration unit receives after all adjustments are applied.

"Allocated pool" is one in which the total oil or natural gas
production is restricted and allocated to various proration
units and fractional proration units therein in accordance
with proration schedules.

“"Allowable production" means that number of barrels of oil or
cubic feet {meters} of natural gas authorized to be produced
from the respective proration units and fractional proration
units in an allocated pool.

"Back allowable" means the authorized accumulative underage or
shortage for a given proration unit or fractional proration
unit.

"Barrel" means forty-two United States gallons [158.99 liters]
measured at sixty degrees Fahrenheit [15.56 degrees Celsius]
and atmespherie---pressure---at---sea---}evet fourteen and
seventy-three hundredths pounds per square inch absolute
[1034.19 grams per square centimeter].

"Barrel of oil" means forty-two United States gallons [158.99
liters] of oil after deductions for the full amount of basic
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

sediment, water, and other impurities present, ascertained by
centrifugal or other recognized and customary test.

"Bottom hole or subsurface pressure" means the pressure in
pounds fkiltegrams] per square inch fsquare-centimeters} gauge
under conditions existing at or near the producing horizon.

"Bradenhead gas well" means any well capable of producing gas
through wellhead connections from a gas reservoir which has
been successfully cased off from an underlying oil or gas
reservoir,

"Casinghead gas" means any gas or vapor, or both gas and
vapor, indigenous to and produced from a pool classified as an
0il pool by the commission.

"Common purchaser for natural gas" means any person now or
hereafter engaged in purchasing, from one or more producers,
gas produced from gas wells within each common source of
supply from which it purchases, for processing or resale.

"Common purchaser for o0il" means every person now engaged or

‘hereafter engaging in the business of purchasing oil in this

state.

"Common source of supply" is synonymous with pool and is a
common accumulation of oil or gas, or both, as defined by
commission orders.

"Completion" means an oil well shall be considered completed
when the first oil is produced through wellhead equipment into
tanks from the ultimate producing interval after casing has
been run. A gas well shall be considered complete when the
well 1is capable of producing gas through wellhead equipment
from the ultimate producing zone after casing has been run. A
dry hole shall be considered complete when all provisions of
plugging are complied with as set out in this chapter.

"Condensate" means the 1liquid hydrocarbons recovered at the
surface that result from condensation due to reduced pressure
or temperature of petroleum hydrocarbons existing in a gaseous
phase in the reservoir.

"Cubic foot of gas" means that volume of gas contained in one
cubic foot [28.32 Titers] of space and computed at a pressure
of fourteen and seventy-three hundredths pounds per square
inch absolute [1034.19 grams per square centimeter] abselute
at a base temperature of sixty degrees Fahrenheit [15.56
degrees Celsius].

"Director" means the director of oil and gas of the industrial

commission, the assistant director of o0il and gas of the
industrial commission, and their designated representatives.
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17.

18.

19.
20.
Zi.
22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

"Enhanced recovery" means the increased recovery from a pool
achieved by artificial means or by the application of energy
extrinsic to the pool, which artificial means or application
includes pressuring, cycling, pressure maintenance, or
injection to the pool of a substance or form of energy but
does not include the injection in a well of a substance or
form of energy for the sole purpose of {a}-aiding:

a. Aiding in the 1ifting of fluids in the wells; or b}
stimuiation

b. Stimulation of the reservoir at or near the well by
mechanical, chemical, thermal, or explosive means.

"Exception well location” means a location which does not
conform to the general spacing requirements established by the
rules or orders of the commission but which has "been
specifically approved by the commission.

"Fractional proration unit for oil" means a tract of land
containing more or less than forty acres [16.19 hectares]
predominantly situated within the confines of a pool.

"Gas 1ift" means any method of 1ifting liquid to the surface
by injecting gas into a well from which oil production is
obtained.

"Gas-o0il ratio" means the ratio of the gas produced in cubic
feet {eubie-meters} to a barrel of oil concurrently produced
during any stated period.

"Gas-0il ratio adjustment" means the reduction in allowable of
a high gas-0il ratio proration unit to conform with the
production permitted by the 1limiting gas-oil ratio for the
particular pool during a particular proration period.

"Gas transportation facility" means a pipeline in operation
serving one or more gas wells for the transportation of
natural gas, or some other device or equipment in like
operation whereby natural gas produced from gas wells
connected therewith can be transported.

"Gas well" means a well producing gas or natural gas from a
common source of gas supply as determined by the commission.

"High gas-oil ratio proration unit" means a proration unit
with a producing oil well with a gas-oil ratio in excess of
the limiting gas-o0il ratio for the pool.

"Injection or input well" means any well used for the

injection of air, gas, water, or other fluids into any
underground stratum.
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27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

"Limiting gas-oil ratio" means the gas-oil ratio assigned by
the commission to a particular oil pool to limit the volumes
of casinghead gas which may be produced from the various
oil-producing units within that particular pool.

“Ltog or well Tlog" means a systematic, detailed, and correct
record of formations encountered in the drilling of a well,
including commercial electric logs, radioactive logs, dip
meter logs, and other related logs.

“Marginal unit" means a proration unit or fractional proration
unit that cannot produce at a rate equal to the top unit
allowable for the proration period for the pool.

"Minimum allowable" means the minimum amount of production
from an oil or gas well which will encourage the continued
operation of such well and below which the well might be
threatened with premature plugging and resulting waste.

"Multiple completion" means the completion of any well so as
to permit the production from more than one common source of
supply.

"Natural gas or gas" means and includes all natural gas and
all other fluid hydrocarbons not herein defined as oil.

"Nonmarginal unit" means a proration unit or a fractional
proration unit that can produce at a rate equal to the top
unit allowable for the proration period for the pool.

“Normal unit allowable" means the amount of allowable
production allocated to proration units which are producing
from a depth of five thousand feet [1524 meters] or above.

"Official gas-oil ratio test" means the periodic gas-oil ratio
test made by order of the commission and by such method and
means and in such manner as prescribed by the commission.

“Offset" means a well drilled on a forty-acre [16.19-hectare]
tract cornering or contiguous to a forty-acre [16.19-hectare]
tract having an existing oil well, or a well drilled on a one
hundred sixty-acre [64.75-hectare] tract cornering or
contiguous to a one hundred sixty-acre [64.75-hectare] tract
having an existing gas well; provided, however, that for wells
subject to a fieldwide spacing order, "offset" means any wells
located on spacing units cornering or contiguous to the
spacing unit or well which is the subject of an inquiry or a
hearing.

"0i1 well" means any well capable of producing oil or o0il and

casinghead gas from a common source of supply as determined by
the commission.
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38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.
50.

"Operator" 1is the principal on the bond covering a well and
such person shall be responsible for drilling, completion, and

operation of the well, including plugging and reclamation of
the well site.

"Overage or overproduction® means the amount of oil or the
amount of natural gas produced during a proration period in
excess of the amount authorized on the proration schedule.

"Potential" means the properly determined capacity of a well
to produce oil, or gas, or both, under conditions prescribed
by the commission.

“Pressure maintenance" means the injection of gas or other
fluid into a reservoir, either to increase or maintain the
existing pressure 1in such reservoir or to retard the natural
decline in the reservoir pressure.

"Proration day" consists of twenty-four consecutive hours
which shall begin at seven a.m. and end at seven a.m. on the
following day.

"Proration month" means the calendar month which shall begin
at seven a.m. on the first day of such month and end at seven
a.m. on the first day of the next succeeding month.

"Proration period" means for oil the proration month and for
gas six consecutive calendar months which shall begin at seven
a.m. on the first day of a calendar month and end at seven
a.m. on the first day of the seventh succeeding month.

"Proration schedule" means the periodic order of the
commission authorizing the production, purchase, and
transportation of oil or of natural gas from the various units
of oil or of natural gas proration in allocated pools.

"Proration unit for gas" consists of such geographical area as
may be prescribed by special pool rules issued by the
commission.

"Proration unit for oil" consists of a tract of land
containing forty acres [16.19 hectares] predominantly situated
within the confines of a pool.

"Recomplete" means the subsequent completion of a well in a
different pool frem--the--peel--in--whieh--it--was--eriginatly
cempleted.

"Reservoir" means pool or common source of supply.

"Saltwater handling facility" means and includes any container

such as a pit, tank, or pool, whether covered or uncovered,
used for the handling, storage, disposal of deleterious
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51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

History:

substances obtained, or used, in connection with the drilling
or operation of wells.

“Shut-in pressure" means the pressure noted at the wellhead
when the well is completely shut in. Not to be confused with
bottom hole pressure.

"Spacing unit" is the area in each pool which is assigned to a
well for drilling, producing, and proration purposes in
accordance with the commission's rules or orders.

"Stratigraphic test well" means any well or hole, except a
seismograph shot hole, drilled for the purpose of gathering
information in connection with the 0il and gas industry.

"Tank bottoms" means that accumulation of hydrocarbon material
and other substances which settle naturally below crude oil in
tanks and receptacles that are used in handling and storing of
crude oil, and which accumulation contains basic sediment and
water in an amount rendering it umsaleab}e unsalable to an
ordinary crude oil purchaser; provided, that with respect to
lease production and for lease storage tanks, a tank bottom
shall be Timited to that volume of the tank in which it is
contained that 1lies below the bottom of the pipeline outlet
thereto.

"Top unit allowable for gas" means the maximum number of cubic
feet {eubie-meters} of natural gas, for the proration period,
allocated to a proration unit for gas in an allocated gas
pool.

"Top unit allowable for o0il" means the maximum number of
barrels of oil daily for each calendar month allocated to a
proration unit for oil in a pool to nonmarginal units.

“Treating plant" means any plant permanently constructed or
portable used for the purpose of wholly or partially
reclaiming, treating, processing, or in any manner making tank
bottoms or any other waste oils marketable.

"Underage" means the amount of oil or the amount of natural
gas during a proration period by which a given proration unit
failed to produce in an amount equal to that authorized on the
proration schedule.

Amended effective January 1, 1983; May 1, 1992; July 1, 1996;

December 1, 1996; September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-11. Organization reports. Every person acting as
principal or agent for another or independently engaged in the drilling
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of o0il or gas wells, or in the production, storage, transportation,
refining, reclaiming, treating, marketing, or processing of crude oil or
natural gas in North Dakota shall immediately file with the director the
name under which such business is being conducted or operated; and name
and post-office address of such person, the business or businesses in
which the person is engaged; the plan of organization, and in case of a
corporation, the law under which it is chartered; and the names and
post-office addresses of any person acting as trustee, together with the
names and post-office addresses of any officials thereof on an
organization report (form 2). In each case where such business is
conducted under an assumed name, such organization report shall show the
names and post-office addresses of all owners in addition to the other
information required. A new organization report shall be filed when and
if there is a change in any of the information contained in the original
report.

History: Amended effective April 30, 1981; January 1, 1983; May 1,
1992;: September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-12. Reservoir surveys. By special order of the
commission, periodic surveys may be made of the reservoirs in this state
containing oil and gas. These surveys will be thorough and complete and
shall be made urder-the-supervisien-ef using methods approved by the
director. The condition of the reservoirs containing oil and gas and
the practices and methods employed by the operators shall be
investigated. The produced volume and source of crude 0il and natural
gas, the reservoir pressure of the reservoir as an average, the areas of
regional or differential pressure, stabilized gas-oil ratios, and the
producing characteristics of the field as a whole and the individual
wells within the field shall be specifically included.

A11 operators of oil wells are required to permit and assist the
agents of the commission in making any and all special tests that may be
required by the commission on any or all wells.

History: Amended effective April 30, 1981; January 1, 1983; May 1,
1992; September 1, 2600.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-14.2. 0il and gas metering systems.

1. Application of section. This section is applicable to all
metering stations measuring production from oil and gas wells
within the state of North Dakota, including private, state,
and federal wells. If these rules differ from federal
requirements on measurement of production from federal oil and
gas wells, the federal rules take precedence.
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Definitions. As used in this section:

a. "Allocation meter" means a meter used by the producer to
determine the volume from an individual well before it is
commingled with production from one or more other wells
prior to the custody transfer point.

b. "Calibration test" means the process or procedure of
adjusting an instrument, such as a gas meter, so its
indication or registration is in satisfactorily close
agreement with a reference standard.

c. "Custody transfer meter" means a meter used to transfer
0il or gas from the producer to transporter or purchaser.

d. "Gas gathering meter" means a meter used in the custody
transfer of gas into a gathering system.

e. "Meter factor" means a number obtained by dividing the net
volume of fluid (liquid or gaseous) passed through the
meter during proving by the net volume registered by the
meter.

f. "Metering proving" means the procedure required to
determine the relationship between the true volume of a
fiuid (1iquid or gaseous) measured by a meter and the
volume indicated by the meter.

Inventory filing requirements. Within sixty days of adoption
of these rules, the owner of metering equipment shall file
with the commission an inventory of all meters used for
custody transfer and allocation of production from oil or gas
wells, or both. Inventories must be updated on an annual
basis, and filed with the commission on or before the first
day of each year, or they may be updated as frequently as
monthly, at the discretion of the operator. Inventories must
include the following:

a. Well name and 1legal description of location or meter
location if different.

b. North Dakota industrial commission well file number.
c. Meter information:
(1) Gas meters:
(a) Make and model.
(b) Differential, static, and temperature range.

(c) Orifice tube size (diameter).
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(d) Meter station number.
(2) 0i1 meters:

(a) Make and model.

(b) Size.

(c) Meter station number.

Installation and removal of meters. The commission must be
notified of all custody transfer meters placed in service.
The owner of the custody transfer equipment shall notify the
commission of the date a meter is placed in service, the make
and model of the meter, and the meter or station number. The
commission must also be notified of all metering installations
removed from service. The notice must include the date the
meter is removed from service; and the meter or station
number. The required notices must be filed with the
comnission within thirty days of the installation or removal
of a meter.

A1l allocation meters must be approved prior to installation
and use. The application for approval must be on a sundry
notice (form 4) and shall include the make and model number of
the meter, the meter or station number, the well name, its
location, and the date the meter will be placed in service.

Meter installations for measuring production from oil or gas
wells, or both, must be constructed to American petroleum
institute or American gas association standards or to meter
manufacturer's recommended installation. Meter installations
constructed in accordance with American petroleum institute or
American gas association standards in effect at the time of
installation shall not automatically be required to retrofit
if standards are revised. The commission will review any
revised standards, and when deemed necessary will amend the
requirements accordingly.

Registration of persons proving or testing meters. All
persons engaged in meter proving or testing of oil and gas
meters must be registered with the commission. Those persons
involved in oil meter testing, by flowing fluid through the
meter into a test tank and then gauging the tank, are exempted
from the registration process. However, such persons must
notify the commission prior to commencement of the test to
allow a representative of the commission to witness the
testing process. A report of the results of such test shall
be filed with the commission within thirty days after the test
is completed. Registration must include the following:

a. Name and address of company.
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b. Name and address of measurement personnel.
c. Qualifications, Tlisting experience; or specific training.

Any meter tests performed by a person not registered with the
commission will not be accepted as a valid test.

Calibration requirements. 0il and gas metering equipment must
be proved or tested to American petroleum institute or
American gas association standards or to the meter
manufacturer's recommended procedure to establish a meter
factor or to ensure measurement accuracy. The owner of a
custody transfer meter or allocation meter shall notify the
commission at Tleast ten days prior to the testing of any
meter.

a. 0il allocation meter factors shall be maintained within
two percent of original meter factor. If the factor
change between provings or tests is greater than two
percent, the meter must be repaired or adjusted and tested
within forty-eight hours of repair or replaced.

b. Copies of all oil allocation meter test procedures are to
be filed with and reviewed by the commission to ensure
measurement accuracy.

c. All gas meters must be tested with a minimum of a
three-point test for static and differential pressure
elements and a two-point test for temperature elements.
The test reports must include an as-found and as-left test
and a detailed report of changes.

d. Test reports must include the following:

(1) Producer name.

(2) Lease name.

(3) Pipeline company or company name of test contractor.
(4) Test personnel's name.

(5) Station or meter number.

e. Unless required more often by the director, minimum
frequency of meter proving or calibration tests are as
follows:

(1) 0i1 meters used for custody transfer shall be proved
monthly for all measured volumes which exceed two

thousand barrels per month. For volumes two thousand
barrels or less per month, meters shall be proved at
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each two thousand barrel interval or more frequently
at the discretion of the operator.

(2) Quarterly for oil meters used for allocation of
production.

(3) Semiannually for gas meters used for allocation of
production.

(4) Semiannually for gas meters in gas gathering systems.

(5) For meters measuring more than one hundred thousand
cubic feet [2831.68 cubic meters] ©per day on a
monthly basis, meter tubes shall be inspected at
least every five years to ensure continued
conformance with the American gas association meter
tube specifications.

(6) Semiannually for orifice plates and annually for any
meter measuring one hundred thousand cubic feet
[2831.68 cubic meters] per day or less on a monthly
basis.

f. Meter test reports must be filed within thirty days of
completion of proving or calibration tests unless
otherwise approved. Test reports are to be filed on, but
not limited to, all meters used for allocation measurement
of o0il or gas and all meters used in crude oil custody
transfer.

g. Accuracy of all equipment used to test oil or gas meters
must be traceable to the standards of the national
institute of standards and technology. The equipment must
be certified as accurate either by the manufacturer or an

~independent testing facility. The certificates of
accuracy must be made available upon request.
Certification of the equipment must be updated as follows:

(1) Annually for all equipment used to test the pressure
and differential pressure elements.

(2) Annually for all equipment used to determine
temperature,

(3) Biennially for all conventional pipe provers.
(4) Annually for all master meters.

(5) Five years for equipment used in orifice tube
inspection.

7. Variances. Variances from all or part of this section may be
granted by the commission on the basis of economic necessity
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History:

providing the variance does not affect measurement accuracy.
A]] requests for variances must be #n--writing--and--receive
written-apprevat on a sundry notice (form 4).

A register of variances requested and approved must be
maintained by the commission.

Effective May 1, 1994; amended effective July 1, 1996;

September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-15. Bond and transfer of wells.

1.

Bond requirements. Prior to commencing drilling operations,
any person who proposes to drill a well for oil, gas, or
injection shall submit to the commission, and obtain its
approval, a surety bond or cash bond in a form approved by the
commission, conditioned as provided by law. The operator of
such well shall be the principal on the bond covering the
well. Each surety bond shall be executed by a responsible

surety company authorized to transact business in North
Dakota.

Bond amounts and limitations. The bond shall be in the amount
of fifteen thousand dollars when applicable to one well only.
Wells drilled to a total depth of less than two thousand feet
[609.6 meters] may be bonded in a lesser amount if approved by
the director. When the principal on the bond is drilling or
operating a number of wells within the state or proposes to do
so, the principal may submit a bond conditioned as provided by
law. A blanket bond covering ten wells or less shall be in
the amount of fifty thousand dollars:--A-eerditienat provided
the bond shall be limited to no more than five of the
following in aggregate and a blanket bond covering more than
ten wells shall be in the amount of one hundred thousand
dollars, provided the bond shall be Timited to no more than
ten of the following in aggregate:

a. A well that is a dry hole and is not properly plugged and
the site is not properly reclaimed; and

b. A well that is abandoned pursuant to section 43-02-03-55
and is not properly plugged and the site is not properly
reclaimed.

If this aggregate of tem dry holes and abandoned wells is
reached, all well permits, for which drilling has not
commenced, held by the principal of such bond are suspended.
No rights may be exercised under the permits until the
aggregate of dry holes and abandoned wells drops below ten the
required limit, or the operator files the appropriate bond to
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cover the permits, at which time the rights given by the
drilling permits are reinstated. A well with an approved
temporary abandoned status shall have the same status as an
0oil, gas, or injection well. With-regard-te-cash--berds;--the
The commission may, after notice and hearing, require higher
bond amounts than those referred to in this section. Such
additional amounts for eash bonds must be related to the
economic value of the well or wells and the expected cost of
plugging and well site reclamation, as determined by the
commission. The commission may refuse to accept a bond or to
add wells to a blanket bond if the operator or surety company
has failed in the past to comply with statutes and rules
relating to the operation of wells, if a civil or
administrative action brought by the commission is pending
against the operator or surety company, or for other good
cause.

3. Unit bond requirements. Prior to commencing unit operations,
the operator of any area under unitized management shall
submit to the commission, and obtain its approval, a surety
bond or cash bond in a form approved by the commission,
conditioned as provided by law. The operator of the unit
shall be the principal on the bond covering the unit. The
amount of the bond shall be specified by the commission in the
order approving the plan of wunitization. Each surety bond
shall be executed by a responsible surety company authorized
to transact business in North Dakota.

Prior to transfer of a unit to a new operator, the commission,
after notice and hearing, may revise the bond amount for a
unit, or in the case when the unit was not previously bonded,
the commission may require a bond and set a bond amount for
the unit.

4. Bond terms. The bond herein required shall be conditioned
upon full compliance with North Dakota Century Code chapter
38-08, and all administrative rules and orders of the
commission. It shall be a plugging bond, as well as a
drilling bond, and is to endure up to and including approved
plugging of all oil, gas, and injection wells as well as dry
holes. Approved plugging shall also include practical
reclamation of the well site; and appurtenances thereto. If
the principal does not satisfy the bond's conditions, then the
surety shall satisfy the conditions or forfeit to the
commission the face value of the bond.

4:--Adding--wells-te-a-blanket-bend:--Fhe-commissien-may-refuse-te
add-wells-te-a-blanket-bend-if-the-eperater-er-surety--company
has--fatled--in--the--past--te--comply-with-statutes-and-rules
relating--te--the--eperation--ef--wetls;--er--if--a--etvii--or
administrative--action--breught--By--the-commissien-+s-pending
agatnst-the-eperater-er-surety-eompanys
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Transfer of wells under bond. Transfer of property does not
release the bond. In case of transfer of property or other
interest in the well and the principal desires to be released
from the bond covering the well, such as producers, not ready
for plugging, the principal should proceed as follows:

a.

The principal must notify the director, in writing, of all
proposed transfers of well at least thirty days before the
closing date of the transfer. The director may, for good
cause, waive the requirement of at Tleast thirty days'
notice prior to transfer.

The principal shall submit to the commission a form te-be
previded-by-the-eemmissien--{ferm- 15} reciting that a
certain well, or wells, describing each well by #ts
tecatten-withitn-the quarter-quarter, section, township,
and range, 1is to be transferred to a certain transferee,
naming such transferee, for the purpose of ownership or
operation. The date of assignment or transfer must be
stated and the form signed by a party duly authorized so
to sign.

On said transfer form the transferee shall recite the
following: "The transferee has read the foregoing
statement and does accept such transfer and does accept
the responsibility of such well under the transferee's
one-well bond or, as the case may be, does accept the
responsibility of such wells under the transferee's
blanket bond, said bond being tendered to or on file with
the commission." Such acceptance must likewise be signed
by a party authorized so to sign; and the transferee's
surety.

When the commission has passed upon the transfer and
acceptance and accepted it under the transferee's bond,
the transferor shall be released from the responsibility
of plugging the well and site reclamation. If such wells
include all the wells within the responsibility of the
transferor's bond, such bond will be released by the
commission upon written request. Such request must be
signed by an officer of the transferor or a person
authorized to sign for the transferor. The director may
refuse to transfer any well from a bond if the well is in
violation of a rule or order of the commission.

The transferee (new operator) of any oil, gas, or
injection well shall be responsible for the plugging and
site reclamation of any such well. For that purpose the
transferee shall submit a new bond or, in the case of a
surety bond, produce the written consent of the surety of
the original or prior bond that the latter's
responsibility shall continue. This section shall apply
to transfers of any such wells made prior to the effective
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date of this section as well as thereafter. The original
or prior bond shall not be released as to the plugging and
reclamation responsibility of any such transferor until
the transferee shall submit to the commission an
acceptable bond to cover such well. All liability on
bonds shall continue until the plugging and site
reclamation of such wells is completed and approved.

6. Treating plant bond. Prior to the commencement of operations,
any person proposing to operate a treating plant must submit
to the commission and obtain its approval, of a surety, or
cash bond conditioned as provided by law. The person
responsible for the operation of the plant shall be the
principal on the bond. Each surety bond shall be executed by
a_responsible surety company authorized to transact business
in North Dakota. The amount of the bond must be as prescribed
in section 43-02-03-51. It is to remain in force until the
operations cease, all equipment is removed from the site, and
the site and appurtenances thereto are reclaimed, or liability
of the bond is transferred to another bond that provides the
same degree of security. If the principal does not satisfy
the bond's conditions, then the surety shall satisfy the
conditions or forfeit to the commission the face value of the
bond.

7. Bond termination. The commission shall, in writing, advise
the principal and any sureties on any bond as to whether the
plugging and reclamation is approved. If approved, liability
under such bond may be formally terminated upon receipt of a
written request by the principal. The request must be signed
by an officer of the principal or a person authorized to sign
for the principal.

8. Director's authority. The director is vested with the power
to act for the commission as to all matters within this
section.

History: Amended effective April 30, 1981; March 1, 1982; January 1,
1983; May 1, 1990; May 1, 1992; May 1, 1994; July 1, 1996; December 1,
1996; September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-16. Application for permit to drill and recomplete.
Before any person shall begin any well-site preparation for the drilling
of any well other than surveying and staking, such person shall file an
application for permit to drill (form 1) with the director, together
with a permit fee of one hundred dollars. Verbal approval may be given
for site preparation by the director in extenuating circumstances. No
drilling activity shall commence until such application is approved and
a permit to drill is issued by the director. Permits to drill or
recomplete may contain such terms and conditions as the director deems
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necessary. The application must be accompanied by the bond pursuant to
section 43-02-03-15 or the applicant must have previously filed such
bond with the commission, otherwise the application is incomplete. An
incomplete application received by the commission has no standing and
will not be deemed filed until it is completed.

The application for permit to drill shall be accompanied by an
accurate plat certified by a registered surveyor showing the location of
the proposed well with reference to the nearest lines of a governmental
section. The plat shall also include latitude and longitude of the
proposed well Tocation to the nearest hundredth of a second.
Information to be included in such application shall be the proposed
depth to which the well will be drilled, estimated depth to the top of
important markers, estimated depth to the top of objective horizons, the
proposed mud program, the proposed casing program, including size and
weight thereof, the depth at which each casing string is to be set, and
the proposed amount of cement to be used, including the estimated top of
cement. The director may request additional information, if deemed
necessary.

Prior to the commencement of recompletion operations, an
application for permit shall Tlikewise be filed with the director.
Included 1in such application shall be the notice of intention (form 4)
to reenter a plugged well;-er-te-develep by deepening or plugging back
to any source of supply other than the producing horizon in an existing
well. Such notice to recomplete any well shall include the name and
file number and exact location of the well, the approximate date
operations will begin, the proposed recompletion procedure, the
estimated completed total depth, the casing program to be followed, and
the original total depth and the total depth at which the well is to be
recompleted with a permit fee of fifty dollars. The director may
request additional information, if deemed necessary.

The director shall deny an application for permit to drill if a
well drilled in the location applied for would cause, or tend to cause,
waste or violate correlative rights. The director of oil and gas shall
state in writing to the applicant the reason for the denial of the
permit. The applicant may appeal the decision of the director to the
commission.

Unless a well is drilling, or has been drilled, below surface
casing on the first anniversary of the date of issuance of the permit
for the well, the permit shall in all things terminate and be of no
further force and effect. Recompletion operations must commence within
one year of the date of approval or permission to recomplete shall
terminate and be of no further force and effect.

History: Amended effective April 30, 1981; January 1, 1983; May 1,
1992; May 1, 1994; September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-05

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-05
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43-02-03-17. Sign on well. Every well associated with the
production of oil and gas except plugged wells shall be identified by a
sign posted on the derrick or not more than twenty feet [6.10 meters]
from the well. The sign shall be of durable construction and the
lettering thereon shall be kept in a legible condition and shall be
large enough to be legible under normal conditions at a distance of
fifty feet [15.24 meters]. The wells on each lease or property shall be
numbered in nonrepetitive sequence, unless some other system of
numbering was adopted by the owner prior to the adoption of this
chapter. Each sign wit} must show the number-ef-the-well;-the--name--of
the--1ease well name and number (which shall be different or distinctive
for each iease well), the name of the }essee;-ewmer;-er operator, permit
file number, and the location by quarter-quarter, section, township, and
range.

Existing well identification signs that are otherwise in accord
with this section except that well locations are shown by quarter
section rather than quarter-quarter section or show the permit number
rather than the file number shall be allowed to remain.

History: Amended effective January 1, 1983; May 1, 1992; September 1,
2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-19.2. Disposal of waste. All waste associated with
exploration or production of oil and gas must be properly disposed of in
an authorized facility in accord with all applicable local, state, and
federal laws and regulations.

This 1is not to be construed as requiring the offsite disposal of
drilling mud or drill cuttings associated with the drilling of a well.
However, top water remaining in the reserve pit used in the drilling and
completion operations is to be removed from the reserve pit and disposed
of in an authorized disposal well or used in a manner approved by the
director. The disposition or use of the water must be included on the
sundry notice (form 4) reporting the plan of reclamation pursuant to
section 43-02-03-19.

History: Effective May 1, 1992; amended effective May 1, 1994;
September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-19.3. Earthen pits and open receptacles. Except as
otherwise provided in section 43-02-03-19, no saltwater, drilling mud,
crude oil, waste oil, or other waste shall be stored in earthen pits or
open receptacles except in an emergency and upon approval by the
director.
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An earthen pit or open receptacle may be temporarily used to
retain oil, water, or fluids generated in well servicing or plugging
operations. A pit used for this purpose must be sufficiently
impermeable to provide adequate temporary containment of the oil, water,
or fluids. The contents of the pit or receptacle must be removed within
seventy-two hours after operations have ceased and must be disposed of
at an authorized facility in accordance with section 43-02-03-19.2.

_ The director may permit pits used solely for the purpose of
flaring casinghead gas. Permission for such a pit will be conditioned
on keeping the pit free of any saltwater, crude oil, waste oil, or other
waste.

History: Effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-21. Casing, tubing, and cementing requirements. All
wells drilled for oil, natural gas, or injection shall be completed with
strings of casing which shall be properly cemented at sufficient depths
to adequately protect the--water-Bearing;--ei}-Bearing;--er---natural
gas-Bearing--strata and isolate all formations containing water, oil, or
gas or any combination of these; protect the pipe through salt sections
encountered; and isolate the Dakota-Lakota series.

Drilling of the surface hole shall be with freshwater-based
drilling mud or other method approved by the director which will protect
all freshwater-bearing strata. The surface casing shall consist of new
or reconditioned pipe that has been previously tested to one thousand
pounds per square inch [6900 kilopascals]. The surface casing shall be
set and cemented at a point not less than fifty feet [15.24 meters]
below the base of the Fox Hills formation. Sufficient cement shall be
used on surface casing to fill the annular space behind the casing to
the bottom of the cellar, if any, or to the surface of the ground. All
strings of surface casing shall stand cemented under pressure for at
least twelve hours before drilling the plug or initiating tests. The
term "under pressure" as used herein shall be complied with if one float
valve is used or if pressure is otherwise held. Cementing shall be by
the pump and plug methods; or other methods approved by the director.

Surface casing strings must be allowed to stand under pressure
until the tail cement has reached a compressive strength of at Tleast
five hundred pounds per square inch [3450 kilopascals]. All filler
cements utilized must reach a compressive strength of at least two
hundred fifty pounds per square inch [1725 kilopascals] within
twenty-four hours and at least three hundred fifty pounds per square
inch [2415 kilopascals] within seventy-two hours. All compressive
strengths on surface casing cement shall be calculated at a temperature
of eighty degrees Fahrenheit [26.67 degrees Celsius].

Production or intermediate casing strings shall consist of new or
reconditioned pipe that has been previously tested to two thousand
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pounds per square inch [13800 kilopascals]. Such strings must be
allowed to stand under pressure until the tail cement has reached a
compressive strength of at least five hundred pounds per square inch
[3450 kilopascals]. All filler cements wutilized must reach a
compressive strength of at Tleast two hundred fifty pounds per square
inch [1725 kilopascals] within twenty-four hours and at least five
hundred pounds per square inch [3450 kilopascals] within seventy-two
hours. All compressive strengths on production or intermediate casing
cement shall be calculated at a temperature found in the Mowry formation
using a gradient of 1.2 degrees Fahrenheit per one hundred feet [30.48
meters] of depth plus eighty degrees Fahrenheit [26.67 degrees Celsius].

A1l flowing wells must be equipped with tubing and a tubing
packer. The packer must be set as near the producing interval as
practicable, but in all cases must be above the perforations.

History: Amended effective April 30, 1981; January 1, 1983; May 1,
1992; July 1, 1996; January 1, 1997; September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-22. Defective casing or cementing. In any well that
appears to have defective casing or cementing, the operator shall report
the defect to the director on a sundry notice (form 4) and shall proceed
with diligence to correct the defect. If the defect cannot be
eliminated, the well shall be properly plugged unless otherwise approved
by the director.

History: Amended effective January 1, 1983; May 1, 1992; September 1,
2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-23. Blowout prevention. In all drilling operations,
proper and necessary precautions shall be taken for keeping the well
under control, including the use of a blowout preventer and high
pressure fittings attached to properly cemented casing strings adequate
to withstand anticipated pressures. During the course of drilling, the
pipe rams shall be functionally operated at Tleast once every
twenty-four-hour period. The blind rams shall be functionally operated
each trip out of the well bore. The blowout preventer shall be pressure
tested at installation on the wellhead and eaeh-feurteenr-censecutive-day
peried-ef-drilling; every fourteen days thereafter. The director may
postpone such pressure test if the necessity therefor can be
demonstrated to the director's satisfaction. All tests shall be noted
in the driller's record.

History: Amended effective January 1, 1983; September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04
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43-02-03-25. Deviation tests and directional surveys. When any
well is drilled or deepened, tests to determine the deviation from the
vertical shall be taken at least every one thousand feet [304.8 meters].
When the deviation from the vertical exceeds five degrees at any point,
the director may require that the hole be straightened. Directional
surveys may be required by the director, whenever, in the director's
judgment, the Tocation of the bottom of the well is in doubt.

A directional survey shall be made and filed with the director on
any well utilizing a whipstock or any method of deviating the well bore
tR--a--predetermined--direction--exeept. The obligation to run the
directional survey may be waived by the director when a well bore is
deviated to sidetrack junk in the hole, straighten a crooked hole, er-te
control a blowout, or if the necessity therefor can be demonstrated to
the director's satisfaction. The survey contractor must shall file a
two certified suevey copies of all surveys with the director free of
charge within thirty days of completion. Surveys must be submitted as
one paper copy and one electronic copy, or in a form approved by the
director. However, the director may require the directional survey to
be filed immediately after completion if the survey is needed to conduct
the operation of the director's office in a timely manner. Special
permits may be obtained to drill directionally in a predetermined
direction as provided above, from the director.

If the director denies a request for a permit to directionally
drill, the director shall advise the applicant immediately of the
reasons for denial. The decision of the director may be appealed to the
commission.

History: Amended effective April 1, 1980; April 30, 1981; January 1,
1983; May 1, 1990; May 1, 1992; May 1, 1994; September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-28. Safety regulation. During drilling operations all
0oil wells shall be cleaned into a pit or tank, not less than forty feet
[12.19 meters] from the derrick floor and one hundred fifty feet [45.72
meters] from any fire hazard.

A1l flowing oil wells must be produced through an approved oil and
gas separator or emulsion treater of ample capacity and in good working
order. No boiler or portable electric lighting generator shall be
placed or remain nearer than one hundred fifty feet [45.72 meters] to
any producing well or oil tank. Any rubbish or debris that might
constitute a fire hazard shall be removed to a distance of at least one
hundred fifty feet [45.72 meters] from the vicinity of wells and tanks.
A1l waste shall be burned or disposed of in such manner as to avoid
creating a fire hazard. All vegetation must be removed to a safe
distance from any production equipment to eliminate a fire hazard.

No well shall be drilled nor production equipment instg]]gd less
than three hundred thirty feet [100.58 meters] from a building or
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residence unless agreed to in writing by the surface owner or authorized
by order of the commission.

Subsurface pressure wii} must be controlled during all drilling,
completion, and well-servicing operations with appropriate dritting
fluid weight and pressure control equipment.

History: Amended effective January 1, 1983; May 1, 1990; September 1,
2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-31. Well log, completion, and workover reports. Within
thirty days after the plugging of a well, a plugging record (form 7)
shall be filed with the director. Within thirty days after the
completion of a well, or recompletion of a well in a different pool, a
completion report (form 6) shall be filed with the director, except a
completion report shall be filed immediately after the completion or
recompletion of a well 1in a pool or reservoir not then covered by an
order of the commission. In no case shall oil or gas be transported
from the Tlease prior to the filing of a completion report unless
approved by the director. The operator shall cause to be run an
electrical, radioactivity, or other similar log, or combination of logs,
of the operator's choice, from which formation tops and porosity zones
can be determined. 7Yhe-ebligatien-te-leg-may-be-waived-bBy-the-directer
er-other-representative-if-hole-conditions-prectude-the--feasibility--of
sueh--1egging--eperation--er--if--the--wetl--is-a-replacement-wett: The
operator shall cause to be run a gamma ray log from total depth to
ground level elevation of the well bore. The operator shall cause to be
run a log from which the presence of cement can be determined in every
well in which production or intermediate casing has been set. The
obligation to Tlog may be waived by the director if the necessity
therefor can be demonstrated to the director's satisfaction. Waiver
will be contingent upon such terms and conditions as the director deems
appropriate. All Tlogs run shall be available to the director at the
well site prior to proceeding with plugging or completion operations.
Within thirty days after completion, two copies of all logs ard-surveys
run shall be submitted to the director free of charge. Hewever;-if--the
direetor--finds--that-the-direetionat-survey-ef-a-wetl-is-needed-for-the
timely-conduct-of-business;-the-director-may-require-the-fiting--of--the
survey--immediately--after--completien: Logs shall be submitted as one
paper copy and one digital LAS (log ASCII) formatted copy, or a format
approved by the director. In addition, operators shall file two copies
of drill stem test reports and charts, formation water analyses,
peresity;---permeability---er--fluid--saturatiens; core analyses, and
noninterpretive lithologic logs or sample descriptions if compiled by
the operator.

A1l information furnished to the director on new permits, except
the operator name, well name, location, and any production runs, shall
be kept confidential for not more than six months if requested by the
operator in writing. The six-month period must shall commence on the
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date the well is completed or the date the written request is received,
whichever is earlier. If the written request accompanies the
application for permit to drill or is filed after permitting but prior
to spudding, the six-month period w#}} shall commence on the date the
well is spudded.

A1l information furnished to the director on recompletions or
reentries, except the operator name, well name, location, and any
production runs, shall be kept confidential for not more than six months
if requested by the operator in writing. The six-month period shall
commence on the date the well is completed or the date the well was
approved for recompletion or reentry, whichever is earlier. Any
information furnished to the director prior to approval of the
recompletion or reentry shall remain public.

Approval must be obtained on a sundry notice (form 4) from the
director prior to perforating or recompleting a well in a reserveir pool

other than the reserveir pool in which the well was-eriginatiy-cempleted
is currently permitted.

Upon the completion; or recompletion of a well, the completion of
any remedial work, or attempted remedial work such as plugging back or
drilling deeper, acidizing, shooting, formation fracturing, squeezing
operations, setting liner, perforating, reperforating, or other similar
operations not specifically covered herein, a report on the operation
shall be filed on a sundry notice (form 4) with the director. The
report shall present a detailed account of all work done and the date of
such work; the daily production of oil, gas, and water both prior to and
after the operation; the shots per foot, size, and depth of
perforations; the quantity of sand, crude, chemical, or other materials
employed in the operation; and any other pertinent information or
operations which affect the original status of the well and are not
specifically covered herein.

Upon the initial installation of pumping equipment, or change in
type of pumping equipment designed to increase productivity in a well,
the operator shall submit a sundry notice (form 4) of such installation.
The notice shall include all pertinent information on the pump and the
operation thereof including the date of such installation, and the daily
production of the well prior to and after the pump has been installed
shall also be included.

History: Amended effective April 30, 1981; January 1, 1983; May 1,
1990; May 1, 1992; May 1, 1994; July 1, 1996; September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-40. Gas-oil ratio test. Each operator shall take a gas-
0il ratio test within thirty days following the completion or
recompletion of an oil well. Each test shall be conducted urder-the
methed-and-eonditions-as--preseribed--by--the--direeter using standard
industry practices unless otherwise specified by the director. The
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initial gas-oil ratio must be reported on the well completion or
recompletion report (form 6). After the discovery of a new pool, each
operator shall make additional gas-oil ratio tests as directed by the
director or provided for in field rules. During tests each well shall
be produced at a rate-equal-te-er-net-exceeding-its--allewable--by--mere
than--twenty-five--pereent:--Ne-wetl-shall-be-given-an-allowable-greater
than--the--ameunt--of--01}--produced---en---official---test---during---a
twenty-four-heur--peried:---Fhe--direeter--shall-drep-from-the-preratien
sehedule-any-preratien-unit-fer-failure-te--make--sueh--test--as--herein
abeve-deseribed-unt+}-sueh-time-as-a-satisfaetory-test-has-been-made;-or
satisfactory-explanatien-given:--1n-the-absence-of-proration;-each--well
shati--be--preduced--at--a maximum efficient rate durirg-tests. The
director wit} may shut in any well for failure to make such test until
such time as a satisfactory test can be made, or satisfactory
explanation given. The results of all gas-oil ratio tests shall be
submitted to the director on form 9, which shall be accompanied by a
statement;-made-under-eath;-frem-the--persen--actually--perferming--sueh
testsy that the data on form 9 is true and correct.

History: Amended effective April 30, 1981; January 1, 1983; May 1,
1992; September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-41. Subsurface pressure tests. The operator shall make
a subsurface pressure test on the discovery well of any new pool
hereafter discovered and shall report the results thereof to the
director within thirty days after the completion of such discovery well.
The--reperts--shatl--inelude--a--copy-of-the-pressure-chart-ef-the-test:
Drill stem test pressures are ret-rermatily acceptable but-may-be-used-#f
permissien--is--ebtatned--from--the--director:---1n-the-absenrce-of-field
rules;-after-the-diseevery-ef-a--new--peet;--each--eperater--shati--make
additienal--reserveir-pressure-tests-as-directed-by-the-direetor. After
the discovery of a new pool, each operator shall make additional
subsurface pressure tests as directed by the director or provided for in
field rules. All tests shall be made by a person qualified by both
training and experience to make such tests and with an approved
subsurface pressure instrument. All wells shall remain completely shut
in for at Jleast twenty-feur forty-eight hours prior to the test. The
subsurface determination shall be obtained as close as possible to the
midpoint of the productive interval of the reservoir. The report of the
subsurface reservoir pressure test shall state-the-name-ef-the-pee};-the
name-ef-the-operater-and-lease;-the-well-name;-the-wetl-file-number;-the
subsea-depth-in-feet-{meters}-ef-the-reserveir-datum-ptane;-and-welthead
elevation--abeve-sea-level};-the-depth-in-feet-{meters}-te-the-top-of-the
preducing-formation-or-tep-ef-perforations;-whichever-is-the-lewer;--the
date--of-the-tests;-the-total-number-ef-heurs-the-well-was-shut-in-prier
to-the-test;-the-subsurface-temperature-in-degrees-Fahrenheit--f{Eetsius}
at--the--test--depth;-the-depth-in-feet-{meters}-at-which-the-subsurface
pressure-test-was-made;-the-ebserved-pressure-in-peunds-{kitegrams}--per
square--ineh--fsquare--eentimeters}---gauge--at--the-test-depth;-and-the
eorrected-pressure-computed-from-applying-te-the-ebserved--pressure--the
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apprepriate--eorrections-fer-calibratien;-temperature;-and-difference-in
depth-between-test-depth-and-reserveir-datum-piane be filed on form 9a.

The director may shut in any well for failure to make such test as
herein above described until such time as a satisfactory test has been
made or satisfactory explanation given.

History: Amended effective April 30, 1981; January 1, 1983; May 1,
1992; September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-44. Metered casinghead gas. All casinghead gas
produced shail be reported monthly to the director in units of one
thousand cubic feet [28.32 cubic meters] computed at a pressure of
fourteen and seventy-three hundredths pounds per square inch absolute
[1034.19 grams per square centimeter] at a base temperature of sixty
degrees Fahrenheit [15.56 degrees Celsius]. Associated gas production
may not be transported from a well premises or central production
facility until its volume has been determined through the use of
properly calibrated measurement equipment. All measurement equipment
and volume determinations must conform to American gas association
standards. The operator of a well shall notify the director of the
connection date to a gas gathering system, the metering equipment,
transporter, and purchaser of the gas. Any gas produced and used on
lease for fuel purposes or flared; must be estimated and reported on a
gas _ production report (form 5b) in accordance with section
43-02-03-52.1.

History: Amended effective April 30, 1981; January 1, 1983; May 1,
1992; July 1, 1996; September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-45. Vented casinghead gas. Pending arrangements for
disposition for some useful purpose, all vented casinghead gas shall be
burned. Each flare shall be equipped with an automatic ignitor or a
continuous burning pilot, unless waived by the director for good reason.
The estimated volume of gas used and flared shall be reported to the
director on a _gas production report (form 5b) or before the fifth day of
the second month succeeding that in which gas is produced.

History: Amended effective April 30, 1981; January 1, 1983; May 1,
1990; May 1, 1992; September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-47. Produced water. Monthly water production from each
well must be determined through the use of properly calibrated meter
measurements, tank measurements, or an alternate measurement method
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approved by the director. This includes allocating water production
back to individual wells on a monthly basis, provided the method of
volume determination and allocation procedure results in reasonably
accurate production volumes. Operators shall report monthly to the
director the amount of water produced by each well on form 5. The
reports must be filed on or before the first day of the second month
following that in which production occurred.

History: Amended effective January 1, 1983; May 1, 1992; May 1, 1994;
September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-48.1. Central production facility - Commingling of
production.

1. The director shall have the authority to approve requests to
consolidate production equipment at a central location.

2. Commingling of production from two or more wells in a central
production facility is prohibited unless approved by the
director. There are two types of central production
facilities in which production from two or more wells is
commingled that may be approved by the director.

a. A central production facility in which all production
going into the facility has common ownership (working
interests, royalty interests, and overriding royalties).

b. A central production facility in which production going
into the facility has diverse ownership.

3. The commingling of production in a central production facility
from two or more wells having common ownership may be approved
by the director provided the production from each well can be
accurately determined at reasonable intervals. Commingling of
production in a central production facility from two or more
wells having diverse ownership may be approved by the director
provided the production from each well is accurately metered
prior to commingling. Commingling of production in a central
production facility from two or more wells having diverse
ownership that is not metered prior to commingling may only be
approved by the commission after notice and hearing.

a. Common ownership central production facility. The
application for permission to commingle oil and gas in a
central production facility with common ownership must be
submitted on a sundry notice (form 4) and shall dinclude
the following:

(1) A plat or map showing thereon the location of the
central facility and the name, well file number, and
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location of each well and flow lines from each well
that will produce into the facility.

(2) A schematic drawing of the facility which diagrams
the testing, treating, routing, and transferring of
production. A1l pertinent items such as treaters,
tanks, flow lines, valves, meters, recycle pumps,
etc., should be shown.

(3) A current or most recent division order or title
opinion showing the ownership of each well to be
commingled.

(4) An explanation of the procedures or method to be used
to determine, accurately, individual well production
at periodic intervals. Such procedures or method
shall be performed at least once every three months.

A copy of all tests are to be filed with the director
on form 11 within thirty days after the tests are
completed.

Diverse ownership central production facility. The
application for permission to commingle 0il and gas in a
central production facility having diverse ownership must
be submitted on a sundry notice (form 4) and shall include
the following:

(1) A plat or map showing thereon the location of the
central facility and the name, well file number, and
location of each well, and flow lines from each well
that will produce into the facility.

(2) A schematic drawing of the facility which diagrams
the testing, treating, routing, and transferring of
production. All pertinent items such as treaters,
tanks, flow lines, valves, meters, recycle pumps,
etc., should be shown.

(3) The name of the manufacturer, size, and type of
meters to be used. The meters must be proved at
least once every three months and the results
reported to the director within thirty days following
the completion of the test.

(4) An explanation of the procedures or method to be used
to determine, accurately, individual well production
at periodic intervals. Such procedures or method
shall be performed monthly.

A copy of all tests are to be filed with the director
on form 11 within thirty days after the tests are

completed.
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4. Any changes to a previously approved central production
facility must be reported te; on a sundry notice(form 4) and
approved bys; the director.

History: Effective May 1, 1992; amended effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-49. 0il1 tanks ard, dikes, and seals. ©6i#}-shati-net-be
stored-er-retained-in-earthen-reserveirs-er-in-epen-receptacetes: Dikes
must be erected and maintained around oil tanks at any production
facility built or rebuilt on or after July 1, 2000. Dikes must be
erected and maintained around oil tanks at production facilities built
prior to July 1, 2000, when deemed necessary by the director. Dikes
must be constructed of sufficiently impermeable material to provide
emergency containment and of sufficient dimension to contain the maximum
total velume--stered--must--be-erected-and-kept-areund-ati-eil-tanks-er
battery-ef-tanks-when-deemed-necessary-by--the--director:---Aceidentatly
diseharged capacity of the largest tank plus one day's fluid production.
Discharged oil must be properly removed and may not be allowed to remain
standing within the or outside of any diked area areas.

Numbered metal security seals shall be properly utilized on all
0il access valves and access points to secure the tank or battery of
tanks.

History: Amended effective April 30, 1981; January 1, 1983; May 1,
1992; September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-50. Tank cleaning permit. No tank bottom shall be
removed from any tank used for the storage of crude oil or a tank in
which crude oil accumulates without prior approval by the director.
Verbal approval may be given. All tank bottom waste must be disposed of
in a manner authorized by the director and in accordance with all
applicable local, state, and federal laws and regulations. Within
thirty days of completion of the tank bottom cleaning, the owner or
operator shall submit a report (form 23) showing an accurate gauge of
the contents of the tank and the amount of merchantable oil determinable
from a representative sample of the tank bottom by the standard
centrifugal test as prescribed by the American petroleum institute's
code for measuring, sampling, and testing crude oil. Nothing contained
in this section shall apply to reclaiming of pipeline break oil or the
treating of tank bottoms at a pipeline station, crude oil storage
terminal, or refinery or to the treating by a gasoline plant operator of
0oil and other catchings collected in traps and drips in the gas
gathering 1lines connected to gasoline plants and in scrubbers at such
plants.
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History: Amended effective April 30, 1981; January 1, 1983; May 1,
1992; May 1, 1994; September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-51. Treating plant. Before construction of a treating
plant and upon written application for a treating plant permit stating
in detail the location, type, capacity of the plant contemplated, method
of processing proposed, and the plan of operation for all plant waste,
the commission shall set such application for hearing to determine
whether the proposed plant and method of processing will actually and
efficiently process, treat, and reclaim tank bottom emulsion and other
waste oils, and whether there is need for such a plant. The operator of
any portable treating plant shall notify the director as to all changes
in location of said plant. No treating plant shall operate except by
order of the commission. The disposition of all products and waste must
be reported monthly on form 5-P 5p. Befere-aetual--treating--eperations
are--begun Upon approval of a treating plant and before construction
begins, the permittee shall file with the commission a surety bond or
cash bond conditioned upon compliance with all laws, rules and
regulations, and orders of the commission. The bond amount shall be
specified in the commission order authorizing the treating plant and
shall be based upon the location, type, and capacity of the plant,
processing method, and plan of operation for all plant waste approved in
the commission order and shall be payable in-the-ameunt--ef--twenty-five
theusand--dettars to the industrial commission of North Dakota. In no
case shall the bond amount be set Tlower then twenty-five thousand
dollars.

History: Amended effective January 1, 1983; May 1, 1990; May 1, 1992;
September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-52. Report of oil production. The operator of each well
in every pool shall, on or before the first day of the second month
succeeding the month in which production occurs, file with the director
a-swerR-statement-shewing the amount of production made by each such
well upon ferms-furnished-therefer; form 5 or approved computer sheets
no larger than eight and one-half by feurteen eleven inches [21.59 by
35:56 27.94 centimeters]. In-lieu-of-a-netarized-repert;-an-eperater
may-submit-te-the-commissien-a-1ist-ef-persens-autherized--to--sign--the
meRthly--ei1--preduction--repert: The eemmissien-witl-aeeept-a report
shall be signed by any--persen--er--the--}ist--previded--that--persents
sigrature--is--witnessed both the person responsible for the report and
the person witnessing the signature. The printed name and title of both
the person signing the report and the person witnessing the signature
shall be included. Wells for which reports of production are not
received by the close of business on said first day of the month shaii
may be shut in for a period not to exceed thirty days. The director
shall notify, by certified mail, the operator and authorized transporter
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of the shut-in period for such wells. Any o0il produced during such
shut-in period shall be deemed illegal oil and subject to the provisions
of North Dakota Century Code section 38-08-15.

History: Amended effective April 30, 1981; January 1, 1983; May 1,
1992; December 1, 1997; September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-52.1. Report of gas produced in association with oil.
The operator of each well in every pool shall, on or before the fifth
day of the second month succeeding the month in which production occurs,
file with the director a-swern--statement--shewing the amount of gas
produced by each such well upon ferms-furrished-therefer; form 5b or
approved computer sheets no larger than eight and one-half by eleven
inches [21.59 by 27.94 centimeters]. In-}ieu-ef-a-netarized-repert;-an
eperater-may-submit-te-the-commissien-a-1ist-ef--persens--autherized--te
stgr--the--menthiy--gas-preduetion-repert: The eemmissien-will-aeeept-a
report shall be signed by any-persen-en-the-1ist-previded-that--persents
stgrature--is--witnessed both the person responsible for the report and
the person witnessing the signature. The printed name and title of both
the person signing the report and the person witnessing the signature
shall be included. Wells for which reports of production are not
received by the close of business on said fifth day of the month must
may be shut in for a period not to exceed thirty days. The director
shall notify, by certified mail, the operator and authorized transporter
of the shut-in period for such wells. Any gas produced during such
shut-in period must be deemed illegal gas and subject to the provisions
of North Dakota Century Code section 38-08-15.

History: Effective May 1, 1992; amended effective December 1, 1997;
September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-53. Saltwater handling facilities.

1. A1l saltwater liquids or brines produced with oil and natural
gas shall be processed, stored, and disposed of without
pollution of freshwater supplies. At no time shall saltwater
liquids or brines be allowed to flow over or pool on the
surface of the land or inte-streams infiltrate the soil.

2. Ne-surface-pits-shall-be-used-te-stere-sattwater:

3: Underground disposal of saltwater liquids and brines shall be
in accordance with chapter 43-02-05.

4: 3. Surface tanks are an acceptable facility provided that:
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a. They are devoid of 1leaks and constructed of materials
resistant to the effects of produced saltwater 1liquids,
brines, or chemicals that may be contained therein. The
above materials requirement may be waived by the director
for tanks presently in service and in good condition.

b. Dikes must be erected and maintained around saltwater
tanks at any saltwater handling facility built or rebuilt
on or after July 1, 2000. Dikes must be erected and
maintained around saltwater tanks at saltwater handling
facilities built prior to July 1, 2000, when deemed
necessary by the director. Dikes must be constructed of
sufficiently impermeable material to provide emergency
containment and of sufficient dimension to contain the
maximum total velume--stered--shali--be-ereeted-and-kept
areund-ati-sattwater-and-brine-tanks-er-battery--ef--tanks
when--deemed--neeessary--by--the--direeter capacity of the
largest tank plus one day's fluid production.
Aceidentatiy--diseharged Discharged saltwater liquids or
brines must be properly removed and may not be allowed to
remain standing within the or outside of any diked area
areas.

§:--Surface--pits--are--net--an--aceeptable--faeititys---Lined-pits
previeusiy-appreved-may-be-utitized-provided-thats

ar--A---menitering--system--be--maintained--te--aseertain--the
integrity-of-the-impermeability-of-the-sides-and-bettom-of
the-faetlitys

Br--Previsiens--be--made--te--prevent--1ivestoek--frem-gatning
aceess-te-the-stered-substaneess

6---FThis-seetien-shali-net-applty-tes

ar--Reserve---pits--edurrently--used--in--drilling;--deepentngs
testings-rewerking;-er-piugging-ef-a-weti-

Br--Pits--used--sele}y--fer--the--purpese--ef--burning--vented
easinghead-gas-as-previded-in-seet+on-43-02-03-45-

History: Amended effective April 30, 1981; January 1, 1983; May 1,
1992; September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-57. Determination of gas well potential. After the
completion or recompletion of a gas well, the operator shall conduct
tests to determine the daily open flow potential of the well. The test
results together with an analyses of the gas shall be reported to the
director within thirty days after completion of the well.
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Operators shall conduct tests--te-determine-the-daily-epen-fiew
petentiat-velumes-ef-gas-wells-frem-which-gas-is-being-used-er--marketed
in--aceordance--with-an-erder-ef-the-commissien-er-at-the-request-of-the
direetor:---Test-precedures-shatl-be-these-commeonty-used-in-the--industry
either a stabilized one-point back-pressure test or a multipoint
back-pressure test in accordance with the "Manual of Back-Pressure
Testing of Gas Wells" published by the interstate oil and gas compact
commission unless otherwise approved by the director.

History: Amended effective January 1, 1983; May 1, 1992; September 1,
2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-59. Production from gas wells to be measured and
reported. Gas production may not be transported from a gas well
premises until its volume has been determined through the use of
preperty properly calibrated measurement equipment. All measurement
equipment and volume determinations must conform to American gas
association standards and corrected to a pressure of fourteen and
seventy-three hundredths pounds per square inch absolute [1034.19 grams
per square eertimeters centimeter] at a base temperature of sixty
degrees Fahrenheit [15.56 degrees Celsius]. Gas production reports
(form 5b) shall be filed with the director on or before the fifth day of
the second month succeeding that in which production occurs.

History: Amended effective April 30, 1981; January 1, 1983; May 1,
1992; May 1, 1994; July 1, 1996; September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-64. Rate of producing wells. In allocated oil and gas
pools the owner or operator of any producing unit shall not produce from
any proration unit during any proration period more oil or gas than the
allowable production from such units as shown by the proration schedule,
provided that such owners or operators shall be permitted to maintain a
uniform rate of production for each unit during the proration period.
In order to maintain a uniform rate of production from the pool during
any proration period, any operator may produce a total volume of oil and
gas equal to that shown on the applicable proration schedule plus or
minus five days top unit allowable, and any such overproduction shall be
deducted from the total allowable for the well in the second month
following; and any such underproduction shall be added to the total
allowable on the well for the second month following; provided, that if
the underproduction shall exceed five days top unit allowable for the
unit, none of the underproduction shall be added to the allowable for
the second month following, except as provided in section 43-02-03-65.

A fractional proration unit shall be allowed to produce only in

the proportion that the acreage content thereof bears to forty acres
[16.19 hectares].
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Where the commission has adopted special rules in any pool, wells
drilled in accordance with those special rules shall be allowed to
produce a daily amount of oil and gas equal to the top unit allowable as
set by the commission multiplied by a factor, the numerator of which
shall be the number of acres f{heetares} assigned to a spacing unit in
the pool and the denominator of which shall be forty.

History: Amended effective January 1, 1983; September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04, 38-08-06
Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04, 38-08-06

43-02-03-66. Application for allowable on new oil wells. No well
shall be placed on the proration schedule until retiee-ef a completion
report (form 6) has been exeeuted-ard filed with the director.

The first four wells in any field or pool hereafter discovered
shall be allowed to produce any amount of 0il it is capable of producing
but in no case to exceed a maximum of two hundred barrels of oil per day
if the same can be done without waste and provided further, that a
market can be obtained for such oil produced.

The allowable production provided for above shall continue in
effect for a period of not more than eighteen months from the date of
completion of the first well in the field or pool, or until the
completion of the fifth well in the pool, whichever shall occur first,
and shall produce thereafter, only pursuant to the general rules and
regulations of the commission.

The producer or operator of any well claiming a discovery
allowable under this section shall report to the director, not later
than the tenth of each month, the results of a potential test, made on
or about the first day of the month, in accordance with the provisions
of section 43-02-03-40.

History: Amended effective April 30, 1981; January 1, 1983; May 1,
1992; September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04, 38-08-06

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04, 38-08-06

43-02-03-80. Reports of purchasers and transporters of crude oil.
On or before the first day of the second month succeeding that in which
oil is removed, purchasers and transporters, including truckers, shall
file with the director the appropriate monthly reporting forms. The
purchaser shall file on form 10 and the transporter on form 10a the
amount of all crude oil removed and purchased by them from each well or
central production facility during the reported month. The transporter
shall report the disposition of such crude oil on form 10b. All meter
and tank measurements, and volume determinations of crude oil removed
and purchased from a well or central production facility must conform to
American petroleum institute standards and corrected to a base
temperature of sixty degrees Fahrenheit [15.56 degrees Celsius] and
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fourteen and seventy-three hundredths pounds per square inch absolute
[1034.19 grams per square centimeter].

Prior to removing any oil from a well or central production
facility, purchasers and transporters shall obtain an approved copy of a
producer's eertificate--of-complianee-and authorization to purchase and
transport oil from a well or central production facility (form 8) from
either the producer or the director.

History: Amended effective April 30, 1981; January 1, 1983; May 1,
1990; May 1, 1992; May 1, 1994; July 1, 1996; September 1, 2000.

General Authorlty NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-81. Authorization to transport oil from a well or
central production facility. Before any crude oil is transported from a
well or central production facility, the operator of the well or central
production facility shall file with the director, and obtain the
director's approval, a--preduceris--certificate--of--compliance-and an
authorization to purchase and transport oil from a well or central
production facility (form 8).

0i1 transported from a well or central production facility before
the authorization is obtained or if such authorization has been revoked
sha]]Abe considered illegal oil.

The director shat} may revoke the preducers--certificate--of
cemplianee-and authorization to purchase and transport oil from a well
or central production facility for failure to comply with any rule,
regulation, or order of the commission.

History: Amended effective April 30, 1981; January 1, 1983; May 1,
1992; July 1, 1996; September 1, 2000. '

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04

43-02-03-82. Refinery reports. Each refiner of oil within North
Dakota shall furnish for each calendar month a report (form 13)
containing information and data respecting crude oil and products
involved in such refiner's operations during each month. The report for
each month shall be prepared and filed on or before the fifteenth of the
next succeeding month with the director.

History: Amended effective April 30, 1981; January 1, 1983; May 1,
1992; September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04
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CHAPTER 43-02-05

43-02-05-13.1. Books and records to be kept to substantiate
reports. All owners, operators, drilling contractors, drillers, service
companies, or other persons engaged in drilling, completing, operating,
or servicing injection wells shall make and keep appropriate books and
records for a period of not less than six years, covering their
operations in North Dakota from which they may be able to make and
substantiate the reports required by this chapter.

History: Effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04
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CHAPTER 43-02-06

43-02-06-04. Books and records to be kept to substantiate
reports. All operators shall make and keep appropriate books and
records for a period of not less than six years, covering their
operations in North Dakota from which they may be able to make and
substantiate the reports reguired by this chapter.

History: Effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 38-08-06.3
Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-06.3
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CHAPTER 43-02-08

43-02-08-11. Books and records to be kept to substantiate
reports. Any operator desiring to classify a property as a stripper
well property pursuant to this chapter shall make and keep records for a
period of not less than six years, covering their operations in North
Dakota from which they may be able to make and substantiate the reports
required by this chapter.

History: Effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04
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CHAPTER 43-02-09

43-02-09-08. Books and records to be kept to substantiate
reports. All operators shall make and keep appropriate books and
records for a period of not less than six years, covering their
operations in North Dakota from which they may be able to make and
substantiate the reports required by this chapter.

History: Effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 57-51.1-03
Law Implemented: NDCC 57-51.1-03
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CHAPTER 43-02-10

43-02-10-05. Commission certification of tertiary recovery
project. Upon the filing of an application for certification of a
qualifying tertiary recovery project, the commission shall promptly set
a date for hearing. In determining whether a tertiary recovery project

shall be certified as a “"qualifying tertiary recovery project", the
commission shall determine:

1. Whether the tertiary recovery project meets the requirements
of the tertiary recovery methods specified in subsection 6 8
of North Dakota Century Code section 57-51.1-01;

2. The amount of crude oil which would have been recovered from
the unit source of supply if the tertiary recovery project had
not been commenced; ard

3. Whether the tertiary recovery project has achieved for at
least one month an average production level of at least
fifteen percent above the amount of production which would
have been recovered from the unit source of supply (as
determined in subsection 2) if the tertiary recovery project
had not been commenced; and

4, Whether, for the purposes of the tax exemption and subsequent
thereto the tax reduction, there has been incremental
production. '

The commission will, upon application or its own motion, have a hearing
to determine whether the project operator continues to operate the unit
as a qualifying tertiary recovery project.

History: Effective May 1, 1992; amended effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04, 57-51.1-01

43-02-10-08. Books and records to be kept to substantiate
reports. Any unit operator desiring to certify a secondary recovery
project shall make and keep appropriate books and records for a period
of not less than six years, covering their operations in North Dakota
from which they may be able to make and substantiate the reports
required by this chapter.

History: Effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04
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CHAPTER 43-02-11

43-02-11-02. Application to certify as qualifying a rew-well;
horizontal well, horizontal reentry well, or two-year inactive well.
Any operator desiring to certify a horizontal, horizontal reentry, or
two-year inactive well as a "qualifying well" for purposes of
eligibility for the tax incentive provided in North Dakota Century Code
chapter 57-51.1 shall submit to the director an application for
certification of a qualifying well. The operator has the burden of
establishing entitlement to certification and shall submit all data
necessary to enable the commission to determine whether a well is a
qualifying well and is entitled to the tax reduction and tax exemption
provided in North Dakota Century Code sections 57-51.1-02 and 57-51.1-03
respectively. The application must be received by the commission within
seventeen months after the qualification period, completion or
recompletion, in order to receive the tax exemption and reduction from
the first day of eligibility.

History: Effective July 1, 1996; amended effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04, 57-51.1-03

43-02-11-06. App1icafion for tax exemption and reduction for a
two-year inactive well. The application must include the following:

1. The name and address of the applicant and the name and address
of the person operating the well, if different.

2. The name and number of the well; and the legal description of
the location of the well for which a determination is
requested.

3. Monthly production during the two years prior to date of
application.

4, An affidavit stating that all working interest owners of the
property and all purchasers of the crude oil produced from the
property have been notified of the application by certified or
registered mail.

Test oil produced from a two-year inactive well prior to recompletion
is exempted from the extraction tax. If the application does not
contain sufficient information to make a determination, the director may
require the applicant to submit additional information.

The--application-must-be-submitted-to-the-ecommission-within-twetve
merths-after-the-menth-in-whieh-the-well-was-returned-to-recompietion:

History: Effective July 1, 1996; amended effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04
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Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04, 57-51.1-03

43-02-11-07. Books and records to be kept to substantiate
reports. Any operator desiring to certify a new, horizontal, horizontal
reentry, or two-year inactive well shall make and keep appropriate books
and records for a period of not less than six years, covering their
operations in North Dakota from which they may be able to make and
substantiate the reports required by this chapter.

History: Effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 38-08-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08-04, 57-51.1-03
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CHAPTER 43-02-12

43-02-12-01. Definitions. The terms used in this chapter have
the same meaning as in North Dakota Century Code chapter 38-08.1:---As
used-in-this-ehapter;-*building! except:

1.

"Building" means any residence or commercial structure

including a barn, stable, or other similar structure;--and
teperater. '

"Director" means the director of oil and gas of the industrial

commission, the assistant director of o0il and gas of the
industrial commission, and their designated representatives.

"Operator of the land" means the surface owner or the surface

History:
2000.

owner's tenant of the land upon which geophysical operations
are to be conducted.

Effective December 1, 1997; amended effective September 1,

General Authority: NDCC 38-08.1
Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08.1-01

43-02-12-04. Exploration permit - Application.

1.

Any person applying to the commission for an exploration
permit must have a certificate to conduct geophysical
exploration pursuant to subsection 3 of North Dakota Century
Code section 38-08.1-03.1. A person may not commence
geophysical exploration activities in this state without first
obtaining an exploration permit from the commission. An
application for an exploration permit must include the
following:

a. The name, permanent address, and telephone number of the
geophysical contractor and the geophysical contractor's
local representative.

b. The name, permanent address, and telephone number of the
drilling and hole plugging contractor, if different from
the seismic contractor.

c. The name and address of the resident agent for service of
process of the person intending to engage in geophysical
exploration.

d. The bond number,v type, and amount for the geophysical
company.
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e. The geophysical exploration method (i.e., shot hole,
nonexplosive, 2D, or 3D).

f. The qumber, depth, and location of the seismic holes and
the size of the explosive charges, if applicable.

g. The anticipated starting date of seismic and plugging
operations.

h. The anticipated completion date of seismic and plugging
operations.

i. A description of hole plugging procedures.

j. A description of the identifying marks that will be on the
hat or nonmetallic plug to be used in the plugging of the
seismic hole.

k. A preplot map displaying the proposed seismic preject
lines-and-shet-hele-1eeations source points and receiver
lines and specifically identifying all source points that
do not comply with section 43-02-12-05.

1. A fee of one hundred dollars.

2. The permitholder shall notify the commission at least
twenty-four hours, excluding Saturdays and holidays, before
commencing geophysical activity.

History: Effective December 1, 1997; amended effective September 1,
2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08.1
Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08.1-04.1

43-02-12-05. Distance restrictions - Shot hole operations -
Nonexplosive methods. Seismic shot hole operations may not be conducted
less than one thousand three hundred twenty feet [402.34 meters] from
water wells, buildings, underground cisterns, pipelines, and flowing
springs.

Nonexplosive exploration methods may not be conducted less than
three hundred feet [91.44 meters] from water wells, buildings,
underground cisterns, pipelines, and flowing springs.

Variances may be granted to this section by written agreement
between the permitholder and the operator of the land and must be
available to the eemmissien director upon request.

History: Effective December 1, 1997; amended effective September 1,
2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08.1

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08.1-08
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43-02-12-06. Notification of work performed. Within thirty days
following the completion of geophysical exploration by any person within
this state, such person shall file with the commission a seismic
completion report in the form of an affidavit deposing that the seismic
project was completed in accordance with chapter 43-02-12, and
incorporating a postplot map displaying the actual shet source point
Tocation and the location of all undetonated (loaded) holes, blowouts,
and flowing holes or any other problem holes the director deems

necessary.

Any person plugging a seismic hole must submit a plugging report
and an affidavit of plugging detailing the 1line number, shot point
number, hole depth, drill type, hole condition (wet, dry), bentonite
used (sacks, capsules), and the depth at which the surface plug was set,
and all other information necessary to describe the conditions of the
shot hole.

History: Effective December 1, 1997; amended effective September 1,
2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08.1

Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08.1-02, 38-08.1-05

43-02-12-07. Drilling and plugging requirements.

1. Prior to commencement of any drilling or plugging operations,
the eemmissien director may require a field meeting with the
geophysical contractor and subcontractors.

2. Except in those circumstances in which the eemmissien director
allows otherwise, all seismic shot holes must be plugged the
same day as they were drilled and loaded. Any blown out shot
holes must be plugged as soon as reasonably practicable,
unless, upon application, the eemmissien director grants an
extension which may not exceed ninety days. All seismic shot
holes must be temporarily capped until final plugging.

3. If the number of drilling rigs on a proposed project exceeds
the eemmissients director's capacity to provide appropriate
inspection, the eemmissien director may limit the number of
drilling rigs.

4. Bentonite materials used in seismic hole plugging must be
derived from naturally occurring untreated, high swelling
sodium bentonite which consists principally of the mineral
montmorillonite.

5. A durable nonrusting metal or plastic tag must be set at a
depth of approximately three feet [91.44 centimeters] below
the surface of every shot hole and shall be imprinted with the
name of the operator responsible for the plugging and its
permit number.
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6. Unless the contractor can prove to the satisfaction of the
commission that another method will provide better protection
to ground water and Tong-term land stability, seismic shot
hole plugging shall be conducted in the following manner:

a. When water is used in conjunction with the drilling of
seismic shot holes or when water is encountered in the
hole, the shot holes are to be filled with coarse ground
bentonite approximately three-fourths of one inch
[19.05 millimeters] in diameter from the top of the charge
up to a depth above the final water level. Cuttings shall
be added from the top of the bentonite to the surface.
A1l cuttings added above the nonmetallic plug shall be
tamped.

b. When drilling with air only, and in completely dry holes,
a plugging may be accomplished by returning the cuttings
to the hole. A small mound must be left over the hole for
settling allowance.

¢. Any drilling fluid or cuttings which are deposited on the
surface around the seismic hole will be spread out in such
a manner that the growth of natural grasses or foliage
will not be impaired.

d. The existing cap leads must be cut off below ground level.

History: Effective December 1, 1997; amended effective September 1,
2000.

General Authority: NDCC 38-08.1
Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08.1-02, 38-08.1-06, 38-08.1-06.1

43-02-12-08. Books and records to be kept to substantiate
reports. All geophysical, drilling, and plugging contractors shall make
and keep appropriate books and records for a period of not less than six
years, covering their operations in North Dakota from which they may be
able to make and substantiate the reports required by this chapter.

History: Effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 38-08.1
Law Implemented: NDCC 38-08.1-08

154









AUGUST 2600

CHAPTER 45-03-20

45-03-20-064. Contents of annual audited financial report. The
annual audited financial report must report the financial position of
the insurer as of the end of the most recent calendar year and the
results of its operations, cash flows, and changes in capital and
surplus for the year then ended in conformity with statutory accounting
practices prescribed, or otherwise permitted, by the department of
insurance of the state of domicile.

The annual audited financial report must include the following:
1. Report of independent certified public accountant.

2. Balance sheet reporting admitted assets, liabilities, capital,
and surplus.

3. Statement of operations.
4. Statement of cash flows.
5. Statement of changes in capital and surplus.

6. Notes to financial statements. These notes must be those
required by the appropriate national association of insurance
commissioners annual statement instructions and anry-ether
Retes-required-by-generally-aceepted-aceounting-prineiptes-and
the national association of insurance commissioners accounting
practices and procedures manual. These notes must also
include* a reconciliation of differences, if any, between the
audited statutory financial statements and the annual
statement filed pursuant to North Dakota Century Code section
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History:

General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02

26.1-03-07 with a written description of the nature of these

differences.

az--A--reconcitiation--of--differences;--if--any;--between-the
aHdited-statutory--finaneial--statements--and--the--anAual
statement--filed--pursuant--to--Nerth--Daketa-Century-Code
sectign-26:1-03-07--with--a--written--deseription--of--the
Rrature-ef-these-differeneess

Bs--A--summary--ef--ewnership-and-relatienships-ef-the-insurer
and-all-affiliated-companiess

The financial statements included in the audited financial
report must be prepared in a form and using language and
groupings substantially the same as the relevant sections of
the annual statement of the insurer filed with the
commissioner, and the financial statement must be comparative,
presenting the amounts as of December thirty-first of the
current year and the amounts as of the immediately preceding
December thirty-first. However, in the first year in which an
insurer 1is required to file an audited financial report, the
comparative data may be omitted.

Effective October 1, 1995; amended effective August 1, 2000.

Law Impiemented: NDCC 26.1-03-07, 26.1-03-11.1

158



CHAPTER 45-06-01.1

45-06-01.1-06. Benefit standards for policies or certificates
issued or delivered on or after January 1, 1992. The following
standards are applicable to all medicare supplement policies or
certificates delivered or issued for delivery in this state on or after
January 1, 1992. No policy or certificate may be advertised, solicited,
delivered, or issued for delivery in this state as a medicare supplement
policy or certificate unless it complies with these benefit standards:

1. General standards. The following standards apply to medicare
supplement policies and certificates and are in addition to
all other requirements of this rule:

a. A medicare supplement policy or certificate may not
exclude or Timit benefits for losses incurred more than
six months from the effective date of coverage because it
involved a preexisting condition. The policy or
certificate may not define a preexisting condition more
restrictively than a condition for which medical advice
was given or treatment was recommended by or received from
a physician within six months before the effective date of
coverage.

b. A medicare supplement policy or certificate may not
indemnify against losses resulting from sickness on a
different basis than losses resulting from accidents.

c. A medicare supplement policy or certificate must provide
that benefits designed to cover cost-sharing amounts under
medicare will be changed automatically to coincide with
any changes in the applicable medicare deductible amount
and copayment percentage factors. Premiums may be
modified to correspond with such changes.

d. No medicare supplement policy or certificate may provide
for termination of coverage of a spouse solely because of
the occurrence of an event specified for termination of
coverage of the insured, other than the nonpayment of
premium.

e. Each medicare supplement policy must be guaranteed
renewable:

(1) The issuer may not cancel or nonrenew the policy
solely on the ground of health status of the
individual.

(2) The issurer may not cancel or nonrenew the policy for

any reason other than nonpayment of premium or
material misrepresentation.
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(3) If the medicare supplement policy is terminated by
the group policyholder and is not replaced as
provided wunder paragraph 5 of subdivision e of
subsection 1 of section 45-06-01.1-06, the issuer
must offer certificate holders an individual medicare
supplement policy which (at the option of the
certificate holder):

(a) Provides for continuation of the benefits
contained in the group policy; or

(b) Provides for benefits that otherwise meet the
requirements of this subsection.

(4) If an individual is a certificate holder in a group
medicare supplement policy and the individual
terminates membership in the group, the issuer must:

(a) Offer the certificate holder the conversion
opportunity described in paragraph 3 of
subdivision e of subsection 1 of section
45-06-01.1-06; or

(b) At the option of the group policyholder, offer
the certificate holder continuation of coverage
under the group policy.

(5) If a group medicare supplement policy is replaced by
another group medicare supplement policy purchased by
the same policyholder, the issuer of the replacement
policy must offer coverage to all persons covered
under the old group policy on its date of
termination. Coverage under the new policy may not
result in any exclusion for preexisting conditions
that would have been covered under the group policy
being replaced.

Termination of a medicare supplement policy or certificate
must be without prejudice to any continuous Tloss which
commenced while the policy was in force, but the extension
of benefits beyond the period during which the policy was
in force may be conditioned upon the continuous total
disability of the insured, limited to the duration of the
policy benefit period, if any, or payment of the maximum
benefits.

(1) A medicare supplement policy or certificate must
provide that benefits and premiums under the policy
or certificate must be suspended at the request of
the policyholder or certificate holder for the period
(not to exceed twenty-four months) in which the
policyholder or certificate holder has applied for
and is determined to be entitled to medicaid under
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title XIX of the Social Security Act [42 U.S.C. 1396,
et seq.], but only if the policyholder or certificate
holder notifies the issuer of the policy or
certificate within ninety days after the date the
individual becomes entitled to assistance. Upon
receipt of timely notice, the issuer shall return to
the policyholder or certificate holder that portion
of the premium attributable to the period of medicaid
eligibility, subject to adjustment for paid claims.

(2) 1f suspension occurs and if the policyholder or
certificate holder Tloses entitlement to medical
assistance, the policy or certificate shall be
automatically reinstituted (effective as of the date
of termination of entitlement) as of the termination
of entitlement if the policyholder or certificate
holder provides notice of loss of entitlement within
ninety days after the date of loss and pays the
premium attributable to the period, effective as of
the date of termination of entitlement.

(3) Reinstitution of coverages:

(a) May not provide for any waiting period with
respect to treatment of preexisting conditions;

(b) Must provide for coverage which is substantially
equivalent to coverage in effect before the date
of suspension; and

(c) Must provide for classification of premiums on
terms at least as favorable to the policyholder
or certificate holder as the premium
classification terms that would have applied to
the policyholder or certificate holder had the
coverage not been suspended.

Standards for basic (core) benefits common to all benefit
plans. Every issuer must make available a policy or
certificate including only the following basic core package of
benefits to each prospective insured. An issuer may make
available to prospective insureds any of the other medicare
supplement insurance benefit plans in addition to the basic
core package, but not in lieu thereof:

a. Coverage of part A medicare eligible expenses for
hospitalization to the extent not covered by medicare from
the sixty-first day through the ninetieth day in any
medicare benefit period.

b. Coverage of part A medicare eligible expenses incurred for

hospitalization to the extent not covered by medicare for
each medicare lifetime inpatient reserve day used.
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c. Upon exhaustion of the medicare hospital inpatient
coverage including the lifetime reserve days, coverage of
the medicare part A eligible expenses for hospitalization
paid at the diagnostic related group day outlier per diem
or other appropriate standard of payment, subject to a
Tifetime maximum benefit of an additional three hundred
sixty-five days. The provider must accept the issuing
payment as payment in full and may not bill the insured
for any balance.

d. Coverage under medicare parts A and B for the reasonable
cost of the first three pints of blood (or equivalent
quantities of packed red blood cells, as defined under
federal regulations) unless replaced in accordance with
federal regulations.

e. Coverage for the coinsurance amount of medicare eligible
expenses under part B regardless of hospital confinement,
subject to the medicare part B deductible.

Standards for additional benefits. The following additional
benefits must be included in medicare supplement benefit plans
"B" through "J" only as provided by section 45-06-01.1-07:

a. Medicare part A deductible: Coverage for all of the
medicare part A inpatient hospital deductible amount per
benefit period.

b. Skilled nursing facility care: Coverage for the actual
billed charges up to the coinsurance amount from the
twenty-first day through the one hundredth day in a
medicare benefit period for posthospital skilled nursing
facility care eligible under medicare part A.

c. Medicare part B deductible: Coverage for all of the
medicare part B deductible amount per calendar year
regardless of hospital confinement.

d. Eighty percent of the medicare part B excess charges:
Coverage for eighty percent of the difference between the
actual medicare part B charge as billed, not to exceed any
charge limitation established by the medicare program or
state law, and the medicare-approved part B charge.

e. One hundred percent of the medicare part B excess charges:
Coverage for all of the difference between the actual
medicare part B charge as billed, not to exceed any charge
limitation established by the medicare program or state
law, and the medicare-approved part B charge.

f. Basic outpatient prescription drug benefit: Coverage for

fifty percent of outpatient prescription drug charges,
after a two hundred fifty dollar calendar year deductible,
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to a maximum of one thousand two hundred fifty dollars in
benefits received by the insured per calendar year, to the
extent not covered by medicare.

Extended outpatient prescription drug benefit: Coverage
for fifty percent of outpatient prescription drug charges,
after a two hundred fifty dollar calendar year deductible
to a maximum of three thousand dollars 1in benefits
received by the insured per calendar year, to the extent
not covered by medicare.

Medically necessary emergency care in a foreign country:
Coverage to the extent not covered by medicare for eighty
percent of the billed charges for medicare-eligible
expenses for medically necessary emergency hospital,
physician, and medical care received in a foreign country,
which care would have been covered by medicare if provided
~in the United States and which care began during the first
sixty consecutive days of each trip outside the United
States, subject to a calendar year deductible of two
hundred fifty dollars, and a lifetime maximum benefit of
fifty thousand dollars. For purposes of this benefit,
"emergency care" means care needed immediately because of
an injury or an illness of sudden and unexpected onset.

Preventive medical care benefit: Coverage for the
following preventive health services:

(1) An annual clinical preventive medical history and
physical examination that may include tests and
services from subparagraph paragraph 2 and patient
education to address preventive health care measures.

(2) Any one or a combination of the following preventive
screening tests or preventive services, the frequency
of which is considered medically appropriate:

(a) Fecal occult blood test or digital rectal
examination, or both.

(b) Mammogram.

(c) Dipstick urinalysis for hematuria, bacteriuria,
and proteinauria.

(d) Pure tone, air only, hearing screening test,
administered or ordered by a physician.

(e) Serum cholesterol screening every five years.
(f) Thyroid function test.

(g) Diabetes screening.
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(3) Influenza vaccine administered at any appropriate
time during the year and tetanus and diphtheria
booster every ten years.

(4) Any other tests or preventive measures determined
appropriate by the attending physician.

Reimbursement must be for the actual charges up to one
hundred percent of the medicare-approved amount for each
service, as if medicare were to cover the service as
identified in American medical association current
procedural terminology codes, to a maximum of one hundred
twenty dollars annually under this benefit. This benefit
may not include payment for any procedure covered by
medicare.

At-home recovery benefit: Coverage for services to
provide short-term, at-home assistance with activities of
daily Tiving for those recovering from an illness, injury,
or surgery.

(1) For purposes of this benefit, the following
definitions apply:

(a) "Activities of daily 1living" includes, but is
not limited to bathing, dressing, personal
hygiene, transferring, -eating, ambulating,
assistance with drugs that are normally
self-administered, and changing bandages or
other dressings.

(b) “care---previder!--means--a--duly--gualified--oer
}ieensed-heme-health-aide-er-homemaker;-persenat
€eare--atde;-er-nurse-previded-threugh-a-1ieensed
heme--heatth--care--ageney--er--referred--by---a
tieensed--referral--ageney--er--1ieensed--Aurses
registry: "At-home recovery visit" means the
period of a visit required to provide at-home
recovery care, without limit on the duration of
the visit, except each consecutive four hours in
a twenty-four-hour period of services provided
by a care provider is one visit.

(c) “Heme!--mears-any-place-used-By-the-insured-as-a
place-ef-residence;--provided--that--sueh--ptace
wotld--quatify--as--a--residenece-for-heme-heatth
gare-serviees-eevered-by-medicare:---A--hospital
er---skitled---Rursing---faettity---may--net--be
eensidered-the--insured:s--place--ef--residences
"Care provider" means a duly qualified or
1icensed home health aide or homemaker, personal
care aide, or nurse provided through a lTicensed
home health care agency or referred by a
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(2)

(d)

licensed referral agency or licensed nurses
registry.

“At-heme--reeevery--visit!-means-the-peried-ef-a
visit-required-to-provide-at-heme-reeevery-cares
without--1imit--on--the--duratien--ef-the-visits
exeept--each--conseeutive--four---Reurs---ip---a
twenty-four-heur--period-of-services-previded-by
a-care-previder-is-ene-visit: "Home" means any
place used by the insured as a place of
residence, provided that such place would
qualify as a residence for home health care
services covered by medicare. A hospital or
skilled nursing facility may not be considered
the insured's place of residence. ,

Coverage requirements and limitations.

(a)

(b)

(c)

At-home recovery services provided must be
primarily services which assist in activities of
daily living.

The insured's attending physician must certify
that the specific type and frequency of at-home
recovery services are necessary because of a
condition for which a home care plan of
treatment was approved by medicare.

Coverage is limited to:

¢4} [11 No more than the number and type of at-home

recovery visits certified as necessary by
the insured's attending physician. The
total number of at-home recovery visits may
not exceed the number of medicare-approved
home health care visits under a
medicare-approved home care plan of
treatment.

¢4#} [2] The actual charges for each visit up to a

maximum reimbursement of forty dollars per
visit.

¢43#} [3] One thousand six hundred dollars per

calendar year.

¢4v} [4] Seven visits in any one week.

¢v} [6] Care furnished on a visiting basis in the

insured's home.

¢vi} [6] Services provided by a care provider as

defined in this section.
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History:

{vii} [7] At-home recovery visits while the insured
is covered under the policy or certificate
and not otherwise excluded.

¢vii+} [8] At-home recovery visits received during the
period the insured is receiving medicare-
approved home care services or no more than
eight weeks after the service date of the
last medicare-approved home health care
visit.

(3) Coverage is excluded for:

(a) Home care visits paid for by medicare or other
government programs; and

(b) Care provided by family members, unpaid
volunteers, or providers who are not care
providers.

New or innovative benefits. An issuer may, with the prior
approval of the commissioner, offer policies or
certificates with new or innovative benefits in addition
to the benefits provided in a policy or certificate that
otherwise complies with the applicable standards. The new
or innovative benefits may include benefits that are
appropriate to medicare supplement insurance, new or
innovative, not otherwise available, cost-effective, and
offered in a manner which is consistent with the goal of
simplification of medicare supplement policies. New or
innovative benefits should offer uniquely different or
significantly expanded coverages.

Effective January 1, 1992; amended effective April 1, 1996;

July 8, 1997; August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 26.1-36.1-02(1)(2), 26.1-36.1-03
Law Implemented: NDCC 26.1-36.1-02
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CHAPTER 45-06-06.1

45-06-06.1-06. Requirement to insure entire groups.

1.

a.

A small employer carrier that offers coverage to a small
employer shall offer to provide coverage to each eligible
employee and to each dependent of an eligible employee.
Except as provided in subdivision b, the small employer
carrier shall provide the same health benefit plan to each
such employee and dependent.

A small employer carrier may offer the employees of a
small employer the option of choosing among one or more
health benefit plans, provided that each employee may
choose any of the offered plans. Except as provided in
subsection 3 of North Dakota Century Code section
26.1-36.3-06, with respect to exclusions for preexisting
conditions, the choice among benefit plans may not be
limited, restricted, or conditioned based upon the risk
characteristics of the employees or their dependents.

A small employer carrier shall require each small employer
that applies for coverage, as part of the application
process, to provide a complete list of eligible employees
and dependents of eligible employees as defined in
subsections 12 and 13 of North Dakota Century Code section
26.1-36.3-01. The small employer carrier shall require
the small employer to provide appropriate supporting
documentation, such as the W-2 summary wage and tax form,
or certification, to verify the information required under
this subdivision.

A small employer carrier shall secure a waiver with
respect to each eligible employee and each dependent of
such an eligible employee who declines an offer of
coverage under a health benefit plan provided to a small
employer. The waiver shall be signed by the eligible
employee, on behalf of such employee or the dependent of
such employee, and shall certify that the individual who
declined coverage was informed of the availability of
coverage under the health benefit plan. The waiver form
shall require that the reason for declining coverage be
stated on the form and shall include a written warning of
the penalties imposed on late enrollees. Waivers shall be
maintained by the small employer carrier for a period of
six years.

(1) A small employer carrier may not issue coverage to a
small employer that refuses to provide the 1list
required under subdivision a or a waiver required
under subdivision b.
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(2) (a) A small employer carrier shall not issue
coverage to a small employer if the carrier, or
a producer for such carrier, has reason to
believe that the small employer has induced or
pressured an eligible employee, or dependent of
an eligible employee, to decline coverage due to
the individual's risk characteristics.

(b) A producer shall notify a small employer
carrier, prior to submitting an application for
coverage with the carrier on behalf of a small
employer, of any circumstances that would
indicate that the small employer has induced or
pressured an eligible employee, or dependent of
an eligible employee, to decline coverage due to
the individual's risk characteristics.

New entrants to a small employer group shall be offered an
opportunity to enroll in the health benefit plan currently
held by such group. A new entrant that does not exercise
the opportunity to enroll in the health benefit plan
within the period provided by the small employer carrier
may be treated as a late enrollee by the carrier, provided
that the period provided to enroll in the health benefit
plan extends at least thirty days after the date the new
entrant is notified of Ris--er--her the entrant's
opportunity to enroll. If a small employer carrier has
offered more than one health benefit plan to a small
employer group pursuant to subdivision b of subsection 1,
the new entrant shall be offered the same choice of health
benefit plans as the other members of the group.

A small employer carrier may not apply a waiting period,
elimination period, or other similar limitation of
coverage, other than an exclusion for preexisting medical
conditions consistent with subdivision b of subsection 3
of North Dakota Century Code section 26.1-36.3-06, with
respect to a new entrant that is longer than sixty ninety
days.

New entrants to a group shall be accepted for coverage by
the small employer carrier without any restrictions or
limitations on coverage related to the risk
characteristics of the employees or their dependents,
except that a carrier may exclude coverage for preexisting
medical conditions, consistent with the provisions
provided in subsection 3 of North Dakota Century Code
section 26.1-36.3-06.

A small employer carrier may assess a risk load to the
premium rate associated with a new entrant, consistent
with the requirements of North Dakota Century Code section
26.1-36.3-04. The risk load shall be the same risk load
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4.

a.

charged to the small employer group immediately prior to
acceptance of the new entrant into the group.

(1)

(2)

The

In the case of an eligible employee or dependent of
an eligible employee who, prior to the effective date
of subsection 1 of North Dakota Century Code section
26.1-36.3-06, was excluded from coverage or denied
coverage by a small employer carrier in the process
of providing a health benefit plan to an eligible
small employer, as defined in subdivision ¢ of
subsection 1 of North Dakota Century Code section
26.1-36.3-06, the small employer carrier shall
provide an opportunity for the eligible employee or
dependent of such eligible employee to enroll in the
health benefit plan currently held by the small
employer.

A small employer carrier may require an individual
who requests enrollment under this subsection to sign
a statement indicating that such individual sought
coverage under the group contract other than as a
late enrollee and that the coverage was not offered
to the individual.

opportunity to enroll must meet the following

requirements:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

The opportunity to enroll shall begin September 1,
1994, and shall last for a period of at Tleast three
months.

Eligible employees and dependents of eligible
employees who are provided an opportunity to enroll
pursuant to this subsection shall be treated as new
entrants. Premium rates related to such individuals
shall be set in accordance with subsection 3.

The terms of coverage offered to an individual
described in paragraph 1 of subdivision a may exclude
coverage for preexisting medical conditions if the
health benefit plan currently held by the small
employer contains such an exclusion, provided that
the exclusion period shall be reduced by the number
of days between the date the individual was excluded
or denied coverage and the date coverage is provided
to the individual pursuant to this subsection.

A small employer carrier shall provide written notice
at least forty-five days prior to the opportunity to
enroll provided in paragraph 1 of subdivision a to
each small employer insured under a health benefit
plan offered by such carrier. The notice shall
clearly describe the rights granted under this
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subsection to employees and dependents who were
previously excluded from or denied coverage and the
process for enrollment of such individuals in the
employer's health benefit plan.

History: Effective August 1, 1994; amended effective December 1, 1997;
August 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 26.1-01-08

Law Implemented: NDCC 26.1-36.3
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STAFF COMMENT: Chapter 45-06-13 contains all new material and is
not underscored so as to improve readability.

CHAPTER 45-06-13
PROVIDER-SPONSORED ORGANIZATIONS

Section

45-06-13-01 Definitions

45-06-13-02 General

45-06-13-03 Action

45-06~13-04 Minimum Net Worth Requirements
45-06-13-05 Financial Plan Requirements
45-06-13-06 Liquidity

45-06-13-07 Deposits

45-06-13-08 Guarantees

45-06-13-01. Definitions.

1.

"Commissioner" means the 1insurance commissioner of North
Dakota.

“Department" means ihe North Dakota insurance department.

"Health care services" means the following medically necessary
services: preventive care, emergency care, inpatient and
outpatient hospital and physician care, diagnostic laboratory,
and diagnostic and therapeutic radiological services.

"Medicare+choice program" means the criteria developed by the
Balanced Budget Act of 1997 [Pub. L. 105-33; 111 Stat. 312; 42
U.S.C. 1345 et seq.], whereby risk-bearing organizations are
permitted to offer health insurance or health benefits
coverage to medicare-eligible enrollees through a
medicare+choice plan.

"Provider" means any physician, hospital, or other person
licensed or otherwise authorized to furnish health care
services.

"Provider-sponsored organization" means a public or private
entity that:

a. Is established or organized, and operated, by a health
care provider, or group of affiliated health care
providers;

b. Provides a substantial proportion of the health care items

and services under the medicare+choice program directly
through the provider or affiliated group of providers; and
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c. With respect to which the affiliated providers share,
directly or indirectly, substantial financial risk with
respect to the provision of such items and services and
have at least a majority financial interest in the entity.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 26.1-01-07.6
Law Implemented: NDCC 26.1-01-07.6

45-06-13-02. General. The commissioner shall issue a certificate
of authority for the purpose of providing health care to medicare
enrollees only to a provider-sponsored organization that meets each
requirement for the issuance of a certificate of authority as a health
maintenance organization as in North Dakota Century Code chapter
26.1-18.1 and other applicable insurance laws and regulations of this
state except when preempted by federal law.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 26.1-01-07.6
Law Implemented: NDCC 26.1-01-07.6

45-06-13-03. Action. The department shall take action on an
application required in section 45-06-13-02 within ninety days of the
date of receipt of a substantially complete application.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 26.1-01-07.6
Law Implemented: NDCC 26.1-01-07.6

45-06-13-04. Minimum net worth requirements. Prior to the
issuance of a certificate of authority, a provider-sponsored
organization must have a minimum net worth amount of:

1. At least one million five hundred thousand dollars except as
provided in subsection 2.

2. No 1less than one million dollars based on evidence from the
organization's financial plan demonstrating to the
department's satisfaction that the organization has available
to it an administrative infrastructure that the department
considers appropriate to reduce, control, or eliminate startup
administrative costs.

a. After the effective date of a provider-sponsored
organization's certificate of authority, a
provider-sponsored organization shall maintain a minimum
net worth amount equal to the greater of:

(1) One million dollars;
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(2)

b. The

Two percent of annual premium revenues as reported on
the most recent annual financial statement filed with
the department for up to and including the first one
hundred fifty million dollars of annual premiums and
one percent of annual premium revenues on premiums in
excess of one hundred fifty million dollars;

An amount equal to the sum of three months of
uncovered health care expenditures as reported on the
most recent financial statement filed with the
department; or

Using the most recent annual financial statement
filed with the department, an amount equal to the sum
of:

(a) Eight percent of annual health care expenditures
paid on a noncapitated basis to nonaffiliated
providers;

(b) Four percent of annual health care expenditures
paid on a capitated basis to nonaffiliated
providers plus annual health care expenditures
paid on a noncapitated basis to affiliated
providers; and

(c) Annual health care expenditures that are paid on
a capitated basis to affiliated providers are
not included in the calculation of the net worth
requirement under subsection 1 and this
paragraph.

minimum net worth amount shall be calculated as

follows:

(1)

(2)

Cash requirement:

(a) At the time of the application for a certificate
of authority, the provider-sponsored
organization shall maintain at least seven
hundred fifty thousand dollars of the minimum
net worth amount in cash or cash equivalents.

(b) After the effective date of a provider-sponsored
organization's certificate of authority, a
provider-sponsored organization shall maintain
the greater of seven hundred fifty thousand
dollars or forty percent of the minimum net
worth amount in cash or cash equivalents.

Intangible assets. An organization may include

intangible assets, the value of which 1is based on
generally accepted accounting principles, in the
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(3)

(4)

(5)

minimum net worth amount calculation subject to the
following limitations:

(a) At the time of application:

[1] Up to twenty percent of the minimum net
worth amount, provided at least one million
dollars of the minimum net worth amount is
met through cash or cash equivalents; or

[2] Up to ten percent of the minimum net worth
amount, if less than one million dollars of
the minimum net worth is met through cash
or cash equivalents, or if the department
has used its discretion under this
subsection.

(b) From the effective date of the
provider-sponsored organization's certificate of
authority:

[1] Up to twenty percent of the minimum net
worth amount if the greater of one million
dollars or sixty-seven percent of the
minimum net worth is met by cash or cash
equivalents; or

[2] Up to ten percent of the minimum net worth
amount if the greater of one million
dollars or sixty-seven percent of the
minimum net worth amount is not met by cash
or cash equivalents.

Health care delivery assets. Subject to the other
provisions of this section, a provider-sponsored
organization may apply one hundred percent of the
generally accepted accounting principles depreciated
value of health care delivery assets to satisfy the
minimum net worth amount.

Other assets. A provider-sponsored organization may
apply other assets not used in the delivery care
provided that those assets are valued according to
statutory accounting practices as defined by the
department.

Subordinated debts and subordinated 1liabilities.
Fully subordinated debt and subordinated T1iabilities
are excluded from the minimum net worth amount
calculation.
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History:

(6) Deferred acquisition costs. Deferred acquisition
cos?s are excluded from the calculation of the
minimum net worth amount.

Effective August 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 26.1-01-07.6
Law Implemented: NDCC 26.1-01-87.6

45-06-13-05. Financial plan requirements.

1.

General rule. At the time of application under section
45-06-13-03, an applicant must submit a financial ©plan
acceptable to the department.

A financial plan must include:

a. A detailed marketing plan;

b. Statements of revenue and expense on an accrual basis;
c. Statements of sources and uses of funds;

d. Balance sheets;

e. Detailed justifications and assumptions in support of the
financial plan including, when appropriate, certification
of reserves and actuarial 1liabilities by a qualified
health maintenance organization actuary; and

f. If applicable, statements of the availability of financial
resources to meet projected losses.

Period covered by the plan. A financial plan shall:

a. Cover the first twelve months after the estimated
effective date of a provider-sponsored organization's
medicare+choice contract; or

b. If the provider-sponsored organization is projecting
losses, cover twelve months beyond the end of the period
for which losses are projected.

Funding for projected losses. Except for the use of
guarantees, letters of credit, and other means as provided in
section 45-06-13-08, an organization shall have the resources
for meeting projected losses on its balance sheet in cash or a
form that 1is convertible to cash in a timely manner, in
accordance with the provider-sponsored organization's
financial plan.
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Guarantees and projected losses. Guarantees will be an
acceptable resource to fund projected losses, provided that a
provider-sponsored organization:

a. Meets the department's requirements for guarantors and

gugrantee documents as specified in section 45-06-13-08;
an

b. Obtains from the guarantor cash or cash equivalents to
fund the projected losses timely, as follows:

(1) Prior to the effective date of a provider-sponsored
organization's medicare+choice contract, the amount
of the projected losses for the first two quarters;

(2) During the first quarter and prior to the beginning
of the second quarter of a provider-sponsored
organization's medicare+choice contract, the amount
of projected losses through the end of the third
quarter; and

(3) During the second quarter and prior to the beginning
of the third quarter of a provider-sponsored
organization's medicare+choice contract, the amount
of projected losses through the end of the fourth
quarter.

c. If the guarantor complies with the requirements in
subdivision b, the provider-sponsored organization, in the
third quarter, may notify the department of its intent to
reduce the period of advance funding of projected Tlosses.
The department shall notify the provider-sponsored
organization within sixty days of receiving the
provider-sponsored organization's request if the requested
reduction in the period of advance funding will not be
accepted.

d. If the guarantee requirements in subdivision b are not
met, the department may take appropriate action, such as
requiring funding of projected losses through means other
than a guarantee. The department retains discretion to
require other methods or timing of funding, considering
factors such as the financial condition of the guarantor
and the accuracy of the financial plan.

Letters of credit. Letters of credit are an acceptable
resource to fund projected losses, provided they are
irrevocable, unconditional, and satisfactory to the
department. They shall be capable of being promptly paid upon
presentation of a sight draft under the letters of credit
without further reference to any other agreement, document, or
entity.
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History:

Other means. If satisfactory to the department, and for
periods beginning one year after the effective date of a
provider-sponsored organization's medicare+choice contract, a
provider-sponsored organization may use the following to fund
projected losses:

a. Lines of credit from regulated financial institutions;
b. Legally binding agreements for capital contributions; or

c. Legally binding agreements of a similar quality and
reliability as permitted in subdivisions a and b.

Application of guarantees, letters of credit, or other means
of funding projected losses. Notwithstanding any other
provision of this section, a provider-sponsored organization
may use guarantees, letters of credit, and, beginning one year
after the effective date of a provider-sponsored
organization's medicare+choice contract, other means of
funding projected losses, but only in a combination or
sequence that the department considers appropriate.

Effective August 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 26.1-01-07.6
Law Implemented: NDCC 26.1-01-07.6

45-06-13-06. Liquidity.

1.

A provider-sponsored organization shall have sufficient cash
flow to meet its financial obligations as they become due and
payable.

To determine whether the provider-sponsored organization meets
the requirement in subsection 1, the department will examine
the following:

a. The provider-sponsored organization's timelilness in
meeting current obligations;

b. The extent to which the provider-sponsored organization's
current ratio of assets to 1iabilities is maintained at a
one to one ratio including whether there is a declining
trend in the current ratio over time; and

c. The availability of outside financial resources to the
provider-sponsored organization.

If the department determines that a provider-sponsored
organization fails to meet the requirement in subdivision a of
subsection 2, the department will require the
provider-sponsored organization to initiate corrective action
and pay all overdue obligations.
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4, If the department determines that a provider-sponsored
organization fails to meet the requirement of subdivision b of

subsgction 2, the department will require the
provider-sponsored organization to initiate corrective action
to:

a. Change the distribution of its assets;
b. Reduce its 1iabilities; or

c. Make alternative arrangements to secure additional funding
to restore the provider-sponsored organization's current
ratio to one to one.

5. If the department determines that a provider-sponsored
organization fails to meet the requirement of subdivision c of
subsection 2, the department will require the
provider-sponsored organization to obtain funding from
alternative financial resources.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 26.1-01-07.6
Law Implemented: NDCC 26.1-01-07.6

45-06-13-07. Deposits.
1. 1Insolvency deposit.

a. At the time of application, an organization shall deposit
one hundred thousand dollars in cash or securities, or any
combination thereof, into an account in a manner that is
acceptable to the department.

b. The deposit must be restricted to use in the event of
insolvency to help assure continuation of services or pay
costs associated with receivership or liquidation.

c. At the time of the provider-sponsored organization's
application for a certification of authority, and,
thereafter, upon the department's request, a
provider-sponsored organization shall provide the
department with proof of the insolvency deposit, such
proof to be in a form that the department considers
appropriate.

2. Uncovered expenditures deposit.
a. If at any time uncovered expenditures exceed ten percent
of a provider-sponsored organization's total health care

expenditures, then the provider-sponsored orgaqization
must place an uncovered expenditures deposit into an

178



History:

account with any organization or trustee that is
acceptable to the department.

b. The deposit must at all times have fair market value of an
amount that is one hundred twenty percent of the
provider-sponsored organization's outstanding 1iability
for uncovered expenditures for enrollees, including
incurred, but not reported, claims.

c. The deposit must be calculated as of the first day of each
month required and maintained for the remainder of each
month required.

d. If a provider-sponsored organization is not otherwise
required to file a quarterly report, it must file a report
within forty-five days of the end of the calendar quarter
with information sufficient to demonstrate compliance with
this section.

e. The deposit required under this section is restricted and
in trust for the department's use to protect the interests
of the provider-sponsored organization's medicare
enrollees and to pay the «costs associated with
administering the insolvency. It may be used only as
provided under this section.

Deposit as asset. A provider-sponsored organization may use
the deposits required under subsections 1 and 2 to satisfy the
provider-sponsored organization's minimum net worth amount
required under section 45-06-13-04.

Income. All income from the deposits or trust accounts
required under subsections 1 and 2 is considered assets of the
provider-sponsored organization. Upon the department's
approval, the income from the deposits may be withdrawn.

Withdrawal. On prior written approval from the department, a
provider-sponsored organization that has made a deposit under
subsection 1 or 2may withdraw that deposit or any part thereof
if:

a. A substitute deposit of cash or securities of equal amount
and value is made;

b. The fair market value exceeds the amount of the required
deposit; or

c. The required deposit under subsection 1 or 2 is reduced or
eliminated.

Effective August 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 26.1-01-07.6
Law Implemented: NDCC 26.1-01-07.6
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45-06-13-08. Guarantees.

1.

General policy. A provider-sponsored organization, or the
legal entity of which the provider-sponsored organization is a
component, may apply to the department to use the financial
resources of a guarantor for the purpose of meeting the
requirements in section 45-06-13-05. The department has the
discretion to approve or deny approval of the use of a
guarantor.

Request to use a guarantor. To apply to use the financial
resources of a guarantor, a provider-sponsored organization
must submit to the department the following material:

a. Documentation that the guarantor meets the requirements
for a guarantor under subsection 3; and

b. The guarantor's independently audited financial statements
for the current year-to-date and for the two most recent
fiscal years. The financial statements must include the
guarantor's balance sheets, the profit and Tloss
statements, and cash flow statements.

Requirements for guarantor. To serve as a guarantor, an
organization must meet the following requirements:

a. Be a legal entity authorized to conduct business within a
state of the United States.

b. Not be under federal or state bankruptcy or rehabilitation
proceedings.

c. Have a net worth, not including other guarantees,
intangibles, and restricted reserves, equal to three times
the amount of the provider-sponsored organization
guarantee, '

d. If the guarantor is regulated by a state insurance
commissioner, or other state official with authority for
risk-bearing entities, it must meet the net worth
requirement in subdivision ¢ with all guarantees and all
jnvestments in and loans to organizations covered by
guarantees excluded from its assets.

e. If the guarantor is not regulated by a state insurance
commissioner or other similar state official, it must meet
the net worth requirement in subdivision ¢ with all
guarantees and all investments in and loans to
organizations covered by a guarantee and to related
parties, subsidiaries, and affiliates excluded from its
assets.
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Guarantee document. If the guarantee request is approved, a
provider-sponsored organization must submit to the department
a written guarantee document signed by an appropriate
authority of the guarantor. The guarantee document must
contain the following provisions:

a. State the financial obligation covered by the guarantee;

b. Agree to unconditionally fulfill the financial obligation
covered by the guarantee;

c. Agree not to subordinate the guarantee to any other claim
on the resources of the guarantor;

d. Declare that the guarantor must act on a timely basis, in
any case not more than five business days, to satisfy the
financial obligation covered by the guarantee; and

e. Meet other conditions as the department may establish from
time to time.

Reporting requirement. A provider-sponsored organization
shall submit to the department the current internal financial
statements and annual financial statements of the guarantor
according to the schedule, manner, and form that the
department requests.

Modification, substitution, and termination of a guarantee. A
provider-sponsored organization may not modify, substitute, or
terminate a guarantee unless the provider-sponsored
organization:

a. Requests the department's approval at least ninety days
before the proposed effective date of the modification,
substitution, or termination;

b. Demonstrates to the department's satisfaction that the
modification, substitution, or termination will not result
in insolvency of the provider-sponsored organization; and

c. Demonstrates how the provider-sponsored organization will
meet the requirements of this section.

Nullification. If at any time the guarantor or the guarantee
ceases to meet the requirements of this section, the
department shall notify the provider-sponsored organization
that it ceases to recognize the guarantee document. In the
event of this nullification, a provider-sponsored organization
shall:

a. Meet the applicable requirements of this section within
fifteen business days; and
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b. If required by the department, meet a portion of the
applicable requirements in less than the time period
granted in subdivision a.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 26.1-01-07.6
Law Implemented: NDCC 26.1-01-07.6
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CHAPTER 45-10-062

45-10-02-04. Notification of release procedures. Onree--the
administrater-has-reeeived Upon receiving notice of a release from the
state department written--netificatien--ef--a--release of health, the
administrator shall urdertake-er-eause-te-Be--undertaken--the--follewing
precedures-as-apptieabie:

1. Enter-the-release-infoermatien-inte-the-elaim-register:

2: Verify that the tank ewner-er-eperater-has-registered-the-tank
iRvelved--in--the--release;--and--ati--ether--tanks--ewned--or
operated:----Yerification---must--be--made--by--comparing--the
registration-1ist-and-the-eriginal-registration-form--en--file
with--the--administrater and all other tanks owned or operated
by the operator are registered with the fund.

2. Record the release information in the claim register.

3. If the owner or operator has not registered all of the tanks
owned or operated by the operator, send a letter of denial to
inferm the owner or operator ef-the-requirements with a carbon
copy to the state department of health and close the elaim
file.

4. If the-tank-is all tanks are registered, eat? notify the owner
to-explatn-hew-the-fund--werks of the fund's claim filing
procedures and send the tank owner or operator the fund's tank
release guidelines with an application for reimbursement.
Uper--receipt--of-the-completed-application;-the-administrater
shal}-investigate-the-release-threugh-the-use-of--ene--of--the
follewing:

as--A-furd-employees
B:--Empley-an-independent-adijusters-er
€---Ceordinate-with-an-iAsHrance-eompany-

§:--Review--and--summarize--a}}--final--elaims--reperts--with--the
advisery-beard:

6:--Reimburse-the-ewner-or-eperater-er-make-payment-te-the-ewner's
er-eperateris-assigned-representatives

History: Effective November 25, 1991; amended effective June 1, 1994;
August 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02; S.L. 1991, ch. 299, § 5

Law Implemented: S.L. 1991, ch. 299, §§ 10, 19

183



45-10-02-05. Procedures for investigation of claims.

1:--Appe?ntment--ef--e%a#ms—-PepFesenta%#ve:--}f-the-adm#ﬁistpatep
appe%nt§-a—elaims-FepPesentative-te-#nvest%gate--the--Pe}ease;
the-elaims-representativels-funetions-are-as-foliowss

ar--Ensure-the-fairpess-ef-eleanup-eosts;-making-sure-they-are
Re€essarys-reasonable;-and-net-exeessives

br---Obtain--the--adjusteris-first-report-within-twenty-days-oef
the-adijusteris-receipt-of-the-claims

€---The---ad3justeris---subseguent--pregress--reperts--must--be
submitted-to-the-fund-at-teast-every-thirty-dayss

d:-—Subm#%-a41-Pequ+Ped-deeuments-te-the-fund:

er--Funetion--as--a--1iaisen-between-the-owner-or-eperater-and
ali-ether-parties-invelved-in-the-cleanup~eperations

2:--Qualifications--ef--the--claims--representatives---fhe--etaims
representative-must-have--a--general--knrewledge--of--insurance
peliey--coverages--and--exelusions-and-must-alse-have-at-least
three-years-ef-experienee-as--an--investigater--of--eltaims--or
eguivalent-experienee-to-be-evaluated-by-the-administraters

3:--Investigation--precedures In each release investigation, the
e}aims-representative administrator shall perferm-each-ef--the
foellowing-duties-as-appticable:

Examine the location of the release.

w
]
I

b: 2. Interview persons te--elieit--infermation-regarding with
knowledge of the release.

m
-t
lw

Examine a}} records and documentation concerning the
release, including documentation of the corrective action
taken and a1l expenses incurred.

dr 4. Prepare a written report eereerning determining the
validity of the claim;-inetuding-an-estimate--of--the and
the estimated eligible cleanup costs.

er 5. Complete any--and--at} other tasks er-duties-speeified-by
the-administrater as required.

History: Effective November 25, 1991; amended effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02; S.L. 1991, ch. 299, § 5
Law Implemented: S.L. 1991, ch. 299, §§ 18, 20, 23

45-10-02-06. Paymert Reimbursement.
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Ne--payment--may-be-made-frem-the-fund-unless-the-subjeet-tank
has-beer-preperly-registered-and--the--registration--fee--paid
prier--te--the--diseovery--ef--the--retease: The fund will
reimburse only reasonable and necessary cleanup expenses as
determined by the administrator in consultation with the state
department of health and only if all tanks are properly
registered prior to the discovery of the release.

No payment will be made from the fund unless a completed
application form has been received by the administrator. The
application must contain at least the following information:
a. Name and address of the owner or operator.

b. Street or highway description of the petroleum release
Tocation.

c. The legal description of the release location.

d. The substance released.

e. The date the release was discovered.

f. Name, address, and telephone number of the contact person.
g. A narrative description of the release.
Payment--must--be-made-fer-eligible-eosts-as-determined-by-the
administrater:--The-fund-must--make--payment--te--an--etigible
ewRer--or--eperater-whese-tanks-were-preperty-registered-prier
to-diseovery-of-the-release-for-ninety-perecent-of-the-eligibie
eosts-between-five-thousand-de}lars-and-ene-hundred-fifty-five
theusand--de}lars--fer---corrective---action---inetuding---the
investigatien;--and--one--hundred--pereent--of--the--eosts--of
gorrective-action--between--ene--hundred--fifty-five--thousand
de}lars-and-ene-millien-doellars-per-eccurrence-and-twe-mitiien
do}lars-in-the-annual-aggregates

Eligible eests expenses for a corrective action includes;-but
are-ret-}imited-te; the following:

a. Labor.

b. Testing.

c. Use of machinery.

d. Materials and supplies.
e. Professional services.

f. €ests Expenses incurred by order of federal, state, or
local government.
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Any other eests expenses the administrator and the
advisory board deem to be reasonable and necessary to

remedy cleanup of the release and satisfy liability to any
third party.

Consultant fees if authorized by the North Dakota state
department of health or other federal or state agency
approving the cleanup procedures.

The following will not be considered eligible eests expenses
under this regulation:

a‘

The cost of replacement, repair, and maintenance of
affected tanks and associated piping.

Pumping out of any product, including water, from any
tanks which need to be removed.

The cost of upgrading existing affected tanks and
associated piping.

The Toss of income, profits, or petroleum product.
Decreased property value.

Bodily injuries or property damages except for injuries or
damages suffered by third parties.

Attorney's fees.

Costs associated with preparing, filing, and prosecuting
an application for reimbursement or assistance under this
regulation.

The costs of making improvements to the facility beyond
those that are required for corrective action.

Any cleanup costs resu1ting from negligence or misconduct
on the part of the owner or operator.

Costs in excess of those considered reasonable by the
fund.

Fines or penalties imposed by order of federal, state, or
local government.

Finance charges, interest charges, or late payment
charges.

in--erder--te To determine what expenses are “reasonable® and
necessary, the owner or operator has--te must bid the
excavation and consultant work eut. When-the The lowest er

best bid is-aeeepted; that meets the requirements of the state
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department of health will be deemed by the fund to be the
reasonable cost for that project. The bid nreeds--te must be
breken--eut--inte--uRtt--eosts--for-each-piece-of-equipment-or
taberer:--Thts-ean-be-dene-By-the-ewner-er-eperater-requesting
btds submitted according to the fund's excavation and
consultant worksheets. Any-additienat Additional work over
and above the original bid will be reimbursed according to
unit costs on the original bid.

F:--IR--making--the--determination-of-the-ameunt-and-type-ef-€osts
eligible-fer-payment-frem-the-fund;--the--admintstrater--shati
review-the-written-repoert-of-the-elaims-representatives;-if-ene
ts--eontracted;--and--at}--ether--correspendence--and--expense
documentation--finetuding--itemized--b111s};--and--shati--aise
review-the-final-repert-frem-the-department:

8: 6. At-the-diseretion-ef-the The administrator and-after-review-by
the-advisery-beard;-the--furd may provide partial payments
prior to the final determination of the amount of the loss, if
it is determined that the cleanup is proceeding according to
the proposed workplan of the state department of health for
the site assessment as--reguired--By--the--department. The
payment may be made to the owner or operator or the owner's or
operator's assigned representative if the appropriate
assignment form;--as--appreved--By-the-fund; is eempleted-and
submitted to the fumrd administrator with appropriate inveiees;
reeceipts;-and-caneeted-eheeks documentation verifying that the
work has been completed by the assignee.

9: 7. A1l claims for payment are subject to the availability of
funds in the petroleum tank release compensation fund.

19: 8. Subregatien: Prior to payment for any loss, the owner or
operator shall subrogate to the fund all rights, claims, and
interest which the owner or operator has or may have against
any party, person, persons, property, corporation, or other
entity Tliable for the subject loss, and shall authorize the
fund to sue, compromise, or settle in the name of the owner or
operator or otherwise, all such claims. The subrogation
agreement required by this section must be prescribed and
produced by the administrator.

11: 9. Ne--payment Reimbursement will be made-unti} considered when
the owner or operator has submitted complete excavation or
consultant worksheets along with legible copies of invoices,
providing a description of:

a. Any-werk The work performed.

b. Whe The party who performed the work.

c. Where The location where the work was performed.
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d. The dates date the work was performed.
e. The unit cost.

f. The total ameurt.

12: 10. The owner or operator must submit, prior to any payment,
evidence that the amounts shown on the invoices for which the
payment is requested were either paid in full by the owner or
operator or, if the owner or operator has assigned the right
to receive payment from the fund, that a contractor hired by
the-ewner-er-eperater has expended time and materials for
which payment must be made. 7Fhe-evidenee-must-be-acecompanied
by-etther: This must include documentation that the work has
been completed by the assignee.

ar--Busiress-receipts-indicating-payments-receiveds
B:--€aneeled-eheeks:

€---The--ecertification--of--a-certified-public-acecountant-that
the-expenses-for-whieh--reimbursement--+s--requested--have
been-patd-in-futlz-er

d---URpaitd--inveiees--frem-a-contractor-for-time-and-materials
expended-breken-eut-by-uRit-€65¢5+

$3: 11. Prior to payment, the furd administrator must be satisfied
that the corrective action taken has met all state, federal,
and Tlocal laws or regulations eereerring-sueh-a-eleanup and
that the corrective action has adeguate}y--addressed--the
release--in-terms-ef satisfied public health, welfare, and the
envireRrment environmental concerns.

History: Effective November 25, 1991; amended effective June 1, 1994;
August 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02; S.L. 1991, ch. 299, § 5

Law Implemented: S.L. 1991, ch. 299, §§ 18, 20, 23, 24

45-10-02-06.1. Reimbursement disputes. If the fund administrator
denies or reduces payment to a tank owner or operator, the tank owner
may request a review by the advisory board by filing a written request
and supporting documentation with both the administrator and the
advisory board within thirty days of receiving a proof of loss. The
advisory board shall issue a written opinion concerning the issues in
dispute within thirty days of receiving the written notice and
supporting documentation. The opinion shall be advisory only. If after
review by the advisory board a dispute still exists between the fund
administrator and the tank owner or operator, the tank owner or operator
may request an administrative hearing.

History: Effective August 1, 2000.
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General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02; S.L. 1991, ch. 299, § 5
Law Implemented: S.L. 1991, ch. 299

45-10-02-08. Advisory board. The administrator shall keep advise
the board apprised of the fund's general operations:---Prier--te--making
any--payment;--the-administrater-shall and review al? claims against-the
fund-with-the-advisery--beard either through written correspondence,
telephone conference calls, or board meetings.

History: Effective November 25, 1991; amended effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02; S.L. 1991, ch. 299, § 5
Law Implemented: S.L. 1991, ch. 299, § 3
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JULY 2000

CHAPTER 51-01-01

51-01-01-01. Organization of milk marketing board.

1.

History and purpose. The 1967 legislative assembly passed
milk stabilization legislation which is codified as North
Dakota Century Code chapter 4-18.1. This chapter requires the
governor to appoint a milk marketing board. The purpose of
the chapter 1is to protect and promote the public welfare and
to eliminate unfair and demoralizing trade practices in the
milk industry.

Board membership. The board consists of five members
appointed by the governor. One member is a dairy farmer, one
member 1is a processor, one member is a retailer, and two
members are consumers and are not otherwise engaged in the
milk business. Board members serve five-year terms, with one
term expiring each year. The board chooses one of its members
as a chairman who holds office for one year. Three members of
the board constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

Director. The director is the chief executive officer of the
board and is the legal custodian of all papers, records, and
property. The director is responsible for the administration
of the board's activities and also serves as financial officer
of the board. The director is authorized to accept and
receive all money paid to the board.

Funds and expenditures. To obtain funds for administration of
the chapter, the board levies an assessment upon all Tlicensed
processors eof-ret-mere-than-twelve-cents-per-hundredweight on
milk or milk equivalents used for the manufacture of milk
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products and frozen dairy products sold in North Dakota. All
such assessments are deposited by the board in the state
treasury 1in a special revolving fund known as the "milk
marketing fund". A1l expenditures under the chapter are paid
out of the milk marketing fund. A1l money in the milk
marketing fund is appropriated on a continuing basis to the
board for carrying out the purposes of the chapter.

5. Board office and hours. The office of the North Dakota milk
marketing board is in Bismarck, North Dakota, and is open on
each business day from eight a.m. until twelve noon and
one p.m. to five p.m.

6. Communications. All communications with the board may be
addressed to the director:

Director

North Dakota Milk Marketing Board
206-1/2-Nerth-Sixth-Street;-Nos-8
410 East Thayer Avenue, No. 2
Bismarck, ND ©8501-4465 58501-4049
701-328-9588

History: Amended effective April 1, 1994; September 1, 1995; July 1,
2000.

General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02.1
Law Implemented: NDCC 28-32-02.1
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CHAPTER 51-02-02

51-02-02-01. Discounts, rebates, or allowances. The giving of
discounts, rebates, or allowances in connection with the sale of milk
products er--frezen--dairy--preducts uniess such discounts, rebates, or
allowances are authorized by the board in accordance with subsection 5
of North Dakota Century Code section 4-18.1-07 is prohibited. Nothing
contained in this chapter shall be construed to prohibit the issuing of
trading stamps by retailers in numbers customary in normal trade, but no
trading stamp bonuses shall be given for milk products er--frezen--dairy
preducts.

History: Amended effective July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 4-18.1-01, 4-18.1-11
Law Implemented: NDCC 4-18.1-11
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CHAPTER 51-03-02

03-02-06. Prices to be paid dairy farmers and others -
differential, and multiple component pricing. Publication--of

thts--seetion--would--be-inexpedient-because-it-ehanges-frequently-on-an
emergeney-basiss

Copies-ef-this-section-may-be-ebtained-by-forwarding-a-request-tos

Exeeutive-Seeretary
Nerth-Daketa-Milk-Stabilizatien-Beard
206-1/2-North-Sixth-Street
Bismareks;-ND-58585

1. Class I (market area 1). Commencing July 1, 2000, the minimum
price to be paid by milk processors to dairy farmers and
others coming within the scope of this plan f.o.b. the
processor's plant for milk which is ultimately utilized 1in
class I (milk products) shall be the hundredweight price as
established by the formula below. However, the minimum price
to be paid by milk processors to dairy farmers and others
coming within the scope of this plan f.o.b. the processor's
plant for milk which is ultimately utilized in class I (milk
products) shall not be less than $13.76 per hundredweight.

The following formula shall be used when the federal market
order no. 30 class I dairy farmer hundredweight price
increases or decreases to the next higher or lower federal
market order no. 30 class I dairy farmer hundredweight trip
point. Minimum North Dakota class I dairy farmer and
wholesale and retail prices to be adjusted by using the
current federal market order no. 30 class I dairy farmer price
on_the formula below. Move to the next higher increment and
utilize the North Dakota minimum class I dairy farmer price as
listed on the formula below. Adjustments, if required, will

be monthly.

Market Area 1

Federal Market Order North Dakota Minimum Wholesale
No. 30 Class I Minimum Class I Price Per 1/2 Gallon
Dairy Farmer Price Dairy Farmer Price 2 Percent Milk

18.59 19.22 1.541

18.38 19.01 1.531

18.17 18.80 1.521

17.96 18.59 1.511

17.75 18.38 1.501

17.54 18.17 1.491

17.33 17.96 1.481

17.12 17.75 1.471

16.91 17.54 1.461
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16.70 17.33 1.451

16.49 17.12 1.441

16.28 16.91 1.431

16.07 16.70 1.421

15.86 16.49 1.411

15.65 16.28 1.401

15.44 16.07 1.391

15.23 15.86 1.381

15.02 15.65 1.371

14.81 15.44 1.361

14.60 15.23 1.351

14.39 15.02 1.341

14.18 14.81 1.331

13.97 14.60 1.321

13.76 14.39 1.311

13.55 14.18 1.301

13.34 13.97 1.291

13.13 13.76 Base 1.281
Based on $.21 per hundredweight increments and butterfat
differential of $.053.

Differentials above or below the midpoint of 3.5 percent will
be those used in federal market order no. 30.

Adjustments in wholesale and retail prices for other sized
containers should also increase or decrease, or both,
proportionally to the one-half gallon use.

2. Class II. Commencing July 1, 2000, the minimum price to be
paid by milk processors to dairy farmers and others, coming
within the scope of this stabilization plan f.o.b. the
processor's plant after the effective date of this plan for
milk which is ultimately utilized in class II, shall be the
class II price per hundredweight for federal market order
no. 30, adjusted to a 3.5 percent butterfat basis. Butterfat
differentials above or below the midpoint of 3.5 percent will
be those used in federal market order no. 30.

3. Class III. Commencing July 1, 2000, the minimum price to be

paid by milk processors to dairy farmers and others coming
within the scope of this stabilization plan f.o.b. the
processor's plant for milk, which is ultimately utilized in
class 111, except that used in the manufacture of butter,
shall be priced under a "multiple component pricing" system to
include protein, other solids, and somatic cell count. The
respective prices for these components, in a given month, and
computations thereon will be those used by federal market
order no. 30. Two additional components, butterfat and
producer price differential, will use as a basis the class III
price per hundredweight for federal market order no. 30 less a
four percent administrative and transportation allowance to
the nearest full cent adjusted to a 3.5 percent butterfat
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basis. Butterfat differentials above or below the midpoint of
3.5 percent will be those used in federal market order no. 30.
Commencing July 1, 2000, the minimum price to be paid by milk
processors to dairy farmers and others coming within the scope
of this stabilization plan, f.o.b. the processor's plant for
milk and cream which is ultimately used in class III for the
manufacture of butter, shall be the monthly national
agricultural statistical service (NASS) survey butter price
less a $.05 per pound administrative and transportation
allowance rounded to the nearest cent.

If a processing plant pays to its dairy farmers and others a
premium above the class III minimum raw milk price as
established herein, such price including the premium, shall
become the minimum class III raw milk price for audit purposes
for said plant, and said plant shall not be entitled to dilute
the class I and class II raw milk prices for payment of said
premiums on said class III raw milk.

4. The foregoing class I, II, and III dairy farmer prices shall
be automatically adjusted each month, without further
amendment to this stabilization plan based upon the prices
ordered for federal market order no. 30.

History: Amended effective July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 4-18.1-03, 4-18.1-07, 4-18.1-20, 28-32-03.1(3)
Law Implemented: NDCC 4-18.1-07

51-03-02-10. Minimum wholesale and retail prices for class I milk
products - Market area 1. Publication of this section would be
inexpedient because it changes frequently on an emergency basis.

Copies of this section may be obtained by forwarding a request to:

Exeeutive-Seeretary Director
North Dakota Milk Marketing Board
410 East Thayer Avenue, # No. 2
Bismarck, ND 58501-4049

51-03-02-11. Minimum wholesale and retail prices for class II
milk products - Market area 1. Publication of this section would be
inexpedient because it changes frequently on an emergency basis.

Copies of this section may be obtained by forwarding a request to:
Exeeutive-Seeretary Director
North Dakota Milk Marketing Board

410 East Thayer Avenue, # No. 2
Bismarck, ND 58501-4049
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51-03-02-12.  Minimum wholesale prices for shake and soft serve
mix. Publication of this section would be inexpedient because it
changes frequently on an emergency basis.

Copies of this section may be obtained by forwarding a request to:

Exeeutive-Seeretary Director
North Dakota Milk Marketing Board
410 East Thayer Avenue, # No. 2
Bismarck, ND 58501-4049

51-03-02-12.2. Minimum dock pickup provisions - Market area 1.
Market area 1 will have a minimum dock pickup price list as determined
by subsection 11 of twelve percent or twenty-three percent off the
respective market areas minimum established wholesale price list (except
cultured products) 1less an additional two percent prompt payment.
Prices will change as per section 51-03-02-06. The following
stipulations apply to receive this dock price:

1. "Dock" means dock at the plant of a processor where milk
products are actually processed and packaged.

2. Hauling of milk products must be done with refrigerated truck
equipment that is contracted with a third party or 1is owned
and operated or a lease purchase option that is operated by
the same corporation or owner that owns the retail outlet.
Refrigerated truck equipment, whether owned or contracted,
must comply with regulations defined by federal and North
Dakota state agencies.

3. This program will be available to any single retail place of
business and no combination orders by multiple retail places
of business shall be permitted.

4. On all charge sales by retailer not paid for within fourteen
days from statement date, processor will charge retailer the
difference between dock pickup price and wholesale price.

5. A1l orders must be preordered by retailers prior to dock
pickup.

6. No in-store service, i.e., cleaning cases, stamping products,
etc., shall be provided by processors.

7. Processor personnel for store resets will be limited to dairy
case setting only.

8. No returns on merchandise shall be made by processors, except

when product is found to be damaged or defective at time of
dock pickup.
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9. Delivery of product by processor due to incorrect ordering by
customer or special orders shall be charged at wholesale price
less appropriate volume discount.

10. All contracts between processors and retailers under this
program shall:

a. Require delivery at destination being the retailer's place
of business;

b. Provide that title to said milk products shall pass from
the seller (processor) to the buyer (retailer) upon
delivery at the buyer's place of business; and

c. Provide that the place where the sale of said milk
products occurs shall be at the retailer's place of
business.

11. Each retail place of business must make a minimum order of
twenty-seven to forty-four full cases to each processor to
qualify for the twelve percent discount dock pickup program or
a minimum of forty-five full cases to each processor to
qualify for the twenty-three percent discount dock pickup
program. Deliveries of less than ferty-five twenty-seven full
cases to a retailer's place of business may only be made by a
Ticensed distributor.

12. Retailer must pay contract or third-party hauler direct.

13. Direct billing of product will be completed by the processor
and all qualified discounts will be paid by the processors.

History: Effective September 1, 1996; amended August 31, 1998; July 1,
2000.

General Authority: NDCC 4-18.1-03, 4-18.1-07, 4-18.1-20, 28-32-03.1(3)
Law Implemented: NDCC 4-18.1-07

51-03-02-13. Price filings on frozen dairy products. ©On-er
befere-February-1;-1992;-atl-dealers-in-al}-market-areas-shati-file--the
HRiform-whelesale-priee-at-which-ice-eream;-frozen-malt-ice-eream-{frest
malt-iee-cream};-flavered-ice-ereams-fruit-ice--ereams--nut--iee--ereams
frereh--ice-ereamy-ice-milks-frutt-sherbet;-frutt-sherbines;-and-the-mix
from-which-any-sueh-product-is-mades-wili-be--seld--by--each--dealer--te
retailers-within-the-market-area---New-prices-and-amended-priees-must-be
filed-at-the--offiece--ef--the--Nerth--Daketa--mitk--marketing--board--at
Bismareks--Nerth--Daketa;--at-least-ten-days-in-advance-of-the-effeetive
date-ef-any-new-price-er-amended-price-tegether-with-the-date--oen--which
such--fi1ling--becemes--effeetiver---Plaeing-a-priee-sehedule-in-the-maii
shatt-eenstitute-a-filtings

Any--dealer--may-meet-competition-without-detay-in-conneetion-with
the-sale-ef-any-sueh-frezen-dairy-preduct--provided--sueh--dealer--shat}
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file--an--amended--price-speeifically-stating-that-suech-amended-price-is
for-the-purpese-of-meeting-tawful-competition--before--actually--meeting
sHER--competitioR:---A--deater--desiring--te--meet-the-lower-prices-of-a
competitor-may-de-se-in-sueh-pertions--of--the--marketing--area--as--are
speetfied--iR--sueh--deater's--amended--price--fi}ing-for-the-purpese-of
meeting-competition:--The-whelesale-prieces-filed-by-a-precesser-fer--the
marketing---area---shatl---autematicatly---be--apptiecable--te--sates--by
distributers-ef-that-precesseris-preducts-within-sueR-area--unless--said
distributers-file-their-ewn-sehedule-of-pricess

Al}--price--filings--must--be--available-at-the-effice-of-the-mitk
beard-fer-inspectien-and-cepying-and-may-be-disetesed-by-the-beard--upen
the-written-request-of-any-persen: Repealed effective July 1, 2000.

History: Amended--effeetive-Nevember-1;-1980s-duty-1;-1981s-Nevember-i;
1983:-Apr+1-1;-19844-August-1;-19874--June-1;--19904--February-1;--19924
August-15-1995+

General Authority: NBEE-4-18:1-83;-4-18:1-075;-4-18:1-20;-28-32-03:1¢(3}
Law Implemented: NBEE-4-18:1-07

51-03-02-15. Formula to determine changes in the class I
wholesale and retail prices. Based upon the class I formula as ordered
in section 51-03-02-06, for each hundredweight price change to dairy
farmers for raw milk or an increase or decrease of $.001 in the federal
market order number 68 30 butterfat differential based on $.053, the
following factors will be used in determining adjustments in the class I
wholesale and retail prices. If the first of the month falls on a
Monday, Tuesday, or Wednesday, minimum wholesale and retail prices go in
effect that Monday. If the first of the month falls on a Thursday,
Friday, Saturday, or Sunday, minimum wholesale and retail prices go in
effect the following Monday.

Item Hundredweight Factor B.F. Factor
Whole milk 1/2 gallon $.0098900 $(.0001075)
2% milk .0099130 (.0006465)
1% milk .0099130 (.0010775)
Skim milk .0099245 (.0012945)
Buttermilk .0099245 (.0012945)
Whole chocolate .0094645 (.0001029)
2% chocolate .0094875 (.0006188)
1% chocolate .0094875 (.0010313)
Skim chocolate .0094990 (.0012390)

A1l price adjustments at the retail level should be made to the nearest
one cent per unit: wholesale to the nearest $.001 per unit. Wholesale
and retail price increases or decreases shall be adjusted for volume
discounts. The foregoing class I formula price changes shall be
automatically adjusted without further amendment to this stabilization
plan.
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History: Amended effective August 1, 1983; June 26, 1989; June 1, 1990;
February 1, 1992; August 1, 1993; August 1, 1994; August 1, 1995;
September 1, 1996; July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 4-18.1-03, 4-18.1-07, 4-18.1-20, 28-32-03.1(3)

Law Implemented: NDCC 4-18.1-07

51-03-62-16. Formula to determine changes in the class II
wholesale and retail prices. For each federal market order Rumber-68
no. 30 class II price increase or decrease of fifteen cents per
hundredweight above, or price increase or decrease of twenty-three cents
per hundredweight below the twelve dollars and seventeen cents base
class Il hundredweight price, or an increase or decrease of $.001 in the
federal market order nrumber-68 no. 30 butterfat differential based on
$.162, the following factors will be used in determining adjustments in
the class Il wholesale and retail prices=:

Item Hundredweight Factor B.F. Factor
Half & half - pint $.0016 $.0008
Whipping cream - 1/2 pint .0016 .0015
Sour cream - 8 ounce .0008 .0008
Cottage cheese - 1 pound .0140 (.0012)
Yogurt - 8 ounce .0008 .0008

A1l price adjustment adjustments at the wholesale and retail ieve}
Jevels should be made to the nearest one cent per unit.

Item Hundredweight Factor B.F. Factor
1 gallon shake mix $.0110 $.0004
1 gallon soft serve mix : .0110 .0021

A1l price adjustment adjustments at the wholesale level should be
made at four cents per gallon increments.

History: Amended effective June 1, 1979; November 1, 1983; April 1,
1984; July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 4-18.1-063, 4-18.1-07, 4-18.1-20, 28-32-03.1(3)
Law Implemented: NDCC 4-18.1-07

51-03-02-18. Effective date. These rules are effective at
12:01 a.m., August-31;-1998 July 1, 2000, and all prior stabilization
plans for market area number 1 are hereby repealed.

History: Effective August 1, 1995; amended effective September 1, 1996;
August 31, 1998; July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 4-18.1-03, 4-18.1-06, 4-18.1-07, 4-18.1-20,
28-32-03.1(3)

Law Implemented: NDCC 4-18.1-07
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51-
Midpoint,

CHAPTER 51-03-03

03-03-06. Prices to be paid dairy farmers and others -
differential, and multiple component pricing. Publ}icatien--ef

this--seetion--would--be-inexpedient-beeause-+t-changes-frequently-en-an
emergeney-basiss

Eepies-ef-this-seetion-may-be-ebtained-By-forwarding-a-request-tos

Exeeutive-Seeretary
Nerth-Baketa-Mi1k-Stabilizatien-Beard
206-1/2-Nerth-Sixth-Street
Bismareks;-Nerth-Baketa-58505

Class I (market areas 2, 5, 7, and 8). Commencing July 1,

2000, the minimum price to be paid by milk processors to dairy
farmers and others coming within the scope of this plan f.o.b.
the processor's plant for milk which is ultimately utilized in
class I (milk products) shall be the hundredweight price as
established by the formula below. However, the minimum price
to be paid by milk processors to dairy farmers and others
coming within the scope of this plan f.o.b. the processor's
plant for milk which is ultimately utilized in class I (milk
products) shall not be less than $13.76 per hundredweight.

The following formula shall be used when the federal market
order no. 30 class I dairy farmer hundredweight price
increases or decreases to the next higher or lower federal
market order no. 30 class I dairy farmer hundredweight trip
point. Minimum North Dakota class I dairy farmer and
wholesale and retail prices to be adjusted by using the
current federal market order no. 30 class I dairy farmer price
on the formula below. Move to the next higher increment and
utilize the North Dakota minimum class I dairy farmer price as
1listed on the formula below. Adjustments, if required, will

be monthly.
Market Areas 2, 5, 7, and 8

Federal Market Order North Dakota Minimum Wholesale

No. 30

Class I Minimum Class I Price Per One-Half Gallon

Dairy Farmer Price Dairy Farmer Price 2 Percent Milk

.541

+D31

-4l

911

.501

.491

.481

O
o0
—
oo
3]
O
[ P P P e e e

471
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16.91 17 .54 1.461

16.70 17.33 1.451

16.49 17.12 1.441

16.28 16.91 1.431

16.07 16.70 1.421

15.86 16.49 1.411

15.65 16.28 1.401

15.44 16.07 1.391

15.23 15.86 1.381

15.02 15.65 1.271

14.81 15.44 1.361

14.60 15.23 1.351

14.39 15.02 1.341

14.18 14.81 1,331

13.97 14.60 1,321

13.76 14.39 1.311

13.55 14.18 1.301

13.34 13.97 1.291

13.13 13.76 Base 1.281
Based on $.21 per hundredweight increments and butterfat
differential of $.053.

Differentials above or below the midpoint of 3.5 percent will
be those used in federal market order no. 30.

Adjustments in wholesale and retail prices for other sized
containers should also increase or decrease, or both,
proportionally to the one-half gallon use.

2. Class II. Commencing July 1, 2000, the minimum price to be
paid by milk processors to dairy farmers and others, coming
within the scope of this stabilization plan f.o.b. the
processor's plant after the effective date of this plan for
milk which is ultimately utilized in class II, shall be the
class II price per hundredweight for federal market order
no. 30, adjusted to a 3.5 percent butterfat basis. Butterfat
differentials above or below the midpoint of 3.5 percent will
be those used in federal market order no. 30.

3. Class III. Commencing July 1, 2000, the minimum price to be

paid by milk processors to dairy farmers and others coming
within the scope of this stabilization plan f.o.b. the
processor's plant for milk, which is ultimately wutilized in
class III, except that used in the manufacture of butter,
shall be priced under a "multiple component pricing" system to
include protein, other solids, and somatic cell count. The
respective prices for these components, in a given month, and
computations thereon will be those used by federal market
order no. 30. Two additional components, butterfat and
producer price differential, will use as a basis the class III
price per hundredweight for federal market order no. 30 less a
four percent administrative and transportation allowance to
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the nearest full cent adjusted to a 3.5 percent butterfat
basis. Butterfat differentials above or below the midpoint of
3.5 percent will be those used in federal market order no. 30.
Commencing July 1, 2000, the minimum price to be paid by milk
processors to dairy farmers and others coming within the scope
of this stabilization plan, f.o.b. the processor's plant for
milk and cream which is ultimately used in class III for the
manufacture of butter, shall be the monthly national
agricultural statistical service (NASS) survey butter price
less a $.05 per pound administrative and transportation
allowance rounded to the nearest cent.

If a processing plant pays to its dairy farmers and others a
premium above the class III minimum raw milk price as
established herein, such price including the premium, shall
become the minimum class III raw milk price for audit purposes
for said plant, and said plant shall not be entitled to dilute
the class I and class Il raw milk prices for payment of said
premiums on said class III raw milk.

4. The foregoing class I, II, and III dairy farmer prices shall
be automatically adjusted each month, without further
amendment to this stabilization plan based upon the prices
ordered for federal market order no. 30.

History: Amended effective July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 4-18.1-03, 4-18.1-07, 4-18.1-20, 28-32-03.1(3)
Law Implemented: NDCC 4-18.1-07

51-03-03-10. Minimum wholesale and retail prices for class I milk
products - Market areas 2, 5, 7, and 8. Publication of this section
would be inexpedient because it changes frequently on an emergency
basis.

Copies of this section may be obtained by forwarding a request to:

Exeeutive-Seeretary Director
North Dakota Milk Marketing Board
410 East Thayer Avenue, # No. 2
Bismarck, ND 58501-4049

51-03-063-11. Minimum wholesale and retail prices for class II
milk products - Market areas 2, 5, 7, and 8. Publication of this
section would be inexpedient because it changes frequently on an
emergency basis.

Copies of this section may be obtained by forwarding a request to:
Exeeutive-Seeretary Director

North Dakota Milk Marketing Board
410 East Thayer Avenue, # No. 2
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Bismarck, ND 58501-4049

51-03-03-12. Minimum wholesale prices for shake and soft serve
mix. Publication of this section would be inexpedient because it
changes frequently on an emergency basis.

Copies of this section may be obtained by forwarding a request to:

Exeeutive-Seeretary Director
North Dakota Milk Marketing Board
410 East Thayer Avenue, # No. 2
Bismarck, ND 58501-4049

51-03-03-12.1. Minimum dock price for market area 8. Market-area
Rumber-8-{Wahpeton}-will-have-a-minimum-nendelivered-dealer--price--1ist
{deeck--price}--of--twenty-three-percent-off-market-area-number-8-minimum
established--whelesale--price--}ist--{exeept--eultured--preducts}---less
additierat--two--pereent--prempt-pays--Priees-will-change-as-per-seetion
51-03-83-06---The-following-stiputatiens--apply--te--receive--this--doek
prices

1:--Hauling--of-mitk-products-must-be-dene-with-refrigerated-truek
equipment-that-is-ewned-by-the-same-eerperation-er-ewner--that
ewRS--the--retait--eutlet:---Refrigerated-truek-equipment-must
eomply-with-rules-and-regutations-defined-by-federal-and-North
Paketa-state-ageneiess

2:~-Velume--of--milk--preduets--must--equal--at--1east-one-hurdred
theusand-galiens-{378541:-18-1iters}-per-year-frem-all--seurees
per--steres----A--persen--or-corperation-whe-ewns-mere-than-ene
stere-can-total-purehases-frem-al}-steres-to-meet-ene--hundred
theusand-galliens-{378541:18-1iters}s

3:--Al}-orders-must-be-preerdered-prier-te-piekups

4;--Ne--in-stere-serviees-isesy-€leaning-eases;-stamping-products;
eter

8:--Persenne}--for--store--resets--witl--be--}imited-to-datry-case
setting-entys

6---Ne-returns-en-merehandise;-except-when-the-product-is-found-te
be-damaged-er-defective-at-time-of-pickups

#:--De}ivery--ef--the--preduect--by-processor-or-distributor-due-te
%neePPeet-ePdePing--by--eustemeP--eP--5pee4a¥--erderg;—-%e--be
eharged-at-whelesale-price-less-apprepriate-volume-diseounts

8:--Bn--al}-eharge-sales-by-retailer-nret-paid-for-within-two-weeks
foeurteen-days--frem--the--statement--dates--the--precesser--er
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distributer--witl--charge-retailer-the-difference-between-deck
price-and-whelesale-priee: Repealed effective July 1, 2000.

History: Effeetive-August-1;-1995s-amended-effective-September-1;-1996+
August-31;-1998-

General Authority: NBEE--4-18:1-03;--4-18:1-065;--4-18:1-075;--4-18:1-20;
28-32-03:1¢3}

Law Implemented: NBEE-4-18:1-87

51-03-63-13.1. Minimum dock pickup provisions - Market areas 2,
5, 7, and 8. Market areas 2, 5, 7, and 8 will have a minimum dock
pickup price 1list as determined by subsection 11 of twelve percent or
twenty-three percent off the respective market areas minimum established
wholesale price list (except cultured products) less an additional two
percent prompt payment. Prices will change as per section 51-03-03-06.
The following stipulations apply to receive this dock price:

1. "Dock" means dock at the plant of a processor where milk
products are actually processed and packaged.

2. Hauling of milk products must be done with refrigerated truck
equipment that is contracted with a third party or is owned
and operated or a lease purchase option that is operated by
the same corporation or owner that owns the retail outlet.
Refrigerated truck equipment, whether owned or contracted,
must comply with regulations defined by federal and North
Dakota state agencies.

3. This program will be available to any single retail place of
business and no combination orders by multiple retail places
of business shall be permitted.

4. On all charge sales by retailer not paid for within fourteen
days from statement date, processor will charge retailer the
difference between dock pickup price and wholesale price.

5. All orders must be preordered by retailers prior to dock
pickup.

6. No in-store service, i.e., cleaning cases, stamping products,
etc., shall be provided by processors.

7. Processor personnel for store resets will be limited to dairy
case setting only.

8. No returns on merchandise shall be made by processors, except
when product is found to be damaged or defective at time of
dock pickup.

9. Delivery of product by processor due to incorrect ordering by

customer or special orders shall be charged at wholesale price
less appropriate volume discount.
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10. A1l contracts between processors and retailers under this
program shall:

a. Require delivery at destination being the retailer's place
of business;

b. Provide that title to said milk products shall pass from
the seller (processor) to the buyer (retailer) upon
delivery at the buyer's place of business; and

c. Provide that the place where the sale of said milk

products occurs shall be at the retailer's place of
business.

11. Each retail place of business must make a minimum order of
twenty-seven to forty-four full cases to each processor to
qualify for the twelve percent discount dock pickup program or
a minimum of forty-five full cases to each processor to
qualify for the twenty-three percent discount dock pickup
program. Deliveries of less than ferty-five twenty-seven full
cases to a retailer's place of business may only be made by a
licensed distributor.

12. Retailer must pay contract or third-party hauler direct.

13. Direct billing of product will be completed by the processor
and all qualified discounts will be paid by the processors.

History: Effective September 1, 1996; amended effective August 31,
1998; July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 4-18.1-03, 4-18.1-07, 4-18.1-20, 28-32-03.1(3)
Law Implemented: NDCC 4-18.1-07

51-03-03-14. Price filings on frozen dairy products. ©On-er
befere-February-1;-1992;-at1-deaters-in-at}-market-areas-shati-file--the
HRiferm-whelesale-price-at-whieh-ice-eream;-frozen-malt-ice-cream-{frost
matt-iee-eream};-flavered-ice-eream;-fruit-ice--eream;--Aut--iee--ereams
freneh--ice-eream;-tee-mitk;-fruit-sherbet;-fruit-sherbines;-and-the-mix
frem-whieh-any-sueh-preduet-is-made;-witl-be--seld--by--eaeh--deater--teo
retatters-within-the-market-area---New-prices-and-amended-priees-must-be
filed-at-the--office--of--the--Nerth--Baketa--milk--marketing--beard--at
Bismareks;--Nerth--Daketa;--at-least-ten-days-+n-advance-of-the-effeetive
date-ef-any-new-price-er-amended-price-tegether-with-the-date--en--whieh
sueh--fi}1ing--beecomes--effective----Placing-a-price-sehedule-in-the-ma+t
shatl-eenstitute-a-filings

Any--dealer--may-meet-competition-witheut-detay-in-connection-with
the-sale-ef-any-sueh-frezen-dairy-preduct--provided--sueh--dealer--shat}
file--an--amended--priece-speeifieally-stating-that-sueh-amended-priee-is
for-the-purpese-ef-meeting-tawful-competition--before--aetually--meeting
sueh--competition----A--deater--desiring--te--meet-the-tower-prices-of-a
competitor-may-de-se-iR-sueh-pertions--of--the--marketing--area--as--are
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speetfied--in--sueh--deateris--amended--price--filing-for-the-purpese-of
meeting-competition:---The-whotesale-prices-filed-by-a-precesser-for--the
marketing---area---shat}---autematicatly---be--appticable--te--sates--by
distributors-ef-that-preeesseris-preducts-within-sueh-area--unless--said
distributers-file-their-ewn-sehedute-ef-prieess

A}}--price--filings--shatl--be-avaitable-at-the-effice-of-the-mitk
beard-fer-inspection-and-copying-and-may-be-diselesed-by-the-beard--upen
the-written-request-ef-any-persen: Repealed effective July 1, 2000.

History: Amended--effective--Nevember-1;-1983:-April-1;-1984:-August-1;
1987+ -dune-1;-1990+-February-1;-1992:-August-15-1995+

General Authority: NBEE-4-18:1-83;-4-18:1-07;-4-18:1-20;-28-32-03:1¢3}
Law Implemented: NBEE-4-18:1-067

51-03-03-16. Formula to determine changes in the class I
wholesale and retail prices. Based upon the class I formula as ordered
in section 51-03-03-06, for each hundredweight price change to dairy
farmers for raw milk or an increase or decrease of $.001 in the federal
market order number 68 30 butterfat differential based on $.053, the
following factors will be used in determining adjustments in the class I
wholesale and retail prices. If the first of the month falls on a
Monday, Tuesday, or Wednesday, minimum wholesale and retail prices go in
effect that Monday. If the first of the month falls on a Thursday,
Friday, Saturday, or Sunday, minimum wholesale and retail prices go in
effect the following Monday.

Item Hundredweight Factor B.F. Factor
Whole milk 1/2 gallon $.0098900 $(.0001075)
2% milk .0099130 (.0006465)
1% milk .0099130 (.0010775)
Skim milk .0099245 (.0012945)
Buttermilk .0099245 (.0012945)
Whole chocolate .0094645 (.0001029)
2% chocolate .0094875 (.0006188)
1% chocolate .0094875 (.0010313)
Skim chocolate .0094990 (.0012390)

A1l price adjustments at the retail level should be made to the nearest
one cent per unit: wholesale to the nearest $.001 per unit. Wholesale
and retail price increases or decreases shall be adjusted for volume
discounts. The foregoing class 1 formula price changes shall be
automatically adjusted without further amendment to this stabilization
plan.

History: Amended effective November 1, 1983; June 26, 1989; June 1,
1990; February 1, 1992; August 1, 1993; August 1, 1994; August 1, 1995;
September 1, 1996; July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 4-18.1-03, 4-18.1-07, 4-18.1-20, 28-32-03.1(3)

Law Implemented: NDCC 4-18.1-07
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51-03-03-17. Formula to determine changes in the class 1II
wholesale and retail prices. For each federal market order rumber-68
no. 30 class II price increase or decrease of fifteen cents per
hundredweight above, or price increase or decrease of twenty-three cents
per hundredweight below the twelve dollars and seventeen cents base
class II hundredweight price, or an increase or decrease of $.001 in the
federal market order nrumber-68 no. 30 butterfat differential based on
$.162, the following factors will be used in determining adjustments in
the class Il wholesale and retail prices::

Item Hundredweight Factor B.F. Factor
Half & half - pint $.0016 $.0008
Whipping cream - 1/2 pint .0016 .0015
Sour cream - 8 ounce .0008 .0008
Cottage cheese - 1 pound .0140 (.0012)
Yogurt - 8 ounce .0008 .0008

ATl price adjustment adjustments at the wholesale and retail level
levels should be made to the nearest one cent per unit.

Item Hundredweight Factor B.F. Factor
1 gallon shake mix $.0110 $.0004
1 gallon soft serve mix .0110 .0021

A1l price adjustment adjustments at the wholesale level should be
made at four cents per gallon increments.

History: Amended effective June 1, 1979; November 1, 1983; April 1,
1984; July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 4-18.1-03, 4-18.1-07, 4-18.1-20, 28-32-03.1(3)
Law Implemented: NDCC 4-18.1-07

51-03-03-19. Effective date. These rules are effective at
12:01 a.m., August-31;-1998 July 1, 2000, and all prior stabilization
plans for market areas 2, 5, 7, and 8 are hereby repealed.

History: Effective August 1, 1995; amended effective September 1, 1996;
August 31, 1998; July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 4-18.1-03, 4-18.1-06, 4-18.1-07, 4-18.1-20,
28-32-03.1(3)

Law Implemented: NDCC 4-18.1-07
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Midpoint,

CHAPTER 51-03-04

03-04-06. Prices to be paid dairy farmers and others -
differential, and multiple component pricing. Publicatien--ef

thi5--seetion--weuld--be-inexpedient-beeause-+t-changes-frequently-en-an
emergeney-basiss

copies-ef-this-section-may-be-ebtained-by-forwarding-a-request-to:

Exeeutive-Seeretary
Nerth-Baketa-Miik-Stabilizatien-Beard
266-1/2-Nerth-Sixth-Street
Bismareks;-NB-58588

Class I (market areas 3, 4, and 6). Commencing July 1, 2000,

the minimum price to be paid by milk processors to dairy
farmers and others coming within the scope of this plan f.o.b.
the processor's plant for milk which is ultimately utilized in
class I (milk products) shall be the hundredweight price as
established by the formula below. However, the minimum price
to be paid by milk processors to dairy farmers and others
coming within the scope of this plan f.o.b. the processor's
plant for milk which is ultimately utilized in class I (milk
products) shall not be Tess than $13.76 per hundredweight.

The following formula shall be used when the federal market
order no. 30 class I dairy farmer hundredweight price
increases or decreases to the next higher or lower federal
market order no. 30 class I dairy farmer hundredweight trip
point. Minimum North Dakota class I dairy farmer and
wholesale and retail prices to be adjusted by using the
current federal market order no. 30 class I dairy farmer price
on the formula below. Move to the next higher increment and
utilize the North Dakota minimum class I dairy farmer price as
listed on the formula below. Adjustments, if required, will

be monthly.

Market Areas 3, 4, and 6

Federal Market Order North Dakota Minimum Wholesale

No. 30

Class I Minimum Class I Price Per One-Half Gallon

Dairy Farmer Price Dairy Farmer Price 2 Percent Milk

18.

59 19.22 .561

1991

.541

930

w2l

211

.501

.491

~
o
—
o
w
(o]
e e o el Ll ) e el

.481
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16.70 17.33 1.471

16.49 17.12 1.461

16.28 16.91 1.451

16.07 16.70 1.441

15.86 16.49 1.431

15.65 16.28 1.421

15.44 16.07 1.411

15.23 15.86 1.401

15.02 15.65 1.391

14.81 15.44 1.381

14.60 15.23 1.371

14.39 15.02 1.361

14.18 14.81 1.351

13.97 14.60 1.341

13.76 14.39 1.331

13.55 14.18 1.321

13.34 13.97 1.311

13.13 13.76 Base 1.301
Based on $.21 per hundredweight increments and butterfat
differential of $.053.

Differentials above or below the midpoint of 3.5 percent will
be those used in federal market order no. 30.

Adjustments in wholesale and retail prices for other sized
containers should also increase or decrease, or both,
proportionally to the one-half gallon use.

2. Class II. Commencing July 1, 2000, the minimum price to be
paid by milk processors to dairy farmers and others, coming
within the scope of this stabilization plan f.o.b. the
processor's plant after the effective date of this plan for
milk which is ultimately utilized in class II, shall be the
class Il price per hundredweight for federal market order
no. 30, adjusted to a 3.5 percent butterfat basis. Butterfat
differentials above or below the midpoint of 3.5 percent will
be those used in federal market order no. 30.

3. Class III. Commencing July 1, 2000, (in the city of

Bottineau) the minimum price to be paid by milk processors to
dairy farmers and others coming within the scope of this
stabilization plan, f.o.b. the processor's plant for milk
which is ultimately utilized in class 111, except that used in
the manufacture of butter, shall be the same as the selling
price for said class III raw milk by grade A processing plants
to manufacturing plants less a four percent administrative and
transportation allowance to the nearest full cent adjusted to
a 3.5 percent butterfat basis. Commencing July 1, 2000, in
market areas 3, 4, and 6 (except the city of Bottineau) the
minimum price to be paid by milk processors to dairy farmers
and others coming within the scope of this stabilization plan
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f.o.b. the processor's plant for milk which is ultimately
utilized in class III, except that used in the manufacture of
butter, shall be priced under a "multiple component pricing"
system to include protein, other solids, and somatic cell
count. The respective prices for these components, in a given
month, and computations thereon will be those used by federal
market order no. 30. Two additional components, butterfat and
producer price differential, will use as a basis the class 111
price per hundredweight for federal market order no. 30 less a
four percent administrative and transportation allowance to
the nearest full cent adjusted to a 3.5 percent butterfat
basis. Butterfat differentials above or below the midpoint of
3.5 percent will be those used in federal market order no. 30.
Commencing July 1, 2000, the minimum price to be paid by milk
processors to dairy farmers and others coming within the scope
of this stabilization plan, f.o.b. the processor's plant for
milk and cream which is ultimately used in class III for the
manufacture of butter, shall be the monthly national
agricultural statistical service (NASS) survey butter price
less a $.05 per pound administrative and transportation
allowance rounded to the nearest cent.

If a processing plant pays to its dairy farmers and others a
premium above the class III minimum raw milk price as
established herein, such price including the premium, shall
become the minimum class III raw milk price for audit purposes
for said plant, and said plant shall not be entitled to dilute
the class I and class II raw milk prices for payment of said
premiums on said class III raw milk.

The foregoing class I, II, and 11l dairy farmer prices shall

History:

be automatically adjusted each month, without further
amendment to this stabilization plan based upon the prices
ordered for federal market order no. 30.

Amended effective July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 4-18.1-03, 4-18.1-07, 4-18.1-20, 28-32-03.1(3)
Law Implemented: NDCC 4-18.1-07

51-03-04-106. Minimum wholesale and retail prices for class I milk
products - Market areas 3, 4, and 6. Publication of this section would
be inexpedient because it changes frequently on an emergency basis.

Copies of this section may be obtained by forwarding a request to:

Exeeutive-Seeretary Director
North Dakota Milk Marketing Board
410 East Thayer Avenue, # No. 2
Bismarck, ND 58501-4049
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) 51-03-04-11. Minimum wholesale and retail prices for class II
milk products - Market areas 3, 4, and 6. Publication of this section

would be

basis.

inexpedient because it changes frequently on an emergency

Copies of this section may be obtained by forwarding a request to:

Exeentive-Seeretary Director
North Dakota Milk Marketing Board
410 East Thayer Avenue, # No. 2
Bismarck, ND 58501-4049

51-03-04-12. Minimum wholesale prices for shake and soft serve
mix. Publication of this section would be inexpedient because it
changes frequently on an emergency basis.

Copies of this section may be obtained by forwarding a request to:

Exeeutive-Seeretary Director
North Dakota Milk Marketing Board
410 East Thayer Avenue, # No. 2
Bismarck, ND 58501-4049

51-03-04-13.1. Minimum dock pickup provisions - Market areas 3,

4, and 6.

price

Market areas 3, 4, and 6 will have a minimum dock pickup

1ist as determined by subsection 11 of twelve percent or

twenty-three percent off the respective market areas minimum established
wholesale price 1list (except cultured products) less an additional two
percent prompt payment. Prices will change as per section 51-03-04-06.
The following stipulations apply to receive this dock price:

1.

"Dock" means dock at the plant of a processor where milk
products are actually processed and packaged.

Hauling of milk products must be done with refrigerated truck
equipment that is contracted with a third party or 1is owned
and operated or a lease purchase option that is operated by
the same corporation or owner that owns the retail outlet.
Refrigerated truck equipment, whether owned or contracted,
must comply with regulations defined by federal and North
Dakota state agencies.

This program will be available to any single retail place of
business and no combination orders by multiple retail places
of business shall be permitted.

On all charge sales by retailer not paid for within fourteen

days from statement date, processor will charge retailer the
difference between dock pickup price and wholesale price.
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5. A1l orders must be preordered by retailers prior to dock
pickup.

6. No in-store service, i.e., cleaning cases, stamping products,
etc., shall be provided by processors.

7. Processor personnel for store resets will be limited to dairy
case setting only.

8. No returns on merchandise shall be made by processors, except
when product is found to be damaged or defective at time of
dock pickup.

9. Delivery of product by processor due to incorrect ordering by
customer or special orders shall be charged at wholesale price
less appropriate volume discount.

10. ATl contracts between processors and retailers under this
program shall:

a. Require delivery at destination being the retailer's place
of business;

b. Provide that title to said milk products shall pass from
the seller (processor) to the buyer (retailer) upon
delivery at the buyer's place of business; and

c. Provide that the place where the sale of said milk
products occurs shall be at the retailer's place of
business.

11. Each retail place of business must make a minimum order of
twenty-seven to forty-four full cases to each processor to
qualify for the twelve percent discount dock pickup program or
a minimum of forty-five full cases to each processor to
qualify for the twenty-three percent discount dock pickup
program. Deliveries of less than ferty-five twenty-seven full
cases to a retailer's place of business may only be made by a
licensed distributor.

12. Retailer must pay contract or third-party hauler direct.

13. Direct billing of product will be completed by the processor
and all qualified discounts will be paid by the processor.

History: Effective September 1, 1996; amended August 31, 1998; July 1,
2000.

General Authority: NDCC 4-18.1-03, 4-18.1-07, 4-18.1-20, 28-32-03.1(3)
Law Implemented: NDCC 4-18.1-07

51-03-04-14. Price filings on frozen dairy products. Or-er
before-February-1;-1992;-at1-deaters-in-ati-market-areas-shati-file--the
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uRiform-whelesate-price-at-which-iee-eream;-frozen-malt-ice-cream-{frost
matlt-iee-eream};-flavered-iee-cream;-fruit-+ce--cream;--nAut--1€e--eream;
frereh--ice-eream;-iee-mitk;-fruit-sherbet;-fruit-sherbines;-and-the-mix
frem-which-any-sueh-preduet-is-made;-will-be--seld--by--each--dealer--teo
retatlers-within-the-market-area:--New-priees-and-amended-prices-must-be
filed-at-the--office--of--the--North--Daketa--mitk--marketing--beard--at
Bismareks;--Nerth--Daketa;--at-teast-ten-days-in-advanee-ef-the-effeective
date-ef-any-new-price-or-amended-price-tegether-with-the-date--en--which
sueh--fi1ing--becomes--effectives---Placing-a-price-sehedute-in-the-ma+l
shati-eenstitute-a-fiting:

ARry--deater--may-meet-competition-without-delay-in-eonnection-with
the-sale-ef-any-sueh-frozen-datry-preduct--provided--sueh--deater--shati
file--an--amended--price-speeificaliy-stating-that-sueh-amended-price-is
for-the-purpese-ef-meeting-tawful-competition--before--actuatly--meeting
SsHeER--competition:---A--deater--desiring--to--meet-the-lewer-prices-oef-a
competiter-may-de-se-in-sueh-pertions--of--the--marketing--area--as--are
specified--in--sueh--deateris--amended--price--fiting-for-the-purpese-of
meeting-competition:--The-whelesate-prices-filed-by-a-precesser-for--the
marketing---area---shali---autematicaliy---be--appticable--te--sates--by
distributers-ef-that-precesseris-preducts-within-sueh-area--untess--said
distributers-file-their-ewn-sehedule-of-prieess

A}}--price--filings--must--be--available-at-the-effice-of-the-mitk
beard-fer-inspection-and-eepying-and-may-be-disetesed-by-the-beard--upen
the-written-request-ef-any-persen: Repealed effective July 1, 2000.

History: Amended--effeetive--Noevember-1;-19834-Apri}-15;-19844-August-1;
1987+ -JuRe-2635-19894-dune-15;-1990:-February-1;5-19924+-August-15-1995+
General Authority: NBEE-4-18:1-03;-4-18:1-07;-4-18:1-20;-28-32-03-1(3)
Law Implemented: NBEE-4-18:1-87

51-03-04-16. Formula to determine changes in the class I
wholesale and retail prices. Based upon the class I formula as ordered
in section 51-03-04-06, for each hundredweight price change to dairy
farmers for raw milk or an increase or decrease of $.001 in the federal
market order rumber-68 no. 30 butterfat differential based on $.053, the
following factors will be used in determining adjustments in the class I
wholesale and retail prices. If the first of the month falls on a
Monday, Tuesday, or Wednesday, minimum wholesale and retail prices go in
effect that Monday. If the first of the month falls on a Thursday,
Friday, Saturday, or Sunday, minimum wholesale and retail prices go in
effect the following Monday.

Item Hundredweight Factor B.F. Factor
Whole milk 1/2 gallon $.0098900 $(.0001075)
2% milk .0099130 (.0006465)
1% milk .0099130 (.0010775)
Skim milk .0099245 (.0012945)
Buttermilk .0099245 (.0012945)
Whole chocolate .0094645 (.0001029)
2% chocolate .0094875 (.0006188)
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1% chocolate .0094875 (.0010313)
Skim chocolate .0094990 (.0012390)

A1l price adjustments at the retail level should be made to the nearest
one cent per unit: wholesale to the nearest $.001 per unit. Wholesale
and retail price increases or decreases shall be adjusted for volume
discounts. The foregoing class I formula price changes shall be
automatically adjusted without further amendment to this stabilization
plan.

History: Amended effective November 1, 1983; June 26, 1989; June 1,
1990; February 1, 1992; August 1, 1993; August 1, 1994; August 1, 1995;
September 1, 1996; July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 4-18.1-03, 4-18.1-07, 4-18.1-20, 28-32-03.1(3)
Law Implemented: NDCC 4-18.1-07

51-03-04-17. Formula to determine changes in the class II
wholesale and retail prices. For each federal market order Rumber-68
no. 30 class II price increase or decrease of fifteen cents per
hundredweight above, or price increase or decrease of twenty-three cents
per hundredweight below the twelve dollars and seventeen cents base
class Il hundredweight price, or an increase or decrease of $.001 in the
federal market order RumBer-68 no. 30 butterfat differential based on
$.162, the following factors will be used in determining adjustments in
the class II wholesale and retail pricess:

Item Hundredweight Factor B.F. Factor
Half & half - pint $.0016 $.0008
Whipping cream - 1/2 pint .0016 .0015
Sour cream - 8 ounce .0008 .0008
Cottage cheese - 1 pound .0140 (.0012)
Yogurt - 8 ounce .0008 .0008

A1l price adjustment adjustments at the wholesale and retail ievet
levels should be made to the nearest one cent per unit.

Item Hundredweight Factor B.F. Factor
1 gallon shake mix $.0110 $.0004
1 gallon soft serve mix .0110 .0021

A1l price adjustment adjustments at the wholesale and retail ievei
levels should be made at four cents per gallon increments.

History: Amended effective June 1, 1979; November 1, 1983; April 1,
1984; June 26, 1989; July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 4-18.1-03, 4-18.1-07, 4-18.1-20, 28-32-03.1(3)
Law Implemented: NDCC 4-18.1-07

51-03-04-19. Effective date. These rules are effective at
12:01 a.m., August-3%;-1998 July 1, 2000, and all prior stabilization
plans for market areas 3, 4, and 6 are hereby repealed.
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History: Effective August 1, 1995; amended effective September 1, 1996;
August 31, 1998; July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 4-18.1-03, 4-18.1-06, 4-18.1-07, 4-18.1-20,
28-32-03.1(3)

Law Implemented: NDCC 4-18.1-07
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AUGUST 2000

CHAPTER 60-03-01

60-03-01-05. Certification - Commercial applicators, dealers,
private applicators.

1. Categories of certification.

a.

Agricultural pest control (plant and animal). This
category includes commercial applicators using restricted
use pesticides in production of agricultural crops
including cereal grain, feed grains, soybeans, forages,
large and small seeded legumes, small fruits, tree fruits,
nuts, and vegetables, as well as application to grasslands
and noncrop lands. This also includes the use of
restricted use pesticides on animals, beef cattle, dairy
cattle, swine, sheep, horses, goats, poultry, and other
livestock, and also to places on or in which animals are
confined.

Seed treatment. This category includes commercial
applicators using restricted use pesticides on
agricultural crop seeds, other seeds, and vegetative seed
stocks.

Fumigation. This category dincludes applicators using
restricted use fumigants for controlling pests in stored
and transported agricultural crops, grain milling
equipment, and storage facilities. (Effective April 1,
1991, private applicators.)

Ornamental and turf pest control. This category includes
commercial applicators using restricted use pesticides to
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control  pests in the production and maintenance of
ornamental trees, shrubs, flowers, and turf.

Grgenhouse. This category includes commercial applicators
using restricted use pesticides to control pests in a
greenhouse.

Right of way. This category includes commercial
applicators using restricted use pesticides to control
pests in the maintenance of public roads, electric
powerlines, pipelines, railways, right of ways, parking
lots, or other similar areas.

Public health pest control. This category includes state,
federal, or other government employees, or applicators
working under government contract, using restricted use
pesticides in public health programs for the management
and control of pests having medical and public health
impacts.

Research and demonstration pest control. This category is
for those individuals who demonstrate or apply restricted
use pesticides for education and research or education or
research. These would include county agents, extension
specialists, state, federal, and commercial employees,
plus other persons conducting research or demonstrating
the proper application of restricted use pesticides.

Home, industrial, and institutional pest control. This
category includes commercial applicators using restricted
use pesticides in, on, or around food handling
establishments, human dwellings, public or private
institutions, warehouses, grain elevators, and any other
structures or adjacent area, for the control of pests.

Wood preservatives. This category includes commercial
applicators who apply and treat with restricted use wood
preservatives to preserve and protect wood, posts, and
various lumber products from pests.

Vertebrate. This category includes commercial applicators
who use restricted use pesticides for the control of
certain pest vertebrate, such as rodents, certain
predators, and bats.

Bther:---This--is--reserved-for-any-future-categeries-that
may--be--required--By--the--United--States---envirenmentat
pretection--ageney--oer--beecome--nreeessary--by-erder-of-the
pesticide-centre}--beard: Metam-sodium. This category
includes commercial applicators who use or sell the
restricted use pesticide metam-sodium (sodium
N-methyldithiocarbamate dihydrate) for the purpose of
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controlling tree or other plant roots infesting sewer
systems.

2. Commercial applicators and dealers.

a.

A commercial applicator or dealer, or commercial
applicator and dealer certificate shall be dssued in
accordance with North Dakota Century Code section 4-35-09
or 4-35-12 or sections 4-35-09 and 4-35-12 respectively,
only to those persons who successfully complete the
certification examination established by the board, and
who pay the certification fee.

The board shall establish a certification examination
which shall be administered by any North Dakota state
university extension designate in accordance with North
Dakota Century Code section 4-35-89 or 4-35-12 or sections
4-35-09 and 4-35-12. The examination shall be given by
the North Dakota state university extension designate only
to those persons who:

(1) Are eighteen years of age or older; and

(2) Complete a certificate application in such form as
the board shall require.

Commercial applicator's or dealer or commercial applicator
and dealer certificates shall expire on April first
following the third anniversary of the year of
certification or recertification. Every commercially
certified person shall be recertified by an approved
seminar or an approved examination at Tleast every third
year and must complete an approved examination at least
every ninth year.

Any person who fails an examination may retake such
examination after three or more days.

A11 commercial applicators must be certified in the proper
category of application.

A1l dealers must be certified in the category of the
labels' intended target site.

Situatiens--where In situations in which the pesticide is
labeled for more than one of the certification target
sites, the dealer only needs to be certified in one of the
categories.

3. Private applicators.
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a.

A private applicator certification shall be issued in
accordance with North Dakota Century Code section 4-35-14
only to those persons who:

(1) Are eighteen years of age or older; and

(2) Demonstrate competence in the application of

pesticides as provided in subdivisions b, ¢, d, and
e.

Persons purchasing, storing, or applying restricted use
grain fumigants must be commercially trained and must pass
a fumigation exam. At the option of the applicant upon
successfully passing the exam, the certificate issued will
be for either private or commercial application of
restricted use fumigants. The fee for the private and
commercial certification will be set by the North Dakota
state university extension service.

Competence to apply restricted use pesticides shall be
demonstrated by a showing of any one of the following to
the North Dakota state university extension designate in
the applicant's area:

(1) Attendance at an approved educational seminar,
signing of a certificate of attendance, and passing
an examination.

(2) Completion of a course of self-instruction and
passing an examination at the North Dakota state
university extension designate's office in the
applicant's area.

(3) Completion of a take-home self-study program and
passing an examination.

(4) Passing the dealer or commercial applicator
certification examination and submitting the passing
grade to the appropriate North Dakota state
university extension designate.

Every private applicator shall be recertified by an
approved seminar or an approved examination at least every
third year and must complete an approved examination at
least every ninth year.

Competence to apply a single restricted use pesticide by a
person who cannot read shall be demonstrated by completion
of a course of oral instruction and completion of a
procedure to determine teaching-learning effectiveness to
the North Dakota state university extension designate in
the applicant's area. Such private applicator
certification for a single restricted use pesticide shall
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be for no more than one year and the notation; "Restricted
to" followed by the common name of the restricted use
pesticide in bold lettering shall appear on the private
applicator certificate.

f. In an emergency situation, competence to apply a single
restricted use pesticide by a person shall be demonstrated
by completion of a course of oral instruction and
completion of a procedure to determine teaching-learning
effectiveness to the North Dakota state university
extension designate in the applicant's area. Such private
applicator certification for a single restricted use
pesticide shall expire sixty days from issuance and shall
be issued to a person only once. The notations
“Restricted to" followed by the common name of the
restricted use pesticide shall appear on the private
applicator certificate in bold lettering.

History: Amended effective February 1, 1982; October 1, 1990;
November 1, 1991; March 1, 1996; August 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 4-35-06, 4-35-12

Law Implemented: NDCC 4-35-08, 4-35-09, 4-35-12, 4-35-14
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SEPTEMBER 2060

CHAPTER 66-01-01

66-01-01-01. Organization of hoard of psychologist examiners.

1.

History. The 1967 legislative assembly passed legislation
establishing the state board of psychologist examiners,
codified as North Dakota Century Code chapter 43-32. The
board of psychologist examiners 1licenses psychologists who
practice psychology in this state.

Board membership. The board consists of five members
appointed by the governor. Each member must be a licensed
psychologist and at least one member must be currently engaged
primarily in remderirg providing service in psychology and at
least one member must be engaged primarily in teaching,
training, or research in psychology. Members of the board
serve three-year terms, with at least one but not more than
two terms expiring each year.

Board officers. The board annually elects from its membership
a president; and vice president;-ard-a-seeretary-treasurer-whe
Reeds--net--be-a-member-of-the-board:--The-seeretary-treasurer
is-respensible-fer-administratien-ef-the-boardts-activities.
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4. Inquiries. Inquiries regarding the board may be addressed to
the seeretary-treasurer executive secretary:

€are}-P:--Buliinger Shelly Hanson, Executive Secretary
State Board of Psychologist Examiners
1406-Secerd-Street-N-W: P.0. Box 8380

Mardan Grand Forks, ND 98584 58202

History: Amended effective September 1, 1983; March 1, 1985; April 1,
1988; September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02.1

Law Implemented: NDCC 28-32-02.1
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CHAPTER 66-02-01

66-02-01-01.1. Regionally accredited school or college.
regionally accredited educational institution means one which i
accredited by any one of the following:

w | >

1. Southern association of colleges and schools;

2. Middle states association of colleges and schools;

3. New England association of colleges and schools;

4. North central association of colleges and schools;

5. North western association of colleges and schools; and

6. Western association of schools and colleges. Accreditation
means accreditation by one of the aforementioned associations
at level 4 (doctoral degree granting institution) or at
level 5 (graduate or professional degree granting
institution).

History: Effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-32-08
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-32-01

66-02-01-02. Licensure without examination. Yhe-beard-may-issue
a-}ieense-without-examination;-upeR-payment-of-the-required-fee;-to--any
diplemate-of-the-American-beard-ef-examiners-in-prefessienat-psyehetegy-
Repealed effective September 1, 2000.

History: Amended-effeetive-Mareh-1;-1985+
General Authority: NBEE-43-32-88
Law Implemented: NBEE-43-32-18

66-02-01-03. ‘Liecensure-by-reeipreeity Licensing of psychologists
from other states. Licensing of psychologists of other states will
follow the procedures described in North Dakota Century Code section
43-32-19. A psychologist licensed pursuant to North Dakota Century Code
section 43-32-19 must pass the North Dakota oral examination.

History: Amended effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-32-08
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-32-19

66-02-01-05. Licensure of master's Tlevel psychologists.
Lieensing--of--masteris--level--psychologists--te--practice--under---the
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supepyis%eq--ef—-a—-}ieensed--psyehelegist--w%44--fellew-—the-ppeeedures
deseribed-in-chapter-66-62-03: Repealed effective September 1, 2000.

General Authority: NBEE-43-32-88
Law Implemented: NBEE-43-32-38

66-02-01-07. Application of code of ethics. The American
psychological association eede-ef--ethies--and--the--standards--for--the
previders--ef-psycholegicat-serviees ethical principles of psychologists
and code of conduct (1992) shall apply to lTicensed psychologists.

History: Amended effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-32-08
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-32-27

66-02-01-08. Fees. The 1license fee is twe-hundred the actual
cost of the examination for the professional practice of psychology
(EPPP) plus seventy-five dollars for all persons receiving licensure
under sections 66-082-01-02;-66-02-81-83; 66-02-01-04; and 66-02-01-06
and two hundred fifty dollars for all persons receiving licensure under
section 66-02-681-85 66-02-01-03. AR Prior to January 2000, an annual
rerewat license fee of fifty seventy-five dollars will be charged all
licensed psychologists regardiess--ef--the--precedure--by--whieh--they
ebtainred--1ieensitng. Starting January 1, 2000, an annual license fee of
one hundred dollars will be charged all licensed psychologists.

History: Amended effective March 1, 1985; April 1, 1988; September 1,
2000.

General Authority: NDCC 43-32-08

Law Implemented: NDCC 43-32-12, 43-32-13

66-02-01-09.  Number of examinations. The written and oral
licensing examinatiern examinations will be administered twice each
calendar year.

History: Amended effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-32-08
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-32-22

66-02-01-09.1. Written examination. The written examination is
the examination for the professional practice of psychology. The
passing score is one-fourth standard deviation below the mean for Ph.D.
first-time candidates.

History: Effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-32-08
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-32-23
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66-02-01-11. Additional documentation for clinical work or
counseling or therapy. Fer-an-applicant-desiring-to-de-elinical-werk-er
previde--eounse}ing--er--therapys;--there--must-be-additional-evidence-of
traintRg-iR-applying-academic-course-content-in-a-serviee-setting:---This
must--tREtude--therapy;--diagresis;-intelligence/persenality-testing;-or
ether-spectalized-examinatien--precedures;--and--a--relevant--supervised
tAtePAship--of--ret-1ess-than-twelve-months-full-time-{forty-heur-week):
The--internship--sheutd--be--supervised--by--a---1icensed---psychelogist
practietng--in--the--designrated--speeialty:---The--documentation--of-the
additienal-evidence-of-tratning-must-bBe-a-detailed--deseription--of--the
tAtePAship--as--te--the--setting;--nature-of-clients;-precisely-what-the
apptieantis-reutine-was;-hew-the-applicant-was-supervised-as-wel}-as-the
ameuRt--of--supervisien;--what-skills-were-expesed-to-the-applicant;-and
the-speeifie-skitls-in-which-the-applicant--is--prefieient----Sueeessful
completion--ef-an-American-psychelegieal-assectation-appreved-internship
witl-be-accepted-as-fulfilling--this--requirement: Repealed effective
September 1, 2000.

History: Effeetive-Mareh-1;-1985:-amended-effective-April-1;-1988-
General Authority: NBEE-43-32-88
Law Implemented: NBEE-43-32-28

66-02-01-11.1. Supervised professional experience. Applicants
for licensure must complete two thousand hours of supervised internship
and two thousand hours of supervised postdoctoral experience.
Internship and postdoctoral experience supervision must be provided by a
licensed psychologist or licensed psychologists practicing in the areas
of competence claimed by the applicant. At least one hundred hours of
supervision at each level is required, at least fifty of which must be
one to one at each level. Successful completion of an American
psychological association accredited internship or accredited
postdoctoral program will be accepted as fulfilling these requirements,
respectively. Any other supervised experience must be described in
detail by the applicant, including nature of service setting or
settings, nature of consumers served, nature and amount of supervision,
and specific skills in which the applicant demonstrated proficiency.
The supervisor or supervisors must corroborate the areas of competence
claimed by the applicant.

History: Effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-32-08
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-32-20, 43-32-20.1

66-02-01-12. Identifying doctoral program as professional
psychology program. The following criteria will be used to identify
doctoral programs as professional psychology programs:

1. Programs that are accredited by the American psychological

association are-recegnrized-as--meeting--the--definitien--ef--a
prefessienal----psyehelegy----pregram:----The---eriteria---fer
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aeereditation-serving-as-a-medel}-fer--professional--psychelogy
tratning; or

A}}---ef Programs that meet the following criterias
subdivisions-a-threugh-+:

ar--Ffraining--in--prefessienal-psyehelegy-is-dectoral-training
effered-in-a-regionally-aceredited-institutien--of--higher
edueations

Br--The--program; --wherever-it-may-be-administratively-heuseds
must-be-elearty-identified-and--1abeled--as--a--psyehelegy
pregram:----Sueh--a--program--must--speeify--in--pertinent
tRstitutional--catalegues--and--brochures--its--intent--te
edueate-and-train-prefessienal-psyeholoegistss

€r--The--psychotegy--pregram--must--stand--as--a-reeognizables
eoherent-erganizatienal-entity-within-the-institutiens

d:--There-must-be-a-etear-authority-and-primary-responsibility
for-the-cere--and--speeialty--areas--whether--er--pot--the
program-cuts-aeross-admintstrative-1iness

es--The--pregram--must-be-an-integrated;-erganized-sequence-of
studys

fr--There--must--be--an--identifiable-psychelogy-faeulty-and-a
psychelegist-respensibie-for-the-programs

g:--The-program-must-have-an-identifiable-bedy-ef-students-whe
are-matrieulated-in-that-pregram-fer-a-degrees

R:--FThe-program-must-inelude-supervised-practicum; -internships
field;-or-laberatery-training-apprepriate-te-the--praetiece
ef-psyeholegys

j:--The--edurriculum-must-eneompass-a-minimum-ef-three-academie
years-of-full-time-resident-graduate-studys---Iin--additien
te--instPuEtion--in-seientific-and-professional-ethies-and
standards;-researeh-design--and--methedelogys--statistiess
and--psyeRemetries;--the--ceore--program--must-require-each
student-te-demonstrate-cempetence-in-each-of-the-folleowing
substantive--content-areas---This-typically-wili-be-met-by
tneluding-a-minimum-of -three-er-more-graduate-hours--{five
er--mere--graduate--quarter--heurs}--in-each-of -these-four
substantive-content-areass

{1}--Bielegical----basis---ef---behavier:----physietegicat
psyehelegys-comparative-psycholegy;--neuropsychetogys
senrsation-and-pereception;-psychepharmacology-

{2}--Cegnitive-affeective--basis--of--behavier:---learnings
thinking;-metivatien;-emotiens
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{33--Seetat--basis--ef-behavier:--seeial-psyehelogy;-group
precessess-ergantzatienat-and-systems-theery:

{4}--individualt--differenees:---persenatity--theory;-human
development;-abrermal-psyehetegy-

Training in_ professional psychology is doctoral training

sponsored by an institution of higher education accredited
by a nationally recognized regional accrediting body in
the United States or, in the case of Canadian programs,
the institution is publicly recognized by the association
of universities and colleges of Canada as a member in good

standing.

The program, wherever it may be administratively housed,

must be clearly identified and labeled as a psychology
program. Such a program must specify in pertinent
institutional catalogs and brochures the explicit
philosophy of training by which it intends to prepare
students for the practice of psychology and its intent to
educate and train professional psychologists. The
program's philosophy, educational model, and curriculum
plan should be substantially consistent with the mission,
goals, and culture of the program's sponsor institution.
They must also be consistent with the principle of the
discipline that psychological practice is based on the
science of psychology, which, in turn, is influenced by
the professional practice of psychology.

The psychology program must be an integral part of the

mission of the academic department, college, school, or
institution in which it resides. It must be represented
in the institution's operating budget and plans in a
manner designed to enable the program to achieve its goals
and objectives.

There must be a clear authority and primary responsibility

for the core and specialty areas whether or not the
program cuts across administrative lines.

The program must be an integrated, organized sequence of

study that is sequential, cumulative, and graded in
complexity and designed to prepare students for further
organized training.

There must be an identifiable core (i.e., full-time)

psychology faculty and a psychologist responsible for the
program.

The program must have an identifiable body of students who

are matriculated in the program for a degree. There must
be a sufficient number of such students and the facilities
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necessary to ensure meaningful peer interaction, support,
and socialization.

The program must include supervised practicum, internship,

field, or laboratory training appropriate to the practice
of psychology. To this end the program should:

(1) Place students in settings that are clearly committed
to training, supervise students using an adequate
number of appropriate professionals, and provide a
wide range of training and educational experiences
through applications of empirically supported
intervention procedures;

(2) Integrate the practicum component of the students'
education and training with the other elements of the
program and provide adequate forums for the
discussion of practicum experiences; and

(3) Ensure that the sequencing, duration, nature, and
content of these experiences are both appropriate for
and consistent with the program's immediate and
long-term training goals and objectives.

The curriculum must encompass a minimum of three academic

years of full-time resident graduate study. In addition,
the program must specify education and training goals in
terms of the competencies expected of its graduates.
Those competencies must be consistent with the program's
philosophy and training model, the substantive areas of
professional psychology for which the program prepares
students, and an understanding of professional issues,
including ethical, legal, and quality assurance

principles.

In achieving 1its objectives, the program has and

implements a clear and coherent curriculum plan that
provides the means whereby all students can acquire and
demonstrate substantial understanding of and competence in
the following areas:

(1) The breadth of scientific psychology, its history of
thought and development, its research methods, and
its applications. To achieve this end, the students
shall be exposed to the current body of knowledge in
at least the following areas:

(a) Biological aspects of behavior;

(b) Cognitive and affective aspects of behavior;

(c) Social aspects of behavior;
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(2)

(d) History and systems of psychology:

(e) Psychological measurement;

(f) Research methodology; and

(g) Techniques of data ana]ysié;

The scientific, methodological, and theoretical

foundations of practice in the substantive areas of
professional psychology in which the program has it
training emphasis. To achieve this end, the students
shall be exposed to the current body of knowledge in
at least the following areas:

(a) Individual differences in behavior;

(b) Human development;

(c) Dysfunctional behavior or psychopathology: and

(d) Professional standards and ethics;

Diagnosing and defining problems through

(4)

psychological assessment and measurement and
formulating and implementing intervention strategies,
including training in empirically supported
procedures. To achieve this end, the students shall
be exposed to the current body of knowledge in at
least the following areas:

(a) Theories and methods of assessment and
diagnosis;

(b) Effective intervention;

(c) Consultation and supervision; and

(d) Evaluating the efficacy of interventions;

Issues of cultural and individual diversity that are

(5)

relevant to all of the above; and

Attitudes essential for lifelong learning, scholarly

In addition, all

inquiry, and professional problem solving as
psychologists in the context of an evolving body of
scientific and professional knowledge.

professional education programs in psychology must

include course requirements in specialty areas.

History: Effective March 1, 1985; amended effective April 1, 1988;

September 1, 2000.
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General Authority: NDCC 43-32-08
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-32-20

66-02-01-13. Psychology resident. A person intending to perform
services as a psychology resident shall inform the board on a form
prepared by the board. A psychology resident may sit for the required
written examination if the required application and fee have been filed
with the board and the board determines the psychology resident to be
eligible for licensure upon completion of examination and postdoctoral
requirements. A psychology resident who has passed the written
examination may sit for the oral examination after completion of six
months of residency if the required application and fee have been filed
with the board. The psychology resident and supervising psychologist or
psychologists must complete a report of completed supervised
postdoctoral experience for approval of the board prior to licensure. A
person may have psychology resident status for up to five years.

History: Effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-32-08
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-32-20, 43-32-20.1, 43-32-30

66-02-01-14. Nonpayment of annual 1license fee. If a licensed
psychologist fails to pay the annual fee by January first, the board
shall send a certified letter to that psychologist with notice of the
invalid status of the license and notice that the psychologist may not
practice psychology in the state of North Dakota unless the license is
renewed by payment of the annual renewal fee and late fee.

History: Effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-32-08
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-32-13, 43-32-14
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CHAPTER 66-02-02

66-02-02-01. General equivalency requirements. If the applicant
is applying for licensure under the equivalency provision described in
subsection 3 of North Dakota Century Code section 43-32-20, all
provisions of this chapter must be met as judged by the board ef
psychelegist--examiners. The substantial portion of the applicant's
doctorate program must be in an organized program within the department
deemed equivalent to a department of psychology and deemed equivalent to
coursework in a psychology program, as Jjudged by the board ef
psyehelegist-examiners.

History: Amended effective April 1, 1988; September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-32-08
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-32-20

66-02-02-02. Letter from department chairperson. If the school
or college of which the degree is obtained also has a department of
psychology at a graduate level offering a doctorate in psychology, the
applicant shall present a letter from that department and the
applicant's own department chairperson attesting to the fact that the
coursework in the candidate's program is substantially psychological in
nature. The letter will be given great evidentiary weight by the board
ef-psyehelegist-examiners in judging the candidate's program.

History: Amended effective March 1, 1985; September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-32-08
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-32-20

66-02-062-03. Documentation of training and coursework. There
must-be-training-in-the-speeifie-skitls-related-to-the--speeiatty--whieh
the--appticant--desires-te-practiee: There must be documented evidence,
in the form illustrated in the appendix to this chapter, of the
eeursewerk--eonsidered-equivatent;-substantiatiy-graduate-tevel;-in-four
er-mere-of-the--fellewing--areas:---}earning;--persenatity;--statisties;
researeh--design;--psychelegical-test-theery;-abrermal-and-developmentat
psyehelegy;-physielegical-psyehetegy;-educational-psychetoegy;-industrial
psyehelegy;--and--seetal--and-therapeutie-theery-er-technigue-as-fotiews
following:

1:--The--eurricuium--must--eneempass--a--minimum-of-three-academie
years-of-full-time-resident-graduate-study-

2:--1n--additien--te--instruction--in--seientifie-and-prefessienat
ethies--and--standards;--researeh--design---and---methedotogys
statisties--and--psychemetries;--the-eore-program-must-require
each--student--to--demenstrate--competence--in--each--of---the
follewing--substantive--eontent-areas:--This-typieatiy-witi-be
met-By-ineluding-a-minimum-of-three-er-more-graduate--semester
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Reurs--{five--er-mere-graduate-quarter-hours}-+n-each-of-these
feur-substantive-eontent-areass

a---Bietegical--basis--ef-behavier:--physielegical-psychelegy;
€emparative--psychetegy;--neurepsyehelegy;--sensation--and
pereeption;-psychepharmacelegy=

br--Cegnitive-affeetive----basis---of---beRaviers----learAings
thtrking;-metivation;-emetions

€x--Seetat---basis--ef--behavier:---seeial--psyehetegy;--greup
precesses;-ergantzational-and-systems-theerys

d---individual---differencess----persenatity---theery;---human
development;-abrermal-psyehelegy-

The--deeumentation--sheuld-be-in-the-form-i}iustrated-in-the-appendix-te
this-ehapters

1.

The doctoral training must be sponsored by an institution of

higher education accredited by a nationally recognized
regional accrediting body in the United States or, in the case
of Canadian programs, the institution must be publicly
recognized by the association of universities and colleges of
Canada as a member in good standing.

The program must be an integral part of the mission of the

academic department, college, school, or institution in which

it resides. It must be represented in the institution's
operating budget and plans in a manner designed to enable the
program to achieve its goals and objectives.

There must be a clear authority and primary responsibility for

the core and specialty areas whether or not the program cuts
across administrative lines.

The program must be an integrated, organized sequence of study

that is sequential, cumulative and grading in complexity and
designed to prepare students for further organized training.

There must be an identifiable core (i.e., full-time faculty

with a director, <chair, or head whom is <clearly
administratively responsible for the functioning of the

grogrami .

The program must have an identifiable body of students who are

matriculated in the program for a degree. There must be a
sufficient number of such students and the facilities
necessary to ensure meaningful peer interaction, support, and
socialization.
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The program must include supervised practicum, internship,

field, or laboratory training appropriate to the practice of
psychology. To this end the program should:

a. Place students in settings that are clearly committed to
training, supervise students using an adequate number of
appropriate professionals, and provide a wide range of
training and educational experiences through applications
of empirically supported intervention procedures;

b. Integrate the practicum component of the students'
education and training with the other elements of the
program and provide adequate forums for the discussion of
practicum experience; and

c. Ensure that the sequencing, duration, nature, and content
of these experiences are both appropriate for and
consistent with the program's immediate and long-term
training goals and objectives.

The curriculum must encompass a minimum of three academic

years of full-time resident graduate study. The program must
specify education and training goals in terms of the
competencies expected of its graduates. Those competencies
must be consistent with the program's philosophy and training
model, the substantive areas of professional psychology for
which the program prepares students, and an understanding of
professional issues, including ethical, Jlegal, and quality
assurance principles.

In achieving its objectives, the program has and implements a

clear and coherent curriculum plan that provides the means
whereby all students can acquire and demonstrate substantial
understanding of and competence in the following areas:

a. The breadth of scientific psychology, its history of
thought and development, its research methods, and its
applications. To achieve this end, the students shall be
exposed to the current body of knowledge in at least the
following areas:

(1) Biological aspects of behavior;

(2) Cognitive and affective aspects of behavior;

(3) Social aspects of behavior;

(4) History and systems of psychology;

(5) Psychological measurement;

(6) Research methodology; and
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(7) Techniques of data analysis;

b. The scientific, methodological, and theoretical
foundations of practice in the substantive areas in which
the program has its training emphasis. To achieve this
end, the students shall be exposed to the current body of
knowledge in at least the following areas:

(1) Individual differences in behavior;

(2) Human development;

(3) Dysfunctional behavior or psychopathology: and

(4) Professional standards and ethics;

c. Diagnosing and defining problems through psychological
assessment and measurement and formulating and
implementing intervention strategies, including training
in empirically supported procedures. To achieve this end,
the students shall be exposed to the current body of
knowledge in at least the following areas:

(1) Theories and methods of assessment and diagnosis;

(2) Effective intervention;

(3) Consultation and supervision; and

(4) Evaluating the efficiency of interventions;

d. Issues of cultural and individual diversity that are
relevant to all of the above; and

e. Attitudes essential for 1lifelong learning, scholarly
inquiry, and professional problem solving in the context
of an evolving body of scientific and professional

knowledge.

History: Amended effective March 1, 1985; April 1, 1988; September 1,
2000.

General Authority: NDCC 43-32-08

Law Implemented: NDCC 43-32-20

66-02-02-04. Additional documentation for clinical work or
counseling or therapy. Fer-an-applicant-desiring-te-de-elinical-werk-er
previde--eounseling--er--therapy;--there--must-be-additional-evidence-of
training-in-applying-academie-eourse-eentent-in-a-serviee-setting---Fhis
must--inelude--therapy;--diagresis;-intelligencefpersenatity-testings-or
ether-specialized-examination--procedures;--and--a--retevant--supervised
interAship--ef--ret-less-than-twelve-menths-full-time- {forty-hour-week}-
The--internship--sheuld--be--supervised--by--a---1ieensed---psyehelegist
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practieing--in--the--destgnated--spectatity----The--documentation-of-the
additienal-evidence-of-training-must-be-a-detailed--deseription--ef--the
tRterRship--as--te--the--setting;--nrature-ef-elients;-preeisely-what-the
appticantis-reutine-was;-hew-the-applicant-was-supervised-as-well-as-the
ameuRt--8f--supervisien;--what-skitls-were-expesed-te-the-applicants-and
the-speeifie-skitis-in-which-the-apptieant-is-prefieient: As part of
the program, the applicant must have completed two thousand hours of
supervised internship and two thousand hours of supervised postdoctoral
experience. Internship and postdoctoral experience supervision must be
provided by a licensed psychologist or licensed psychologists practicing
in the areas of competence claimed by the applicant. At least one
hundred hours of supervision at each level is required, at least fifty
of which must be one to one at each level. Successful completion of an
American psychological association accredited internship or accredited
postdoctoral program will be accepted as fulfilling these requirements,
respectively. Any other supervised experience must be described in
detail by the applicant, including nature of service setting or
settings, nature of consumers served, nature and amount of supervision,
and specific skills in which the applicant demonstrated proficiency.
The supervisor or supervisors must corroborate the areas of competence
claimed by the applicant.

History: Amended effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-32-08
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-32-20

243



OUTLINE FOR DOCUMENTING PRINGIPLE 1 COURSEWORK

The applicant must document the aforementioned prineiple(s) coursework by specifying the following information for
each:

COLLEGE | DEPARTMENT | COURSE CATALOG TEXT NAME & | *INSTRUCTOR | *ACADEMIC
TITLE DESCRIPTION AUTHOR AREA

* Full name; and highest degree;-#

**Academic area as listed in Prineiple HI section 66-02-02-03(9).
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CHAPTER 66-02-03

66-02-03-01. Application of chapter. This chapter pertains to
all federal, state, county, amd or municipal agencies, political
subdivisions, nonprofit corporations, and educational institutions
chartered by North Dakota which employ psychologists. North Dakota
Century Code chapter 43-32 provides for the licensing of psychologists
who hold a doctoral degree in psychology or have training deemed
equivalent by the board. Exemptions to any employee of the above
agencies whe for hardship or other good cause or when the employee holds
a master's degree in psychology and whese the employee's activities and
services are performed under the supervision of a licensed psychologist
may be requested from the board of psychologist examiners.

History: Amended effective September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-32-08
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-32-30

66-02-03-02. Application for exemption. Exeept--foer--these
trdividuats-deseribed-in-subseetions-2;-3;-and-4 An employer seeking an
exemption extension under subsection 1 of North Dakota Century Code
section 43-32-30;-any-itndividuat-whe-i1s-net-1ieensed--by--the--beard--of
psychelegist--examiners--and--whe-plans-te-use-the-title-psyechelegist-er
the-werd-psyeholegical-in-the-job-er-prefessienat-titie--the--individual
appties--te--enese}f--must-comply-with-Nerth-Daketa-Century-Code-chapter
43-32-and-this-ehapter---The must file an application for exemption, a
copy of which 1is an appendix to this chapter;-must-be-cempieted. Fhe
ageney-empleying-the-psyehelegist-must--complete--the--form--for--anyene
HS¥Rg---the---title---of--psyechotegist--er--the--term--psychotegist--and
psyehelegical-and-net-1ieensable--by--the--beard: The institution or
agency completing the application will be billed fifty dollars fer-eaeh
exempted-employee:--AR-annual-renewal-fee-of--thirty--dotlars--for--each
exempted--empleyee--will--be--charged--thereafter:---The-apptication-for
exemptien-sheutd-be-sent-tos.
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Ruth-Smith;-Seeretary
Yniversity-af-Nerth-Baketa
Psyehelegy-Bepartment
Uriversity-Statien---Bex-7187
Grand-Ferks;-Nerth-Baketa--58202

History: Amended effective March 1, 1985; September 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 43-32-08
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-32-30

66-02-03-03. Issuance of certificate of exemption. A certificate
of exemption will be issued to the agency or institution on an annual
basis. The certificate will include the names of exempted employees.
If the employee transfers agencies or institutions during the year of
licensure, the certificate of exemption dees--net-transfer-with-the
employee expires. The--nrew--Riring--administration--must--initiate--the
precedure--again--iA--terms--of--the-new-jeb-deseription-and-supervising
arrangementss--Similariys;-an An agency or institution may not transfer a
certificate of exemption to a new employee without going through the
board ef-psyehelegist-examiners with the appropriate application and
supporting documents.

History: Amended effective September 1, 2000,
General Authority: NDCC 43-32-08
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-32-30
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CHAPTER 66-03-01

66-03-01-03. Board approval. Any continuing education program
relevant to psychology and to be applied as continuing education credits
must receive prior board approval, except continuing education programs
sponsored or approved by the American psychological association, the
Canadian psychological association, the North Dakota psychological
association, other state or provincial psychological associations, or
any other scientific or professional organization whose continuing
education program is clearly relevant to the reeds--ef--the--speeifie
psyehetegist practice of psychology. Eaeh--year-with-the-retice-fer
lieense-renewal;-the-beard-shatl-previde-a-1ist-ef-continuing--education
pregrams-that-are-acceptable-to-the-boeard-as-ef-the-date-of-the-matiing:
Other programs may be approved at any time by the board by submission of
an application by the sponsoring organization and payment of a
twenty-five dollar fee.

History: Effective February 1, 1995; amended effective September 1,
2000.

General Authority: NDCC 43-32-08
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-32-08, 43-32-08.1

66-03-01-04. Categories of continuing education programs and
credits. The board recognizes the following categories of continuing
education programs or activities and established credit hours:

1. Category A formal activities, a minimum of twenty credits per
reporting cycle.

a. Formal continuing education programs that may consist of
courses, workshops, or institutes. The number of
continuing education credits assigned by an association
recognized by the board will be accepted. Otherwise the
credits will be one credit per clock-hour.

b. Attendance at conventions including national,
international, regional, state or provincial, and substate
associations of psychologists. If a convention other than
a psychological convention is attended for credit, prior
approval must be obtained from the board. One credit is
allowed per each two clock-hours of meeting. A maximum of
ten credits is allowed per reporting cycle.

2. Category B other activities.
a. Regularly scheduled postgraduate courses offered by an
accredited college or university which are relevant to the

professional growth and development of the applicant. One
quarter hour of academic credit constitutes ten continuing
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educa?ion crgdits. One semester hour of academic credit
constitutes fifteen continuing education credits.

b. Writing or speaking, including a paper or other
presentation at a formal professional meeting, a paper
published in a professional journal, or a book or an
original chapter in an edited book in the area of
psychology or a related field. Credit will be granted for
the year of publication or presentation in the case of a
paper. Continuing education credits will be granted at
the rate of five for each paper or presentation, ten for
each chapter in a book, fifteen for editing a book, and
twenty for the publication of a book.

c. Other areas of professional development not covered in the
foregoing categories, but deemed by the board to be worthy
of continuing education credit. Such a determination must
be made on an individual basis, including the number of
credits granted.

d. 7Fhe-beard-dees-ret-reeegrize-eorrespendence Correspondence
courses, tapes, or independent readingss;-uriess-these--are
speetfieatty approved by the board or by one of the
associations recognized by the board which include an
examination  component  successfully completed by the
licensee.

History: Effective February 1, 1995; amended effective September 1,
2000.

General Authority: NDCC 43-32-08
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-32-08

66-03-01-06. Failure to comply with the continuing education
requirement. If, after the opportunity for a formal hearing, a
psychologist does not satisfy the number of credits required for a
two-year cycle, the board may exercise the following options:

1. Extension of time to complete the requirement. A psychologist
may request an extension of time because of illness or serious
extenuating circumstances amounting to good cause. The
approval of an extension and the amount of time granted to
complete the requirements are at the sole discretion of the
board. In such cases the psychologist will be required to
continue to fulfill the continuing education requirement for
the next two-year cycle as well.

2. Refuse to renew a license. A license that is not renewed
because of failure to meet the continuing education
requirements will be renewed if, within one year from the date
of nonrenewal, the licenseholder demonstrates to the secretary
of the board the continuing education requirements have been

248



satisfied and pays the renewal fee and a late fee of twenty
dollars.

3. Place the license on probationary status.

|=

Suspension of_ a license until such time as the psychologist
meets the requirements of the previous two-year cycle, but not
to exceed a second two-year cycle.

|U1

Revocation of a license. In the event of license suspension
for noncompletion of continuing education requirements, if the
psychologist does not complete the requirements during the
period of suspension, the license may be revoked.

=

Reinstatement. A psychologist whose license has been revoked
for failing to satisfy the continuing education requirements
must earn forty credits in continuing education, including at
least twenty in category A, during the immediately preceding
two-year period in order to apply to the board for
reinstatement.

History: Effective February 1, 1995; amended effective September 1,

2000.

General Authority: NDCC 43-32-08
Law Implemented: NDCC 43-32-88 43-32-08.1, 43-32-08.2

66-03-01-07. Agencies and individual licensure exemptions. A}}

ef-the-provisions-ef-this-chapter-apply-for-renewatl-of--exemptions--that
have-beer-granted-By-the-beard-with-these-exeeptienss

1:--The--reperting--eyete--i1s--ene-year;-not-twe-as-in-the-ease-of
}ieensed-psyehelegists:--The-reperting--eyele--correspends--te
the-ealendar-year;-beginning-danuary-1;-1993;-er-danuary-first
of-the-year-follewing-the-year--in--which--the--exemption--was
granteds:

2:--The--tetal}--number--ef-eredits-to-be-earned-in-the-ene-year-is
twentys

3:--The--minimum- -RumBer--of--eredits--to--be-earned-in-categery-A
during-the-reporting-eyele-is-tens-at-teast-five-of-which-must
be--frem-activities-deseribed-in-subdivisien-a-ef-subseetion-1
of-seetion-66-03-01-04+

4:--The--respensibility--for-insuring-the-completion-of-continuing
education-credits;-reperting-to-the-beard;-and--matntatning--a
file--of--continuing--education-verification-for-the-exemptien
empleyee-+s--with--the--ageney--te--which--the--exemption--was
granted: Repealed effective September 1, 2000.

History: Effeetive-February-1;-1995-
General Authority: NBEE-43-32-68
Law Implemented: NBEE-43-32-88
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AUGUST 2000

CHAPTER 69-07-02

69-07-02-02.1. Grain buyer - Bond schedule. The grain buyer bond
is determined by the three-year rolling average of grain purchased
annually in this state by the grain buyer. The bond amounts are:

Up to 505006 100,000 bushels $50,000
For each additional 100,000 bushels or $20,000

fraction thereof in excess of 505606
100,000 and up to 1,000,000

For each additional 100,000 bushels or $5,000
fraction thereof in excess of 1,000,000

For a new licensee, the first year's bond shall be based on the
projected purchase volume and the second year's bond and third year's
bond shall be based on the average actual volume according to the above
schedule.

Unless the commission determines that an increase is necessary to
accomplish the purpose of North Dakota Century Code chapter 606-02.1, the
bond of a facility-based grain buyer shall not exceed one million
dollars nor shall the bond of a non-facility-based grain buyer exceed
one million five hundred thousand dollars.

History: Effective August 1, 1999; amended effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 60-062.1-03
Law Implemented: NDCC 60-02.1-03, 66-02.1-08
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CHAPTER 69-09-03

69-09-03-02. Adoption of regulations. The following parts of
title 49, Code of Federal Regulations in effect as of January 1, 1999
2000, are adopted by reference:

1. Part 190 - Department of Transportation Pipeline
Safety Enforcement Procedures.
2. Part 191 - Department of Transportation Regulations
for Transportation of Natural Gas by
Pipeline; Reports of Leaks.
3. Part 192 - Transportation of Natural and Other Gas
by Pipeline: Minimum Safety Standards.
4, Part 199 - Control of Drug Use in Natural Gas, Liquefied

Natural Gas and Hazardous Liquids Pipelines.
Copies of these regulations may be obtained from:

Public Service Commission
State-capitei

600 Fast Boulevard, Dept. 408
Bismarck, Nerth-Baketa ND 58505-0480

History: Effective June 1, 1984; amended effective July 1, 1986;
January 1, 1988; March 1, 1990; February 1, 1992; August 1, 1993;
August 1, 1994; February 1, 1996; July 1, 1997; July 1, 1998;
September 1, 1999; August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02
Law Implemented: NDCC 49-02-01.2
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CHAPTER 69-10-01

69-10-01-01. Definitions. As used in this chapter:

1

10.

"Automatic bulk weighing system" means a weighing system which
weighs grain in successive drafts, automatically records the
no-load and loaded weight values, and accumulates the net
weight of each draft.

"BaFching scale" means a noncommercial weighing or measuring
device used to determine, in part, the amount of an ingredient
in a finished, manufactured commodity.

“Cgrtify" means to seal, if upon testing and inspection, a
weighing or measuring device is within the permitted tolerance
and properly installed.

“Commerce" means the distribution or consumption of
quantities, things, produce, commodities, or articles which
may be offered or submitted by any person for sale or hire.

"Equipment repair notice tag" means a tag that allows a device
to be operated for thirty days from its inspection date while
repairs are being made to that device. The tag may be used
only when the tolerance is Tless than 0.5 percent for a
measuring device or one scale division for a weighing device.
The tag becomes a rejection tag if the device is not repaired
and placed into service within thirty days.

“Liquid or LPG computing pump" means a device that provides
fuel or LPG to a consumer.

"NIST" means the United States department of commerce,
national institute of standards and technology.

"Not sealed" means a sticker or seal applied to a device which
has not been inspected and tested, does not meet applicable
design or tolerance requirements, or is no longer being used
commercially. A device that is not sealed shall not be used
in commerce.

"Random testing" means the random retesting and
recertification by a weights and measures inspector of any
weighing or measuring device being tested under the
self-certification rules.

"Registered service person" means a person or agency
authorized by the commission to remove an official rejection
seal placed on a weighing or measuring device or to repair and
certify weighing and measuring devices described in North
Dakota Century Code section 64-02-13.
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11. "Rejected for repair" means a sticker or seal applied to a
device which has been inspected and tested and does not meet
applicable design or tolerance requirements. A device that is
rejected for repair shall be modified or repaired by a
registered service person within thirty days of the date it
was rejected and may not be used in commerce until placed into
service.

12. "Retail fuel device" means a commercial, indicating fuel pump

used to deliver fuel to individual highway vehicles in
quantities of one hundred gallons [378.54 liters] or less per
transaction.

12:--“Seeurity----seal’----means----eithep----a---}ead---and---wire
pressure-sensitive-seat;-a-ptastie-and-wire-pressure-sensitive
seat;-er-a-sealing-stieker;-permanently-attached-to-a-weighing
er-measHring-deviee-te--prevent--unautherized--aeeess--te--the
toleranee-adjusting-mechanisms-ef-that-deviees

13. "Seal" means marking a weighing or measuring device to show
certification or rejection.

14. "Security seal” means either a Jlead and wire

pressure-sensitive seal, a plastic and wire pressure-sensitive
seal, or a sealing sticker, permanently attached to a weighing
or measuring device to prevent unauthorized access to the
tolerance adjusting mechanisms of that device.

15. "Single draft weighing" means simultaneously weighing each end
of a vehicle or individual elements of coupled combination
vehicles.

16. "Split-weighing" means determining the weight of a vehicle,
combination vehicle, or a commodity by adding together the
results obtained by separately and not simultaneously weighing
each end of such vehicle or individual elements of such
coupled combinations.

17. "Standard" means test equipment used for certifying weighing
or measuring devices.

18. "Variance" means a temporary or permanent suspension of a
particular rule granted to an owner or operator of a
commercial weighing or measuring device because of an economic
hardship, a site restriction requiring modification to the
design or installation of a device, or a special installation
or operational condition, to be determined by the commission
on a case-by-case basis.

19. "Weights and measures inspector" means a commission employee

in the testing and safety division performing duties set by
the commission.
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History: Amended effective April 1, 1992; August 1, 1993; September 1,
1994; February 1, 1996; July 1, 1997; July 1, 1998; August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 64-02-03

Law Implemented: NDCC 64-02-03

69-10-01-09. Bulk Tliquid fuel meters. A--nrewly-marufactured
}iguid-fuet-meter-placed-inte-serviee-en-er-after-danuary-1;--2600;--fer
use--iA--the--sale-ef-all-types-oef-buik-1iguid-fuels;-ineluding-aviatien
fuels;-must-be-equipped--with--a--ticket--printing--device--meeting--the
reguirements--of--NiST--Handbook--Ne--44: Repealed effective August 1,
2000.

History: Effeetive--August-1;--1993:--amended--effective--duly-15;-199%s
Beteber-1;-1999-

General Authority: NBEE-64-82-03

Law Implemented: NDEE-64-82-82;-64-62-13
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CHAPTER 69-10-02

69-10-02-15. Counter computing scales. A-eeunter-ecomputing-seale
manufactured-before-Jdanuary-1;-1986;-and-used-fer-commercial-trade--must
meet--the-applicable-requirements-of-NiST-Handbeek-Ne:-44;5-by-dannary-is
1999 Repealed effective August 1, 2000.

History: Effeetive-August-1;-1993:-amended-effective-September-15-19942
duty-15-1997+

General Authority: NBEE-64-62-83

Law Implemented: NBEE-64-02-82;-64-62-13

69-10-02-19. Single-draft weighing - Exceptions. It shall be
unlawful to weigh a vehicle or a combination vehicle in any method other
than the single-draft method, as outlined in the Natierail-Iinstitute-eof
Standards-and-Feehnotegy NIST Handbook No. 44, section 2.20. scales,
UR.3.3., Single-draft Vehicle Weighing, except for the following:

1. When the sale of the commodity being weighed is determined by
destination weight;

2. For a motor truck or motor truck dump scale installed prior to
April 1, 1965; or

3. For a motor truck or motor truck dump scale installed after
April 1, 1965, provided a split-weigh variance has first been
granted by the commission under section 69-10-01-04.2, and the
parties involved have complied with section 69-10-02-206 prior
to split-weighing.

History: Effective February 1, 1996; amended effective August 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 64-02-03
Law Implemented: NDCC 64-02-02, 64-02-03, 64-02-04
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CHAPTER 69-10-03

69-10-83-01. National institute of standards and technology
(NIST) Handbook MNo. 44. Except as modified in this article, the
specifications, tolerances, and other technical requirements for
commercial weighing and measuring devices in North Dakota shall conform
to the following sections and subsections of the 3998 1999 edition of
the United States department of commerce, NIST Handbook No. 44, which is
adopted by reference: all of section 1, all of section 2, subsections
3.30, 3.31 (except UR.2.2. and UR.2.3.), 3.32 (except UR.2.5. and
UR.2.6.), 3.33, 3.35, and 3.37 of section 3, subsections 5.50, 5.51,
and 5.52 of section 5, and, all of appendices A, B, C, and D. In the
event of a conflict between the NIST Handbook No. 44 and North Dakota
laws and rules, North Dakota laws and rules shall prevail. Copies of
the handbook may be obtained from the-publie-serviece-eommissiens-state
capitel;-Bismarek;-North-Daketa-58505-0486-:

Public Service Commission
600 East Boulevard, Dept. 408
Bismarck, ND 58505-0480

History: Amended effective October 1, 1988; December 1, 1990;
February 1, 1992; August 1, 1993; September 1, 1994; February 1, 1996;
July 1, 1997; July 1, 1998; October 1, 1999; August 1, 20060.

General Authority: NDCC 64-02-03 '

Law Implemented: NDCC 64-02-07
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JULY 2000

CHAPTER 71-61-062

71-01-02-03. Candidate eligibility.

1.

History:

Any active employee of a department of the state of North
Dakota, or a political subdivision, who participates in the
North Dakota public employees retirement system may become a
candidate for election to the board #f--that--department--or
pelitieal--subdivisien--i5--net--currently--represented-en-the
retirement-beard-by-a-beard-member-not--up--for--eteetion. A
department or political subdivision may not be represented by
more than one elected member.

Any person, as of the first day of July of the election year,
who is receiving a retirement benefit or who is eligible to
receive deferred vested retirement benefits, may become a
candidate for the retiree member to the board.

Effective April 1, 1992; amended effective July 1, 1994;

July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 54-52-04, 54-52-17(5)

Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52-03

71-01-02-04. Election notification.

1.

The director of the North Dakota public employees retirement
system shall ensure that notification of an active member
vacancy and the election is given to all employees through
publication of a notice in the North Dakota public employees
retirement system newsletter at least three weeks in advance
of a filing date for nomination petitions. The director shall
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History:

General Authority: NDCC 54-52-04

retify ensure that notification of the vacancy of a retiree
member and the election is given to all persons receiving
retirement benefits ef--the--retiree--member-vacaney-and-the
eteetien or who are eligible to receive deferred vested
retirement benefits through publication of a notice in the
North Dakota public employees retirement system newsletter at
least three weeks in advance of a filing date for nomination
petitions.

Thg notice must include a statement of voter and candidate
eligibility, the candidate nomination requirements, the date
of election, and where to obtain the nomination petitions for
filing.

Effective April 1, 1992; amended effective July 1, 2000.

Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52-03

71-01-02-06. Procedure for completing and filing petitions.

1,

No public service or funds may be used by the candidates to
promote their election except as permitted by the employing
agency.

Nomination petitions must be filed with the North Dakota
public employees retirement system no later than four p.m. on
the first Friday of Mays; and must be validated by the election
committee or their representatives following the filing
deadline and prior to ballots being distributed.

Nomination petitions not furnished by the North Dakota public
employees retirement system will be accepted provided they are
submitted in the prescribed form.

A candidate may withdraw his--er--her that candidate's
nomination petition By-previding up until the time the ballots
are printed. The notice must be in writings and duly
witnessed;-and-reeeived-By-the-Nerth-Baketa--publie--empieyees
retirement--system-ne-tater-than-five-p:m:=-on-the-third-Friday
ef-May.

Nomination petitions sheuld may be accompanied by a three-inch
[76.20-mi1limeter] by five-inch [127.00-millimeter] btaek--ard
white photograph of the candidate and a narrative not to
exceed ere two hundred twemty-five words. The narrative must
be signed to be valid. The absence of a photo or narrative
will not invalidate the candidate's eligibility, but only the
candidate's name will then appear with the other eardidates
candidates' information whieh that accompanies the ballots.
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History:

General Authority: NDCC 54-52-04

The retirement board or its representative reserves the right
to edit lengthy narratives to the ere two hundred twerty-five
word 1imit. Board decisions are final.

The board or its representative wi}} shall inform all
candidates of the validation of their candidacy by first-class
United States mail.

Effective April 1, 1992; amended effective July 1, 2000.

Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52-03

71-01-02-07. Election ballots.

|

Ballots must be prepared by the North Dakota public employees
retirement system staff in accordance with the election rules.

Ballots must be printed on postcards with return postage
supplied and will be mailed to all eligible voters with a
narrative on candidates who have provided that information to
the North Dakota public employees retirement system.

Ballots must first be arranged with the names of each
candidate on the ballot, in an order determined by 1lot. In
printing the ballots, the position of the names must be
changed as many times as there are candidates' names on the
ballot. The change must be accomplished by taking the name at
the head of the ballot and placing it at the bottom and moving
the name that was second before the change to the head of the
names on the ballot. The same number of ballots must be
printed after each change of position so as to result in an
equal number of ballots with each candidate's name at the head
of the ballot. The ballot must provide a space for write-in
candidates.

If there 1is only one candidate for an election, the election

History:

will nonetheless be conducted in compliance with the
provisions of this chapter.

Effective April 1, 1992; amended effective July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 54-52-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52-03

71-01-02-12. Penalties. A violation of any provision under this

chapter may result in one or more of the following penalties, as

determined by the board:

4>

A candidate's petitions may be declared void.

r

A candidate's nomination may be declared void.
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3. A candidate's election may be declared void.

4. Within thirty days of beginning an elected member's term in
office, the elected member may be removed.

History: Effective July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 54-52-04
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52-03
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CHAPTER 71-02-01

71-02-01-81. Definitions. As used in North Dakota Century Code
chapter 54-52 and this article:

1.

"Accumulated contributions" means the total of all of the
following:

a. The employee account fund balance accumulated under the
prior plan as of June 30, 1977.

b. The vested portion of the emp]oyee's' "vesting fund"
accumulated under the prior plan as of June 30, 1977.

c. The member's mandatory contributions made after July 1,
1977.

d. The member's vested employer contributions made after
January 1, 2000, pursuant to North Dakota Century Code
section 54-52-11.1.

|®

The interest on the sums determined under subdivisions a,
b, ard c, and d, compounded annually at the rate of five
percent from July 1, 1977, to June 30, 1981, six percent
from July 1, 1981, through June 30, 1986, and one-half of
one percent less than the actuarial interest assumption
from July 1, 1986, to the member's termination of
employment or retirement.

: f. The sum of any employee purchase or repurchase payments.

"Actuarial equivalent" means a benefit calculated to be of
equal value to the benefit otherwise payable when computed on
the basis of assumptions and methods adopted for this purpose
by the board.

"Alternative retirement system" means the teachers' fund for
retirement, the highway patrolmen's retirement system, and the
teachers' insurance and annuity association of America.

"Beneficiary" means any person in receipt of a benefit
provided by this plan or any person designated by a
participating member to receive benefits.

“Bonus" means cash compensation for services performed in
addition to base salary excluding commission and shift
differentials. Bonus does not include lump sum payments of
sick leave provided under North Dakota Century Code section
54-06-14 or Tump sum payments of annual leave or vacation pay.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

“Claim" means the right to receive a monthly retirement
a]]owance, the receiving of a retirement allowance, or the
receiving of a disability benefit.

"Continuously employed" means any period of employment
uninterrupted by voluntary or involuntary termination or
discharge. A member who has taken a leave of absence approved
by the member's employer, not to exceed a year unless approved
by the executive director, and returns to employment shall be
regarded as continuously employed for the period.

"Contribution" means the payment into the fund of nine and
twelve-hundredths percent of the salary of a member.

"County judge" means a judge who was elected pursuant to North
Dakota Century Code section 27-07.1-01 or an individual
holding the position of county judge, county justice, or judge
of county court prior to the general election in 1982, who
meet meets all the eligibility requirements established under
chapter 54-52.

"Interruption of employment” is when an individual is inducted
(enlists or is ordered or called to active duty into the armed
forces of the United States) and leaves an employment position
with a state agency or political subdivision, other than a
temporary position. The individual must have left employment
to enter active duty and must make application for

reemployment within ninety days of discharge under honorable
conditions.

"Leave of absence" means the period of time up to one year for
which an individual may be absent from covered employment
without being terminated. At the executive director's
discretion, the leave of absence may be extended not to exceed
two years.

“Medical consultant" means a person or committee appointed by
the board of the North Dakota public employees retirement
system to evaluate medical information submitted in relation
to disability applications, recertifications, and
rehabilitation programs or other such duties as assigned by
the board.

"0ffice® means the administrative office of the public
employees retirement system.

"Participating employer" means an employer who contributes to
the North Dakota public employees retirement system.

"Pay status" means a member is receiving a retirement
allowance from the fund.
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

2l.

22.

23.

24.

History:

"Permanent and total disability" means the inability to engage
in any substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically
determinable physical or mental impairment which can be
expected to result in death or has lasted or can be expected
to ;ast for a continuous period of not less than twelve
months.

“Plan administrator" means the executive director of the North
Dakota public employees retirement system or such other person
or committee as may be appointed by the board of the North
Dakota public employees retirement system from time to time.

“Plan year" means the twelve consecutive months commencing
July first of the calendar year and ending June thirtieth of
the subsequent calendar year.

“Prior plan" means the state employees' retirement system
which existed from July 1, 1966, to June 30, 1977.

"Regularly funded" means a legislatively authorized full-time
equivalent (FTE) position for state agencies. For all
governmental units other than state agencies, regularly funded
means a similar designation by the unit's governing board
which 1is created through the regular budgeting process and
receives traditional employee benefits such as sick leave and
annual leave.

“Retiree" means an individual receiving a monthly allowance
pursuant to chapter 54-52.

"Service credit" means increments of time to be used in the
calculation of retirement benefits. Service credit may be
earned as stated in section 71-02-03-01 or may be purchased or
repurchased according to section 71-02-03-02.1.

"Substantial gainful activity" is to be based upon the
totality of the circumstances includings consideration of an
individual's training, education, and experience;-their; an
individual's potential for earning at least seventy percent of
their the individual's predisability earnings; and other items
deemed significant on a case-by-case basis. Eligibility is
based on an individual's employability and not actual
employment status.

"Termination of employment" means a severance of employment by
not being on the payroll of a covered employer for a minimum
of one month. Approved leave of absence does not constitute
termination of employment.

Amended effective September 1, 1982; November 1, 1990;

September 1, 1991; January 1, 1992; September 1, 1992; June 1, 1993;
July 1, 1994; June 1, 1996; July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 54-52-04
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Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52
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CHAPTER 71-02-03

71-02-03-01.1. Noneligible service credit. Service credit will
not be granted te for:

1. Prior service if the member received a refund of contributions
after July 1, 1966, unless service has been repurchased in its
entirety.

2. Service if the member received a refund of contributions after
July 1, 1966, unless it is repurchased or purchased in its
entirety or in part as specified by the member.

3. Prior service for any member whose employer joined the
retirement system on or after July 1, 1977, unless purchased
for the member at the time the employer joined or unless
purchased by the member.

4. Service the member waived when transferring into the defined
contribution retirement plan, including service not yet
granted pursuant to section 71-02-03-01.

History: Effective November 1, 1990; amended effective April 1, 1992;
July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 54-52-04, 54-52-17

Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52-05, 54-52-17, 54-52-19.2

71-02-03-02.5. Costs. The cost must be calculated by applying
actuarial factors to the amount of retirement and retiree health
insurance credit being purchased by the member. The member's current
age, average salary as-ealeulated-urder--subseetion-2--of--Nerth--Baketa
Eentury--Eode--seetion--54-52-17, and current credited service on record
with the North Dakota public employees retirement system in the month in
which the member's written request is received must be used in the cost
calculation. The amount of retirement and retiree health insurance
credit being purchased must be calculated using the benefit formulas in
place at the time the written request is received from the member. When
calculating the cost, enhancements to the benefit formula must be
considered to be in place at the time the law is signed by the governor.

The member's average salary shall be calculated as follows:

1. For members working full time with more than twelve months of
service credit, by using the calculation found in subsection 2
of North Dakota Century Code section 54-52-17.

2. For members working full time with less than twelve months of
service credit, by using the calculation found in subsection 2
of North Dakota Century Code section 54-52-17, but
disregarding any month in which the member was paid less than
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a full-month salary. A full-month salary is the compensation
the member and the member's employer agreed the member would
be paid for working a full month.

3. For members who have not yet received a full-month salary, the
member's average salary shall equal the member's full-month
salary, as defined in subsection 2.

4. For members working part time, by using the applicable
calculations found in subsections 1 and 2, but using a monthly
salary equal to the equivalent of the salary the member would
have received if the member was working full time.

The retirement board must adopt actuarial assumptions necessary to
determine the actuarial factors for the cost calculation. The
assumptions must be reviewed concurrently with the assumptions for the
retirement program.

Upon receipt of the written request from the member, and all
required documentation, a written cost confirmation must be prepared and
mailed to the member. The cost stated in the confirmation lTetter is
valid for a period of ninety days from the date of the letter.

History: Effective July 1, 1994; amended effective June 1, 1996;
July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 54-52-02.6, 54-52-04, 54-52-17, 54-52-17.2,
54-52-17.4

Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52-02.6, 54-52-17, 54-52-17.2, 54-52-17.4
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CHAPTER 71-02-04

71-02-04-03. Payment date - Retirement benefits. Except for
retirement options provided in section 71-02-04-02, a member's
retirement benefit shall commence on the first day of the month which
follows the member's eligibility for the benefit and which is at Jleast
thirty days after the date on which the member filed an application with
the office. Notwithstanding any other provision in this article,
benefits must begin no later than April first of the calendar year after
the calendar year in which the member retires or attains the age of
seventy and one-half years, whichever is later. If the member is
employed but ineligible for active participation in the retirement plan,
the member's benefits must begin no later than April first of the
calendar year after the calendar year in which the member attains the
age of seventy and one-half years. In the absence of a retirement
application, benefits shall be paid based on a single life payment
option. Benefits must be sent to the member's last-known address. If
the benefit checks are returned with no forwarding information, the
benefits will remain in the fund, and will be distributed in a Tump sum
retroactive to the required beginning date upon location of the member.

History: Amended effective November 1, 1990; July 1, 1994; July 1,
2000.

General Authority: NDCC 54-52-04, 54-52-17

Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52-17
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CHAPTER 71-02-06

71-02-06-01. Conditions for return.

1. The accumulated contributions of a member who terminates
permanent employment:

a. Before accumulating five three years of service credit
shall be automatically refunded unless the member elects
to remain in an inactive status.

b. After accumulating five three years of service credit
shall be refunded upon application filed with the
executive director.

c. The termination date for purposes of processing an
application for refund or rollover must be the last date
for which a member receives salary except for a member who
is on an approved leave of absence. For members who are
paid salary in any month following actual separation from
employment if the salary 1is received after the normal
processing date, the termination date for purposes of
processing the application must be the same date as the
date that the last paycheck was issued as salary.

2. Retirement contributions must be returned if a membership form
SFN 2561 has not been filed with the office. Contributions
will be returned until proper membership enrollment forms have
been filed. '

History: Amended effective November 1, 1990; June 1, 1996; July 1,
1998; July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 54-52-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52-06, 54-52-17

71-02-06-04. €ontributiens Adjustment for bonuses, profit
sharing, and contributions paid in a month other than month earned.
Adjustments for the following may-enly-be-made-fer-individuats-whe-are
within-ten-years-of-the-earlier-ef-age-fifty-five-or-meeting-the-rule-of
eighty-five must be made for all members:

1. Participating employers shall report bonuses or profit-sharing
amounts paid when remitting the contribution associated with
the bonus.

2. Bonuses or profit-sharing amounts paid by a participating
employer will be prorated equally as actual compensation paid
over the term of the intended bonus or profit-sharing period.
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3. Upon receiving notice, contributions received in a month other
than the month earned will be assigned to the appropriate
month.

History: Effective June 1, 1993; amended effective June 1, 1996;
July 1, 1998; July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 54-52-04

Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52-05, 54-52-06
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CHAPTER 71-02-07

71-02-07-03. Return to service - Disabled member. If the
recipient of a disability benefit under North Dakota Century Code
chapter 54-52 returns to work, said that member is responsible for
reporting employment to the public employees retirement system.

1.

History:

If a member is working in a permanent full-time position and
is eligible to participate in the public employees retirement
system, monthly benefits from the public employees retirement
system must be suspended. If the individual is not able to
continue employment for at-least a consecutive period of time
resulting in nine months of service credit as a result of the
disability and continues to meet eligibility requirements
under the plan, said that member may resume disability status
with the public employees retirement system.

If a member returns to substantial gainful activity or
employment not covered under the public employees retirement
system, the disability benefit may continue for up to nine
consecutive months. If the individual is not able to continue
employment for at Tleast nine months as a result of the
disability and continues to  meet eligibility requirements
under the plan, the member may continue disability status with
the public employees retirement system.

Effective November 1, 1990; amended effective September 1,

1992; July 1, 1994; July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 54-52-04, 54-52-17
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52-17
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CHAPTER 71-03-03

71-03-03-05. Special enrollment for certain qualifying events.
An eligible employee, retiree, or surviving spouse who elects to take a
periodic distribution from the defined contribution retirement plan or a
monthly retirement benefit from the North Dakota public employees
retirement system, North Dakota highway patrolmen's retirement system,
the retirement system established by job service North Dakota, the
teachers' fund for retirement, or teachers' insurance and annuity
association of America-college retirement equities fund is eligible for
coverage with the group health insurance program.

1. The employee, retiree, or surviving spouse must submit
application for coverage within thirty-one days from one of
the following qualifying events:

a. The month in which the eligible employee or retiree turns
age sixty-five or becomes eligible for medicare.

b. The month in which the eligible employee's or retiree's
spouse turns age sixty-five or becomes eligible for
medicare.

c. The month in which the eligible employee terminates
employment.

d. The month in which the eligible retiree or surviving
spouse receives the first monthly retirement benefit from
one of the eligible retirement systems outlined above.

e. The month in which an eligible employee or retiree who is
covered through a spouse's plan becomes ineligible for the
spouse's plan due to divorce, death, loss of employment,
reduction in hours or other events which may cause loss of
coverage as determined by the board.

f. The month in which the eligible employee or retiree is no
longer eligible for employer-sponsored insurance,
including coverage provided under the Consolidated Omnibus
Budget Reconciliation Act.

2. Coverage will become effective on the first day of the month
following the month in which the qualifying event occurred.
If an application is not submitted within thirty-one days of a
qualifying event, the eligible individual must be considered
to have waived coverage and may not be enrolled unless the
individual meets the criteria of another qualifying event.
Upon a showing of good cause, the executive director may waive
the thirty-one day application requirement.
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3. Other individuals eligible for the health insurance plan
include a surviving spouse who is not receiving a qualified
monthly retirement benefit from one of the eligible retirement
systems outlined above, but who was a covered dependent on the
eligible retiree's group health insurance plan at the time of
the eligible retiree's death, if there is no lapse in
coverage.

4. Individuals not eligible for the group health insurance plan
include:

a. A former employee who received a refund of the employee's
retirement account, including individuals in the defined
contribution plan who take a cash withdrawal of the
employee's account, roll their account into another
qualified plan, or use the moneys in their account to
purchase an annuity.

b. A nonspouse beneficiary (eligible for Consolidated Omnibus
Budget Reconciliation Act).

c. A deferred retiree or surviving spouse between the time in
which the retiree or surviving spouse's eligibility for
the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (if
eligible) ends and the month in which the eligible retiree
or surviving spouse receives the first monthly retirement
benefit from one of the eligible retirement systems.

d. A formerly deferred retiree who received a refund of the
retiree's retirement account.

e. A surviving spouse of a nonvested employee eligible for
the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act.

f. A surviving spouse of a former employee who received a
refund of the employee's retirement account.

g. A former participating member of the defined contribution
retirement program who would not qualify for one of the
retirement dates set forth in subsection 3 of North Dakota
Century Code section 54-52-17 if that employee was a
member of the defined benefit retirement plan, unless
eligible under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act, and then only for the required
duration of eligibility under the Act.

History: Effective October 1, 1986; amended effective November 1, 1990;
July 1, 1994; June 1, 1996; July 1, 1998; July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 54-52.1-08

Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52.1-03; Consolidated Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act (Pub. L. 99-272; 100 Stat. 222; 26 U.S.C. 162
et seq.)
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CHAPTER 71-06-01

71-06-01-01. Eligibility for retiree health insurance credit
applied to premiums for annuitants and surviving spouses under the North
Dakota public employees retirement system, the North Dakota highway
patrolmen's retirement system, the retired judges under North Dakota
Century Code chapter 27-17, ard annuitants of the job service retirement
program, and former participating members of the defined contribution
retirement plan receiving periodic distributions. All receiving members
of the public employees retirement system, highway patrolmen's
retirement system, judges retirement system, retired judges under North
Dakota Century Code chapter 27-17, and annuitants of the job service
retirement program will be eligible for retiree health credit applied to
premiums that satisfy the enrollment requirements of section
71-03-03-05, with the exception of those receiving members who are
receiving their benefit based on prior service credits rather than the
defined benefits program. Vested members deferring benefits will not be
eligible wuntil payment of berefit benefits commences. A former
participating member of the defined contribution retirement plan is
similarly eligible for retiree health credit applied to premiums that
satisfy the enrollment requirements of section 71-03-03-05, if the
former participating member would qualify for one of the retirement
dates set forth in subsection 3 of North Dakota Century Code section
54-52-17 if that former participating member was a member of the defined
benefit retirement plan.

History: Effective April 1, 1992; amended effective June 1, 1996;
July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 54-52.1-03.2(b)

Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52.1-03.3

71-06-01-02. Calculation of retiree health insurance credit.
Retiree health insurance credit will be calculated on actual years and
months of service, identical to retirement benefits under North Dakota
Century Code chapter 54-52.

1. Retiree health insurance credit will be subject to reduction
factors in the event of early retirement.

For annuitants of the public employees retirement
system defined benefit plan and North Dakota public
employees retirement system judges, and for members

of the defined contribution retirement plan,
excluding national guard retirees, who take
a periodic distribution:

Age at Reduction Age at Reduction
Retirement Factor Retirement Factor

64 to 65 3% 59 to 60 33%

63 to 64 9% 58 to 59 39%

279



62 to 63 15% 57 to 58 45%
61 to 62 21% 56 to 57 51%
60 to 61 27% 55 to 56 57%

For annuitants of the job service retirement program:
This includes those who retired under a discontinued
service annuity but does not include those who
retired at a normal or optional date.

Age at Reduction Age at Reduction Age at Reduction
Retirement Factor Retirement Factor Retirement Factor

64 to 65 3% 59 to 60 33% 54 to 55 63%

63 to 64 9% 58 to 59 39% 53 to 54 69%

62 to 63 15% 57 to 58 45% 52 to 53 75%

61 to 62 21% 56 to 57 51% 51 to 52 81%

60 to 61 27% 55 to 56 57% 50 to 51 87%

For annuitants of the highway patrol fund and
national guard security police and firefighters
and national guard security police and
firefighters who transferred to the
defined contribution retirement plan:

Age at Reduction
Retirement Factor
54 to 55 3%

53 to 54 9%

52 to 53 15%

51 to 52 21%

50 to 51 27%

2. Disabled annuitants receiving benefits under subdivision e of
subsection 3 of North Dakota Century Code section 54-52-17,
subdivision d of subsection 3 of North Dakota Century Code
section 39-03.1-11, North Dakota Century Code section
52-11-01, or section 71-02-05-05 will be eligible for full
retiree health insurance credit benefits. No age reduction
factor will be applied.

3. A surviving spouse eligible to receive benefits under
subdivisions b and ¢ of subsection 6 of North Dakota Century
Code section 54-52-17, subdivisions b and ¢ of subsection 6 of
North Dakota Century Code section 39-03.1-11, or North Dakota
Century Code section 52-11-01 will receive retiree health
insurance credit based on the deceased member's years of
service without any age reduction applied.

4. A surviving spouse receiving benefits under the provisions of
subdivision a or c of subsection 9 of North Dakota Century
Code section 54-52-17; subdivisions a, b, and c of
subsection 5 of North Dakota Century Code section 27-17-01;
subsection 9 of North Dakota Century Code section 39-03.1-11;
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or North Dakota Century Code section 52-11-01 will receive
retiree health insurance credit for the duration benefits are
paid, based upon the original annuitant's retirement age.

History: Effective April 1, 1992; amended effective June 1, 1996;
July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 54-52.1-03.2(b)

Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52.1-03.3

71-06-01-08. Vesting in retiree health credit for members of the
defined contribution retirement plan. Notwithstanding section
71-02-03-01.1, members of the defined contribution retirement plan vest
in their retiree health credit in the same manner as members of the
retirement program to which they would belong if they had not elected to
participate in the defined contribution retirement plan, including the
earning of service credit, the reduction for early retirement, and
credit granted pursuant to section 71-02-03-01.

History: Effective July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 54-52.1-03.2(1)(b)
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52.1-03.3, 54-52.6-02
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STAFF COMMENT: Article 71-08 contains all new material and is not
underscored so as to improve readability.

ARTICLE 71-08
DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN

Chapter
71-08-01 Election and Transfer
71-08-02 Membership in Defined Contribution Retirement Plan
71-08-03 Disability
71-08-04 Qualified Domestic Relations Orders
71-08-05 Review Procedure
CHAPTER 71-08-01
ELECTION AND TRANSFER
Section
71-08-01-01 Ability to Elect to Transfer Into the Defined
Contribution Retirement Plan
71-08-01-02 Vesting in Transferred Accumulated Fund Balance
71-08-01-03 Spousal Signature Requirements
71-08-01-04 Transfer of Members With Qualified Domestic
Relations Orders on Their Accounts
71-08-01-05 Transfer Amount of Persons Transferring Into
Eligible Employment After December 31, 1999
71-08-01-06 Public Employees Retirement System Retirees Not

Eligible to Transfer Upon Return to Work

71-08-01-01. Ability to elect to transfer into the defined
contribution retirement plan. Once a member of the public employees

retirement

system under North Dakota Century Code chapter 54-52 has

declined or failed to elect to transfer into the defined contribution
retirement plan, that member may not Tater elect to transfer unless one
of the following applies:

1,

History:

The member is appointed or elected to a new office that is
eligible for the defined contribution retirement plan.

The member leaves eligible employment and later reacquires
eligible employment.

Effective July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02(1)
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52.6-02
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71-08-01-02. Vesting in transferred accumulated fund balance.
Vesting in that portion of the accumulated fund balance attributable to
the employer's contribution which is transferred from the defined
benefit public employees retirement system pursuant to North Dakota
Century Code section 54-52.6-03 will follow the same schedule provided
in North Dakota Century Code section 54-52.6-10.

History: Effective July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02(1)
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52.6-03, 54-52.6-10

71-08-01-03. Spousal signature requirements. For purposes of the
spousal signature requirements of subsection 4 of North Dakota Century
Code section 54-52.6-02 and North Dakota Century Code section
54-52.6-11, extenuating circumstances alleviating the requirement of a
spouse's signature are only present if the board determines the spouse
is unavailable for the entire election period or the member has a power
of attorney over the spouse which would legally allow the member to sign
for the spouse.

History: Effective July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02(1)
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52.6-02(4), 54-52.6-11

71-08-01-04. Transfer of members with qualified domestic
relations orders on their accounts. Members of the public employees
retirement system under North Dakota Century Code chapter 54-52 who have
a valid qualified domestic relations order on their account may only
transfer to the defined contribution retirement plan if they obtain a
new qualified domestic relations order from the applicable court. The
account shall not be transferred unless both the participating member
and the member's ex-spouse agree to transfer to the defined contribution
retirement plan.

History: Effective July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02(1)
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52.6-12

71-08-01-05. Transfer amount of persons transferring into
eligible employment after December 31, 1999. The amount the board shall
transfer for persons beginning or transferring to eligible employment
after December 31, 1999, shall equal the actual employer and employee
contributions plus interest, as provided in subsection 2 of North Dakota
Century Code section 54-52.6-03.

History: Effective July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02(1)
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52.6-03
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71-08-01-66. Public employees retirement system retirees not
eligible to transfer upon return to work. A member of the public
employees retirement system defined benefit plan who has retired and
received a retirement annuity and later returns to work in a position
that is eligible for the defined contribution retirement plan is
nonetheless 1ineligible to transfer into the defined contribution
retirement plan and must remain a member of the public employees
retirement system.

History: Effective July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02(1)
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52.6-02
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CHAPTER 71-08-02
MEMBERSHIP IN DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN

Section

71-08-02-01 Membership of Individuals Who Become Employees
of the Judicial Branch, the Board of Higher
Education or a State Institution Under the
Jurisdiction of the Board, the Highway Patrol,
or a Political Subdivision That Participates
in the Public Employees Retirement System or
Who Become Employed in a Position Subject to
Teachers' Fund for Retirement Membership

71-08-02-02 Continuation of Membership

71-08-02-01. Membership of individuals who become employees of
the Jjudicial branch, the board of higher education or a state
institution under the jurisdiction of the board, the highway patrol, or
a political subdivision that participates in the public employees
retirement system or who become employed in a position subject to
teachers' fund for retirement membership. If a member of the defined
contribution retirement plan becomes an employee of the judicial branch,
the board of higher education, a state institution under the
Jurisdiction of the board, the highway patrol, or a political
subdivision that participates in the public employees retirement system,
or becomes employed in a position subject to teachers' fund for
retirement membership, the member's status as a member of the defined
contribution retirement plan is suspended and the member becomes a new
member of the retirement plan for which that member's new position is
eligible. The member's account balance remains in the defined
contribution retirement plan, but no new contributions may be made to
that account. The member's service credit and salary history that were
forfeited as a result of the member's transfer to the defined
contribution retirement plan remain forfeited, and service credit
accumulation in the new retirement plan begins from the first day of
employment in the new position. If the member later returns to
employment that is eligible for the defined contribution plan, the
member's suspension is terminated, the member again becomes a member of
the defined contribution plan, and the member's account shall resume
accepting contributions. The contributions to the alternate retirement
plan shall remain with that plan unless the member was employed by a
political subdivision that participates in the public employees
retirement system. If the employee was employed by a political
subdivision that participates in the public employees retirement system
returns to service as a state employee, the employee's accumulated fund
balance shall be transferred to the defined contribution retirement plan
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according to North Dakota Century Code section 54-52.6-03 and the
employee shall resume membership in the defined contribution retirement
plan.

History: Effective July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02(1)
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52.6-01(3)

71-08-02-02. Continuation of membership. Other than as provided
in section 71-08-02-01, a former participating member of the defined
contribution retirement plan who returns to state employment following a
previous termination or retirement continues to be a member of the
defined contribution retirement plan even if the member took one of the
distributions allowed by North Dakota Century Code section 54-52.6-13.

History: Effective July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02(1)
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52.6-02
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CHAPTER 71-08-03
DISABILITY

Section
71-08-63-01 Disability Distribution

71-08-03-61. Disability distribution. The board will allow
distribution of the participating member's vested account balance if the
board determines the participating member has become totally and
permanently disabled using the procedure provided in section
71-02-05-06. If approved, the disabled member has the same distribution
options as provided in subdivisions a and ¢ of subsection 3 of North
Dakota Century Code section 54-52.6-13. However, if the member chooses
the periodic distribution option, the member will only be allowed to
receive distributions for as long as the disability continues and the
member submits the necessary documentation and undergoes medical testing
required by the board, or for as long as the member participates in a
rehabilitation program required by the board, or both. The board shall
use the redetermination and recertification procedures provided in
section 71-02-05-06 to determine whether the member remains disabled.
1f the board determines that a member no longer meets the eligibility
definition, the board shall discontinue the disability retirement
benefit.

History: Effective July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02(1)
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52.6-14
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CHAPTER 71-08-04
QUALIFIED DOMESTIC RELATIONS ORDERS

Section

71-08-04-01 Payment in Accordance With Qualified Domestic
Relations Orders

71-08-04-02 Qualified Domestic Relations Orders Procedures

71-08-04-01. Payment in accordance with qualified domestic
relations orders. Retirement moneys must be paid in accordance with any
qualified domestic relations order issued in compliance with North
Dakota Century Code section 54-52.6-12.

History: Effective July 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02(1)
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52.6-12

71-08-04-02. Qualified domestic relations orders procedures.

1. Upon receipt of a proposed domestic relations order, the
executive director shall:

a. Send an 1initial notice to each person named therein,
including the member and the alternate payee named in the
order, with an explanation of the procedures followed by
the fund.

b. Order the funds to which the alternate payee would be
entitled by direction of the order segregated into the
available stable value account of the fund, if those funds
are ascertainable from the proposed order.

c. Review the domestic relations order to determine if it is
a qualified order as established by the model language
format specified by the board.

2. The domestic relations order shall be considered a qualified
order when the executive director notifies the parties the
order is approved and a certified copy of the court order has
been submitted to the office.

3. If the order becomes qualified, the executive director shall:
a. Send notice to all persons named in the order and any
representative designated in writing by such person tha? a
determination has been made that the order is a qualified
domestic relations order.

b. Comply with the terms of the order.
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History:

c. Allow the alternate payee to choose the appropriate
investment options for the alternate payee's account.

d. Allow the alternate payee to choose the same payout
options allowed for the member.

If the order is determined not to be a qualified domestic
relations order or a determination cannot be made as to
whether the order is qualified or not qualified within
eighteen months of receipt of such order, the executive
director shall send written notification of termination of
review to all parties at least forty-five days prior to the
end of the eighteen-month review period. At the end of the
eighteen-month review period, the proposed order is deemed to
be withdrawn and of no legal effect.

a. If a segregated account has been established for an
alternate payee, the executive director shall distribute
the amounts in the segregated account 1in the manner
required in the absence of an order.

b. 1f determined after the expiration of the eighteen-month
period the order is a qualified domestic relations order,
the qualified domestic relations order must be applied
prospectively only.

Effective July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02(1)
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52.6-12
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CHAPTER 71-08-05
REVIEW PROCEDURE

Section
71-08-05-01 Review Procedure

71-08-05-01. Review procedure. The board shall use the same
review and formal review procedures as provided in chapter 71-02-09.

History: Effective July 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 28-32-02(1)
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52.6-13
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JUNE 2000

CHAPTER 75-02-02.2

AGENCY  SYNOPSIS: New North Dakota Administrative Code Chapter
75-02-02.2 Children's Health Insurance Program.

75-02-02.2-01. Definitions: C(Creates definitions for "American Indian
or Alaska Native", "Applicant", "Asset", "Children's Health Insurance
Program",  "Department", "Earned Income", "Employer", "Enrollee",
"Household Member", "Medicaid", "Poverty Line", "Public Institution",
"Supplemental Security Income", "The Plan", and "Title IV-E".

75-02-02.2-02. Application and Determination of Eligibility: Defines
applications and how eligibility is determined.

75-02-02.2-03. Duty to Establish Eligibility: Establishes an
applicant's duty to provide information sufficient to determine
eligibility.

75-02-02.2-04. Decision, Notice, and Appeal: Provides for
decisionmaking deadlines on applications and notice procedures.

75-02-02.2-05. Notice of Potential Medicaid Eligibility - Choice of
Program: Requires notice to applicants who may potentially be eligible
for Medicaid.

75-02-02.2-06. Recertification of Eligibility: Provides the method to
be used to recertify the eligibility of plan enrollees.

75-02-02.2-07. Duty to Report Changes in Household: Requires plan
enrollees to report changes in household circumstances.
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75-02-02.2-08. Termination of Coverage by Enrollee: Provides methods
for termination of plan coverage.

75-02-02.2-09. Residence and Citizenship Requirements: Provides
residency and citizenship requirements for eligibility.

75-62-02.2-106. Eligibility Criteria: Provides the basic criteria to be
used in determining plan eligibility.

75-02-02.2-11. Asset Considerations: Establishes that there are no
asset or resource limits to be used in determining plan eligibility.

75-02-02.2-12. Income Considerations: Provides the method for how
income will be calculated.

75-02-02.2-13. Determining Household Income: Provides the method for
evaluating and determining household income.

75-02-02.2-14. Eligibility Period: Provides the period of coverage
once eligibility is determined.

75-02-02.2-15. Covered Services: Defines the types of coverage
afforded by the program.
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‘ STAFF COMMENT: Chapter 75-02-02.2 contains all new material and
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Definitions

Application and Determination of Eligibility

Duty to Establish Eligibility

Decision, Notice, and Appeal

Notice of Potential Medicaid Eligibility -
Choice of Program
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02-02.2-01. Definitions. For purposes of this chapter:

"American Indian or Alaska Native" means a member of a
federally recognized Indian tribe, band, or group or a
descendant 1in the first or second degree, of any such member;
an Eskimo or Aleut or other Alaska native enrolled by the
secretary of the interior pursuant to the Alaska Native Claims
Settlement Act [43 U.S.C. 1601 et seq.]; a person who is
considered by the secretary of the interior to be an Indian
for any purpose; or a person who is determined to be an Indian
under regulations promulgated by the secretary.

"Applicant" means an individual seeking benefits under the
healthy steps program on behalf of a child.

"Asset" means any kind of property or property interest,
whether real, personal, or mixed, whether liquid or illiquid,
and whether or not presently vested with possessory rights.

"Children's health insurance program" means the North Dakota
children's health insurance program, also known as the healthy
steps program, which is a program implemented pursuant to
North Dakota Century Code chapter 50-29 and 42 U.S.C. 1397aa
et seq. to furnish health assistance to low-income children
funded through title XXI of the Social Security Act [42 U.S.C.
1397aa et seq.].
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

"Department" means the North Dakota department of human
services.

"Earned income" means income currently received as wages,
salaries, commissions, or profits from activities in which an
individual or household is engaged through either employment
or self-employment. There must be an appreciable amount of
personal involvement and effort, on the part of the individual
or household, for income to be considered "earned".

"Employer" means an individual or entity who employs the
services of an applicant or a member of the applicant's

household and who pays the individual wages, salaries, or
benefits.

"Enrollee" means a child receiving coverage under the healthy
steps program.

"Household member" means any individual who shares the child's
home a substantial amount of time. Children who are
twenty-one years of age or older are not counted as household
members. An individual who is temporarily absent from the
household by reason of employment, school, training, or
medical treatment, or who is expected to return to the
household within thirty days of the date of the healthy steps
program application, shall be considered a household member.

"Medicaid" means a program implemented pursuant to North
Dakota Century Code chapter 50-24.1 and 42 U.S.C. 1396 et seq.
to furnish medical assistance, as defined in 42 U.S.C.
1396d(a), to individuals determined eligible for medically
necessary covered medical and remedial services.

"Poverty 1line" means the official income poverty line as
defined by the United States office of management and budget
and revised annually in accordance with 42 U.S.C. 9902(2).

"Public  institution" means an institution that is the
responsibility of a governmental unit or over which a
governmental unit exercises administrative control.

"Supplemental security income" or "SSI" means a program
administered under title XVI of the Social Security Act [42
U.S.C. 1381 et seq.].

"The plan" means the North Dakota children's health insurance
program.
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15. "Title IV-E" means title IV-E of the Social Security Act [42
U.S.C. 1381 et seq.].

History: Effective June 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 50-29
Law Implemented: NDCC 50-29-01; 42 USC 1397aa et seq.

75-02-02.2-62. Application and determination of eligibility.

1. A1l individuals wishing to make application on behalf of a
child for plan coverage must have the opportunity to do so
without delay. An application is a request for plan coverage.
Information concerning eligibility requirements, available
services, and the rights and responsibilities of applicants
and enrollees must be furnished to all who request it.

2. An application must be in writing, on a prescribed application
form, and signed by the applicant or appropriate individual on
behalf of the child applying for plan coverage.

3. The date of the application is the date the application,
signed by the applicant, is received by the department.

4. The department shall process applications for plan coverage
and make determinations of eligibility.

History: Effective June 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 50-29
Law Implemented: NDCC 50-29-02; 42 USC 1397aa et seq.

75-02-02.2-03. Duty to establish eligibility.

1. It 1is the responsibility of the individual applying for plan
coverage on behalf of a child to provide information
sufficient to establish eligibility of each child for whom
coverage is requested including each child's social security
number, age, residence, citizenship, and verification of
financial eligibility.

2. If sufficient information is not provided to establish
eligibility, the applicant will be given sixty calendar days
from the date the department requests additional information
in which to provide the requested information. If the
information requested 1is not received within the sixty-day
time period, the application shall be denied for failure to
provide sufficient information.

History: Effective June 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 50-29
Law Implemented: NDCC 50-29-03; 42 USC 1397aa et seq.
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75-02-02.2-04. Decision, notice, and appeal.

1,

The department shall promptly make a decision as to
eligibility on all applications.

The department shall send a written notice to an applicant or
enrollee when the department denies, suspends, or terminates
eligibility. The notice must include the effective date of
the action taken, the reason for the action taken, and the
appeal rights, if any, of the applicant or enrollee.

Errors made by public officials and delays caused by the
actions of public officials do not create eligibility or
additional benefits for coverage for a child or enrollee who
is adversely affected.

A notice informing an applicant or an enrollee of the right to
appeal a decision made by the department must include a
statement informing the applicant or enrollee that a written
appeal must be filed with the appeals supervisor of the
department within thirty days after the date of the written
notice of decision. The notice must inform the applicant or

enrollee that an appeal request must be mailed or delivered
to:

Appeals Supervisor
Department of Human Services
600 East Boulevard Avenue
Judicial Wing, Dept. 325
Bismarck, ND 58505

Upon receipt of a timely filed appeal, the department shall
conduct an administrative hearing in the manner prescribed in
chapter 75-01-03 and render a decision within a reasonable
time. Because plan benefits are not an entitlement pursuant
to 42 U.S.C. section 1397bb(b)(4) and North Dakota Century
Code section 50-29-05, the hearing provided for in this
subsection must be one in accordance with the requirements of
42 C.F.R. section 457.985 and shall not be one required under
due process provisions of the fourteenth amendment to the
United States Constitution as applied in Goldberg v. Kelly,
397 U.S. 254(1970) or its progeny.

Enrollees may file grievances, complaints, and appeals
regarding a determination made by the private insurance
carrier that is under contract with the department to provide
the insurance coverage for the plan that results in a
reduction or denial of benefits. The enrollee must file
grievances, complaints, or appeals with the private insurance
carrier in the manner provided for by the private insurance
carrier subject to North Dakota law regarding grievance and
appeal procedures required for health insurance carriers in
effect at the time the action appealed from was taken. If the
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History:

enrollee is dissatisfied with the final decision of the
insurance carrier after exhausting all available remedies
provided by the insurance carrier, the enrollee may appeal the
decision to the department in the manner provided in
subsection 4.

Effective June 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 50-29
Law Implemented: NDCC 50-29-02; 42 USC 1397aa et seq.

75-02-02.2-065. Notice of potential medicaid eligibility - Choice
of program.

ks

History:

The department shall review each application to determine
whether the child applying may also be eligible for medicaid.

If a child appears to be eligible for medicaid, the department
shall provide notice to the applicant informing the applicant
that the applicant should complete a medicaid application and
submit it to the county social service agency located in the
child's county of residence. The department shall send a copy
of the notice to the county social service agency of the
county in which the child resides.

If a child appears to be eligible for medicaid with a monthly
recipient liability, the child will be provided plan coverage
and notified that the child may apply for medicaid at the
appropriate county social service agency at any time.

Effective June 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 50-29
Law Implemented: NDCC 50-29-02; 42 USC 1397aa et seq.

75-02-02.2-06. Recertification of eligibility.

1,

The department shall redetermine the eligibility of all
enrollees at least annually and shall recertify those
eligible.

An enrollee, or anyone acting on an enrollee's behalf, has the
same responsibility to furnish information to the department
during a recertification of eligibility for coverage as an
applicant has during the initial application and eligibility
determination. All enrollees shall cooperate fully with
annual recertifications and provide sufficient information to
the department to recertify eligibility for coverage.

Plan coverage terminates on the last day of the month of the

end of the annual recertification period if an enrollee fails
to provide sufficient information to recertify eligibility.
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History:

The department shall notify enrollees of termination of
coverage within forty-five days of receipt of the information
which led to the termination or denial of recertification of a
determination that the enrollee 1is no longer eligible for
coverage or that recertification of eligibility cannot be
determined. The notice must include the reason for
termination of coverage, the effective date of termination of

coverage, and the enrollee's appeal rights as described in
section 75-02-02.2-04,

Effective June 1, 2000,

General Authority: NDCC 50-29
Law Implemented: NDCC 50-29; 42 USC 1397aa et seq.

75-02-02.2-07. Duty to report changes in household.

1.

History:

An enrollee or household member shall immediately report to
the department:

a. A child Teaving the household;

b. A household gaining access to other health insurance
coverage for the child;

c. A child leaving the state of North Dakota; or
d. A child being born into the household.

An enrollee or household member must inform the department of
family circumstances by returning the report provided by the
department or by calling the department and providing a verbal
response, between the first and fifteenth days of the fourth
and eighth months of the eligibility period. If the enrollee
or household member fails to timely provide such information,
plan coverage terminates on the last day of the month in which
the information was due.

Effective June 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 50-29
Law Implemented: NDCC 50-29; 42 USC 1397aa et seq.

75-02-02.2-08. Termination of coverage by enrollee.

1.

An enrollee, or appropriate individual on behalf of the
enrollee, may terminate coverage under the plan by giving the
department written notice.

Oral notice of termination of coverage given by an enrollee,
or appropriate individual on behalf of the enrollee, is
effective if recorded by the department in its case file and
reflected on the termination notice.
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History:

Termination of coverage becomes effective at eleven
fifty-nine p.m. on the last day of the month in which the
notice of termination was received by the department.

Effective June 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 50-29
Law Implemented: NDCC 50-29; 42 USC 1397aa et seq.

75-02-02.2-09. Residence and citizenship requirements.

1.

The following provisions apply to applicants and enrollees
regarding residency requirements:

a. A child must be a resident of the state of North Dakota in
order to be eligible for plan coverage. A child's
residence is deemed to be that of the child's parent or
legal guardian.

b. A resident of the state of North Dakota is an individual
Tiving in the state voluntarily and not for a temporary
purpose. Temporary absences from the state, including
temporary absences for purposes of employment, schooling,
vacation, or medical treatment, with subsequent returns to
the state, or intent to return when the purpose of the
absence has been accomplished, do not interrupt continuity
of residence. Residence is retained until abandoned or
established in another state.

Except as otherwise provided, a child must be a citizen of the
United States, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam,
the Virgin Islands, the Northern Mariana Islands, or a
national of American Samoa or Swain's Island in order to be
eligible.

An American Indian born in Canada, if of at least one-half
American Indian blood, may be eligible. This does not include
the spouse or child of such an Indian, or a noncitizen
American Indian born in Canada, whose membership in an Indian
tribe or family is created by adoption, unless the individual
is of at least one-half Indian blood.

An alien who has Tlawfully entered the United States for
permanent residence before August 22, 1996, and who meets all
other eligibility criteria may be eligible.

For five years from the date of entry into the United States,
an alien who is a lawful, permanent resident and has attained
forty qualifying quarters of social security coverage as
defined by the Social Security Act [42 U.S.C. 1381 et seq.]
and who meets all other eligibility criteria may be eligible.
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6.

History:

A qualified alien who entered the United States after
August 22, 1996, and who meets all other eligibility criteria
may be eligible for plan coverage if:

a. An honorably discharged veteran or alien on active duty in
the United States' armed forces or the spouse or unmarried
dependent child of such an alien;

b. Subject to subsection 4, a refugee and asylee for seven
years from the date of entry into the United States; or

c. Subject to subsection 4, an alien whose deportation was
withheld under section 243(h) of the Immigration and
Naturalization Act (INA) for seven years from the date the
withholding was granted.

After seven years from the date of entry into the United
States, the continued eligibility of refugees, asylees, and
those aliens whose deportation was withheld is contingent upon
the enrollee or enrollee's parent having attained forty
qualifying quarters of social security coverage as defined by
the Social Security Act [42 U.S.C. section 1381 et seq.].

Effective June 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 50-29 .
Law Implemented: NDCC 50-29; 42 USC 1397aa et seq.

75-02-02.2-10. Eligibility criteria.

1.

Children ages birth through eighteen years of age are eligible
for plan coverage provided all other eligibility criteria are
met. Coverage for enrollees who are eighteen years of age
will continue through the last day of the month in which the
enrollee turns nineteen years of age.

A child who has current creditable health insurance coverage
or has coverage which is available through a parent's or legal
guardian's employer at no cost, as defined in section 2701(c)
of the Public Health Service Act [42 U.S.C. 300gg(c)] is not
eligible for plan coverage.

A child 1is not eligible for plan coverage if a family member
voluntarily terminated either employer-sponsored or individual
health insurance coverage of the child within six months of
the date of application unless:

a. The health insurance coverage was terminated due to the
involuntary loss of employment;

b. The health insurance coverage was terminated through no

fault of the family member who had secured the coverage;
or
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History:

c. The health insurance coverage was terminated by a
household member who is actively engaged in farming in a
county which is declared a federal disaster area.

A child residing in a public institution is not eligible for
plan coverage.

A child who is a member of a family that is eligible for
health benefits coverage under a state health benefits plan on
the basis of a family member's employment with a public agency
in the state of North Dakota is not eligible for plan
coverage.

A child who meets current medicaid eligibility criteria is not
eligible for plan coverage unless the child would otherwise be
eligible for the medically needy medicaid program with a
recipient liability. Such child may be enrolled in either the
healthy steps program or the medically needy medicaid program.

A child who resides in an institution for mental disease at
the time the child applies for plan coverage is not eligible
for plan coverage. This exclusion does not apply to enrollees
who enter an institution for mental disease while receiving
plan coverage.

If the department estimates that available funds are
insufficient to allow plan coverage for additional applicants,
the department may take any action appropriate to avoid
commitment of funds in excess of available funds including
denying applications and establishing waiting 1lists not
forbidden by title XXI of the Social Security Act [42 U.S.C.
section 1397aa et seq.] or regulations adopted thereunder. If
federal children's health insurance program funding decreases,
the department may decrease the income eligibility limit to
accommodate the decrease in federal funding.

Effective June 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 50-29
Law Implemented: NDCC 50-29; 42 USC 1397aa et seq.

75-62-02.2-11. Asset considerations. Assets may not be
considered in determining eligibility for plan coverage.

History:

Effective June 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 50-29
Law Implemented: NDCC 50-29; 42 USC 1397aa et seq.

75-02-02.2-12. Income considerations.

1,

Only income that 1is actually available may be considered.
Income is actually available when it is at the disposal of a
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child or household member or when the child or household
member has a legal interest in a liquidated sum and has the
legal ability to make the sum available.

It is presumed that all parental income is actually available
to a child under nineteen years of age. This presumption may
be rebutted by a showing that the child is:

a. Living independently without receiving support or income
from a parent; or

b. Living with a parent who is separated from the child's
other parent, with or without court order, if the parents
did not separate for the purpose of securing plan coverage
and the parent with whom the child 1is not 1living has
refused to furnish information about that parent's income
sufficient to determine eligibility.

In order for a child to be eligible for plan coverage, the
adjusted gross income of the child and the child's parents
must be equal to or below one hundred forty percent of the
federal poverty line based on the size of the household.
Pursuant to North Dakota Century Code section 50-29-05, if
federal children's health insurance program funding decreases,
the department may decrease the income eligibility limit to
accommodate the decrease in federal funding.

A1l household members are counted in determining the size of
the household except children over the age of twenty-one
years. The size of the household is increased by one for each
unborn child of a household member.

Except as specifically excluded, all income of the child
applying for coverage and the child's parents must be
considered in determining eligibility. The income of other
household members shall not be considered in determining
eligibility.

a. All earned income of the child and the child's parents
must be considered in determining eligibility, including

wages, salaries, commissions, tips, bonuses,
self-employment income, and income received under a
contract.

b. A1l gross unearned income of the child and the child's
parents must be considered when calculating adjusted gross
income, including child support, spousal support, social
security benefits, pensions, unemployment compensation,
workers' compensation, interest, dividends, and other
similar income.

The following types of income must be disregarded in
determining eligibility for plan coverage:
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n.

0.

Income.that is required to be excluded pursuant to federal
1aw,. including supplemental security income benefits
provided by the social security administration.

Irregular small cash gifts or contributions;

In-kind earned income;

Educational loans, scholarships, fellowships, grants,
awards, and work-study received by a student;

Income earned by a child who is a full-time student or
part-time student who is not employed more than one
hundred hours per month, including volunteers in service
to America (VISTA) and Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA)
income;

Money payments made by the department, including foster
care or subsidized adoption, optional supplementation
payments, vocational rehabilitation training funds, family
subsidy program, and low income home energy assistance
program (LIHEAP);

Loans from any source that are subject to a written
agreement requiring repayment by a household member;

Quality child care for meals;
County general assistance payments;

Income tax refunds, earned income tax credits, or
homestead tax credits;

Earned or unearned Tump sum payments, including
inheritance moneys;

Earned or unearned Job Training Partnership Act payments;
Housing allowance received from United States department
of housing and urban development or rent supplements or
utility payments provided through the housing assistance
program;

Refugee sponsorship income; or

Americorps income.

History: Effective June 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 50-29
Law Implemented: NDCC 50-29-02; 42 USC 1397aa et seq.
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75-02-02.2-13. Determining household income.

1. Income other than self-employment income must be calculated as
follows:

a. Gross household income must be determined prospectively
for each twelve-month certification period at the time of
application and at each annual recertification to
determine continuation of eligibility.

b. Gross income of all household members that is not excluded
is counted as household income.

c. An average monthly adjusted gross income must be
calculated for the twelve-month eligibility period based
on reported monthly income adjusted for any known changes
in expected future income at the time of application.

d. Income that 1is received more often than monthly must be
prorated over the certification period to determine
average monthly income.

(1) Income that 1is received weekly must be averaged and
multiplied by 4.3 to arrive at a monthly amount.

(2) Income that 1is received every other week must be
averaged and multiplied by 2.15 to arrive at a
monthly amount.

e. After all countable non-self-employment gross income is
determined, the following deductions must be allowed to
determine adjusted gross income:

(1) For household members with earned income: actual
mandatory payroll deductions, including federal,
state, social security taxes, mandatory retirement
and mandatory union dues, or ninety dollars per
month, whichever is greater;

(2) Reasonable child care expenses, not otherwise
reimbursed by third parties if necessary to engage in
employment or training; and

(3) Court-ordered child and spousal support payments if
actually paid by a parent on behalf of an individual
who is not a member of the household.

2. Self-employment income must be calculated as follows:
a. The average net income after expenses of self-employment

must be calculated based on the average of the prgvious
three years of adjusted gross income, which means adjusted
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gross income as computed for an individual for federal
income tax purposes under the Internal Revenue Code.

b. If the self-employed individual does not have three years
of self-employment history, the actual number of years of
self-employment must be used to calculate the average
yearly income.

c. If the self-employed individual has not been self-employed
long enough to have filed any self-employment federal
income tax return in the last year, the best information
available must be used to estimate revenue and business
expenses  to calculate adjusted gross self-employment
income.

d. The adjusted gross self-employment income must be divided
by twelve to determine the monthly income for the upcoming
recertification period or the number of months the data
represents.

3. If the household has self-employed income and other earned or
unearned income, the two must be added together to arrive at
total adjusted gross income. The monthly income from
self-employment must be calculated first. If the average
self-employment income is zero or less, no amount may be
subtracted from other earned or unearned family income.

History: Effective June 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 50-29
Law Implemented: NDCC 50-29-02; 42 USC 1397aa et seq.

75-02-02.2-14. Eligibility period. The coverage effective date
is the first day of the month following the determination of
eligibility. The coverage period ends at the earliest of:

1. The Tlast day of the twelfth month after enrollment, or if the
enrollee is recertified, the last day of the twelfth month
after recertification;

2. The end of the month the enrollee turned nineteen years of
age;

3. The end of the month in which the child has obtained other
health insurance coverage; or

4. The end of the month in which the child leaves the household
unless waived by the department.

History: Effective June 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 50-29
Law Implemented: NDCC 50-29-04; 42 USC 1397aa et seq.
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75-62-02.2-15. Covered services. Within any limitations that may
be established by rule, regulation, or statute and within the Timits of
legislative appropriations and subject to copayments that are the
responsibility of the enrollee, eligible enrollees may obtain the
medical and remedial care and services that are described in the
approved state plan for the healthy steps program in effect at the time
the service is rendered.

History: Effective June 1, 2000.

General Authority: NDCC 50-29
Law Implemented: NDCC 50-29-04; 42 USC 1397aa et seq.
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CHAPTER 92-02-01

92-02-01-01. References to other standards. A}}-refererees-in
this-artiele-to-specifications-of-American-standards;-American-standards
assectatien--or--Ynited-States-ef-Ameriea-standards;-American-seciety-of
mechanieat-engineers;-Natienal-Eleetrical--Safety--Code;--national--fire
protectien--asseetation--refer--speeifically--te-rules;-regutationss-and
standards;-premuigated;-adepted;-and-published-by;-and-avaitable-at;-the
effice-of-American-standards-assectation;-ineorperated;-er-United-States
ef-Ameriea-standards-institute;-10-east-fortieth-street;--New--York--165
New--¥erks;-which-are-alse-en-file-in-the-effice-of-the-safety-department
ef-the--werkers--eempensatien--bBurean;--Bismarek;--Nerth--Baketa:---Upen
reguest-the-speetfie-requirements-for-the-safe-maintenanee-and-eperatien
foer-any-partieutar-machine;-device;-teel;-or-eperatien-as-set--ferth--in
sueh--safety--eoedes--published--by--the-United-States-American-standards
tRstitute;-witl-be-furnished-by--the--safety--department--of--the--Nerth
Paketa--werkers--eompensation--bureau: Title 29 of the Code of Federal
Regulations, part 1910, occupational safety and health standards for
general  industry, with amendments as of February 3, 1997, and,
part 1926, occupational safety and health standards for the construction
industry, with amendments as of February 3, 1997, both promulgated by
the occupational safety and health administration of the United States
department of Tlabor are the standards of safety and conduct for the
employers and employees of the state of North Dakota.

History: Amended effective August 1, 1987; June 1, 2000.
General Authority: NDCC 65-03-01
Law Implemented: NDCC 65-03-01

92-02-01-02. Mandatory and advisory rules. Mardatery-rules-ef
this-artiele-are-characterized-by-the-words-shatl-er-must---1f-a-rule-is
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ef--an--advisery-nature;-it-is-indicated-by-the-word-sheuld-er-is-stated
as-a-recommendation---1f;-hewever;-conditions-permit-the-application--of
the-ruless-it-shatl-be-fellewed:--Any-deviation-frem-safety-rules-as-set
forth-in-this-artiete-shall-be-en-the--side--ef--safety----Attention--is
eatled--to--the--faet--that--this--article--prevides-only-minimum-safety
standards-and-ruies:--Additienal-standards-and-rules-may--be--preseribed
by-the-bureau-wherever-it-is-deemed-neeessary-te-previde-reasenably-safe
equipment-and-places-of-employment:

tn--the--absenee-of-any-speeifie-safety-rule-or-regutation-in-this
artiele;-the-regutations-and--requirements--ef--the--American--standards
assectation-er-bnited-States-ef-America-standards-shati-apply-

Al1-empleyers-and-empleyees-shati-abide-by-the-rules-preseribed-by
this-artiele-er-other-safety-rules--adepted--By--the--bureau--and--shatl
eemply--with--any--safety--recommendations--made-in-aceordance-with-sueh
rutes-and-which-have-been-issued-te-them-By--autherized--representatives
ef--the--Nerth--Daketa--werkers-compensation-Bureau: Repealed effective
June 1, 2000.

History: Amerded-effeetive-August-1;-1987-
General Authority: NBEE-65-83-81
Law Implemented: NBEE-65-83-61

92-02-01-03. General rules.

1:--Ne--persen;-firm;-or-corperatien-shatl-use;-permit;-or-require
to-be-used-within-Nerth-Daketas-any-machine;--teet;--or--other
deviee--which--dees-net-comply-with-the-safety-requirements-of
the-Nerth-Daketa-industrial-safety-ecedes---in--the--absenee--of
any--speeifie--requirement--in--this--artiete;--the--generatly
aceepted-standards-fer-sueh-machine;-deviee;-or-toel-shati--be
apptieds:

2:--a:--Eenstruction--and--instaltatien--standards----- Exeeptienss
Unfired-pressure-vessels-may-net--be--instatied--in--Nerth
Paketa--tnless--sueR--vessels--Rave--Been--eenstrueted--#n
aceerdanee--with--the--American--seciety---of---meehanieat
engineers--beiler--and-pressure-vesse}-cedes-seetion-Yitls
divisien-1-er-2;-and-bear-the-'U:-stamp-as-preef--ef--sueh
€ORStrPHEEOAS

Marufacturers-shal}-register-unfired-pressure-vessels-with
the--natienal--beard--ef--betler---and---pressure---vesse}
{nspeeters:----Urfired--pressure--vessels--must--bear--the
required-stamping-ef-the-natienat-beard:

The--requirements--of--this--seetion-appty-te-ati-pressure
vessels-within--the--seepe--ef--the--American--seciety--of
mechanical-engineers-eede;-seetion-Yiti;-divisien-1-and-2;
1986-editien-with-these-exeeptionss
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{1}--Pressure-vessels-under-federal-contrel-

{2}--Pressure--vessels--that-de-net-exceed-four-cubie-feet
{30-United-States-gatiens}-in-velume-and-twe--hundred
fifty-peunds-per-square-ineh-gage-{psig}-+n-pressures

{3}--Pressure--vessels-that-do-net-exceed-one-and-ene-half
eubie-feet-{11:22-United-States--galiens}--in--velume
and--six--hundred--peunRds--per--square--iReR--gage-+n
pressures

{4}--Unfired--pressure--vesse}s-instatled-er-erdered-prior
to-the--effeetive--date--of--this--rule--are--exempt-
Hewever;-sueh-exempt-pressure-vessels-must-conform-to
the-Nerth-Baketa-industrial-safety-cede-requirementss

Urfired--pressure--vessets-referenced-By-this-seetion-must
be-pretected--with--the--American--seciety--of--mechaniea}
engineers---{ASME}--stamped--pressure--re}ief--deviees--as
defined--in--seetion--Yi1i--of--the--American--seciety--of
mechanieal-enrgineers-eedes

Existing--pressure--relief--deviees--instatied--en-unfired
pressure--vessels--referenced--by--this--seetion--wit}--be
eonsidered-aceeptable-if-the-pressure-relief-deviee-is-set
for-the-eorrect-pressure;-if-the-usage-is-eerrect;-and--1f
the-deviee-+s5-tR-a-satisfaetory-eperating-conditions

b:--Apptteatien-ef-standards---Repairs:

{1}--These-rules-apply-enly-te-rew-eonstruction; -except-as
roted-belew:

fa}--Reinstalled-pressure-vessels-must-meet-the-rules
for--new--eenstruetions---Exeeptien:----Natienat
beard--registratien--is--required-enty-fer-these
vessels---erdered----and----eonstructed----after
Nevember-1;-1987:

{b}--0ther--inserviee-safety-rules-and-regutations-of
the-bureauis-safety-department-appty-te-existing
pressure-vesselss

fe}--Repairs--te--unfired--pressure--vessels--and--te
safety--and--safety--relief--valves--fer---these
vesselss

f1}--Repairs--te-safety-valves-and-safety-retief
valves-must-be-sueh-that-valve-funretion--is
Ret--impaired--and--the-repaired-vatue-witi
perferm-te-the-standards-fer-whieh--1t--was
eriginally--eenstructed:--1t-is-recommended
that-these-repairs-be-made--by--a--firm--#n
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pessessien--of--a-vatid-YR!-ecertificate-of
autherizatien-frem-the--natienal--beard--of
better-and-pressure-vesse}-inspectors:

f2}--Repairs-te-unfired-pressure-vessels-must-be
sueh-that-vessels-repaired-wi}l-be-returned
te---a---safe--and--satisfaetory--eperating
€ordition;-previded-there-is--nre--deviatien
fPem----the---er*g%nal---des*gn ----- tt---3s
recommended-that-these-repairs-be-made-by-a
fiPm---iR---pessessieR---ef---a--valid--LR:
eertificate--of--autherization---frem---the
ratienat---beard--ef--beiler--and--pressure
vessel-inspeeteorss

f3}--Fhe----natienal---beard---inspectien---code
{ANSI/NB-23;-1985--ed:}--and--the--Ameriean
petroteum---iRstitution---iAspectien---eode
{ANSI/AP1-510;-1985-ed:}-shal}-eover-repair
and--atteratien--preceduress---ANSIfAPE-510
may--be--used--te--eover--the---matntenanee
tRSpeetidn;----repair;----atteratien;---and
rerating--precedure--fer--pressure--vessels
used--by-the-petreleum-and-chemical-preeess
tndustriess--1t-is-intended-that-ANSI/NB-23
eever---instatlatiens---oether---than--these
covered-by-ANSI/APE-510+

€:--Allewanee-for-state-speetals---1f;-due-te-valid-impediment
to-compltanee-with--the--American--seeiety--of--mechanieatl
engireers-cede-in-its-entirety;-an-unfired-pressure-vessel
€annot-bear-the-American-seciety-of--mechanteat--engineers
ard--nratienal--beard--stamping;--detat}s--in--the--English
tanrguage;-and-speeificattons-and-cateutatiens;-appreved-by
a-registered-prefessional-engineer-experienced-in-pressure
vessel-desigr;-must-be-submitted-te-the-ehief-inspeetor-by
the--ewRer--gr--user:--Appreval-as-State-Speetat!-must-be
ebtained-froem-the-Bureau-befoere-eonstruetion-is-started:

3:--A}}--nrew--buildings--ef--mere-than-twe-steries-in-height-shati
have-windew-eleaning-anehers--instalied--unriess--previsien--is
made-for-changing-er-eleaning-windews-from-the-insides

4:--Twe--separate--means--ef--exit-shall-be-previded-frem-the-work
fleer;-as-remete-frem-each-ether-as-practicables

S:--Empleyers-respensibility:

ar--The--empleyer--shall--furrish--and--matntain--a--place--of
empleyment-which-shall-be-safe-for-the-employees-and-shat?
fuPARish--and--use-safety-deviees-and-safeguards;-and-shati
adept-and-use-metheds-and--preeesses--adequate--te--render
sueh--places--of--employment-reasenably-safe;-and-shati-de
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every-ether-thing-necessary-te-protect-the-1ife-and-safety
ef-the-empleyees:

Br--Superintendents;---feremen;---and--key--persens--shatl--be
earefuliy-chesen-and-quatified-by-experience-to--supervise
the---safe--performanee--of--the--activities--under--their
direetiens;-and-shatl-share-respensibility-for--the--safety
ef-empieyees-under-their-jurisdictions

Superintendents;--foremen;-and-key-persens-shall-insist-on
empleyees-ebserving-and-abiding-by-every-rules-regulations
and-erder-as-is-neeessary-te-the-safe-conduct-ef-the-works
ard-shati-resert-te-diseipiinary-measures-if-neeessary--te
compel-ebservanees

The---use--ef--intexteating--1iguers--er--any--ether--sueh
stimutant-which-may-impatr-abt}ities-and-atertness-en--the
jeb-is-strietly-prehibited:--Anyene-under-the-influence-of
}iguer-er-any-ether-sueh-stimutant-shati-ret-be-atlewed-on
the-3jeb-while-in-that-conditiens

€---The--empleyer--shall--make--every--effort-to-see-that-eaeh
persen-Ras-been-trained-te-safely-perform--the--duties--te
whieh--the--persen--is--assigred--and--has-been-thereughty
tRstrueted-in-the--persenis--duties--and--respenrsibitities
uRder-this-artietes

6:---Empleyees-respensibititys

ar--Every--empleyee--must--earry-eut-assigred-duties-in-a-safe
and-preper-manner-and-take-any-ether--measures--reasenably
Reeessary-te-pretect-the-1ife-and-safety-ef-ati-empleyeess

b:--FThe--employee--shall--make--every--effort-te-keep-setf-and
eewerkers;--and--all--machines--er--equipment--free---frem
aceidents-te-the-best-of-the-employeets-abititys

€:--Every---empleyee--shati--abide--by--the--safety--rutes--as
preseribed-by--the--werkers--compensatien--bureau--er--1ts
autherized-representativess

d---Every-employee-shatl-eemply-with-this-artiete---Whenever-a
doeubt-exists-as-te-the-meaning;-the-employee-shati--ebtain
a-elear-understanding-befoere-starting-the-werk:

e---Empleyees--shati-wear-elothing-which-is-apprepriate-te-the
duties-performed-and-eonditions-eneountereds

f---Empleyees--shati-wear;-use;-and-preperty-care-for-persenat
pretective-safety-equipments

g---Every--employee-must-maintain-preper-physical-condition-te
safely-perform-the-assigred-works
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h---Empleyees--shall--net--repert--te--the-joeb-while-under-the
influence--of--tAtoxicating--1iquers--er--any--ether--sueh
stimutant--which-may-impair-abilities-and-alertress-en-the
job-anrd-shatl-net-use-intexicating-1igquers--er--any--ether
sueh--stimulant--white--en--the--jeb- Repealed effective
June 1, 2000.

History: Amended-effeetive-August-1;-1987:-Nevember-1;-1987:
General Authority: NBEE-65-83-81
Law Implemented: NBEE-65-03-81

92-02-01-03.1. Definitions. Fer-purpeses-ef-Nerth-Baketa-Eentury
Eede-chapter-65-14;-the-fotlowing-definttions-apptys

1:--“Heatth--prefessienat’--means--a-duty-1icensed-medieal-deetor;
doctor-of-osteopathy;-and-registered-nurses

2:--"Material--safety--data'-means-that-infermatien-required-te-be
kept-as-detatted-in--the--Nerth--Baketa--empleyee--infermatien
pregram--iRetuding--materiat--identification;--ingredients-and
hazards;-physteal-datas;-fire-and--explesien--datas--reactivity
datas;--heatth--hazard--informatien;--spitifteak--and--dispesat
precedures;--speeial--protection--informatien;---and---speetatl
precautioRs-and-commentss

3:--Yarianee'--means--an--agreement-te-engage-in-an-act-oer-methed
which-deviates-frem--the--Nerth--Daketa--empleyee--infermatien
pregram;--but--prevides-at-}east-the-same-degree-ef-safety-and
health-as-weuld-Be-previded--had--the--requirement--been--mets
FThis--sheuld--nret--be--eenstrued-to-mean-an-exemptien-frem-the
reguirements-of-seetions-92-02-01-03:-1-through--92-02-61-83:7<
Repealed effective June 1, 2000.

History: Effeetive-Mareh-265-1986-
General Authority: NBEE-65-82-68
Law Implemented: NBEE-65-14-01

92-02-01-03.2. The North Dakota act and federal hazard
regulations. MNerth-Baketa-€entury-cede-ehapter-65-14-requires-employers
to-implement-an-empleyee-information-pregram: --Varianees-witl-be-granted
pHPSHaRt-te-subseetion-6-of-Nerth-Daketa-Eentury-€Code--seetion--65-14-62
where--the-bureau-determines-that-the-empleyer-whe-requests-the-varianee
Ras-eemplied-with--sueh--federal--regutatien:---Nething--herein--may--be
eonstrued-to-foreclose-the-bureau-from-inspecting;-and-investigating-the
empleyee-information-pregrams-ef--these--te--whem--varianees--have--been
granted: Repealed effective June 1, 2000.

History: Effeetive-Mareh-265-1986-
General Authority: NBEE-65-82-68
Law Implemented: NBEE-65-14-01;-65-14-082
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_ 9?-02-01-63.3: Written program. Anr-empleyee-infermatien-pregram

ts-required-as-previded-for-in-the-“Nerth--Baketa--Empleyee--informatien

Pregram“-pubtications-ineluding-the-fellewing-areass
1---Hazardeus-chemieal-inventery:
2:---ldentification-of-chemicals-useds
3:---Materia}-safety-data-sheets:

4:--tabeling-contreis:

5:--Spi1i--er--emergeney-respense-teams-and-kits;-as-may-be-deemed
Reeessary-by-the-bBureaus

6:--Menitering:
F:--Supervisery-training:-and
8. Empleyee-tratntRgs

By--erder--of-the-commissien;-this-pregram-may-be-required-to-be-reduced
to-a-written-form: Repealed effective June 1, 2000.

History: Effeetive-Mareh-24;-1986+
General Authority: NBEE-65-62-88
Law Implemented: NBEE-65-14-61

92-02-01-03.4. Documentation of employee training. A-training
pregram-shatl--be--implemented--whereby--each--empleyee--is--tratned--te
preperty--and-safely-handle-hazardeus-substanees:--Sueh-training-efforts
shali-be-deecumented-by-use-of-a-form;-matntained-by--the--employer;--and
must--be--sigred--by--the--individual--reeeiving-the-traintng: Repealed
effective June 1, 2000.

History: Effeetive-Mareh-24;-1986-
General Authority: NBEE-65-82-68
Law Implemented: NBEE-65-14-61

92-02-01-03.5. Trade secrets.

1:--The--chemical-manufacturer;-imperter;-er-employer-may-withhotd
the-speeifie-chemical-identity;-inetuding--the--ehemieal--name
and--ether--speeifie--identificatieon--of-a-hazardeus-chemieals
from-the-material-safety-data-sheet;-provided-thats:

a:--The--chemieal--manufaeturer;--imperter;--er--employer--€an

demenstrate-the-faets-which-undertie-the-1egal--eonetusien
that-the-chemical-identity-is-a-trade-seerets
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b:--information--contained--in--the-material-safety-data-sheet
EOREEFRiRg-the-preperties-and--effects--of--the--hazardeus
ehemieat-1s-diseloseds

e---The-matertal-safety-data-sheet-indicates-that-the-speeifie
cehemteat-identity-+s-being-withheld-as-a-trade-seerets-and

d---Fhe-speetfie-chemical-identity-is-made-avattable-te-health
prefessienats;---in---aceerdance---with---the---appliecable
previsiens-ef-this-seetions

2:--Where--a-treating-phRysietan-er-nurse-determines-that-a-medieal
emergeney--exists-and-the--speeifie--chemical--identity--of--a
hazardeus--ehemieat--15--reeessary--fer-emergency-er-first-aid
treatment;-the-chemical-manufacturer;--imperter;--or--empieyer
shati-immediately-diselose-the-speeific-chemical-identity-of-a
trade-seeret-chemicat-to-that--treating--physietan--er--nurses
regardiess--ef-the-existenece-of-a-written-statement-ef-need-or
a--confidentiatity--agreement:---The--chemieal---manufaeturer;
imperter;--er-employer-may-require-a-written-statement-ef-need
and-confidentiatity-agreement-as-seen-as-cireumstanees-permits

3:--In-Renemergency-situations;-chemical-manufacturers;-imperterss;
er-empleyers-must--diselese--the--withheld--speeifie--chemieal
tdentity--te--health--prefessionals-previding-medical-er-ether
eccupationat-health-serviees-to-expesed-empleyees--if--eertain
ceonditions--are--met:---The-request-for-information-must-be-#n
writing-and-must-deseribe-with-reasenable-details;-the-medieal
er--eceupatienal-health-needs-fer-the-information:--The-heatth
prefessional-must-atse--speeify--why--eurrent--information--is
insuffieient----The--request--for-informatien-must-exptatn;-in
detai}s;-why-diselosure-of-the-speeifie--chemieal--1dentity--4s
essenrtia};--and--inrelude--the-procedures-te-be-used-to-protect
the-confidentiality-of-the-informations--1t--must--inetude--an
agreement--net--to--use-this-informatien-fer-any-purpese-ether
than-the-health-need--stated;--er--te--release--+t--under--any
e€ireumstanees;-except-te-the-Nerth-Baketa-werkers-eempensation
bureau-and-the-Nerth-Baketa-state--department--ef--heatth--and
eonsetidated-taberateriess

4:--The-confidentiality-agreement-authorized-by-this-seetions

ar--May--restriet--the--use--ef--the-information-te-the-heatth
purpese-indicated-in-the-written-statement-of-need;

b---May-previde-fer-apprepriate-legal-remedies-in-the-event-of
a-breach-of-the--agreement;--inetuding--stiputatien--ef--a
reasenable-preestimate-of-1ikely-damagess-and

e---May--net-inelude-requirements-for-the-pesting-ef-a-penatty
berds

318



5:--§n--nenemepgeney--situat#ens;-where-the-eheméea%-manufaetuper;
imperter;-er-employer-denies-a-written-request-for--diselosure
ef-a-specifie-chemical-identity;-the-denial-musts

ar--Be--previded-to-the-health-prefessional-within-thirty-days
ef-the-request:

b:--Be-in-writing:

€---1nelude--evidence--to--suppert-the-etaim-that-the-speeifie
chemieal-identity-is-a-trade-seerets

d---State--the--speeifie--reasens--why--the--request--is-being
denteds-and

e---Exptain--in-detati-hew-atternrative-informatien-may-satisfy
the-speeific-medical-or-eceupationat-heatth--need--witheut
reveating-the-speeifie-chemical-identitys

6---FThe--heatth--prefessienat--whese--request--for--information-is
denied-may-refer-the-request-and-written-dental-ef-the-request
to---the---Nerth---Daketa---werkers--compenrsatien--bureau--for
€onstderatiens

F:--1f--the--Nerth--Daketa--werkers-compensation-burean-determines
that-the-speeifie-chemical-identity-requested-+s--not--a--bena
fide--trade--seeret;--er--that--it--is--a-trade-seeret-but-the
requesting-health-prefessienat-has--a--legitimate--medieat--or
eccHpatienal--heatth--need-for-the-information;-has-exeeuted-a
written-confidentiality--agreement;--and--has--shewn--adequate
means--te--protect-the-confidentiality-ef-the-informations-the
cehemical-manufacturer;-imperter;-or-employer-witi--be--subjeet
te-eitatien-by-the-Nerth-Daketa-werkers-compensation-bureaus

8:--1f-a-chemical-manufacturer;-imperter;-or-employer-demenstrates
to-the-Nerth--Baketa--werkers--compensatien--bureau--that--the
exeeution--of--a--confidentiality--agreement-woultd-net-previde
sufficient-pretection-against--the--petential--harm--frem--the
uRautherized--diselosure--ef--a-trade-seeret-speeifie-chemieatl
tdentity;-the-commissieners-may-issue-sueh--orders--er--impoese
sueh--additional-}imitatiens-er-conditieons-upen-the-disetosure
of-the-requested-chemical-information-as-may-be-apprepriate-te
assure--that--the--eccupational--health--services-are-provided
witheut-an-undue-risk-ef-harm-te--the--chemieal--manufacturers
imperter;-er-empleyer: Repealed effective June 1, 2000.

History: Effeetive-MareR-265-19864-amended-effeetive-August-15-1987+
General Authority: NBEE-65-82-68
Law Implemented: NBEE-65-14-82{4}

92-02-01-03.6. Labeling.
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1:--FThe--chemical-manufacturer;-imperter;-or-employer-shatl-ensure
that--each--eentatner--of--hazardeus--chemicats;--sterage---or
transfer--contatner;--dispenser;--and--pipe;--be--elearty--and
apprepriately-marked-with-apprepriate-hazard--warningss--whieh
may--Be-any-type-ef-message;-weords;-ptetures;-er-symbels-whieh
eonvey-the-hazards-of-the-chemicals-in-the-containers

2:--The-employer-is-net-required-to-label-pertable-coentainers-inte
whieh--hazardeus--echemicals--are--transferred---frem---1abeled
€oRtainers;--and--whieh--are--fer--the--immediate--use--ef-the
empleyee-whe-perferms-the-transfer:

3:--FThe--emptoyer--shatl--ensure--that--1abels--er--ether-forms-of
warRing-are-legible;-in-English;-and-preminently-disptayed--en
the---eontatner;---er--readity--avaitable--in--the--work--area
througheut-each-work-shift---Empleyers--having--empieyees--whe
speak--ether--1anguages--may--add--the--infermation--in--their
tanguage-te-the-material-presented;-as-1eng-as-the-infermatien
ts--presented--in-ERglish-as-wetl: Repealed effective June 1,
2000.

History: Effeetive-Mareh-24;-1986+
General Authority: NBEE-65-82-88
Law Implemented: NBEE-65-14-01

92-02-01-03.7. Inspections and investigations. 7Fhe-bureau-shati
conduet-inspections-and-investigations-fer-the-purpese-ef-enforeing--the
requirements-ef-Nerth-Daketa-Century-code-chapter-65-14:--1f-found-to-be
in-vielatien-ef-sueh-requirements;-penatties-may-be-1evied--pursdant--te
Nerth--Daketa--Eentury-Code-section-65-03-02;-injunetive-retief-ebtained
BHPSHARt-t6-SuBdivisien-e-of-subsection-1-of-Nerth-Daketa--Eentury--cede
section--65-04-27-1--or--stop--erders-issued-pursuant-te-subseetien-2-of
Nerth-Daketa-Eentury-Code-seetion-65-14-02-and-Nerth-Daketa-Eentury-€cede
cehapter-28-32: Repealed effective June 1, 2000.

History: Effeetive-Mareh-24;-1986<

General Authority: NBEE-65-82-88

Law Implemented: NBEE--65-14-01;--65-14-02(1};--65-14-02(2};--65-03-625
65-04-27:1¢1} (e}

92-02-01-64. Housekeeping.

1:--Safety--begins--with--geed-heusekeeping-whieh-shati-be-part-ef
the-datly-reutine:--A}}-passagewayss-stairwayss--and--gangways
used-by-empleyees-er-epen-te-publie-use-shati-be-kept-elear-ef

materials;-supplies;-and-ebstruetions-ef-every-kinds-

2:--teese--or--}ight--material--shat}--net--be-left-1ying-abeut-en
fleers-er-reefs-that-are-net-elesed-in;-untess-safety-seeured:
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3:--teese--betts;--Ruts;--er--rivets--shati-be-collected-daity-and
placed-in-kegs-er-ether-suitable-receptacies:

4:--Teets--shati-ret-be-strewn-abeut-where-they-may-cause-tripping
er-other-hazard:---¥eels-used-everhead-shall;--at--the--end--of
eaeh--work--shift;-be-collected-and-stered-in-the-teel-shed-or
ether-place-previded-fer-their-sterage-when-net-in-uses

5:--Protruding--ratis-in-beards;-ptanks-er-timbers;-which-may-be-a
hazard-shall-be-remeved;-hammered-in;-er-Bent-ever-fiush--with
the-weed:

6:--At}--fleer--surfaeces--shall--be--matntained--in--a-nensiippery
€ondition--and--shat}--be--free--of---uRReeessary---heles---or
prejectiens-that-might-cause-injuriess--ARy-nRecessary-epen+ngs
shatl-be-preperly-guarded-and-pretected: Repealed effective
June 1, 2000.

General Authority: NBEE-65-83-6%
Law Implemented: NBEE-65-83-01

92-02-01-05. Sanitation, water, food, first aid supplies and
services.

1:--The--rules--ef-the-Nerth-BDaketa-state-department-ef-health-and
eonselidated-taberateries-and-the-Nerth-Daketa-taws-pertaining
te-sanitatien;-water;-and-feed-shall-be-ebserved-at-ali-timess

2:--Adequate--toitlet--faetlities;--matntained--in--elean;-sanitary
conditien;--shali--be--proevided--at--er--nrear--ati--ptaees--ef
employment--to--conform--with--prevailing-eedes;-standards;-er
state-}awss

3:--Faeilities--and--metheds--used-in-eonstruetion;-industriat;-or
any-ether-eceupatien-shall--be--adequate--te--aveid--expesures
which-eould-result-in-eceupationat-diseasess

Ailment-{hazard}---------=ccecmcaoano- Type-of-work
ar--Stli€@535------mmmmmnnn- Sandblasting;-grinding;
sand-and-gravel-eperatienss
b:--Earben-meRexide--------- ARry-internal-cembustien
PO$S6A$AG----=-=-========= eRgine-er-apparatus;-bHPA$AG;

er-heating-eperatienss
€r--Metal-peisening--------- Pairting;-plumbing;-gtazing;

-hand}ing-1ead;-cadmium;

ZiRE;-OP-€OPPEF:

d---Bermatitis---------c--u- Hard}ing-cement;-1imes
aeids;-paintssy-setventss

321



and-sther-materials
er-substaneess

er--far-buFRS-aRd-~---====-- Hard}ing-het-asphatts
PO+56RATAG-====-======m-un piteh;-er-tars

4:--Adequate--suppty--ef--petable--and-safe-drinking-water;-within
reasenable-aeeess-to-atl--werkers;--shat}--be--previded;--with
sanitary-previsiens-fer-drinking---A-commen-drinking-eup-shali
ret-be-useds

S:--Fipst-atd-supplies-and-servieess

ar--First--aid--suppties--shali--be-previded-by-eve<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>